COPY NO.

19/115/2 1/h13

INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE BRANCH OFFICE, NEW DELHI.

Industrialand Labour Developments in January-February 1967.

ANNEXE 430

N.B.- Each Section of this Report may be taken out Separately.

	Contents.	Pages.
1.L.O. REGISTRY-GENEVA	CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION.	
Elle 3.3 -2-30//11. With on:	Political Situation and Administrative Action:	
	 (a) Parliament Not Empowered to take Away Fundamental Rights of the Constitution of India: Decision of Supreme Court. (b) President's Address to Joint Session of Both Houses of Parliament, 11 March 1967. (c) Fourth General Elections: Ruling Party Loses Absolute Majority in Eight States: Majority reduced in Lok Sabha. 	1-2 n 3
	CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.	
21.	United Nations and Specialised Agencies	<u>:</u>
	South-East Asian Experts Conference on Co-operative Marketing held at New Delh 15 January 1967: Expansion of Consumer Market Recommended.	i,
26.	Organisations of Foremen and of Manager of Undertakings:	-
	Textile Labour Association: Its Activities and Contribution towards Improvement of Workers! Welfare.	8–9

		Contents.	Pages.
	CH.	APTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS.	
32.	Pub.	lic Finance and Fiscal Policy:	
	` `	Interim Budget for 1967-68 presented to Parliament on 20 March 1967: Deficit of 3,500 Million Rupees Estimated: Big Allocation for Agriculture.	10–16
	(b)	Interim Railway Budget for 1967-68 Presented to Parliament on 20 March 1967: Deficit of 152.7 Million Rupees during 1966-67: Gross Traffic Receipts at 8,260 Million Rupees estimated.	17–19
34.	Ecor	nomic Planning, Control and Development:	<u>.</u>
	(a)	Larger Size of Companies Recommended: Study by Economic and Scientific	
	(b)		20
	(c)	Industrialisation of Nepal. Reports of the Steering Group on Incomes Ceilings not Trices Published: Incomes Ceilings not	21 .
	(a)	favoured. Recommendations made by UN Team to	22-24
	(e)	Boost Exports from India.	25 – 26 27
36 .	Wage	es:	
	Clau	ort on the Working of the Fair Wage use and C.P.W.D. Contractors' Labour Lations for the Year 1965.	28-30
	CH.	APTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.	
41.	Agr:	iculture:	
		Mysore Prevention of Fragmentation and Consolidation of Holdings Act, 1966 (Mysore Act No.1 of 1967).	l 31
	(b)	Tea Industry: Committee set up to undertake a comprehensive review of the economic conditions and problems	
	(c)	of the Industry.	32 33.34
		0 Odramorr o B	33 – 34

33-34

	Côntents.	Pages.
42 o	Co-operation: Third Asian Agricultural Cooperative Conference held at New Delhi, 23 January 1967.	35
	CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS. General:	
	Review of the Working of Legislation Governing Conditions of Employment in Shops and Commercial Establishments during 1964.	36–37
52。	Workers' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education:	
	Servants of the Workers' Society of India to be set up.	3 8
	CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.	
60.	General:	* .
,	Industrial Disputes in India during 1965.	39-45
64.	Wage Protection and Labour Clauses in Employment Contracts with the Public Authorities:	·
	Mysore: Payment of Wages Act, 1936, extended to Persons employed in Loading and Unloading Operations in Docks.	46
66.	Strike and Lockout Hights:	
	 (a) Madhya Pradesh Atyasashyak Seva Sandharan Adhyadesh 1967 (Madhya Pradesh Essential Services Maintenanc Ordinance 1967). (b) Uttar Pradesh Essential Services Maintenance Act, 1966(NP Act No.XXX of 1966). 	e 47–48 49–50
67.	Conciliation and Arbitration:	
	Conference of Bombay Textile Research Association on Human Factors in Industry, Bombay, 30 January 1967.	5152

Contents.	Pages.
68. Labour Courts: No Medical Bonus for Women where E.S.I.	
Act Applies: Decision of Madras High Court.	53
CHAPTER.7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.	
71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	
 (a) Maharashtra: Dearness Allowance of School Teachers Increased. (b) Gujarat: Dearness Allowance of 	54
Government Staff Increased. (c) Andhra Pradesh: Dearness Allowance	55
at Central Rates granted to State Government Employees. (d) Full Rail Fare Concession granted to	56
Central Government Employees. (e) Agreement Reached between the Management and the All India Reserve Bank Workers' Federation: Class IV Staff	
to get higher Wages. CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.	58
81. Employment Situation:	
Arrangements made by Government of India for rehabilitation of repatriats from Ceylon and Burma.	59–60
LIST OF THE PRINCIPAL LAWS PROMULGATED DURING THE PERIOD COVERED BY THE REPORT FOR JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.	61
BIBLIOGRAPHY - INDIA - JANUARY FEBRUARY 1967.	62-63

CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION.

INDIA - JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

11. Political Situation and Administrative Action.

Parliament Not Empowered to take Away Fundamental Rights of the Constitution of India: Decision of Supreme Court.

According to a majority judgment of the Supreme Court announced on 27 February 1967, the Parliament has no power to take away or abridge any of the fundamental rights guaranteed by the Constitution by the process of constitutional amendment. These rights are given a transcendental position and kept beyond the reach of parliamentary legislation.

The Constitution First, Fourth and Seventeenth Amendment Acts protecting legislation relating to the acquisition of property by the State from judicial review on the ground of violation of fundamental rights was beyond Parliamentary competence. Great social and economic changes, however, had been made on the basis of these laws and having regard to the requirements of justice the Court would limit the effect of its judgment to future legislation only. The existing amendments to the Constitution were therefore declared valid.

The Chief Justice of India giving judgment for himself and four other judges of the Supreme Court dismissed on 27 February 1967 the petitions by Golak Nath and others against the State of Punjab and summarized his main conclusions as follows:-

- "1. The power of Parliament to amend the Constitution is derived from Articles 245, 246 and 248 of the Constitution and not from Article 368, which only deals with procedure. Amendment is a legislative process.
- "2. Amendment is 'law' within the meaning of Article 13 of the Constitution and, therefore, if it takes away or abridges the rights conferred by Part III governing fundamental rights, it is void.
- "3. The Constitution (First Amendment) Act 1951, Constituion (Fourth Amendment) Act, 1955, and the Constitution (Seventeenth Amendment) Act 1964,

abridge the scope of fundamental rights. But, on the basis of earlier decisions of this Court, they were valid.

- "4. On the application of the doctrine of "Prospective over-ruling" this decision will have prospective operation only, and therefore, the said amendments will continue as valid.
- "5. Parliament will have no power from the date of this decision to amend any of the provisions of Part III of the Constitution so as to take away or abridge the fundamental rights enshrined therein.
- "6. As the Constitution (Seventeenth Amendment) Act holds the field the validity of the Punjab Security & Land Tenures Act 1953 and the Mysore Land Reforms Act 1962 challenged in these proceedings cannot be questioned on the ground that they offend Articles 13, 14, or 31 of the Constitution."

The Chief Justice giving his reasons in support of the judgment said that a correct appreciation of the scope and place of Fundamental Rights in the Constitution would give the right perspective for solving the problem presented to the Court. The Fundamental Rights to equality, freedom, property and equality were embodied in Part III of the Constitution. After declaring the Fundamental Rights the Constitution enjoins the State by Article 13(2) not to make any law which takes away or abridges these rights and declares such laws void.

While recognising the immutability of Fundamental Rights the Constitution provides for their modification in social interest and even suspension during an emergency. Both Shri Jawaharlal Nehru and Dr. Ambedkar were of the view that the Fundamental Rights could not be amended. In this background and upon the interpretation of Articles 368 and 13(2) of the Constitution, his lordship felt that the Fundamental Rights could not be amended by Parliament.

(The Statesman, 28 February, 1967).

President's address to Joint Session of Both Houses of Parliament, 11 March 1967.

Dr. Radhakrishnan, President of India, addressed on 11 March 1967, a joint session of both houses of Parliament comprising of newly elected and re-elected members consequent upon the Fourth General Election held in India during the month of February 1967. Addressing the session the President said that for the first time since Independence, Governments of political complexions different from that of the Government at the Centre had been formed in several States and in a federal democratic policy, this was to be expected. Constitution has provisions defining and regulating the relationship between the Union and the States and their mutual obligations. The President assured the House that the Government would respect the Constitutional provisions in letter and in spirit without any discrimination and endeavour to strengthen the arrangements for a cooperative approach to thenational problems.

Dr. Radhakrishanan told the House that the Government have decided upon from four major objectives in the economic sphere. These were: To end dependence on food assistance from abroad by the end of 1971; to do all that was possible to ensure that the rising trend in prices of the basic necessities of life was halted and conditions of stability were achieved in the shortest possible time; to obtain and sustain an adequate rate of economic need for external assistance by 1976; and to pursue the national programmes of family planning.

The President said that the success of all the plans and projects depended upon the efficiency and integrity of the administration. administration. To ensure efficiency in performance changes would be made in the administrative set-up. The Planning Commission would be re-organised. The working of controls would also be reviewed; those found unnecessary would be withdrawn and others re-adjusted as might be required to make theme them more purposeful and efficient.

(The Statesman, 14 March 1967).

Fourth General Elections: Ruling Party Loses Absolute Majority in Eight States: Majority reduced in Lok Sabha.

The Fourth General Elections in India began on 15 February 1967 and war practically completed on 21 February by which date over 251 million strong electorate in the country cast its votes for 16,215 candidates for the State Assemblies and 2,334 for the Lok Sabha.

At the Centre the ruling party, the Indian National Congress, was returned with a considerably reduced majority.

In the States the Congress has formed Governments in Andhra, Assam, Gujarat, Jammu and Kashmir, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Mysore and Nagaland. In Madras the Dravida Munnetra Kazaham has formed the Government with a big majority, while in Bihar, Haryana, Kerala, Orissa, Punjab, Uttar Pradesh, and West Bengal, various oppositions parties have combined to form the Governments. In Rajasthan President's Rule has been imposed. In the other States and Union Territories, the Congress lost in Delhi, Goa, Daman and Diu but won in Himachal Pradesh, Manipur, Tripura and Pondicherry.

The names of the Central Council of Ministers and their portfolios are given below:-

Members of the Cabinet

Mrs. Indira Gandhi -	Prime Minister and
	Minister for Atomic
	Energy.
Mr. Morarji R. Desai -	Deputy Prime Minister and
0 0 0 0 0	Minister of Finance.
Mr. Fakhruddin Ali Ahmed-	Industrial Development and
	Company Affairs.
Mr. M.C. Chagla	External Affairs.
75	Home Affairs.
	Commerce.
Mr. Jai Sukh Lal Hathi -	Labour and Rehabilitation.
Mr. Jagjivan Ram	Food and AgricSulture.
Dr. Karan Sangh	Tourism and Civil Aviation.
Mr. Asoka Mehta _	Planning, Petroleum and
	Chemicals and Social
	Welfare.
Mr. P. Govinda Menon -	Law.
Mr. C.M. Poonacha	Railways.

- Parliamentary Affairs and Dr. Ram Subhag Singh Communications. - Transport and Shipping. Dr. V.K.R.V. Rao - Steel, Mines and Metals. Dr. M. Chenna Reddy - Education. Dr. Triguna Sen Information and Broad-Mr. K.K. Shah casting. Mr. Satya Narayan Sinha - Minister without Portfolio. - Defence. Mr. Swaran Singh Minister of State Mr. B.R. Bhagat Defence. Health and Family Dr. S. Chandrasekhar Planning. - Railways. Mr. Parimal Ghosh - Department of Social Mrs. Phulrenu Guha Welfare. - Works, Housing and Supply. Mr. Jagannath Rao - Labour and Rehabilitation. Mr. L.N. Mishra - Finance. Mr. K.C. Pant Law.Irrigation and Power. Mr. K. Raghuramaiah Dr. K.L. Rao Mr. Raghunath Reddy - Industrial Development and Company Affairs.
- Steel, Mines and Metals. Mr. P.C. Sethi - Education. Professor Sher Singh Mr. Anna Sahib Shinde - Food and Agriculture. Mr. V.C. Shukla - Home Affairs. Deputy Ministers - Transport and Shipping. Mr. Bhakt Darshan Mr. Rohanlal Chaturvedi - Department of Parliamentary Affairs. Mr. D.R. Chava Ministry of Law. - Ministry of Food, Mr. D. Ering Agriculture, Community Development and Cooperation. Mrs. Jahanara Jaipal Singh-Ministry of Tourism and Civil Aviation. Mr. S.C. Jamir Ministry of Railways. Dr. (Miss) Sarojini Mahishi-No portfolio. Mr. B.S. Murthy Health and Family Planning. Mr. Mohd Shafi Qureshi Commerce. Mr. K.S. Ramaswamy Home Affairs. Mr. J.B. Muthyal Rao - Department of Parliamentary Affairs. Mrs. Nandini Satpathy - Ministry of Information and Broadcasting.

Mr. Bhanu Prakash Singh

IndustrialDevelopment and Company Affairs. Works, Housing and Supply.
Ministry of External Affairs.

Sardar Iqbal Singh

Mr. Surendra PalSingh

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.

INDIA - JANUARY-FENRUARY 1967.

21. United Nations and Specialised Agencies.

South-East Asian Experts' Conference on Co-operative Marketing held at New Delhi, 15 January 1967: Expansion of Consumer Market Recommended.

A Conference of South-East Asian Experts on Cooperative Marketing was held at New Delhi under the auspices of the International Cooperative Alliance, on 15 January 1967. The Conference was inaugurated by Mr. Cedric Day, Deputy Regional Representative of the Food and Agricultural Organisation. Among others, the Conference was addressed by Shri Braham Parkash, General Secretary of the National Cooperative Union of India and, Dr. S.K. Saxena, Regional Officer of the International Cooperative Alliance. The Conference was attended by delegates from Ceylon, India, Japan, the Republic of Korea, the Philippines, Singapore and Thailand and observers from various international organisations.

Shri N.N. Kaul attended the Conference on behalf of the I.L.O.

(Documents and Report of the Conference were sent to the Headquarters vide this Office minute F.42/301/67 dated 30 January 1967).

=======

26. Organisations of Foremen and of Manager of Undertakings.

India - January-February 1967.

Textile Labour Association: Its Activities and Contribution towards Improvement of Workers' Welfare.

According to an article which has been published in the Statesman, 15 February 1967, a textile worker in Ahmedabad today is the highest paid among his colleagues elsewhere in the country. He was getting about 20 per cent. less wages than that prevailing in Bombay in 1920 when the Textile Labour Association came into being. But today his is 10 per cent. more. This is the TLA leaders claim, is entirely attributable to the long spell of industrial peace in Ahmedabad, which, in its turn is the result of its general adherance to the principle of arbitration in settling labour disputes. In this respect, the TLA can certainly claim to be the pace-setter.

With its 1.2 million rupees annual budget, a highly efficient secretariat to assist workers in their day-to-day grievances about service conditions, a bank the working capital of which rose to over 53 million rupees in 1963 from a mere 3.1 million rupees 15 years ago; a 200-strong paid cadre mainly to be among the workers in the mills and to act as liaison between them and the employer; and with over 100 co-operative societies run under its aegis, the Association has today an outfit easily comparable to the very best evolved by a trade union in a Western country.

Benefits. In Ahmedabad and its industrial suburbs, the TLA's presence is pergasive. On one of the his days off from work, a textile labourer can put up his case against the employer for examination, admit his son to a school, buy his weekly ration from the after withdrawing some money from the bank, send his wife to hospital for a check-up and end his busy day with an hour in the community centre or the reading room.

All these benefits and many more are provided by the TLA.

The Majdoor Sahakari Bank run by the TLA functions more as an apex co-operative bank than a banker. With over 37,000 members each with a minimum investment of Rs.10 in its shares, the bank has to attend to about 400 transactions daily. The bank's total deposits rose from 0.95 million rupees in 1948 to 3.2 million rupees in 1963. It has so far advanced 4 million rupees as loans to about 7,000 members against personal security of immovable properties.

This bank also assists about 15 consumers co-operative and 32 credit societies run by the Association, and has encouraged with material help as many as 60 housing societies. These co-operative housing colonies with electricity and pipe water supply consists mostly of two-roomed tenements, each costing 12,000 rupees to 16,000 rupees and can easily be classed among the very best of their type in any other part of the country. Indeed, they are much better in lay-out and more utilitarian than any conceived so far in Bombay or Calcutta under the Industrial Housing Schemes. Land for most has been obtained free from the Government.

Apart from intervening effectively in the grievances of the employers and the employees, the Association makes available victimization and unemployment benefit and legal and medical It runs a number of schools, particularly for trade union education, and Its burden in this respect has been largely lightened by the Government/taking over charge of primary education recently. It has its own printing press. Its headquarters has as many as 14 departments, each specialized in particular aspects of the TLA's activities. One of them is entrusted with research. It keeps track of the movement of the industry's profit curve so that the Association is not outwitted by the employers individually or collectively.

Chapter 3. 2 conomic Questions.

32. Public Finance and Fiscal Policy.

India - January-February 1967.

Interim Budget for 1967-68 Presented to Parliament on 20 March 1967: Deficit of 3,500 Million Rupees Estimated: Big Allocation for Agriculture.

The Union Finance Minister, Shri Morarji Desai presented to Parliament on 20 March 1967 an interim budget for 1967-68, which envisages a revenue and expenditure of 30,710 million rupees. On the revenue side, it anticipates a surplus of 2,320 million rupees with receipts at 2,932 29,322.4 million rupees and expenditure at 26,990 million rupees. The capital budget stands balanced at 23,802.7 million rupees aftertaking into account the revenue surplus. The budget being an interim one contained no taxation proposals.

The Union Finance Minister painted a dismal picture of the budgetary position and regretted that in spite of an economy of 910 million rupees in administrative expenditure, the budget for 1966-67 would show a deficit of 3,500 million rupees against 320 million rupees anticipated earlier. This was attributed to an increased expenditure to an increased expenditure to an increased of 2,350 million rupees on the purchase and sale of foodgrains and of 2,610 million rupees of special assistance to States, including 1,130 million rupees of loans to them to clear their unauthorised overdrafts on the Reserve Bank.

Next year's anticipated revenue receipts of 30,700 million rupees at the existing level of taxation meant an increase of 2,140 million rupees over the revised estimates for 1966-67.

The Finance Minister expected an increase of 860 million rupees from excise duties on petroleum products; 580 million rupees from customs; 150 million rupees from income-tax; and 370 million rupees from interest receipts. Of the total revenue receipts the State's share of Central excise duties would be 3,700 million rupees.

The Central Plan outlay during the current financial year wald would be 17,650 million rupees - 1,170 million rupees more than budgeted earlier. Defence spending would be higher by 290 million rupees and interest charged by 480 million rupees.

The Finance Ministerestimated next year's defence expenditure at 9,690 million rupees - 8,454.9 million rupees on revenue account and 1,233.8 million rupees on capital account.

Agriculture programmes will get 4,050 million rupees including 1,050 million rupees by way of fertilizer credits to the States, and family planning 280 million rupees.

A summary of the estimates is given below:-

CAPITAL BUDGET					
Receipts.	Budget 1966-67 (In	Revised 1966-67 Million Rup	Budget 1967-68 ees)		
Revenue Surplus.	3 , 039 . 7	1,744.9	2,328.4		
Public Debt (excluding PL 480 Loans).	7,438.5	9,215.3	11,863.0		
(a) Raised in India. (b) Raised abroad.	2,840.0 4,598.5		3,513.0 8,350.0		
PL 480 Receipts.	2,060.0(Y) 3,232.6	2,850.0		
(a) PL 480 Leans. (b) PL 480 Deposits. Floating Debt(Net)(Other than Try Bills - mainly securities	3,250.0 - 1,190.0	3,500.0 - 267.4	1,500.0 1,350.0		
issued to IMF, IBRD, IDA &ADB). Repayment of loans.	- <u>12.1</u> <u>3,700.0</u>	3,485.9 3,840.0	24.9 4,300.0		
(a) States & U Territories. (b) Others.	2,880.0 820.0	2,750.0	3,430.0 870.0		
Small Savings.	1,350.0	1,250.0	1,300.0		
Other Debt heads (Net) (Z).	1,631.4	2,176.7	1,136.4		
TOTAL RECEIPTS.	19,207.5	24,945.4	23,802.7		

(To be continued to next page)

CAPITAL BUDGET

	Budget 1966-67 (Revised 1966-67 In Million Rup	Budget 1967-68 ees)
Disbursen	nents		
Capital Expenditure (Z).	6,273.8	10,770.9	8,083.9
(a) Clivil: (i) Developmental.	3,178.4	3,261.7	3 , 334 . 8
Govt.Cos. & Corpns. Other expenditure.	1,116.7 2,061.7	1,162.9 2,098.8	1,591.6 1,743.2
(ii) Other Items.	- 159.1	4,333.2	1,606.0
Foodgrains & Fertilizers (Net). #rading losses written	- 102.0	2,245.2	,1,589.4
off to Revenue. Addl.subscription to	– 184.5	- 182.9	- 234.7
IMF, IBRD, IDA & ADB consequent to Devaluation Other expenditure.	<u> </u>	2,061.5	0 0
(b) Railways.	127.4	208.4	251.3
	1,806.0	1,751.4	1,617.5
(c) Posts and Telegraphs.	242.5	276.0	286.8
(d) Defence.	1,206.0	1,149.6	1,238.8
Loans and Advances.	10,109.3	14,133.4	11,184.0
(a) States & U.Territories. (b) Others.	6,659.3 3,450.0	9,208.7 4,924.7	7,392.5 3,791.5
Repayment of Debt.	3,141.9	2,541.1	1,534.8
(a) Raised in India. (b) Others Raised Abroad.	1,936.0 1,205.9	1,859.6 1,681.5	2,580.4 1,954.4
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS.	19,525.0	28,445.4	23,802.7
OVERALL DEFICIT.	- 317.5	- 3,500.0	• 0

REVENUE BUDGET

RECEIPTS							
(In Million Rupees)							
Heads of Revenue.	1965-66 Accounts	1966-67 Budget	1966-67 Revised	1967 -6 8 Budget			
Tax Revenue:							
Customs	53 . 897	56.020	59 . 600	65.400			
.Union Excise duties.	89.792	101.059	103.021	111.588			
Corporation Tax.	30.484	37.207	34.500	35.000			
Taxes on Income.	27.180	29.290	28.000	29.000			
Estate Duty.	0.666	0.810	0.675	0.725			
Taxes on Wealth.	1.206	1.400	1.225	1.250			
Expenditure Tax.	0.042	0.015	0.011	0.009			
Gift Tax.	0.226	0.129	0.185	0.150			
Other Heads.	2.574_	2.697	2.899				
Total.	206.067	228.627	230.116	246.322			
Non-tax Revenue:							
Debt Services.	30.767	36.000	37.173	40.911			
Administrative Services.	0.925	0.945	0.939	0.930			
Social & Developmental	0 8 9 2 9	ひゅうサン・	. 0 6 7 7 9	0 8 9 70			
Services.	1.938	2.256	2.223	2.287			
• • • •	10770	20270	2022)	2 620 1			
Multi-purpose River	0.012	0.012	0.014	0,015			
Schemes, etc.							
Pubhic Works, etc.	0.459	0.415	0.431	0.460			
Transport & Communication		0.845	0.959	1.095			
Currency and Mint.	6.367	6.494	6.580	7.802			
Miscellaneous.	2.700	1.907	2.208	2.142			
Contributions & Miscella-							
neous Adjustments.	3.370	4.334	4.146	4.164			
Extraordinary Items.	8.667	<u>3</u> . 066	0. 853	0.948			
Total.	55.978	56.336	55.526	60.754			
Total - Gross Revenue.	262.045	284.963	285.642	307.076			
-			·				
Deduct - States Share -		•		•			
Income Tax. (-)	12.334	(-) 13.045	(-) 13,710	(-)13.158			
Estate Duty. (-)	0.679	(-) 0.780	(-) 13.710 (-) 0.454	(-) 0.694			
				()			
Total. (-)	13.013	(-) 13.825	(-) 14.164	(-)13.852			
Total- Net Revenue.	249.032	271.138	271.478	293.224			
Deficit on Revenue Accoun	it	٥٥	0 0	a •			
Total.	249.032	271.138	271.478	293.224			
<u> </u>		<u> </u>					

(Table to be continued to next page)

Expenditure

(In Million Rupees)

		_		
Heads of Expenditure.	1965-66 Accounts.	1966-67 Budget	1966-67 Revised	1967-68 Budget
Collection of Taxes & Duties.	3,007	3 . 084	3.241	3.453
Debt Setrices.	37.062	41.483	46.281	50 。 99 7
Administrative Services.	9.540	11.008	12.290	12.377
Social & Developmental				
Bervices.	17.972	19 。 557	19.592	24.744
Multi-purpose River Schemes,		<u> </u>		
etc.	0.128	0.203	0.233	0.316
Public Works, etc.	2.324	2.383	2.579	2.839
Transport & Communications.	1.107	.1.094	1.292	1.399
Currency and Mint.	1.719	1.782	2.055	2.145
Miscellaneous.	12.375	15.235	18.302	17.350
Contributions & Miscellaneous	47 47E	67 407	63.921	68.723
Adjustments.	47 • 475	61.407 3.738	1.514	1.048
Extraordinary Items.	8.129 76.218	79.767	82.729	84.549
Defence Services(Net).	10.210	190101	02.129	<u> </u>
				060 040
Total- Expenditure.	217.056	240.741	254.029	269.940
Surplus on Revenue Account.	31.976	30 . 397	17.449	23.284
Total.	249.032	271.138	271.478	293.224
interes de la companya de la company				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Finance Minister's Speech. Presenting
the budget, Shri Morarji Desai said that the
aspirations and hopes for economic well-being
and a higher standard of living for millions
of people laid in accelerating the tempo of
development. But this laid to had to be done
without generating further inflationary pressures,
and on the basis of a realistic assessment of
the resources that could be mobilised in a
non-inflationary manner. The Government 's
energies would be directed towards attaining
their objective in the shortest possible time.

Non-Plan Grants .- The Finance Minister said that non-Plan grants to States and Union Territories next year would be 2,410 million rupees including 1,410 million rupees granted under the Finance Commission's award and 160 million rupees in lieu of tax on railway passenger fares. Non-Plan expenditure of the Centre under developmental heads next year was estimated at 1,830 million rupees - an increase of 190 million rupees over this year mainly under Education, Scientific Research and Public Works. The total interest charges next year were estimated at 5,100 million rupees which would be 470 million rupees more than the Revised. The administrative expenditure was placed at 1,640 million rupees as against 1,540 million rupees this year.

Shri Desai pointed out that the need for economy had been taken into account in making the budgetary provisions for next year on the expenditure side. He assured Parliament that the objective of the utmost economy in expenditure consistent with efficiency would continue to be pursued as a matter of the highest priority.

The resources for the Plan for 1967-68 would be 17,110 million rupees including 1,890 million rupees to be found by public sector undertakings from their own resources. Of these, the States would get 5,350 million rupees for their Plan schemes and the balance had been retained for the Central Plan including the Plan of the Union Territories.

He said the Central assistance to States would include 1,720 million rupees for agricultural programmes and 1,450 million rupees for irrigation and rural electridication schemes. Union Territories would get 80 million rupees for such programmes. The Central Plan also included 510 million rupees for agricultural programmes and 250 million rupees for the Agricultural Refinance Corporation.

In all, the Central Budget included 4,050 million rupees for programmes of agricultural importance. In addition, 1,050 million rupees had been provided for giving fertiliser credits to States. A provision of 280 million rupees for family planning had also been made in the Central Plan.

Shri Desai said that the Budget outlook during the current year (1966-67) had been dominated by the setback in agriculture. Considerable scarcity relief assistance to the States, subsidizing of large import of foodgrains, increased outlays on agricultural schemes and additional burden of dearness allowance were some of the causes for increased expenditure.

State Overdrafts. The Assistance of 1,130 million rupees to some of the States because of their overdrafts from the Reserve Bank had merely had the effect of increasing the deficit at the Central Centre. He, however, pointed out that if there were some States which had contributed to the deficit at the Centre, there were athers whose financial position had been sound.

The Reserve Bank, in consultation with the Central Government, had informed the States last December that in case an unauthorised overdraft persisted in future, the Bank would issue a notice to the State calling upon it to take adequate steps to eliminate such overdraft within a period of three weeks failing which it would be open to the Bank to stop payments on account of the State.

Simultaneously, the facilities for temporary accommodation were also suitably enlarged to give the State Governments greater flexibility in their ways and means position. "It is my earnest hopes", he said, "that with these arrangements, we will begin a new phase in which deficit financing by the State Governments will be a thing of the past."

(The Hindustan Times, 21 March, 1967).

Interim Railway Budget for 1967-68
Presented to Parliament on 20 March
1967: Deficit of 152.7 Million Rupees
during 1966-67: Gross Traffic Receipts
at 8,260 Million Rupees estimated.

According to the interim Railway Budget presented by Shri C.M. Poonacha, Minister for Railways, in the Lok Sabha on 20 March 1967, a serious fall in the earnings from traffic and a steep increase in working expenses have resulted in the Railway accounts showing a deficit of 152.7 million rupees for the current year (1966-67) as against the surplus of 221.9 million rupees anticipated.

For the budget year 1967-68, the Railway Minister placed the gross traffic receipts at 8,260 million rupees — an increase of 422.5 million rupees over the revised estimate for the current year. The estimated increase would be made up of about 330 million rupees under goods earnings and about 80 million rupees under passenger earnings. The goods earnings assume about 8½ million tonnes as additional originating traffic next year.

The following table gives a summary of the Railway Budget:-

(Please see table on the next page)

	Actuals 1965-66	Estimate 1966-67	s Estimate	1967-68
Gross Traffic Receipts. Ordinary revenue working expenses (net) i.e. after	7,335.7	7,953.3	7,837.5	8 , 260 . 0
taking credit or recover- ies. Appropriation to Depre- ciation Reserve Fund from	4,858.5	5,086.8	5,357.4	5,532.1
Revenue.	850.0	1,000.0	1,000.0	990.0
Appropriation to Pension Fund. Net miscellaneous expenditure (including cost of works charged to revenue).	120.0	135.0	135.0	149.0
	158.8	174.7	16 6. 9	170.5
Total.	5,987.3	6,396.5	6,659.3	6,841.6
Net Railway revenue. Dividend to general revenues.	1,348.4	1,556.8	1,178.2	1,418.4
	1,162.8	1,334.9	1,330.9	1,418.4
Net surplus (Plus)/				
deficit (minus).	+ 185.6	+ 221.9	- 152.7	—
		•		

Railway Minister's Speech. Reviewing the financial results, Shri C.M. Poomacha revealed that in 1965-66, the Railways actually showed a surplus of 185.6 million rupees against 299.9 million rupees anticipated in the revised estimates. The shortfall of 114.3 million rupees was on account of a decrease of 82.3 million rupees in traffic revenue and an increase of 32.0 million rupees in working expenses. Similarly the anticipated traffic revenue during 1966-67 had not been coming up to estimates.

Against the expectation of an additional 12 million tonnes of traffic, the actual materialisation was expected to be not more than 4.5 to 5 million tonnes. During the first ten months of the current year, revenue earning traffic on the Railways increased by only about 4 million tonnes. This shortfall was expected to affect revenue to the extent of 115.8 million rupees. The revised estimates of goods traffic receipts for the current year had thus to be brought down to 7,837.5 million rupees.

The Railway Minister told the House that the Railways had intensified efforts to effect economy in operating costs consistent with efficiency and safety. In August 1966, a complete ban had been placed on the recruitment of ministerial staff for administrative offices. Procedures were being rationalised and simplified and unproductive works were being eliminated. Revision of schedules for periodical maintenance of railway buildings and a watch on fuel consumption, besides extension of work study techniques to a number of railway establishments had all been yielding favourable results.

Shri PBoncha also referred to the cordial relations existing between the Railway administration and the two Federations of railwaymen. He paid a glowing tribute to railwaymen all over the country who had stood the hard test and faced stiff challenges in times of external threat and internal emergency and he was confident that the same spirit and enthusiasm would pervade their actions in the days to come.

(The Hindu, 21 March, 1967).

34. Economic Planning, Control and Development.

India - January-February 1967.

Larger Size of Companies Recommended: Study by Economic and Scientific Research Foundation.

The Economic and Scientific Research Foundation, after a study of the working of 200 companies, has concluded that if Indian companies have to hold their own in international business, they have to grow hagger, not smaller. According to the study, the Indian companies are not only small in size as compared to companies in other countries, but also in relation to the size of the country's economy by international standards.

According to the study, the sales of the top 10 companies in India account for 19 per cent. of the country's total industrial industrial output as against 43 per cent. in the Great Britain and 30 per cent. in the United States and Japan. As a proportion of national income, the Indian figure is still smaller: only 4 per cent. as compared to 19 per cent. in Britain and 12 per cent. in Japan.

In regard to sales the ranking is as follows: Hindustan Steel, Tata Iron and Steel Company, Indian Iron and Steel Company, Hindustan Lever, State Trading Corporation, Imperial Tobacco, Indian Oil, TELCO, Associated Cement Companies, Delhi Cloth Mill.

The Foundation's study, which is experted to be an annual guide to the performance of Indian companies, gives complete financial information about the top 200 companies, viz., sales, net assets, net worth, gross profit and net profit, along with their rankings under each of these heads.

(The Hindustan Times, 23 January, 1967).

Joint Council to be set up to Assist Industrialisation of Nepal.

According to a joint communique issued at New Delhi on 28 December 1966, consequent upon week-long talks in Kathmandu between the official delegations of India and Nepal, an Indo-Nepalese Joint Industrial Councils will be set up shortly to assist Nepal's efforts at industrialisation.

An inter-governmental joint committee has been set up to resolve, for the mutual benefit of the two countries, such difficulties as may arise in practice. This committee will meet once every quarter alternately in Kathmandu and New Delhi.

The two delgations discussed the question of Nepalese tariff discriminatory to India and of the refund of additional and special excise duties to Nepal and agreed to further discuss the matter later with a view to arriving at a mutually satisfactory solution.

To provide further facilities for transit traffic across India and to remove the difficulties which have been experienced by the Nepalese importers and exporters, it has been agreed that all import cargo arriving at the port of Calcutta will be moved in the first instance to the transit shed, from where it will expeditiously cleared by the Customs authorities in Calcutta. It has also been agreed that Indian laws will not apply to the transit trade of Nepal.

(The Hindustan Times, 29 December, 1966).

Report of the Steering Group on Incomes and Prices published: Incomes Ceilings not favoured.

The report of the Steering Group on incomes and prices policy set up in June 1964 under the presidentship of Dr. B.K. Madan, Deputy Governor of the Reserve Bank of India, has been published recently. The report has concluded that it is not possible in Indian conditions to enforce either a floor or ceiling on incomes. However, it has suggested a permanent body to study and recommend workable policies from time to time in relation to general economic conditions.

Social Justice.—The Group's report says that, while a national minimum income is desirable from the point of view of social justice, under the existing conditions of unemployment, under-employment and low incomes, even a modestly defined minimum income cannot be enforced by regulation over the economy as a whole. Such enforcement would require fiscal or administrative transfers of incomes wwhich are not practicable. Progress towards a national minimum has, therefore, to come largely through increases in investment, employment and productivity in all sectors of the economy taken together.

A ceiling for personal income was likewise impracticable for various reasons. It would involve limitation of total property rights ad distinguished from property in specific form. It would also involve restricting freedom of contract if incomes had to be regulated at the stage of accrual.

Ceiling will Entail 100 per cent Taxation .- An indirect ceiling on incomes would require 100 per cent. taxation of incomes above the ceiling. This obtains in India at present, in a way, since the combined incidence of various existing direct taxes can work out to 100 per cent. of incomes above a certain level. But it led to tax avoidance and evasion. In practice it could be applied effectively only to salary earners, and not to self-employed and professional classes, like businessmen and others. The Steering Group has come to the conclution that a formal ceiling will operate unevenly in this situation, and a 100 per cent. tax on incomes will give "a tremendous fillip to tax evasion and thus act as a major deterrent to productive activity".

The Steering Group gives an additional reason why such a ceiling should not be imposed. It is practicable only among the salaried class, and it is here that there is need for incentives for high productivity — in both the public and private sectors. An incomes policy that involves a direct ceiling on incomes would further aggravate the brain drain at a time when technological skills are desperately needed in India. It would impede the present mobility in the higher ranges of the salaried class. This would in turn impede productivity.

Salaries in Private Sector. Dealing with the demand that salary incomes in the private sector should be curbed since the public sector cannot afford to pay such high salaries, the report of the Steering Group observes that the rationalisation of the salary structure in both public and private sector employment has to be viewed against the background of not only technological developments but the emergence of the growing business sector in Government, which also requires persons of high calibre as the private sector does.

In this connection, the Steering Group has drawn attention to "the progressive erosion of the real worth of the salaries of public servants over the years of planned development".

In the private sector, the Group concluded that there is little room for direct restriction of salaries by Government regulation. Managing agencies are being replaced by a competent managerial class which has to be paid commensurately with the responsibilities which it now carries for promotion of enterprises.

The Steering Group has drawn attention to the fact that even an academic discussion of incomes policy can relate only to the urban half of India's national income. In the rural half of it, measures for directly influencing and regulating incomes are even more meaningless. Here the reliance should continue to be on the price policy as the medium for influencing incomes, consumption and savings.

As regards the machinery for evolving and implementing an incomes policy, the Steering Group says that it should be a two-tier organisation: the first would work at the expert level. The second would be a representative body of employees, employers and the Government. On them would fall the responsibility of making the agreed incomes policy acceptable to the various sections of the general public.

(The Hindu, 25 January, 1967).

Recommendations made by UN Team to Boost Exports from India.

The United Nations Team on export production headed by Mr. B.F. Coggan, which visited about 200 industrial plants in Bombay, Bangalore, Calcutta, Cochin, Poona and Madras in the engineering, chemical and other fields, has, among other things, recommended a reduction in shipping freight, reduction in costs of export commodities and improvement in their quality. The Team has emphasised the need for India to display quality products at inter/national fairs. At present India is known abroad once only as an agricultural country.

The Team has identified 20 industries which have considerable export potential. These are: machine tools; processing plant equipment and other steel fabricated products; oil engines; rubber products; electrical equipment and instruments; steel castings and forgings; rail and road transport equipment; re-exportable 'labour additive' foreign products having high labour content; cutting tools and diamond tools; electronics components; agricultural equipment; wired and figured glass; pharmaceuticals; agriculutural chemicals; dyes and dye intermediates; essential oils; mica; mineral ores; fishery products; and sports goods.

The Team has recommended the following measures:

- (1) Development of quality control systems, procedures and equipment to ensure that Indian products are maintained at or above international standards;
- (2) Introduction of proper cost control methods and mechanized equipment to reduce the cost of Indian products to competitive international cost:
- (3) Projection of a new international image of India as a high quality industrialised nation;

- (4) Adoption of internationally competitive packaging methods;
- (5) Launching of an aggressive overseas marketing programme both by the Government and by the private sector; and
- (6) Rapid development of Indian ports so that they can compete with major ports elsewhere in the world.

A detailed report will be submitted by the Team to the Government of India sometime towards the end of next month.

(The Hindustan Times, 21 February, 1967).

Assistance for Export Promotion to be given to India by USAID.

The United States Agency for International Development is setting up a special division known as Export Promotion Division with a view to provide to India technical assistance to increase exports, particularly to the hard currency areas, including the U.S. The Division will work in close co-ordination with the Ministry of Commerce and other official bodies devoted to promoting exports.

The first assignment the division will undertake will probably be to survey the prospects for creating larger foreign markets for India's major export such as tea, jute and iron ore. For example, in the case of jute, the division will employ experts to determine whether new lines of jute products can be manufactured or whether even a new type of fibre with a greater use potential can be produced from this crop.

Besides commodity surveys, which it will entrust to Indian economic and business institutions, with the assistance of foreign experts if necessary, the division will carry out a comprehensive survey of foreign markets.

It is felt that the export potential of certain types of traditional and non-traditional Indian goods is very great, provided the task of export promotion is taken up more seriously and with a great sense of direction.

The division will not take a direct hand in exporting Indian goods, but it will provide advice and expert information to policymakers in the Commerce Ministry and other Government agencies connected with the export trade.

While its functions will be mainly advisory, it may also help develop collaboration arrangements with import agencies in the U.S. which will be useful to Indian exporters.

(The Hindustan Times, 19 February, 1967).

36. Wages.

India - January-February 1967.

Report on the Working of the Fair Wage Clause and C.P.W.D. Contractors' Labour Regulations for the Year 1965*.

The main object of the Fair Wage Clause and C.P.W.D. Contractors Labour Regulations is to safeguard the interests of workers, employed by the contractors and sub-contractors in the building and construction works executed by the Central Public Works Department, who are mostly illiterate, unorganised and migratory. The Regulations cover matters like payment of fair wages, timely payment of wages without unauthorised deductions, weekly day of rest, working hours and overtime and certain minimum welfare measures.

Enforcement. The enforcement machinery during the year consisted of 9 Labour Officers, 39 Assistant Labour Commissioners and 118 Labour Enforcement Officers. These officers are required to make on the spot enquiries at the work-sites and report the irregularities noticed to the Executive Engineer concerned for securing rectification thereof by the contractors. A copy of the inspection report is also handed over on the spot, to the contractor or his representative by the Inspecting Officer.

The Regional Labour Commissioners are the appellate authorities under Regulation 14 in their respective regions for hearing appeals against the decisions or recommendations of Labour Officers, Assistant Labour Commissioners, or Labour Enforcement Officers, as the case may be. The chief Labour Commissioner, and the Deputy Chief Labour Commissioner are the authorities for deciding any question as to the application, interpretation or the effect of these regulations.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No. 2, February 1967, pp. 121-123.

There were as many as 6,575 contractors establishments covered by the Clause and the Regulations during the year as against 5,607 during the previous year. The average daily number of workers in the establishments covered by the Clause and the Regulations during the year 1965 was 36,105 as against 28,261 during 1964. During the year under report 2,441 establishments were inspected by the Labour Officers of the Central Public Works Department and 647 establishments were inspected by the Officers of the Central Industrial Relations Machinery as against 2,474 and 423 establishments respectively during the previous year. Thus, the percentage of inspections conducted in relation to the total number of establishments by the Labour Officers and by theOfficers of the Central Industrial Relations Machinery came to 37.12 and 9.84 respectively. The total number of inspections made during the year was 5,799 as against 4,673 during 1964. The workers covered by the inspections made by the Labour Officers and Officers of the Central Industrial Relations Machinery were 42.72 per cent. and 63.67 per cent. respectively of the total number of workers employed in the establishments, as against 56.34 per cent. and 21.95 per cent. covered during the previous year.

In all 10,022 irregularities were destected detected during the year under review as against 11,690 during the previous year. The largest number of irregularities i.e. 2,004 related to non-maintenance of wage registers, which accounted for about 20 per cent. of the total irregularities. The next in order were non-display of notice regarding wages and hours of work (1,259), miscellaneous (1,122), delay in payment of wages (1,119), non-maintenance of wage slip/card (1,082), non-display of acts and ommissions for which fines can be imposed (1,003), non-maintenance of fine regiser (904), non-maintenance of deduction register (894) and non-submission of returns (500). Of the total irregularities noticed, 7,635 irregularities or 76.18 per centa were rectified during the year. The corresponding percentage for the pregious year was about 81. (The figures in brackets show the number of irregularities).

During the year, 13 appeals were filedby the contractors before the Regional Labour Commissioners and 5 appeals were pending from the pregious year. Thus, there were 18 appeals for disposal, of these, 14 were disposed of during the year.

The Inspecting Officers investigated the cases of non-payment and short payment of wages and submitted their reports to the Executive Engineer concerned specifying the amounts to be withheld from the contractors' bills on this account. As a precautionary measure the contractors' are required to obtain clearance certificates in this regard from the Labour Officers before their bills are finally passed for payment and their security deposits are refunded. As many as 2,201 clearance certificates were issued by the Labour Officers during the An amount of about Rs.69,517 was actually withhead in 54 cases from the contractors bills during the year under review as against an amount of about Rs.69,583 in respect of 62 cases during the previous year.

Welfare Facilities .- Certain model rules for the protection of health and provision ofsanitary arrangements for workers employed by the C.P.W.D. and their contractors are incorporated in the standard form of contract entered into by the C.P.W.D. with the contractors and are binding on the contractors in the same manner as other conditions of contract contained in the standard These rules are applicable to building and construction works in which on an average 50 or more workers are employed. They require the contractors to provide first aid facilities, drinking water, washing and bathing places, latrines and urinals (separate for men and women), rest shelters, creches and canteens. As most of the contractors are small and of short duration, the welfare facilities provided by contractors are generally scanty and the far from satisfactory. However, Inspecting Officers also examined these items in their periodical inspections of contractors establishments and pointed out the defaults in this regard to the contractors as well as to the Executive Engineers concerned for necessary action. The Maternity Benefit Rules provided 8 weeks maternity leave to women workers in case of confinement, four week upto and including the day of delivery and four weeks following delivery and three weeks maternity leave in case of miscarriage from the date of such miscarriage. Under these rules the women workers get wages for the period on maternity leave at the rate of their average normal earnings preceding the leave or at the rate of 75 paise per day whichever is During the year under report, 727 cases of defaults in this regard were reported by the Labour Officers to the Executive Engineers concerned. The Executive Engineers concerned took action in 700 cases leaving a balance of 27 cases at the end of the year.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

INDIA - JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

41 Agriculture.

Mysore Prevention of Fragmentation and Consolidation of Holdings Act, 1966
(Mysore Act No. 1 of 1967).

The Government of Mysore gazetted on 2 February 1967 the text of the Mysore Prevention of Fragementation and Consolidation of Holdings Act, 1966, which received the assent of the President on 5 January 1967. The Act defines 'fragment' to mean a holding of land of less extent then the appropriate standard area determined under the Act and provides that after the commencement of the Act all fragments in a village shall be entered in the Record of Rights or in prescribed village records. Provision is made for the sale of fragments to owners of contiguous survey numbers and transfer, portion of land to each create a fragment is -politica prohibited. The Act prescribes in detail the procedure for consolidation of holdings, and deals with the effect of consolidation proceedings and of consolidation of holdings. Other provisions of the Act relate inter alia, to powers of consolidation officers, appointment of officers and staff and delegation of powers.

(The Mysore Gazette, Part IV, Sec. 2B, 2 February 1967, pp. 1-31).

Tea Industry: Committee set up to undertake a comprehensive review of the economic conditions and problems of the Industry.

A Resolution dated 9 January 1967 of the Ministry of Commerce, Government of India, says that having regard to the important place that tea occupies in the National Economy, the Government of India hardecided to set up a Committee for undertaking a comprehensive review of the economic conditions and problems of this Industry, in all its aspects, and, (bearing in mind the reports of the Plantation Enquiry Commission and the Tea Finance Committee), to make recommendations regarding the measures required to be taken for its appropriate development on the right lines, during the Fourth Plan In particular, the Committee shall Period. look into -

- (a) the question of devising ways and and means for the quantitative as well as qualitative increase in production, (such as, through expansion of acreage and improvement of yields per hectare) to levels required to meet the rising demand for consumption whether at home or abroad;
- (b) the urgent problems of marketing, financing and research that are facing the Industry and which may be standing in the way of its appropriate development, and;
- (c) any other aspect which in the Committee's opinion, is germane to the broad purpose of this Enquiry.

The Committee consists of 13 persons including representatives of tea planters' associations with Shri P.C. Barooah, Member of Parliament as Chairman.

The Committee, shall submit its report to Government as early as possible and in any case not later than three months from the date of its appointment.

(The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, 9 January 1967, Part I, Sec.1, pp.13-14).

Food Self-Sufficieny by 1970-71: Crash Production Programme approved by Government.

After a Cabinet meeting held at New Delhi on 10 February 1967 at which the agricultural situation and the question of food imports in the current year were discussed, the Union Government decided to stop concessional imports of wheat after 1971 when the target of food self-sufficiency is expected to be achieved. It also approved a crash programme to increase food production in 1967-68 through extension of the programme of high-yielding varities of seeds to 15 million acres of irrigated land against 6.2 million acres covered during the year.

The Government has also decided to provide all necessary support in the form of inputs and organisation to achieve food self-sufficiency by 1970-71.

The two major "encouraging" factors that have enabled the Government to take this decision are stated to be the keenness of the farmers to use chemical fertilisers and the success of the high yielding varieties programme.

Although the total fertiliser requirement in terms of nitrogen next year will be 1.3 million tonnes, indigenous production will amount to only 500,000 tonnes. Arrangements for the import of the remaining quantity have been made. The requirements of phosphatic fertilisers are estimated at 300,000 tonnes, of which 0.275 million tonnes will be locally available.

This programme will be supplemented by a new multiple cropping programme under which additional crops in about 7.5 million acres of irrigated land will be raised. The emphasis will be on growing short duration grains and legumes to be introduced during the intervals or as overlapping growth of existing crop. The necessary fertilisers for this programme are also being arranged, An additional areas of about 200,000 acres will be brought under intensive production for raising potatoes and vegetables and for the package approach which will be made applicable to oil seeds and sugarcane, among other things.

A comprehensive minor irrigation and water utilization programme will form part of the intensified efforts. During 1967-68 an additional 3 to 3.5 million acres of land will be provided with minor irrigation facilities through 0.23 million pumps, 23,400 tubewells and 1.5 million masonry dug wells, besides kutcha wells.

The programme of rural electrification is being suitably augmented for meeting the needs of agriculture. Special attention will be paid to water utilisation in the command area of both major and minor irrigation works. A special unit has been set up in the Department of Agriculture and an Ayacut Development Programme has been drawn up.

Soil conservation measures, which covered 3.8 million acres in 1966-67, will be stepped up in the light of current discussions with State Governments. Similarly, plant protection measures, which covered only 63 million acres in 1966-67, will be extended to 126 million acres.

In co-operation with the Ministry of Industry and Department of Co-ordination, arrangements are being made for stepping up the indigenous production of agricultural machinery. Agro-Industries Corporations will be set up in the States and these corporations will organise in the interior areas facilities for hire purchase of agriculturalmachinery for growers.

The operational measures that are being discussed by the Central teams with the States will concentrate on specification of tasks, assignments or responsibilities at different levels, organisation of resources and imputs and drawing up of time-tables for performance of various tasks.

(The Hindustan Times, 11 February, 1967).

42. Co-operation.

India - January-February 1967.

Third Asian Agricultural Cooperative Conference held at New Delhi, 23 January 1967.

The third Asian Agricultural Cooperative Conference was held at New Delhi on 23 January 1967. The Conference which was convened by the National Cooperative Union of India, the International Cooperative Alliance and the Afro-Asian Rural Reconstruction Organisation, was attended by about 70 delegates from Asian countries. Shri P.M. Menon, Director of this Office attended the Conference on behalf of the I.L.O.

A report of the Conference together with documents was sent to Geneva on 31 January 1967 vide this Office minute C.1/366/67 of the same date.

(The Hindustan Times, 24 January, 1967).

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

INDIA - JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

50. General.

Review of the Working of Legislation Governing Conditions of Employment in Shops and Commercial Establishments during 1964*.

The working conditions of the employees in shops and commercial establishments in India are governed largely by Acts passed by the State Governments and the Rules framed thereunder. These Acts regulate, inter alia, the daily and weekly hours of work, rest intervals, opneing and closing hours of establishments, payments of wages, overtime pay, holidays with pay, annual leave, employment of children and young persons etc. Besides, the State Acts, there is also a Central Act known as "Weekly Holidays Act 1942" which provides for the grant of weekly holidays to persons employed in shops, commercial establishments, etc.

Number of Establishments and Persons covered.— The largest number of establishments covered was in West Bengal (295,721), followed by Maharashtra (269,403), Uttar Pradesh(209,113), Punjab (188,812), Madras (181,384), Gujarat (139,174), Andhra Pradesh (130,204), Rajasthan (118,382) and Mysore (109,906). The number of persons covered was the highest in Maharashtra (555,153). Next in order comes West Bengal (546,735), Uttar Pradesh (217,508), Madras (208,068), Delhi (168,134), Gujarat (144,167), Andhra Pradesh (124,720), Mysore (117,286) and Punjab (114,028).

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No.1, January 1967, pp. 1-10.

Enforcement. In the total number of establishments reported, i.e., 1,915,913 as many as 2,164,187 inspections were made - the highest number of inspections was recorded being 684,134 in Madras. Irregularities detected during the year pertained to non-payment of wages, arrears, overtime, leave wages, non-maintenance of prescribed records and registers, non-display and non-observance of working hours, weekly holidays, etc. In some States, exemptions from the provisions of the Acts were granted for some specified time to facilitate shopping on the eve of festivals, as was done in earlier years.

52. Workers' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education.

India - January-February 1967.

Servants of the Workers' Society of India to be set up.

At a meeting of prominent treads trade unionists of Bihar held in Patna on 26 January 1967, an all India body to safeguard the interests of industrial workers is in the offingthere. Its name will be the Servants of the Workers' Society of India. The society plans to train a cadre of social workers willing to dedicate at least 15 years to the welfare of industrial labour as whole time workers. Their aim is to establish a socialist society by selfless work.

(The Hindustan Times, 30 January, 1967).

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.

INDIA - JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

60. General.

Industrial Disputes in India during 1965*.

The figure of man-days lost is taken as a measure for comparing the degree of industrial unrest between States, Industries etc., because it takes into account both the number of workers involved and the duration of the work-stoppage. The following table compares the time-loss per 1,000 workers on account of industrial unrest forthe year 1963,1964 and 1965:-

Year	No.of Man-days lost in (in '000)	Estimated Time-loss per 1,00 employment workers. (in 1000)
(1)	(2)	$(3) \qquad (4)$
	CTOR	
1963 1964	2,525 5,893	4,149(R)(E) 609 4,358(E)(P) 1,352(E)(P)
1965	4,756	4,358*(E)(P) 1,091(E)(P)
PLANTATIONS 1963	:. 110**	7T A 7T A
1964	435**	$ \begin{array}{ccc} \mathbf{N} \bullet \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{N} \bullet \mathbf{A} \bullet \\ \mathbf{N} \bullet \mathbf{A} \bullet & \mathbf{N} \bullet \mathbf{A} \bullet \end{array} $
1965	•• 306**	N.A. N.A.
COAL MINES		
1963 1964	•• 42 •• 282	451 93
1965	166	431(R)(E) 654 431*(E) 385(P)(E)

⁽P) - Provisional. N.A. Not Available. (E) - Estimated. (R) - Revised. *Figures for 1965 are not available and hence figures for 1964 have been repeated. ** Relates to all Plantations.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No.1, January 1967, pp. 11-53.

The above table reveals, that in both the 'Coal Mines' and 'Manufacturing' sectors, time-loss per 1000 workers was the lowest in 1963.

Analysis by States. The following table gives State-wise number of disputes, workers involved and mandays lost during 1965 and 1964:-

State/Union		1965	5		1964	•	
Territory.	No.o.			No.of	No.of	No. of	No. of
	dis-	worke	ers	mandays	dis-	workers	mandays
	putes	invol	Lved.	lost.	putes.	involved	. lost.
1	2	3		4	5	6	7
And the Department	109*	24,720*	203	3, 859*	106	67,697	517,135
Andhra Pradesh.	39	21,571		2,327	38	17,150	52,368
Assam.	78	19,760		L, 474	104	62,164	536,716
Bihar.	78 38	7,475		853 853	76	15,535	120,599
Gujarat.	12	3,201		7,882	i7	8,717	78,455
Goa. Jammu & Kashmir.		7,201	t- 1	-	42	1,235	4,700
Kerala.	200	156,110	868	690	210	78,707	868,734
Madhya Pradesh.	81	31,395		786	60&	27,782&	235,494&
Madras.	137	47,749		7,790	236	77,978	444,552
Maharashtra.	586	379,956		3,388	636	285,395	1580,243
Mysore.	75	59,657		5,777	110	53,431	217,393
Orissa.	23**	7,651**		L,128**	. 25	9,436	130,532
Punjab.	26	4,106		1,120	46	5,822	61,087
Rajasthan.	25	5,618		7,217	54	12,486	62,341
Uttar Pradesh.	115	45,696		7,391	171	78,227	735,317
West Bengal.	238		1,74		211	190,306	2015,055
Andaman & Nicobar		•	•	•			
Islands.	6	1,006	-	L,522	9	2,382	11,658
Delhi.	36	18,448	134	1,358	36	8 , 045	49 , 839
Himachal Pradesh.				- .			_
Manipur.	- _			-	-	-	
Pondicherry.	6	3 , 566	4	823	1	62	248
Tripura.	5	1,158	3	, 663	3	398	2,228
Total. 1	,835&&	991,158&	<u>£6469</u>	,992&&	2,151&	1,002,955&	7724,694&

*The figure for the State Sphere of Andhra Pradesh were subsequently revised by the State Government. The revised figures of number of disputes, workers involved and mandays lost for the State as a whole, are, 133; 38,874 and 512,583 respectively. The break-up of the additional 24 work-stoppages involving 14,154 workers and resulting in a time-loss of 308,724 mandays is not available and hence not included in the table above.

** The information excludes 51 work-stoppages involving 23,297 workers and resulting in a time-loss of 124,807 mandays in the State Sphere of Orissa as the detailed break-up of the same is not available and hence not included in Table above.

&& The inclusion of the additional figures in respect of Andhra Pradesh and Orissa (State Sphere) as mentioned above, the revised all-India figures for numbers of disputes, workers involved and mandays lost would be, 1,910; 1,028,609 and 6,903,523 respectively.

& The figures for the State Sphere of Madhya Pradesh were subsequently revised by the State Government. The revised figures for the State as a whole are 62; 25,750 and 209,795 respectively. As such the revised figure all-India figures would be 2,153; 1,000,923 and 7,698,995 respectively.

Source: State Governments and Regional Labour Commissioners (Central).

It will be seen from the above table that in 1965 West Bengal, Maharashtra and Kerala States together accounted for 55.8 per cent. of the total number of disputes, 69.5 per cent. of the total number of workers involved and 59.0 per cent. of the total number of mandays lost (time-loss). As compared to 1964 the time-loss decreased in all the States/Union Territoriesexcept Mysore, Delhi, Pondicherry and Tripura during the year 1965.

Average per dispute. The following table gives the average time loss per dispute, average number of workers involved per dispute and average duration of disputes in 1965 and 1964 for All Sections and Plantations, Mines and Manufacturing Industries:

Item.]	L965		•	1964	•	
	All Sec- tors.	Manu- facturing indust		Plan- ta- tions		indust-		Plan- ta- tions.
	2	ries.	4	- 5	6	ries.	8	9
Avefage No. of	3 , 526	3,924	4,103	2,686	3,591	4,273		3,923
Workers involved per dispute. Average duration	549	593	437	641	466	500	359	404
of dispute (Days).	6.5	6.6	9 • 4	4.2	7.7	8.5	6.1	9 .7

Analysis by lockouts. Out of 1,835 disputes reported during the year, lockouts were declared at some stage or the other, in 138 cases involving 101,798 workers with a time-loss of 1,853,180 mandays. The disputes which resulted in lockouts accounted for 28.6 per cent. of the total time-loss in all industrial disputes during the year 1965. although by number they formed only 7.5 per cent. The average time-loss per lockout was 13,429 mandays as against theaverage time-loss of 2,721 mandays for strikes. The highest number of lockouts was reported from West Bengal which accounted for 51.3 per cent. of the total time-loss due to lockouts. In 1965 there was no lockout in Goa, Gujarat, Jammu and Kashmir, Rajasthan, Himachal Pradesh and Manipur.

The 'manufacturing industries' were responsible for as many as 118 of the 138 lockouts involving a time-loss of 1,593,268 out of the total of 1,853,180 mandays. In 76 cases involving 55,743 workers and time-loss of 1,053,746 mandays the lockouts were declared by employers subsequent to strikes. In the remaining 62 dispures, lockouts were not preceded by strikes.

Analysis by Industries.— The 'Manufacturing Division', accounted for 73.5 per cent. of the total time-loss during the year 1965. Among other sectors, 'Mining and Quarrying', accounted for 9.9 per cent., 'Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing, etc.' for 5.1 per cent., 'Construction' for 3.1 per cent., 'Electricity', Gas, Water and Sanitary Services' for 3.1 per cent., 'Services' for 2.7 per cent., 'Transport and Communications(other than Workshops)' for 1.8 per cent., 'Activities not Adequately Described' for 0.6 per cent., and 'Commerce' for 0.2 per cent. In the 'Manufacturing Division', the highest time-loss was recorded by the group "Textiles" (37.7 per cent.). As compared to the preceding year, the time-loss decreased in all but three major industry groups, viz., 'Mining and Quarrying', 'Construction' and 'Services'.

Important Industrial Disputes. During the year under review, there were 20 disputes involving a time-loss of more than 50,000 mandays. West Bengal accounted for most of the important disputes-involving amongst them alone, a time-loss of about 900,000 during the year 1965.

Analysis by Causes .- In 1965 among the disputes classified by these groups of causes, "Wages and Allowances" accounted for the highest number (612) of disputes followed by "Others" and "Personnel" which accounted for 489 and 454 cases "isputes relating to "Wages and respectively. Allowances" and "Personnel" constituted together 58.4 per cent. of the total number of disputes for which the relevant information was available and accounted for 59.1 per cent. of the total time-loss. The corresponding percentages for 1964 were 61.6, 49.1 and 58.4 respectively. compared to 1964 it will be seen that there was a decrease in percentages to the total number of disputes and mandays lost due to "Wages and Allowances", "Personnel" and "Others" while there was a slight increase in the case of "Bonus", "Retrenchment" and "Leave and Hours of Work".

Analysis by Results. Of the total number of terminated disputes in 1965 for which relevant information was available, 30.7 per cent. were 'successful', 13.5 per cent. were 'partially—successful' and 35.9 per cent. were 'unsuccessful'. In 19.9 per cent. of the disputes, work was resumed without any final decision having been reached. In such cases the matter might have been under further negotiation or under reference to an Industrial Tribunal, etc. As compared to the previous year, the percentages of disputes which were 'successful' increased during the year 1965 while the disputes which were 'unsuccessful' increased during the same period.

Analysis by Duration. Of the work-stoppages which terminated in 1965, and for which relevant information was available, 62.0 per cent. lasted up to 5 days. The disputes continuing for over a month accounted for only 9.5 per cent. of all the disputes. The percentages of disputes with duration 'a day or less', 'more than 5 days up to 10 days' and 'more than 10 days up to 20 days' decreased as compared to 1964 and increased in respect of disputes of longer duration.

Analysis of Terminated Disputes Classified by Normal Employment - Size of Units Affected. - 31.3 per cent. of the disputes involved units employing 100 or more, but less than 500' workers. However, the units employing 1000 or more' workers were responsible for 65.5 per cent.of the total time-loss.

Analysis of Terminated Disputes by Method of Settlement and Results .- Thedisputes which terminated as a result of 'Government intervention' formed 44.0 per cent. of the total for which relevant information was available. Another 23.9 per cent. of the total number of disputes terminated through 'mutual negotiations' and in 28.5 per cent. of the disputes, the workers resumed their duties voluntarily. Most of the cases of voluntary resumption of work by the employees were 'Unsuccessful' or 'indefinite' from the point of view of the workers, whereas a large proportion of disputes terminating through 'Conciliation and mediation by Government' was 'successful'. In cases of disputes terminating through 'mutual settlement: also a large proportion was 'Successful' from the workers' point of view.

Analysis of Terminated Disputes Classified by Workers Involved and Time-loss.— A large number of disputes constituting 83.3 per cent. of the total disputes for which relevant information was available, involved less than 500 workers. Only 7.7 per cent. of the total work-stoppages involved 1,000 or more workers. Most of such work-stoppages, however, accounted for larger time-loss, as can be normally expected. Of the total work-stoppages, 93.8 per cent. accounted for a time-loss of less than 10,000 mandays. Only 1.1 per cent. of all the disputes resulted in a time-loss of 50,000 or more mandays.

Analysis of Disputes in Central Sphere
Undertakings.— Disputes in this sphere accounted
for 12.2 per cent. of the total number of disputes,
10.2 per cent. of the total number of workers
involved, and 11.7 per cent. of he total number
of man-days lost. During the preceding year, these
percentages were 14.6, 12.9 and 8.5 respectively.
During the year under review 66.8 per cent. of
the total number of disputes in the Central
Sphere occurred in the 'Mining Sector' involving
66.0 per cent. of the total number of workers
involved and 84.1 per cent. of the total mandays
lost.

Analysis of Disputes according to the Affiliation of the Workers Unions to the Central Organisation of Workers. Nearly 35.1 per cent. of the total disputes, 54.6 per cent. of the workers involved and 41.3 per cent. of the total mandays lost were accounted for by the affiliates of the I.N.T.U.C.. The A.I.T.U.C. and the H.M.S. together accounted for 31.6 per cent. of the total time-loss during the year 1965. The disputes sponsored by more than one Central Organisation, accounted for only 22.8 per cent. of the total time-loss involved.

Nearly 46.6 per cent. of the total terminated disputes for which the relevant information is available, were 'successful' or 'Partially successful' from the workers' point of view and these accounted for about 48.5 per cent. of the total time-loss due to all the Central Workers' Organisations. All India Trade Union Congress (A.I.T.U.C.) and Indian National Trade Union Congress (I.N.T.U.C.) together accounted for 78.1 per cent. of the 'successful' or 'partially successful' disputes disputes to the total of such disputes. Out of a total of 987,203 mandays lost due to all 'unsuffessful' industrial disputes as much as 360,045 mandays, i.e., 36.5 per cent. were accounted for by the Multiple Unions.

Analysis of Disputes by Wages and Value of Production Lost.— The information regarding wages and value of production lost is incomplete as out of 1,835 disputes, the information was reported for 1,624 cases for 'wages lost' and 921 for 'value of production lost'. In these cases, there was a wage-loss of 24.3 million rupees and a loss of production worth 153.1 million rupees.

Public Sector Undertakings.— The total timeloss in the undertakings which were reported to be in the public sector, in 1965 was 704,326 mandays. The time-loss was the highest in the month of January followed by that in the month of December.

Analysis of Political and Sympathetic Strikes.— Among the States, the highest time-loss was report noticed in the State of Punjab. There were in all 153 political and sympathetic strikes involving a maximum number of 266,334 workers and a total time-loss of 841,738 man-days.

(A review of the Industrial Disputes during 1964 was reported vide pp. 51-57 of the report of this Office for December 1965).

64. Wage Protection and Labour Clauses in Employment Contracts with the Public Authorities.

India - January-February 1967.

Mysore: Payment of Wages Act, 1936, extended to Persons employed in Loading and Unloading Operations in Docks.

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Payment of Wages Act, 1936, the Government of Mysore has by a notification dated 18 February 1967 extended the provisions of the said Act to persons employed in loading and unloading operations in docks, wharves or getties of the Karwar and Mangalore ports.

(Notification SO 380 dated 18 February 1967, Mysore Gazette, Part IV, Section 2c-ii, 26 February 1967, page 883).

66. Strike and Lockout Rights.

India - January-February 1967.

Madhya Pradesh Atyasashyak Seva Sandharan Adhyadesh 1967 (Madhya Pradesh Essential Services Maintenance Ordinance 1967).

The Governor of Madhya Pradesh promulgated on 10 February 1967 an Ordinance to provide for the maintenance of certain essential services. The Ordinance defines 'essential Service' to mean a Civil Service of the State and includes every civil post under the State but does not include an All-India Service. The term 'strike' has been defined to mean:

- (i) a total or partial cessation of work; or
- (ii) a refusal to work; or
- (iii) a demonstration or creating of disturbance in connection with the execution of regular office work; or
- (iv) continuing or remaining within the office premises outside the office hours notified by Government in the Gazette from time to time; or
 - (v) absence from duty without prior sanction of leave;

by a number of persons belonging to an essential service acting in combination or in a concerted manner or under a common understanding.

The Ordinance provides that if the State Government is satisfied that in the public interest it is necessary or expedient so to do; it may, by general or special order, prohibit strike in any essential service specified in the order.

Such an order shall be published in such manner as the State Government considers best calculated to bring it to the notice of the person affected by the order and shall, in the first instance be before inforce for a period not exceeding six months but the State Government may, by a like order, extend it from time to time by a further period not exceeding six months at one time, if it is satisfied that in the public interest it is necessary or expedient to do.

Upon the issue of such an order -

- (a) no person employed in any essential service to which the order relates shall go or remain on strike; and
- (b) any strike declared or commenced, whether, before or after the issue of the order by persons employed in any such class of essential service, shall be illegal.

Any person employed in any essential sergice who commences a strike or remains or otherwise takes part in a strike which is illegal under this Ordinance shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to six months, or with fine which may extend to two hundred rupees, or with both.

Any person who instigates or incites others to take part in, makes any preparation for, or otherwise acts in furtherance of a strike which is illegal under this Ordinance shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to one year, or with fine which may extend to five hundred rupees, or with both.

Any person who knowingly expends or supplies any money in furtherance or support of a strike which is illegal under this Ordinance shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to one year, or with fine which may extend to five hundred rupees, or with both.

(Madhya Pradesh Gazette, 10 February, 1967, pp. 381-382).

Uttar Pradesh Essential Services Maintenance Act, 1966 (U.P. Act No.XXX of 1966).

The Government of Uttar Pradesh on 31
December 1966 the text of the Uttar Pradesh
Essential Service Maintenance Act,1966, which
received the assent of the Governor on 30
December 1966. The Act which repeals the
Uttar Pradesh Essential Main Services Maintenance
Ordinance (vide pages 51-52 of the Report of
this Office for August 1966) provides for the
maintenance of certain essential services in
the State and other connected matters. The Act
defines 'essential service' to mean -

- (i) any public service in connexion with the affairs of the State of Uttar Pradesh;
- (ii) any service under an educational institution recognised by the Director of Education, Uttar Pradesh, or by the Board of High School and Intermediate Education, Uttar Pradesh, or Service under a University incorporated by or under an Uttar Pradesh Act;
- (iii) any service under a local authority;

"strike" means any cessation of work (including any unauthorised absence from duty) by a body of persons employed in any essential service acting in combination or a concerted refusal or a refusal under a common understanding of any number of persons who are or have been so employed to continue to work.

The Act provides that if the State Government is satisfied that in the public interest it is necessary or expedient so to do, it may, by general or special order, prohibit strikes in any essential service specified in the order.

Any person who commences a strike which is illegal under this Act or goes or remains on, or otherwise takes part in, any such strike shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to six months or with fine which may extend to five hundred rupeds or with both.

Any person who instigates or incites other persons to take part in, or otherwise acts in furtherance of, a strike which is or would be illegal under this Act shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to one year or with fine which may extend to one thousand rupees or with both.

Any person who knowkingly expends or supplies any money in furtherance or support of a strike which is or would be illegal under this Act shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend to one year or with fine which may extend to one thousand rupees or with both.

(Uttar Pradesh Gazette, Extraordinary, 31 December 1966, pp. 3-4).

67. Concilation and Arbitration. India - January-February 1967.

Conference of Bombay Textile Research
Association on Human Factors in Industry,
Bombay, 30 January 1967.

The Conference of Bombay Textile Research Association on human factors in Industry was held at Bombay on 30 January 1967. The Conference was inaugurated by Shri Naval H. Tata and presided over by Shri Krishnaraj M.D. Thackersey, Chairman Governing Council of the Association.

Inaugral Address. - Inaugurating the Conference Shri Naval H. Tata stressed the need to recognise the importance of human relations in industry. The 20th century workers was a very delicate peece of mechanism which needed handling much more deftly than the machinery in the plant, he said. Shri Tata said labour policy should avoid extremes. It should not be extremely humanitarian nor should it be harsh in dealing with employees. It should not also be a one-way traffic. The management's expectations from labour in return for good human relations were: work, performance of work in an efficient manner, loyalty to the enterprise, interest in the prosperity and growth of the concern, discipline and good conduct of service. He suggested the following procedures for handling human relations: listen patiently and sympathetically to the worker; refrain from hasty disapproval; do not argue with worker; listen to what he has to say and also to what he has could not say, without your encouragement; and put yourself in worker's place.

He said the management must assure full responsibility to train the staff to know all the aspects of human relations.

Presiding over the Conference Shri
Thackersey said the association commenced
work relating to problems on human relations
about four years ago. The institute had
conducted several surveys on the human
problem. He hoped mill managements would
take advantage of all the facilities offered
by the research institute.

(The Hindustan Time, 1 February, 1967).

68. Labour Courts.

India - January-February 1967.

No Medical Bonus for Women where E.S.T.Act Applies: Decision of Madras High Court.

While allowing a writ petition filed on behalf of the management of the Coimbatore Spinning and Weaving Co.Ltd., the Madras High Court held on 9 February 1967, that it was clear from Section 61 of the Employees State Insurance Act that whoever got the maternity benefits under that Act could not. receive medical bonus payable under the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act. Therefore, wherever the E'S.I. Act was in force as in the case of the petitioner mills, the women workers would get only the maternity benefit provided in that Act. But, where the Madras Maternity Benefit Act was in operation, the women workers would get the maternitty benefit as provided in that Act and also the medical bonus.

(The Hindu, 10 February 1967).

CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.

INDIA - JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers.

Maharashtra: Dearness Allowance of School Teachers Increased.

The Government of Maharashtra decided on 25 January 1967 to increase the dearness allowance of school teachers in Maharashtra. About 18,000 secondary teachers will get an increase of about Rs.15 in D.A. effective from 1 July 1966. The Government also decided to extend the pension scheme to primary teachers who retired between 1 May 1960 and 31 May 1962, and increase the stipend paid to teachers of Zila Parishads and Municipalities during their training period.

(The Times of India, 26 January, 1967).

Gujarat: Dearness Allowance of Government Staff Increased.

The Government of Gujarat announced at Ahmedabad on 2 January 1967, an additional increase in the dearness allowance ranging from Rs.9 to Rs.15 for its 182,000 employees with effect from 1 January 1967.

Announcing the increase at a Press Conference, the Chief Minister, Shri Hitendra Desai, said the new increase involve an additional expenditure of 22 million rupees. The bulk of the employees, numbering about 161,000, getting basic pay up to Rs.149, including 69,000 primary teachers, would now get dearness allowance to the extent of 86 per cent. to 100 per cent. of the Dearness Allowance given to Central Government Employees. With the present additional increase the total expenditure on account of Dearness Allowance would now be 42 million rupees.

(The Statesman, 3 January, 1967).

Andhra Pradesh: Dearness Allowance at Central Hates granted to State Government Employees.

The Chief Minister of Andhra Pradesh, Shri K. Brahmananda Reddi announced at Hyderabad on 30 January 1967, the introduction of Central rates of dearness allowance for the Government employees from 1 April 1967 and the payment of 50 per cent. of the difference between the State's rate of dearness allowance and the Central rate of dearness allowance from 1 January to 31 March 1967. The Government has also agreed to treat the strike period and 5 January (Quit Work Day) as casual or special leave.

This would result in an additional commitment to the Government of 65 million rupees for the year till 1 April 1967, and later 130 million rupees per year. The actual increase in Dearness Allowance would also be given to employees in workcharged establishments and also to the staff charged to contingencies. The staff of village establishments would get Rs.3 per month from 1 January 1967 and another sum of Rs.3 from 1 April 1967.

The increase in Dearness Allowance would also be applicable to the employees of local bodies and teachers - aided and private.

(The Hindu, 30 January, 1967).

Full Rail Fare Concession granted to Central Government Employees.

At a meeting of the National Council gets set up under the scheme of Joint Consultative Machinery for Central Government Employees, it was decided that henceforth the Central Government will reimburse the full actual fare paid by the employees on leave travelling beyond the 400 km. limit, instead of 90 per cent. as it has been doing so far. Also the existing restrictions ted on the quantum of hospital leave in respect of employees other than those in the Railways will be removed. Some concessions will be given in regard to the grant of house rent allowance also.

Certain other items on the Council's agenda, like merger of dearness allowance with pay, grant of need-based minimum wage, revision of working hours and regular weekly holiday for Class IV staff were referred to the constituent committees for further examination.

(The Statesman, 6 February 1967).

Agreement Reached between the Management and the All India Reserve Bank Workers' Federation: Class IV Staff to get higher Wages.

Consequent upon an agreement reached at Bombay on 7 February 1967 between the management of the Reserve Bank of India and the All India Reserve Bank Workers' Federation, nearly 3,500. Class IV employees of the Reserve Bank will get an increase in wages ranging from Rs.15 to Rs.85. Under the settlement, effective for three years from 1 January 1966, the house rent now between Rs.5 and Rs.10, will be in the range of Rs.13 to Rs.20 a month. Provident Fund and gratuity which were being paid on the reduced pay shall now be payable on hundred per cent. pay.

The Starting pay of peons, mazdoors, durwans and liftmen has been raised from Rs.100 to Rs.106 and the maximum pay from Rs.130 to Rs.160. In the first year of his service, a Class IV employee from the lower cadre will receive total emoluments of Rs.225.36 and at the maximum stage Rs.327.20.

The revised scales under the agreement are: peon, mazdoor, durwan and liftman, Rs.106-Rs.160; wireman, Rs.116-Rs.170; duftary and jamadar Grade III, Rs.120-Rs.170; head mazdoor, Rs.121-Rs.175; jemadar Gr.II, gestetner operator, viceman, Rs.126-Rs.180; record clerk, jemadarGr.I, Gr.II Rs.146-Rs.200; driver Gr.II, Rs.131-Rs.190; driver Gr.I, Rs.146-Rs.2201 and plumber, carpenter, Rs.148-Rs.230.

(The Times of India, 9 February, 1967).

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

INDIA - JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

81. Employment Situation.

Arrangements made by Government of India for rehabilitation of repatriats from Ceylon and Burma.

Consequent upon Indo-Ceylon agreement, it is expected that during 1967-68, about 50,000 Indians will arrive in India from Ceylon. The agreement envisages repatriation in all of 525,000 persons of Indian origin over a period of 15 years.

As part of a comprehensive programme of resettlement of repatriates from Ceylon the Government is considering a proposal for setting up a 10,000-acre rubber plantation in Mysore and 3,700-acre tea plantation in Madras.

Apart from this it has been suggested to the Governments of Madras, Mysore and Kerala to allot 50 to 100-acres of land either individually or on a co-operative basis to the repatriates for setting up the plantations. Government is also making a special arrangement for absorption of plantation workers among these repatriates in the existing plantations. The United Planters' Association of South India has offered to take 1,675 workers in the existing plantations. Another 10,000 families are expected to be absorbed in the coffee plantations of Shevaroy.

In the matter of appointments to posts under Central Government already priority has been accorded and age limits have been relaxed for these repatriates. Similar priority and relaxation for appointments to State Government aervices have been suggested.

The frequency of the existing shipping services between Rameswaram and Talaimannar is proposed to be increased to three times a week to accommodate the repatriates.

Accommodation for housing about 5,000 persons for housing about 5,000 persons where the repatriates will first land. Transit camps will be set up in Madras, Andhra Pradesh, Mysore and Kerala.

The expenditure on transportation of the repatriates from the port of disembarkation to the reception centre at Mandapam and from there to the transit camp will be borne by the Central Government.

Schemes for Burma Repatriates.— Similarly special schemes of industries for providing employment to repatriates from Burma are under consideration. Already two schemes by Madras — one for settlement of 750 families in vegetable gardens and the other for 200 families for dairy farming have been sanctioned.

A proposal for setting up a spinning mill at Tuticorin to provide employment for 400 repatriates from Burma and Ceylon has also been approved. The Central Government has sanctioned a loan of 1.5 million rupees for this purpose. Another proposal to expand the existing spinning mill at Nazereth to provide employment to 300 repatriates is under examination.

(The Hindu, 2 February, 1967).

LIST OF THE PRINCIPAL LAWS PROMULGATED DURING THE PERIOD COVERED BY THE REPORT FOR JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

INDIA - JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

Mysore Prevention of Fragmentation and Consolidation of Holdings Act, 1966 (Mysore Act No.1 of 1967) (The Mysore Gazette, Part IV, Sec. 2B, 2 February, 1967, pp.1-31).

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.

(a) Uttar Pradesh Essential Services
Maintenance Act, 1966 (U.P. Act No.XXX
of 1966) (Uttar Pradesh Gazette,
Extraordinary, 31 December 1966,
pp. 3-4).

(b) Madhya Pradesh Atyasashyak Seva Sandharan Adhyadesh 1967 (Madhya Pradesh Essential Services Maintenance Ordinance 1967) (Madhya Pradesh Gazette, 10 February, 1967, pp. 381-383).

BIBLIOGRAPHY.

INDIA - JANUARY-FEBRUARY 1967.

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.

* "Mill Statement for the year ending 31st August 1966": Compiled and Published by the Millowners' Association, Bombay.

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS.

*(a) "An Economic Classification of the State Government Budget 1965-66": Directorate of Economics and Statistics: Madhya Pradesh: pp.32.

*(b) "Estimates of State Income of Madhya Pradesh 1950-51 to 1963-64": Directorate of Economics and Statistics, Madhya Pradesh: pp. 15.

*(c) "Annual Survey of Industries 1964 (Provisional Results) Census Sector - General Review":
Central Statistical Organisation (Industrial Statistical Wing) Department of Statistics:
Cabinet Secretariat: Government of India:
Calcutta: 1966: pp.x+66.(Memeograph).

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

*(a) "Annual Report for the Year 1965: On the Working of the Indian Dock Labourers Regulations, 1948 and the Dock Workers (Safety) Health and Welfare) Scheme, 1961": Government of India: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation: Directorate General Factory Advice Service and Labour Institutes: pp.82 (Memeographed).

*(b) "Report on the Working of the Plantations Labour Act,1951 in the State of Madras for the year 1964": Government of Madras, 1966: Printed by the Director of Stationery & Printing, Madras, on behalf of the Government of Madras:1966:

Price Ps 1 10: np. 3

Price Rs.1.10: pp. 3.

*(c) "Annual Report 1965-66": Committee for Cooperative Training(National Cooperative Union
of India): 34, South Patel Nagar, New Delhi.
pp.100.

*(d) "Administration Report 1965-66": Bombay Port Trust: G. Claridge & Co. Ltd., Bombay-1: pp. lxiv + 35.

^{*} Publications received in this Office.

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

*(a) "Report on Family Living Survey Among Industrial Workers 1958-59": Madras: Labour Bureau, Ministry of Labour and Employment, Government of India: 1965: pp.iv+102: Price Rs.8.50 or 19sh.10d or 3\$ 6 cents.

*(b) "Report on Family Living Survey Among Industrial Workers 1958-59": Bangalore: Labour Bureau, Ministry of Labour and Employment, Government of India: 1966: Price Rs.9 or 21sh. or 3\$ 24 cents: pp. iv+101.

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

* "Fact Book on Manpower - Part I": Directorate of Economics and Statistics, Madhya Pradesh: Gwalior: Government Regional Press, 1966: pp. v+159.

=====

ιLι

^{*} Publications received in this Office.

47381

COPY NO.

INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE BRANCH OFFICE, NEW DELHI.

I.L.O. REGISTRY-GENEVA -5 JUN 1967

Industrial and Labour Developments in March-Appil 3063 March-April 1967.

With on:



Each Section of this Report may be taken N.B. out separately

	Contents	Pages
	CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION	
11.	Political Situation and Administrative Action	
	West Bengal: Casual Labour to be abolished soon	1-2
13.	Press and Opinion	3 - 5
	CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.	
21.	United Nations and Specialised Agencies	
	Food Aid Worth \$5.9 Million Granted to India by F.A.O.	6
24.	Non-Governmental Organisations (Inter- national, Regional and National) Other than Employers and Workers Trade Organisations.	
	World Assembly Meeting of the International Secretariat of Volunteer Services held at New Delhi, 29 March - 3 April 1967	7
25.	Wage-Earners 1 Organisations	
	Ceylon: Tea Estate to be run by a Trade Union.	8
	Twelfth Annual Conference of Indian National Mineworkers Federation held at Barbil (Orissa), 19 April 1967.	9 - 10

	Contents	Pages
26.	Organisations of Foremen and of Manager of Undertakings.	
	Women Pilots Association Formed	11
28.	Employers 1 Organisations	
	40th Annual Session of the Federa- tion of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry held at New Delhi, 8 April 1967.	12-17
	27th Annual Conference of the All-India Manufacturers Organisation held at New Delhi, 27 April 1967.	18-23
,	CHAPTER 3: ECONOMIC QUESTIONS	
34.	Economic Planning, Control and Development	
	Study on Performance of Government Undertakings published: Loss of Rs.5,880 Million estimated.	24-25
	Quality Control and Plant Utilisa- tion urged for Increasing Production.	26
36.	Wages	
	Productivity Bonus of 30 to 40 percent. Recommended by Expert Committee	27-28
	Interim Relief granted to Workers in units covered by Central Wage Board for Heavy Chemicals and Fertilizer Industries.	29 - 30
	CHAPTER 5: WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS	
52.	Workers* Welfare, Recreation and Workers* Education	
	Annual Report on the activities financed from Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Fund during the year ending 31 March 1966.	- 31 - 33

	<u>Contents</u>	Pages
53•	Women's Work	
	Meeting of the National Council for Women's Education held at New Delhi, 8 March 1967: 1.5 Million Trained Women without Employment.	34-35
	CHAPTER 6: GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS	
67.	Conciliation and Arbitration	
	Arbitration - as a Mode of Dispute Settlement	36
	Industrial Peace in Gujarat	37
•	CHAPTER 7: PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.	
	Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers.	
	Maharashtra Central Dearness Allowance for All Government Employees.	38
	CHAPTER 8: MANPOWER PROBLEMS	
81.	Employment Situation	
	Employment Review 1961-1966 Published	39 - 40
83.	Vocational Training	
	Demand for Engineering Graduates decline	41
	CHAPTER 9: SOCIAL SECURITY	•
90.	General	٠
V	Compensation in case of Employ- ment Injury or Occupational Disease.	
	Review on the Working of the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, during the year 1964	42
92.	Legislation	-1
	Gujarat: Employeest State In- surance Scheme Extended to Certain Areas in the State.	43

	Contents	Pages
92.	Legislation (contd)	
	Andhra Pradesh: Employees! State Insurance Scheme extended to certain areas in the State	प्री
	Maharashtra: Employees t State Insurance Scheme extended to certain area in the State.	45
	CHAPTER 11: OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH	
111.	General	
	Report on the Central Coal Mines Rescue Station Committee for the year 1965-66	46-47

4;

*

*

**

CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION.

INDIA - MARCH-APRIL 1967.

11. Political Situation and Administrative Action.

West Bengal: Casual Labour to be Abolished Soon.

Shri Subodh Banerjee, the Labour Minister of West Bengal announced at Gauhati on 21 April 1967 that the Government would soon abolish casual labour, revise minimum wages, extend the Industrial Disputes Act to more categories of employees and reorganise the Employees' State Insurance Scheme. He saidthat legislation would also be introduced to abolish contract labour wherever possible and regulate it in a few industries such as road-building where such labour was indispensable. He said casual labour was entitled to several benefits after completion of 240 days of work, but the labourers were always being deprived of them through various unfair means. The Government thought that the only remetry was to ban casual labour.

He disclosed that thirteen minimum wage committees were now engaged in revising the minimum wages in a number of important industries accounting for a total labour force of 4,600,000. The Minimum Wages Act would also be extended to industries employing 10,000 workers.

He described Employees' State Insurance
Scheme in its present form as a "source of greate
great waste and corruption". The system of panel
doctors would be abolished. Full-fledged Government
doctors would be appointed and the Government
would open its own pharmacy to prevent overcharging
of drugs and deception of unbettered patients.

Shri Banerjee said the "present propaganda about gheraos in the State are a little more than a bogey by industrialists to pressurise the Government to abandon its progressive labour policy."

There were more than 700 gheraos in the State last year whereas there were only 41 cases last month.

Nearly eight per cent. of the gheraos in March had been suspended and the resumption of the 20 per cent. in recent days was due to the non-implementation of the assurances given by industrialists at the recent tripartite conference.

(The Times of India, 23 April, 1967).

13. Press and Opinion

INDIA - MARCH - APRIL, 1967

In addition to the attached clippings, the following references to the work of the ILO appeared in Indian journals received in this office.

- 1. The Central Bond for Workers[‡]
 Education has published a review on workers[‡]
 education in India. The review contains
 numerous photographs among which one shows
 an ILO Fellow from Mauritius attending a
 Seminar and another shows ILO Expert Prof.
 C.A. Orr at one of the education centres.
- 2. An article on 'Child Welfare and Five Year Plans' is published by the January 1967 issue of 'Kurukshetra'. There is an incidental reference to the ILO.
- 3. The January 1967 issue of *Bank Karamchari*, refers to "Important ILO Meetings" being held in "White Collar Year" 1967. The journal also published a news item regarding the admission of Nepal to the membership of the ILO.
- 4. The February 1967 issue of *Asian Labour* publishes an editorial on "man-power planning in Asia". The article expresses satisfaction that the ILO should have focussed attention of this problem at its Asian Advisory meeting at Singapore.

The same issue of the journal published an article on 'Trade Union Unity; why and on what Basis" by the President of All-Japan Postal Workers! Union (ZENTEI). An incidental reference is made to the 50th International Labour Conference when American Labour representatives walked out of the Conference in protest over the election of the Chairman.

The journal also publishes a news item concerning a protest lodged by the ICFTU against the arrest of a number of striking teachers in Japan. A reference is made to the ILO Fact-Finding and Conciliation Commission.

which has appeared in February 1967 issue of India the Richerve Bank of India Bulletin refers to the ILO Study on the Subject:

The journal also publishes a newsitem concerning the 5th World Congress of the International Federation of Petroleum and Chemical Workers. Incidental references are made to International Labour Conventions.

- 5. An article entiled "Prices, Wages and Incomes Policies: Some lessons of Foreign Experience, Discussing "creeping inflation" the article in a foot note observes, "for a brief account of this phenomenon reference may be made to H.A. Turner and H. Zoeteweij, *Prices, Wages, and Income Policies in Industrialised Market Economies*, ILO Geneva, 1966*. The same article is published in the Indian Worker* dated 27.3.1967
- 6. The Andian Rail Worker, March 1967, publishes a news item concerning the mission in India of the ILO Regional Adviser on Workers Education.

The same issue contains an article on *National Practices of Labour Manage-ment Relations on Railways*. The source is acknowledged as "ILO Report".

- 7. The March 1967 issue of Workers[‡] Education refers to Mr. Zof**K**a[‡]s visit to the regional centre at Jamshedpur and also publishes his message of appreciation.
- 8. The April 1967, issue of Asian Labour contains the following references to the ILO:
- (a) A news item about striking Japanese teachers. The news item denounces the prosecution of union leaders **as violation of trade union rights enshrined in ILO Convention**.
- (b) A news item concerning a decision taken by the Malaysian Trade Union Congress to write to *ILO and other bodies concerned with free labour* regarding the workers of the Public Daily Rated Employees* Unions Federation.
- (c) A news-item concerning ICFTU*s complaint to the ILO against the Government of Liberia for violating ILO Conventions concerning freedom of association and protection of the right to organise and to bargain collectively.

- (d) A news item regarding AFL-CIO action urging the U.S. Senate to accelerate the ratification of International Labour Convention 105 on Forced Labour.
- 9. *Indian Worker*, dated 6 March 1967 publishes the following references to the ILO:
- (a) Election of ILO Director-General David A Morse for another five-year term.
- (b) A news item concerning a ICFTU's appeal to Nepal for release of imprisoned trade unionists in conformity with International Labour Conventions.
- (c) A news-item concerning ICFTUts complaint to the ILO against Liberia for infringement of trade union rights.
- (d) A news-item concerning a Liberian Government to ILO Headquarters and ICFTU Headquarters.
- 10. The Indian Worker, dated 3 April 1967 publishes a news-item concerning a letter from the ILO Director-General to the Assistant General Secretary of the ICFTU thanking him for his felicitations and stressing the common goals of the ILO and ICFTU.
- 11. The Indian Worker dated 17 April 1967 publishes an article entitled "ILO and Human Rights" by C. Wilfred Jenks, Deputy Director-General of the ILO. The article is based on a statement made by the author before the 23rd session of the Commission on Human Rights of the Economic and Social Council.

Press and Ofstrion

India, March- April, 1967.

13.

.

The Indian Textile Journal. Bombay, icby. 467

Mr. R. Raghunath Rao

The death occurred recently in Switzerland of Mr. Raghunath Rao, a former Assistant Director-General of the I.L.O.

Educated at the Universities of Madras, Edinburgh, Paris and Geneva, Mr. Rao joined the I.L.O. in 1932 and was the first Asian to hold the rank of Assistant Director-General to which post he was promoted in 1948.

United Nations Veek & Newslesses Newslesses

ÍNDIA: INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION MADE TO ORDER

THE extent to which industrially developing countries are able to avoid the social hardship which accompanied industrialisation in the West is a question of key importance to millions of workers and to the national communities to which they belong.

Among the efforts being made in many places to "humanise" the twentieth century industrial revolution, those of India deserve special mention, for they have resulted in the establishment of a network of Labour Institutes, which function as centres for the scientific study of the human aspects of industrial development.

At an early stage in the planning of the present industrialisation programme, the Indian Government was aware of the need for a service of this nature. It was quite evident that industry could not be modernised, diversified and expanded merely by installing the required plant and expecting it to function smoothly. For one thing, a great number of skilled workers and technicians were needed, and the instructors to train them had to be found.

International Partnership

INDIA was at a disadvantage in that like so many other developing countries, it had to do almost everything at once, but there was nothing to prevent it from drawing on the long and often hard-won experience of the industrially developed countries.

One channel through which this experience was made available was International Labour Organisation. At the Government's request, a fiveman ILO productivity mission worked in the country from 1952 to 1954.

The chief outcome of the mission was the establishment of the Productivity Centre at the Central Labour Institute in Bombay. Since its inception in 1955, the Centre has demonstrated the effectiveness of modern productivity improvement techniques in a wide range of industrial situations.

The Centre's most significant achievement has perhaps been in creating a climate of opinion conducive to the application of higher productivity techniques. In important industrial centres such as Calcutta, Bombay and Madras, productivity projects have resulted in the formation of local productivity councils. The Productivity Centre was a pioneer in supervisory training, management development and training in industrial engineering at plant level, a field in which a number of agencies are at work today.

four years of its operation. In that period, 173 training officers from various establishments were trained by the Centre; these in turn went on to train some 37,000 supervisors in in-plant programmes.

Regional Institutes Established

THE demand for the Institute's services led to a decision to extend its work into the heart of other principal industrial regions through the establishment of Regional Labour Institutes, each modelled on the pattern of the Central Labour Institute, though on a smaller scale. Once more the Government enlisted the cooperation of the ILO. Acting this time as executing agency of the United Nations Development Programme (Special Fund), the ILO provided equipment and a team of international experts in management development, industrial physiology, industrial psychology and visual publicity. The Regional Institutes, now entirely staffed and operated by Indian nationals continue to receive ILO expert assistance on a short-time basis through the United Nations Development Programme, the primary purpose being to enable them to keep abreast of new techniques.

Government and industry alike attach considerable-weight to the contribution of the ILO team of international experts in the setting up and initial operation of the Regional Labour Institutes. Professor M.S. Thacker of the Indian Government's Planning Commission sees such projects as "Milestones of advance on the road of international development."

That industry's response to the full range of services offered by the Institutes has been good is hardly surprising, considering the benefits which industry stands to reap from the application of the various sciences having to do with men at work. The six firms which in one period in 1964 received advice from the ILO mission on office organiation, systems and procedures are completely "sold" on the idea—they secured total savings of \$50,000 side by side with a productivity increase. No forwrd-looking enterprise can afford to dismiss evidence as compelling as this.

THE activities of the Institutes are so planned as to provide an integrated technical service to

grammes an opportunity for debate and study of questions of common concern.

The effects of these activities are both measurable and inneasurable. In terms of reduced per unit of production, increased output, improved working conditions and techniques, the result can be recorded and evaluated. This are other effects however, with are not to be seen in comparate balances sheets; these include improvements in morale, in attitudes towards work, in adaptation to new environments. They too, are essential in the development of a sound economy and a healthy society.

Now on the threshold of its fourth Five-Year Plan, India is engaged in nothing less than a preplanned industrial revolution—a

hnited Nations Wen & Newsletter,

David A. Morse Re-Elected ILO Director-General

THE Governing Body of the International Labour Organisation on 27 February at its one hundred and sixty-eighth session unanimously re-elected David A. Morse as ILO Director-General for a new five-year period, to begin in September 1968 at the end of his current term of office.

Mr. Morse was first elected Director-General in June 1948 for a ten-year period; he has since been re-elected twice in succession in May 1957 and March 1962, on each occasion for a five-year period.

Mr. Morse has now headed the ILO for more than 18 years—a term of office unprecedented in the annals of international organisations.

During the 18 years in which Mr. David A. Morse has been Director-General of the ILO the Organisation has undergone some very profound changes.

The membership of the Organisation increased from 55 in 1948 to 118 in January 1967. The regular budget of the Organisation increased from almost \$4.5 million in 1948 to \$22.5 million in 1967.

The Times of India, Bombay, 11.46)

Future for labour bright, says Bombay \expert

By A Staff Reporter

"If politics is not brought in in the day-to-day working of labour unions, the future of the trade union movement in India is bright," observed the veteran industrial relations expert, Air, S. C. Joshi, in an interview in Bombay on Monday.

Monday.

Mr. Joshi, who has been invited by the Central Government to join a labour committee under the chairman-ship of 'Mr' P. B. Gajendragadkar, vice-chancellor of Bombay University, was presented with a gold pin of the St. Xavier's Social Institute of Indus-try by his colleagues and students on try by his colleagues and students on his 75th birthday.

The labour situation at the moment,

Mr. Joshi said, was very depressing. "There is still hope for labour to come into its own if every labour problem is not given a political shift."

Himself closely connected with pro-

blems of industrial labour



Mr. S. C. Joshi

years, Mr. Joshi referred to the emergence of Opposition parties in several States and said he foresaw a bright future for labour as most of Opposition leaders would now realise the need to keep labour affairs free from political entanglements.

Mr. Joshi has held many responsible posts. He was the first chief labour commissioner of the Government of commissioner of the Government of India who organised the industrial relation machinery, was adviser to Mr. V. V. Giri, a former Union Labour Minister. Mr. Joshi took a leading part in the framing of industrial law in India, represented Indian labour at the International Labour Organisation's conference at Geneva in 1930, was member of the Bombay Legislative Assembly and a municipal countries. tive Assembly and a municipal coun-

At present he is the doyen of the professors at the St. Xavier's Social institute of Industry.

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.

INDIA - MARCH-APRIL 1967.

21. United Nations and Specialised Agencies.

Food Aid Worth \$5.9 Million Granted to India by F.A.O.

The Food and Agriculture Organisation of the United Nations decided at a meeting in Rome on 20 April 1967, to grant food aid of 25 million dollars for 11 economic projects in India, Afghanistan, Korea, the United Arab Republic, Chad, Tanzania, Upper Volta, Burundi and Brazil.

India will benefit most from the aid. In five years she will get food aid of 5.9 million. dollars to develop her agriculure and commercialisation centres. An addition of 2.9 million dollars will be given for canal construction by 12,000 workers in Rajasthan.

(The Hindustan Times, 21 April, 1967).

24. Non-Governmental Organisations
(International, Regional and National)
Other than Employers' and Workers'
Trade Organisations.

India - March-April 1967.

World Assembly Meeting of the International Secretariat of Volunteer Services held at New Delhi, 29 March-3 April 1967.

The World Assembly meeting of the International Secretariat of Volunteer Services was held at New Delhi from 29 March to 3 April 1967. The meeting was attended by an official from Headquarters.

(The Statesman, 4 April, 1967)

25. Wage-Earners Organisations.

India - March-April 1967.

Ceylon: Tea Estate to be run by a Trade Union.

For the first time in Ceylon, a tea estate has been taken over on lease by a trade union to be run on behalf of its members from this month. The trade union is the Ceylon Workers Congress, led by Mr. S. Thondaman, and the estate is the 300-acre Kintyre estate at Maskeliya, 100 miles from Colombo.

The estate is among those acquired by the Government for the purpose of a hydro-electric stheme.

(The Times of India, 21 April, 1967).

25. Wage-Earners! Organisations

Twelfth Annual Conference of Indian National Mineworkers Federation held at Barbil (Orissa), 19 April 1967

The 12th Annual Conference of Indian National Mineworkers Federation was held at Barbil (Orissa) on 19 April 1967. Shri Michael John presided over the Conference. Amongst others, the Conference adopted resolutions on early acceptance of Wage Board recommendations, nationalisation of mines, abolition of contract and C.R.O. systems, subversion of freedom and democracy and regular supply of foodgrains to workers.

Presidential Address

Delivering the presidential address, Shri Michael John regretted the inordinate delay being taken by the different Wage Boards in the submission of their reports and acceptance by the Government of their recommendations.

Shri Michael John said that although the value of mineral production had gone up from Rs.710 million in 1951 to Rs.2470 million in 1966 and the productivity of the mineworkers had been rising, they were living in subhuman conditions. He urged upon the Government to see that suitable steps were taken to improve the working and living conditions of mine workers. While plans and programmes of industrial production were carried out with vigour and enthusiasm, there was a corresponding apathy and indifference to the problem of providing primary necessities of life to them. He said that bipartite agreement regarding the abolition of contract system in the Coal Industry still remained unimplemented and it was unfortunate that the employers were delaying its proper interpretation and implementation. He hoped that the Government would refer this long-standing dispute without any further delay to the Court of Enquiry or the National Commission of Labour as was decided at the last meeting of the Industrial Committee on Coalmining. The President stressed the necessity of raising the present absurdly low rate of compensation to a level which would act as a deterrent to neglect of safety

provisions. He therefore suggested modifications in the Workmen's Compensation Act so as to provide for injury leave upto at least six months with full pay in addition to free hospitalisation. Concluding his speech, the President appealed to the workers to develop their own strength and solidarity and not rely upon any other agency for the redress of their grievances and furtherance of their interests.

General Secretary's Report: The Secretary presented his report to the Conference which reviews the activities and progress of the Indian National Mineowners' Federation during the year 1966-67. The report, among other matters, has dealt with rise in prices, wage boards, industrial relations, situation in the coal-mining industry; non-payment or delayed payment of profit-sharing bonus, conclusions of the tenth session of the Industrial Committee on Coal Mining, abolition of contract and C.R.O. systems, situation in mines other than coal, safety, social security and welfare measures etc.

Resolutions: Adopting a resolution on nationalisation of mines, the Federation expressed the opinion that without nationalisation it would not be possible to rationalise the structure of the mining industry which was absolutely necessary for ensuring scientific and economic exploitation of the country's mineral resources. The Conference therefore demanded for the immediate nationalisation of coal and other mines.

The Conference also adopted resolutions urging the abolition of contract system and C.R.O. system.

Expressing its concern over the deterioration in the living conditions of workers in mines other than coal, iron-ore, limestone and dolomite, it demanded that the recommendations of the iron-ore, limestone and dolomite Wage Boards be extended to the manganese mines also, more specially where they are situated in the same region. The Conference also urged upon the Government to see that Wage Boards or other suitable wage-fixing machiner; ess are immediately set up for other mines.

(Documents of the Conference received in this office)

26. Organisations of Foremen and of Manager of Undertakings.

India - March-April 1967.

Women Pilots Association Formed.

At a meeting of women pilots in the country held at Bombay on 19 April 1967, an Indian Women Pilots Association was formed. Mrs. Chanda Sawant and Mrs. Rabis Futehally were chosen as the President and Secretary respectively.

(The Statesman, 20 April, 1967).

28. Employers' Organisations. India - March-April 1967.

40th Annual Session of the Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry held at New Delhi, 8 April 1967.

The 40th annual session of the Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry was held at New Delhi on 8 April 1967. The Conference was inaugurated by Shri Morarji Desai, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Finance. Shri Ramanbhai B. Amin presided. The Conference adopted resolutions on Agricultural Development, Taxation and Economic Development, Planning and Administration, Economic Situation and Social Unrest.

Presidential Address. - Addressing the Session Shri Ramanbhai B. Amin pointed out how the economy of the country was running down since last four years. The national income in real terms and went up only by 13 per cent. as against the Plan expectation of 30 per cent.; 1965-66 actually declined by 4 per cent; The production of foodgrains went down from 82 million tonnes in 1960-61 to 76 million tonnes in 1966-67, as against our requirements of over 90 million tonnes; Industrial production increased by just 40 per cent. as compared to the Third Plan target of 70 per cent.; in 1966 the increase was only 3 per cent.; Between April and December 1966. the foreign exchange reserves fell by the equivalent of about 18 million dollars despite a net drawing of 137.5 million dollars from the International Monetary Fund; in contrast with these shortfalls, the population increased at the rate of 10 million per year, and the backlog of unemployment steadily grew to 11 million; prices rose by 60 per cent. since March 1963, by 18 per cent. in 1966-67 alone.

The President was of the view that neither the two aggressions on the Northern borders nor the failure of monsoons nor the dearth of foreign exchange but faulty planning, wrong policies and poor implementation constituted the major cause for such an adverse economic There was lack of feeling of partisituation. cipation and enthusiasmin the people in the great national endeavour of production. President said that the emphasis on Governmental expenditures had undoubtedly led to harmful consequences and the search for revenue was unabated resulting in steeper taxes, higher prices and lesser production. To revive the economy, the President suggested his plan for operation revival. The plan recommends the following action by the Government:

Complete as fast as possible all projects which are under construction before investing in any new undertaking;

Enable the full utilisation of established capacity in private and public sector enterprises;

Reduce and rationalise taxation;

Cut public expenditure at least by 10 percent.;

Remove obstacles like industrial licensing, price controls, etc.;

Adopt a more constructive monetary policy which will help production and distributive trade;

Re-organise the administrative system so that delay attracts penalty, and speedy disposal, recognisation.

The Plan further suggests that both the Government and Private Sector should accelerate production of agricultural inputs like fertilisers, improved seeds, agricultural machinery and implements, insecticides and spraying equipment. It also urges the private and public sectorenterprises to : Satisfy the consumer by improving quality, widening the range of choice and giving him his money's worth; Meet the growing requirements of goods and services in rural areas; Secure greater efficiency and lower costs; Use indigenous techniques and expertise to the fullest extent and minimise the import bill; Increase export earnings by exploring new markets and exporting new products. And above all, for the successful implementation, the workers must exercise discipline in their demands, take greater price in their work and help increase productivity and earn more.

Resolutions:

Resolution on Agricultural Development .- In view of the Federation, the growth of agriculture of the kind and at the pace necessary could only be accomplished if the working methods of modern industry were applied to agriculture. Towards effectively implementing an action-oriented programme Government should associate representatives of industry and business in all their programmes of agricultural development. programmes should be initiated by industry too, and Government must not only encourage the industry in this regard but also make available part of the funds specifically being raised from industry for agricultural development. Industry must obviously produce the inputs and make available technical know-how and after-sales services as well. fically speaking, industry could take greater interest in agriculture by starting Agricultural Service Centre and entering into detailed contracts to supply the inputs and purchase the output. Resolution also recommended provision of short and medium term credit to the farmer for the purchase of implements and inputs.

Resolution on taxation and Economic Development. The Federation was convinced that the tax policy followed by Government was mainly responsible for inhibiting production, increasing prices, reducing savings in the hands of the people and rendering the capital market lifeless. In the light of the emergent needs of productive employment, there should be a phase of tax cuts, to help growth—generating activities by the people for the people. In this behalf the Federation made the following main recommendations:

- 1. Besides eliminating the surcharges on income tax, the maximum marginal rate of tax on personal income should be substantially brought down. In view of the fall in the value of money, the tax rate slabs should also be appropriately revised.
- 2. The difference between earned and unearned income for tax purposes must be eliminated, in particular dividend income should be treated as earned income, on lines similar to interest on government securities.

- 3. The incidence of corporate tax both in public and private companies should also be appreciably reduced. The surtax on company profits is a tax on growth, efficiency, initiative and risk-taking and should be with-drawn. One uniform rate of tax should apply to all categories of companies, and plough back of profits by certain classes of private companies should not be discriminated against, as has been the practice at prewent.
- 4. The vexatious annuity deposit scheme should be scrapped.
- 5. The relief in respect of new industrial undertakings should be made more effective.
- 6. Both development rebate and depreciation should be admissible on the enhanced cost of imported plant and machinery consequent upon devaluation.
- 7. Indirect taxes, which largely determine the final price, have to be rationalised.
- Reduction in taxation is possible because (1) a large part of Government expenditure can be substantially cut down, and (2) the pace of economic activity can be substantially accelerated, making good any lowered incidence of taxes by considerable increase in revenues.

The Federation was firmly of the view that if measures in this direction were taken immediately, they would assist in the economy's forward move.

Resolution on Planning and Administration. The Federation was of the view that while each successive Plan had grown in size financially, the achievements made in physical terms had been far from adequate. In the opinion of the Federation there were quite a few drawbacks which must receive urgent attention and rectification. The Federation made the following suggestions in this regard:

l. Government should take upon themselves only those tasks which they can accomplish with efficienty and in this view limit themselves to the development of infra-structure of the economy.

ሞር

- 2. The improve the implementation of policy, administrative procedure must be streamlined. At all levels, there should be a proper allocation of responsibilities and powers for quick decisions, and there mustbe a system by which efficiency is recognised and inefficiency penalised.
- 3. The inhibitory restrictions on economic activity mustbe eliminated and thereby help a smooth working of market mechanism.
- 4. The Planning Commission must continually have close and effective consultations with different economic groups, i.e. industry, business, agriculture and labour, so as to take a comprehensive view of different areas of growth.
- 5. With a view to imparting realism to Plan exercises, the membership of the Planning Commission must be composed of experienced persons of proven practical ability from different walks of life. They must be assisted by compact task forces for experts.
 - 6. The Planning Commission must function only as an advisory body to provide major guidelines. There must be no overlapping of authority between the Planning Commission and Government.
 - 7. There must be an annual assessment of achievements as much of targets, the latter being necessary to check whether they have been realistically framed and also to allow for flexibility.

Resolution on Economic Situation and Social Unrest. The Federation felt compelled to express its grave concern at the growing uncertain conditions on the social and economic fronts. The Federation recommended in particular, action in the following directions for bringing about a significant improvement in the prevailing economic situation and thereby overcome serious inflationary pressures and rising prices:-

- 1. A substantial increase in agricultural and industrial production and productivity;
 - 2. Progressive policy of decontrol;
- 3. Review of the taxation measures with a view to reducing the incidence of taxation at all levels;
- 4. The full utilisation of normal trade channels in both the internal and external trade of the country:

- 5. Eschewing deficit financing and adoption of regorous discipline both at the Centre and the State levels in respect of non-Plan non-development expenditure;
- 6. Encouraging efforts at furthering and augmenting industrial production on the basis of efficiency and costs and not on the basis of any pre-conceived notion regarding the relative roles of the public and private sectors;
- 7. Revival of the capital market through appropriate refashioning of the fiscal, monetary and credit policies calculated to generate saving and investments and provision of adequate finance for industries;
- 8. Formulation of programmes of development keeping in view the availability of resources and ensuring their efficient implementation (as also strict avoidance of unproductive expenditure);
- 9. Promotion of exports through appropriate measures designed to increase the competitiveness of the export products in overseas markets; and
- 10. Implementation of programmes for popularising Family Planning.

The Federation reiterated its firm conviction that the contribution of the normal trade channels to the health of the economy was as vital as that of the producers in agricultural and industrial field. The Federation urged upon the authorities to revise their approach to the traders and enlist their cooperation, experience and expertise, instead of viewing their them with suspicion or demigrating their role.

Shri L.N. Birla was elected President for 1967-68.

(Documents received in this Office from the Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry, New Delhi).

27th Annual Conference of the All-India Manufacturers' Organisation held at New Delhi, 27 April 1967.

The 27th Annual Conference of the All-India Manufacturers' Organisation was held at New Delhi on 27 April 1967. The Conference was inaugurated by Shri Morarji R. Desai, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Finance and presided over by Shri B.D. Somani. Among others Shri Jaisukhlal Hathi, Union Labour Minister and Shri K.B. Lal, Secretary of the Union Commerce Ministry addressed the meeting. Resolutions on economic situation, labour policy and export promotion were adopted by the Conference.

Presidential Address's-Addressing the meeting Shri B.D. Somani, President of the All-India Manufacturers Organisation, pointed out how the economy of the country presented a picture of unitigrated depression, creating a climate of gloom and frustration - rise in general level of price by 15.6 per cent. in 1966-67, expected growth of industrial production to be barely 2.5 per cent.; fall in exports, increasing dose of deficit financing etc. He urged for reorganisation of the Planning Commission as an advisory body of top ranking economists and technologist to play their role within the means and resources available, and to temper down the excesses of planning which the economy had witnessed bringing in the field three dimensional picture (i) Deficit financing, (ii) Devaluation, and (iii) Declining trend in industrial production resulting in continuous rise in prices and economic depression.

Suggesting corrective measures for the revival of the economy Shri Somani said the first and foremost need of the country was stepping up of agricultural production. Industrialisation of agriculture which would modernise methods of production, would alone augment food production in the quickest possible time. This would be possible only by amending some of the land ceiling laws and by making the land more easily transferable without depriving peasant proprietors of economic holdings so as to give full opportunity for operation by joint stock companies. Only in this way efficiency of land utilisation could be improved,

and the small and fragmented uneconomic holdings could be imp consolidated into well organised modern farms run and managed on scientific lines with substantial savings and capital diverted towards the production of the much needed food to become self-sufficient in the shortest possible time.

Speaking on the coordination and cooperation between public and private sector units, the President urged that both Private and Public sectors must be treated on par and without prejudice, if both were to co-exist. Unless, healthy competition was developed between them e.g. public vir vs private sector as well as between companies in each sector, the best productive forces could not be expected to be released, resulting into the optimum productivity and minimum prices to the consumers. He welcomed the idea of forming consortium, more particularly for developing export market, but stressed that the proposed consortium should not be confined to the units in the public sector only but competent private sector units should also be allowed and they should be actively associated in designing, tendering and executing twenkey jobs whether within or outside the country. Apart from the general industrial research, the President suggested intensification of efforts on in-plant operational research, proper production planning, inventory control, value analysis, budgetary cost control, quality control, proper material handling and work study programme and in-plant training. In the matter of dealings with employers and workers he said that more and more direct and personal contacts with the persons working on the floor was needed. If the employers took a little more personal interest in the welfare of the employees, the employees were bound to respond favourable and start taking interest in their problems pertaining to the saving in production costs, etc. and for betwer earning of the confidence and good will. The President suggested that top business houses and leading businessmen should come forward and render voluntary services for national projects to facilitate betwer and more productive use of national asserts to revive the economy of the country.

Resolutions:

Resolution on Economic Situation.— The Conference viewed with great alarm the growing dissatisfaction and frustration among the people over the soaring prices, mounting cost of living and heavy incidence of taxation year after year, which had occasionally manifested itself in widespread vandalism, arson, loot, strikes, "bandhs", "gheras" and destruction of public property. The Conference therefore urged immediate action on the following lines to arrest any further deterioration in the economic situation:—

- i) immediate and drastric curtailment of public administrative expenditure, at least to the extent of 10 per cent. at all levels, including Central Government, State Governments and local authorities;
- ii) restrained and selective spending on public sector;
- iii) utmost concentration on increasing productivity and improving the efficiency of the working of public sector projects so as to raise the yield from investment from the low figure of 3 per cent. to at least 12 per cent. laid down in the Plan and to curtail the heavy production cost particularly by reducing the heavy inventories to economic level;
- iv) immediate revival of capital market by following a policy of progressive reduction in the incidence of taxation on corporate sector and on individuals; by the withdrawal of the provision of 10 per cent. surcharge on Income-tax and making it obligatory to use the same in investment in equity or preference bares or deboutures; and preference shares or debentures; and by allowing also closely held trading and investment companies both joint-stock and private - which are at present compelled under the statute to declare a dividend of 90 per cent. to lowering such dividend to 50 per cent. subject to the condition that the remaining profits are utilised for investing in share or debentures of joint-stock companies engaged in industry not within the same group of managing agents:
- v) modification of Industrial Policy Resolution so as to permit the entry of the private sector in all industries in order to promote healthy competition between private and public sector enterprises; Government not to enter into such industrial fields where enough capacity already exists;

- vi) progressive decontrol of all essential consumer commodities from licensing and price restrictions as well as distribution regulations keeping in mind the interest of medium and small scale industries so as to facilitate expansion of production, competitive output and free movement of commodities for the ultimate benefit of consumers;
- vii) encouraging industrialisation of agriculture and permitting the entry of the Joint Stock sector for growing crops especially on fallow and waste lands, and for running model seed farms;
- viii) priority to be given for the production of various agricultural inputs auch as fertilisers, insecticides and agricultural implements;
- ix) provision of more liberal credit facilities to such industries as are facing recession and are, therefore, in need of larger credit to help the distribution of their manufactured goods;
- x) encouraging every industry to adopt a scheme of payment of wages by results for awakening productivity consciousness among labour.

Resolution on Export Promotion. - Among other measures, the Conference recommended the following measures to be taken by the Government for export promotion: -

- i) announcement of exact details and policies on supply of basic raw materials;
- ii) reduction in import duty particularly these levied after devaluation;
- iii) Permission to actual users, especially for replenishment of raw materials required for export, to import their requirements directly, instead of through the S.T.C. or the M.M.T.C.; (Mainty frank, India)
- iv) Exemption of the cash subsidy from income-tax to make up for the various indirect taxes such as Sales Tax and Octroi which are not refunded at present; for export oriented industries, preference should be given for expansion and for import of capital goods;
 - v) Reduction in the high freight charges;
- vi) Unchanged export policy at least for 5 years.

The resolution also recommended measures to be taken up by the industy. To enable even the small manufacturers to play their effective role, in the export promotion efforts, export effort should be organised industry-wise and/a/through Small Scale Industries Development Corporations in respective States wherever established. This would enable each industry to provide a variety of goods for competitive markets abroad, and to appoint common agents and also to render effective after-sales service, wherever necessary.

Resolution on Labour Policy.— The resolution on Labour Policy criticised the present Labour Policy of the Government which had failed to establish good and sound employer—employee relations. Even though money wages had gone up considerably during the past few years, real earnings had not increased on account of inflationary forces in the country. The Conference urged upon the Government to modify their policies and made the following recommendations:—

- (a) the objectives of the labour policy should be in tune with the objectives of the National Plans. The present policy of merely ensuring peace in industry and a fair deal to labour is weak in concept and inadequate for the achievement of our econòmic goals;
- (b) the plothora of labour legilsation should be thoroughly examined and only a limited number of revised laws based upon practical consideration should be kept on the statute book;
- (c) similarly, all labour welfare measures like Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Retrenchment Compensation, Gratuity etc. should be amalgamated and consolidated under one comprehensive scheme so that the operation becomes easy and simple; the huge administrative costs are reduced to the minimum and the amount saved may be utilised for augmenting the benefits to employees;
- (d) even though labour is a concurrent subject, National Labour Policy should be evolved and implemented uniformly throughout the country. The attention of the States should primarily be concentrated on implementing the National Policy and on creating a good climate for developing sound industrial relations and ensuring disciplined behaviour by all concerned;

- (e) sound wage policy for employees hould be evolved. It should aim at a planned rise in earnings of employees principally based upon increase in employees contribution to productivity so that it assists not only in maintaining the price line but in reversing its rising trend and thus ensuring a real increase in earnings;
- (f) the growing trend to curb the powers of the Management to manage should be checked and stricter measures should be adopted to check the growing indiscipline, viblence and other undesirable practices in the trade unionism, which besides undermining the industrial efficiency is having graye repercussions on the moral fiber and economy of the nation;
- (g) the law and order machinery should not be a mere spectator when individual liberty, and safety of the person and property of the management is infringed or endangered under the garb of non-interference in an Industrial dispute;
- (h) this Conference urged National Commission for Labour to consider the foregoing suggestions in all their aspects and suggest long-term measures.

The Conference, assured the National Commission on Labour of its full cooperation in its vital task. The Conference also urged upon employers in industry to adopt a positive and constructive approach to the problems of industrial relations, earnings of employees, working conditions, efficiency in all apheres of work, and the use of latest and best management techniques, by creating an atmosphere of trust and confidence through giving employees a sence of genuine participation in decision—making affecting the employees, and by preparing long—range wage plans based upon productivity and incentives, the Conference believed that employers could create a real industrial democracy for the prosperity of the employees, employers and the country.

Shri B.D. Somani, was re-elected as President of the All-India Manufacturers Organisation for the year 1967.

Chapter 3. Ronomic Questions

34. Economic Planning, Controland Development.

India - March-April 1967.

Study on Performance of Government Undertakings Published: Loss of Rs. 5,880 Million estimated.

According to a special study entitled "Performance of Government Undertakings" made by the Economic and Scientific Research Foundation, India is losing 5,880 million rupees worth of industrial output every year as a result of the massive investment in <a href="https://www.nield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wield.com/wie

The study is based on a detailed examination of the performance of Government companies over a seven-year period ending in 1964-65. It covers a total of 32 companies completed industrial and trade enterprises, specifically declared "running" by the Government accounting for a paid-up capital of 8,200 million rupees.

According to the study, the public sector undertakings (excluding Hindustan Steel) yield a return on capital of 6.1 per cent. as compared with 19 per cent. in respect of private sector enterprises. If Hindustan Steel's results are included, the yield goes down to about 3 per cent. - less than one-sixth of the return obtained in private industry.

"The entire public sector investment programme", the Foundation points out, "is divorced from calculations either of costs or of return on capital and is necessarily an ad hoc programme governed mainly by some unexplained predilections of the planners".

The public sector companies receive funds from the treasury without any commitment on either side as regards their profitability. On the other hand, the level of profits is a major factor governing the flow of investment funds in private sector companies. It is thus possible for Government companies to go on expanding - Hindustan Steel is a striking example - without any compulsion to maintain a competitive level of costs or profits.

The study points out that the investment in public sector industry has increased rapidly over the years and is expected to be of the order of 40,000 million rupees in the Fourth Plan as compared to less than 10,000 million rupees in the Second Plan.

Thus, more and more resources are being directed to increasingly low-yield sectors, with the result that larger and larger capital resources are required even to maintain the present low rate of growth.

For instance, with the proposed investment of 40,000 million rupees in Government undertakings in the Fourth Plan, the annual loss in industrial output at the end of the Plan is estimated to reach a level of 14,680 million rupees, which is more than the average yearly increase in the national income during the last two Plans. Taking the economy as a whole, the loss would work out at about 20,000 million rupees a year, or nearly 10 per cent. of the yearly national output.

(The Statesman, 3 April, 1967).

Quality Control and Plant Utilisation urged for Increasing Production .

A Seminar on total Quality Control and Reliability Engineering was inaugurated by Prof. M.S. Thacker, member of the Planning Commission, at New Delhi on 1 March 1967.

The Statistical Quality Control (SQC) unit of the Indian Statistical Institute has estimated the overall wastage in Indian industry at a conservative minimum of 20-25 per cent. It was stated that statistical quality control alone could increase the annual industrial production by about 44,000 million rupees - without additional imported equipment or investment of more capital.

A SQC analysis of the industrial scene threw the spotlight on another "conspicuous factor" responsible for rocketing cost of production, namely, under-utilisation of expensive equipment and machinery. The overall plant utilisation even in the best managed factories was hardly 40 per cent. the SQC unit said.

Noting the comparative scarcity of capital as against labour, the unit said the emphasis in India, unlike in the U.S. should be on machine productivity rather than labour productivity.

(The Hindustan Times, 2 March, 1967).

36. Wages.

India - March-April 1967.

Productivity Bonus of 30 to 40 Percent. Recommended by Expert Committee.

An expert committee of the National Productivity Council has evolved a "national formula" for sharing the gains of productivity among partners of production as well as the consumer.

The seven-member committee headed by Mr. Leslie Sawhny, in its report released on 29 April 1967, recommended recommends by majority opinion a productivity bonus of 30 to 40 per cent. to labour.

The ingredients of the formula outlined by the committee are: 30 to 40 per cent. of share of gains of productivity to labour, capital investment of 20 to 30 per cent. for development dividends of 20 per cent. on capital and a reduction of 20 per cent. in prices to consumers.

Shri B.N. Datar, adviser on labour in the Planning Commission, and Shri Satish Loomba, the All-India Trade Union Congress representative, have dissented on the ground that the share of labour is insufficient in the distribution of gain.

In a counter-proposal, these two dissenting members have suggested that where the wages of labour are below the need-based minimum wage, workers' share should be between 65 and 70 per cent. Where the wages are at a level between the need-based minimum wage and fair wage, the worker's share should be from 55 to 65 per cent. and where the wages are between the fair wage and the living wage, the share should be between 40 and 45 per cent. They have proposed that the residue in each case has to be shared equally between the industry and the community, subject to the condition that in no situation should the share of the community exceed 20 per cent.

Shri N.N. Wanchoo, the Productivity Council's Chairman, after a scrutiny of the conflicting claims and varying views of the different sections in the committeen proposed another formula in the nature of a compromise which seeks to strike a balance and reconcile various interests.

The highlights of the compromise formula, which has been supported by the Governing Body of the Council are that after making a provision of up to 20 per cent. for consumers, labour will receive half of the blance of the gains of productivity in those industries where their wages clearly correspond to a fair or living wage. Where the wages are at a level below either the fair wage or the need-based minimum wage, the share of labour will be larger, to be decided by mutual agreement. Where the industry has clearly built up large free reserve, the share of labour will be higher than that of the industry.

(The Hindustan Times, 30 April, 1967).

36. Wages

INDIA - MARCH - APRIL 1967

Interim Relief granted to Workers in units covered by Central Wage Board for Heavy Chemicals and Fertilizer Industries

A Resolution dated 29 April 1962 of the Department of Labour and Employment, Ministry of Labour and Rehabilitation states that a Central Wage Board for Heavy Chemicals & Fertilizers Industry was constituted by the Government of India by their Resolution dated the 3rd April, 1965. The Wage Board has made recommendations for the grant of Interim Relief, as shown below;

The Government has decided to accept the recommendations of the Wage Board. It has, however, been decided that interim relief will not be payable in those units where the recommendations of any other Wage Board have already been applied.

The Government request the concerned employers to implement the recommendations of the Wage Board at an early date.

The Board unanimously decided to recommend Interim Relief on the following lines to the workers in the units covered by the Central Wage Board for Heavy Chemicals and Fertilizer Industries with effect from 1.11.1966.

Wages (i.e. Basic plus D.A.) or the consolidated wage.

- 1. Up to and inclusive of Rs.100 p.m. Rs. 12.50 subject to a maximum of Rs.109.00
- 2. Above Rs.100 but not more than Rs.200 p.m., Rs.7.50 subject to a minimum of Rs.110 and a maximum of Rs.206.
- 3. Above Rs.200 and up to Rs.500 p.m. Rs.5 subject to a minimum of Rs.207.50 and a maximum of Rs.500.

The above Interim Relief is subject to the following conditions:

(a) This is payable to all workers on the roll of the Company as on 1st October, 1966, or engaged thereafter.

- (b) Trainees, Apprentices, learners, Head Office and Branch Office staff are excluded.
- (c) In the case of composite establishments which are included within the jurisdiction of the Board, these recommendations apply only to the workers engaged in the Heavy Chemical/Fertilizer Sections of these establishments and not to others.
- (d) The amount of Interim Relief recommended above will be suitably adjusted in cases where the increase in the total emoluments was made on the basis of an agreement, settlement or award or notice of payment subsequent to the appointment of this Wage Board (Government of India Resolution No. WB-12(1)/64 dated 3rd April 1965) wherein such an adjustment was provided for.
- (e) The above payment will be an ad hoc relief which will be adjusted in the final recommendations of the Board and shall not be taken into account for purposes of Provident Fund, Gratuity, Incentive payments, Bonus or other allowances.
- (f) Workers employed in constructioncum-expansion programme of the
 units and not directly connected
 with production are not eligible
 for interim relief, it being
 assumed that their emoluments are
 duly considered on a separate
 basis.

(The Gazette of India, Part 5, Sec. I, 13 May 1967, pp. 547-548)

Chapter s. Working Conditions and Living Standards

52. Workers' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education.

India - March-April 1967.

Annual Report on the Activities Financed from Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Fundduring the Year ending 31 March 1966.

The Ministry of Labour, and Employment and Rehabilitation published on 4 March 1967 the annual report on the activities financed from the Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Fund during the year ending 31 March 1966. A brief summary of the report is given below.

The Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Fund has been constituted under the Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess Act, 1961 (58 of 1961) which provides for the levy and collection of a cess on the production of Iron Ore for the financing of activities to promote the welfare of labour employed in the iron ore mining industry. Act provides for the levy of a cess at a rate not exceeding 50 paise per metric tonne of iron ore produced. The present rate of levy is only 25 paise per metric tonne. The Act is applicable to the whole of India except the State of Jammu and Kashmir. It was enforced with effect from 1 October 1963 except the territory of Goa, Daman and Diu where it came into effect from 1 October 1964.

The Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess Rules, 1963, have been framed to carry into effect the purposes of the Act. Five Advisory Committees one each for Andhra Pradesh and Mysore; Madhya Pradesh and Maharashtra; Bihar; Orissa; and Goa, Diu and Daman, have been constituted to advise the Central Government in administering the Fund. The welfare activities for which the proceeds of cess are to be utilised under the Act relate to improvement of public health and sanitation, the prevention of disease and the provision and improvement of medical facilities, water supply and facilities for washing, the provision and improvement of educational facilities, the improvement of standards of living including housing and nutrition, the amelioration of social conditions, provision of recreational facilities and the provision of transport to and from work.

The following welfare measures have so far been undertaken in Mysore, Andhra Pradesh, Orissa, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra and Bihar:-

(i) Medical Facilities:

- (a) Hospitals.- A 10 beded Emergency Hospital was set up at Barajamda in Bihar during the year at a cost of Rs.14,160.00.
- (b) Assistance to T.B. Patients.— Ten beds were reserved with effect from 16 October 1965 in the Mahadevi Birla T.B. Sanatorium, Nankum, Bihar, for the treatment of iron ore miners suffering from T.B. and an expenditure of Rs.11,800 was incurred for the purpose. Steps were also taken to provide medical facilities to the iron ore miners suffering from T.B. in other Regions. Subsistance allowance at a rate not exceeding Rs.50/— per month is also given to the dependents of miners undergoing theatment for T.B. in a sanatorium in cases where the miner is the only earning member of the family.
- (c) Other Medical Facilities.— An amount of Rs.5,000/- was paid as subsidy for augmentation of medical aid for Redi group of mines in Maharashtra. Grants-in-aid to the extent of Rs.50,700.00 were also given to iron ore mine owners for maintenance of dispensary-cum-maternity centres/welfare centres in Orissa.

(ii) Education Facilities:

(a) Scholarships. Scholarships are granted to the children of iron ore miners studying in schools, colleges and technical institutions. The following expenditure was incurred under the Scheme in different Regions:

Mysore and Andhra Pradesh. -- Rs.16,780 Orissa. -- Rs. 7,330 Bihar. Rs.23,230

(b) Uniforms to the primary school-going children of iron memi ore mine workers were also given free in Mysore and Andhra Pradesh at a cost of Rs.2,940.

(iii) Recreational Facilities:

(a) Grants-in-aid to the extent of Rs.30,000 were given for providing recreational facilities for miners in Madhya Pradesh and Maharashtra. An amount of Rs.20,000 was also spent on the development of an open air theatre in Madhya Pradesh. A subsidy of Rs.15,000 was given for organising sports, tournaments and other recreational and cultural activities for Iron Ore miners in Madhya Pradesh and Maharashtra.

(b) Multi-purpose Institutes have been set up in Bihar and Orissa and the following expenditure was incurred on them:-

Bihar - Rs.1,600.00 Orissa - Rs.9,300.00

- (c) A Holiday Home has been established at Bhubaneshwar in Orissa at a cost of Rs.11,200 for the Iron Ore miners.
- (d) Bharat Darshan tour and excursion-cumstudy trips were organised for the iron ore miners in Madhya Pradesh and Bihar respectively.

(iv) Drinking Water Factlities:

Two wells were sanctioned on subsidised basis in Bihar to provide drinking water facilities to the iron ore miners. Under the Scheme, 50 per cent. cost of sinking a well is borne by the mine owners and 50 per cent. is paid by the Fund.

(v) Housing Facilities:

Various housing schemes, already in existence under the Coal/Mica Mines Labour Welfare Fund Organisation, are being adopted for the iron ore miners and it is hoped to construct houses under these schemes during the coming year.

The statement of accounts appended to the report shows receipts at 10.162 million rupees including an opening balance of 3.255 million rupees; expenditure amounted to 0.6525 million rupees leaving a closing balance of 9.509 million rupees.

(Notification SO 753 dated 27 February 1967, the Gazette of India, Part II, Sec. 3, Sub-section (ii), dated 4 March 1967, pp. 582-584)

53. Women's Work.

India - March-April 1967.

Meeting of the National Council for Women's Education held at New Delhi, 8 March 1967:

1.5 Million Trained Women without Employment.

The ninth meeting of the National Council for Women's Education was inaugurated on 8 March 1967 by Shri Fakhruddin Ali Ahmed Union Education Minister. Miss S. Panandikar was the Chairman of the Council. Among others the meeting was addressed by Mrs. Dargabai Deshmukh, former chairman of the Council.

The meeting discussed the problem of proper use of the services of educated and trained women in the country. It was felt that the money spent on educating women was not yielding adequate results. This was largely due to the fact that the Centre as well as the States were doing little to provide part-time employment to house-wives or women engaged in domestic work. Several delegates referred to the difficulty of getting young women to teach in villages. The need for improved residential facilities for women teachers was emphasised. It was felt that training institutions should be set up for adult teachers. Lack of funds for implementation of programmes was a common complaint at the meeting.

Addressing the meeting Mrs. Durgabai Deshmukh said that two surveys conducted privately have shown that 1.5 million educated and trained women were idle. Of these 6,000 had the M.Sc. degree. She said polytechnics too were turning out women who could not find employment. The countil should launch pilot projects to determine the needs of different areas and find out the new employment trends. The adult literacy programme should be taken up as a national movement and a five-year crash programme launched.

Miss S. Panandikar, chairman of the council, stressed the need for continuance of the national and State councils for women's education because of the time had not yet come when the education of women could be considered a part of the general education programme.

(The Hindustan Times, 9 March, 1967)

Chaplin 6. General Rights of Wollers.

67. Conciliation and Arbitration. India - March-April 1967.

Arbitration - As a Mode of Dispute Settlement*.

An article on Arbitration - As a Mode of Dispute Settlement has appeared in March 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal. The article points but the difference between arbitration, mediation and conciliation, describes the statutory provision for arbitration, evolution of adoption of arbitration on voluntary basis, the extent of adoption of arbitration, voluntary arbitration vs adjudication and the tasks before the proposed National Arbitration Promotion Board. On the future scope of arbitration the article states that arbitration provides a simple, straightforward and less expensive mode of resolving disputes. Under the Code of Discipline or the Industrial Truce Resolution arbitration is. informal and free from procedural wrangles. has therefore great potentialities and needs to be given encouragement by all parties concerned.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No. 3, March 1967, pp. 200-213.

Industrial Peace in Gujarat.

An article on Industrial Peace in Gujarat has been published in March 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal. Thearticle traces out the contribution made by Mahatma Gandhi in strengthening the labour movement in Ahmedabad and the formation of Textile Labour Association. It also describes the provisions of the Bombay Industrial Relations Act 1946 and subsequently the adoption of Code of Discipline in Industry, Industrial Truce Resolution, the scheme of Joint Management Councils, appointment of Central Wage Boards and Bonus Commission which have helped in the maintenance of industrial peace in Gujarat.

(Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.3, March 1967, pp. 191-200).

CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.

INDIA - MARCH-APRIL 1967.

71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers.

Maharashtra: Central Dearness Allowance for All Government Employees.

At a Cabinet meeting held at Bombay on 4 March 1967, Shri V.P. Naik, Chief Minister of Maharashtra announced the decision of the Government that all employees of Maharashtra Government will get dearness allowance on par with Central Government rates from 1 March 1967.

The State Government had increased the employees' Dearness Allowance from 1 July last year, removing the disparity between the Central and State rates fully in respect of employees drawing a basic salary below Rs.110 per menth mensem and 80 per cent. in the case of those getting more than Rs.110.

The Government had now decided to pay the remaining 20 per cent. of the difference to those getting a basic salary of more than Rs.110.

In addition, the Government had also decided to give all employees the benefit of the recent increase in Central Government employees' Dearness Allowance given after the Gajendragadkar Commission's recommendation. The number of Government employees eligible for Dearness Allowance is over 223,000.

(The Times of India, 5 February, 1967).

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

INDIA - MARCH-APRIL 1967.

81. Employment Situation.

Employment Review 1961-1966 Published*.

The Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation has recently published a Review providing information about employment trends trends in the country for the third Plan period 1961-66. Some of the salient features of the Review are given below.

Over-all Employment Growth.— Employment in the organised sector, during the Third Five Year Plan period increased from 12.09 million to 15.46 million or by 27.9 per cent. The average annual employment growth rate in the entire organised sector was of the order of 5.6 per cent. — as against a national income growth of 2.5 per cent. The annual growth rates in the public and private sectors were 6.6 per cent. and 4.2 per cent. respectively. The employment growth rate in both the sectors has shown a tendency to decelerate in recent years. In the private sector it was as low as 1.0 per cent. in 1966 as against 5.9 per cent. in 1964 and 4.5 per cent. in 1965.

Employment Growth in the Different States.—
Taking the Third Plan as a whole, the employment growth was markedly higher than the all-India growth rate of 27.9 per cent. in the case of Punjab (47.7 per cent), Maharashtra (40.1 per cent.), Kerala (35.9 per cent.) and West Bengal (32.9 per cent.). It was lower than the all-India rate in the case of Bihar (12.3 percent.), Orissa (14.7 per cent.), Gujarat (16.7 per cent.), Rajasthan (18.6 per cent.), Madhya Pradesh (19.0 per cent.) and Madras (19.6 per cent.). In Andhra Pradesh and Uttar Pradesh, it was 25.3 per cent.and 25.9 per cent. respectively. In Assam, the position remained static during the plan period.

^{*} Employment Review 1961-1966, Directorate General of Employment and Training, Ministry of Lanour, Employment and Rehabilitation, New Delhi, 1967; pp.48.

Employment Growth in Different Industries.—Analysis of employment growth shows between 1961 and 1966, the increase in employment in Industry (excluding construction) was 21.2 per cent. The most significant aspect of this growth is the low growth rate of 13.9 per cent. in industry in private sector as against 58.3 per cent. in the public sector.

The number of industrial establishments increased considerably during 1962-66, in a number of industries such as sugar, cement and cement products, iron and steel, structural steel products.

Work-Seekers. Notwithstanding the increases in employment, there was also an increase in the number of work-seekers registered with the employment exchanges, their number increasing from 1.56 million in March 1961 to 2.47 million in March 1966 - an increase of nearly 0.9 million or 58.2 per cent. An interesting feature of the registered work-seekers was that it remained more or less constant i.e., round about 2.5 million from 1963 onwards. Similarly, the number of vacancies notified to the employment exchanges also, remained upre or less unchanged, round about 0.9 millions, between 1964 and 1966. These are no doubt, indicators of the reduced tempo of economic growth in recent years.

Employment Outlook.—Although employment growth was rapid in the earlier part of the Third Plan period, it showed a decelerating tendency during the later part, on account of many factors, particularly in the private sector. It seems that the scope for growth of employment opportunities would remain restricted during the first one or two years of the 4th Plan period — conditioned, as it usually is, by the economic and social climate prevailing in the country. The existing difficult financial and foreign exchange resources position particular—ly, points to the urgent need for better utilisation of existing human resources.

(A copy of the EmploymentRevei Review, 1961-66, DGE&T, was sent to Geneva on 5 April 1967 vide this Office minute D1/1490/67 of the same date)

83. Vocational Training.

India - March-April 1967.

Demand for Engineering Graduates decline.

According to the unemployment live register of the Directorate of Scientific and Technical Personnel about 575 engineers remained unemployed on 1 November 1966. The demand for engineering graduates has declined. One official explanation is that against the desired growth of 11 per cent. for industries and allied sectors, the average rate of growth has been considerably less. It is also saidthat in some parts unemployment is due to non-attractive terms and conditions of service, lack of experience and lack of mobility of personnel.

A recent study of the employment pattern of engineers passed out from a particular institution between 1956 and 1961 shows that about 50 per cent. of the graduates secured employment almost immediately, and another one—third in a year. The remaining persons got jobs after two years or more after graduation. The number of engineering graduates registered with the employment exchanges has also indicated an increase. The figure went up from 1,975 on 30 June 1964 to 3,650 on 30 June 1966.

The registration with the employment exchanges is voluntary and therefore all the unemployed graduates may not have got themselves registered with the employment exchanges.

(The Times of India, 29 February, 1967).

CHAPTER 9. SOCIAL SECURITY.

INDIA - MARCH-APRIL 1967.

90. General.

VI. Compensation in case of Employment Injury or Occupational Disease.

Review on the Workingof the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, during the Year 1964*.

A review on the working of the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, during the year 1964, has been published in the April 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal. The review is divided into two parts - Part A deals with the statistics relating to compensated accidents and occupational diseases and Part B with the statistics of cases dealt with by the Commissioners for Workmen's Compensation in various States. According to the review, during the year 1964, 118,356 accidents for which a sum of Rs.16,218,246 was paid as compensation were reported. The accident per one thousand workers (on the basis of the reported figures) was 22.52 during the year under review. The average amount of compensation paid during 1964 was Rs.4,412, Rs.924, Rs.37 and Rs.137 in respect of deaths, permanent disablement, temporary disablement and all cases respectively.

Out of 12,984 cases dealt by the Commissioners for Workmen's Compensation, 7,351 (56.6 per cemt.) related to temporary disablement, 3,757(28.9 per cent.) to permanent disablement and 1,876 (14.5 per cent.) to fatal cases.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.4, April 1967, pp. 353-359.

92. Legislation. India - March-April 1967.

Gujarat: Employees' State Insurance Scheme Extended to Certain Areas in the State.

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948, the Central Government has appointed the 26th day of March 1967 as the date on which the provisions of chapter IV (except sections 44 and 45 which have already been brought into force) and chapters V and VI (except sub-section(i) of section 76 and sections 77, 78, 79 and 81 which have already been brought into force) of the said Act shall come into force in the following areas in the State of Gujarat namely:-

i) Municipal limits of Morvi municipality.
 ii) Bhadiad and Trajpur Village of Morvi Taluka.

(Notification SO 1011 dated 23 March, 1967, the Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II, Sec. 3, sub-sec. (ii), dated 23 March 1967, page 765).

92. Legislation

Andhra Pradesh: Employees State
Insurance Scheme extended to certain
areas in the State

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Employees t State Insurance Act, 1948, the Central Government has appointed the 30th day of April, 1967 as the date on which the provisions of Chapter IV (except sections 44 and 45 which have already been brought into force) and Chapters V and VI (except subsection (1) of section 76 and sections 77, 78, 79 and 81 which have already been brought into force) of the said Act shall come into force in the following areas of the State of Andhra Pradesh, namely:

I. In the Revenue village of Vantithadi Agraharam which is situated to the South of Vizianagaram with the following boundaries:

North: Vizianagaram (Revenue village)

East: Dharampuri (Revenue village)

South: Sarika (Revenue village)

West: Chillapeta h/o Duppada.

II. In the Revenue village of Kanapaka-Ayyannapeta with the following boundaries:

North: Kukalametta Lakshmipuram

(Revenue village)

East: Gajularega and Vizianagaram

Contonment.

South: Bobbadipeta h/o Duppada

West: Karakavalasa (Revenue village)

(Notification SO 1522 dated 22 April 1967, the Gazette of India, Part II, see-3 sub-section ii, 29 April 1967 pp. 1576-1577)

92. Legislation

Maharashtra: Employees State
Insurance Scheme extended to
certain areas in the State

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Employeest State Insurance Act, 1948, the Central Government has appointed the 30th day of April, 1967 as the date on which the provisions of Chapter IV (except sections 44 and 45 which have already been brought into force) and Chapters V and VI (except sub-section 1 of section 76 and sections 77, 78, 79 and 81 which have already been brought into force) of the said Act shall come into force in the following areas in the State of Maharashtra, namely:

Area within the limits of Sangli Municipal council in Taluka Miraj, District Sangli in the State of Maharashtra

> (Notification S.O. 1527 dated 25 April 1967, the Gazette of India, Part II, Sec. 3, sub-section (ii) 29 April 1967, pp. 1577-1578)

CHAPTER 11. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

INDIA - MARCH - APRIL 1967

111. General

Report of the Central Coal Mines Rescue Station Committee for the year 1965-66.

A summary of the Report of the Central Coal Mines Rescue Station Committee for the year 1965-66 has been published in March 1967 issue, of the Indian Labour Journal. According to the report till 31 March 1966 a total of 3,222 persons (1,677 at the Mines Rescue Station, Dhansar and 1,545 at the Mines Rescue Station, Sitarampur) were given the full course of initial training in Rescue and Recovery work in mines. Details of refresher practices and rescue training given during the year under review at Dhansar and Sitarampur Rescue Stations along with comparative figures for the previous year are given below:

	1965-6 Dhansar	6 Sitara mpur	Total 1964-65 Fotal
No. of workers trained	105	70	175 248
No. of workers medically examined	530	751	1,281* 1,142**

Refresher Practices Given During 1965-66

No. of gallery refresher practices held	1,546
No. of pit refresher practices held	931
No. of men practices for gallery refresher practices	9,042
No. of men practices for pit refresher practices	5,341

^{*} In addition to this figure 378 more persons were medically examined i.e. 152 at Singareni, 114 at Parasia and 112 at Bijuri.

^{**} In addition to this figure 441 more persons were medically examined i.e. 190 at Parasia, 129 at Singareni, 115 at Argada and 7 at Ledo.

Rescue Recovery and Emergency Work - During the year under review, the rescue stations were called out for rendering assistance in 27 cases involving 104 days of work.

The Coal Mines Rescue Organisation assisted in 19 recovery operations involving 104 days of work and 780 protomanshifts and recovered 1.85 million tonnes of coal locked in areas sealed due to occurrence of fire.

Rescue Competitions - During the year under review Mines Rescue Competitions were held on a zonal basis at the mines Rescue Stations at Dhansar, Sitarampur, Argada, Parasia, Singareni and Bijuri and the Twelfth All-India open Mines Rescue Competition was held at Mines Rescue Station, Dhansar.

Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No.3 March 1967, pp.214-216

COPY NO.

INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE BRANCH OFFICE, NEW DELHI.

Industrial and Labour Developments in Maj-June 1967.

N.B.-Each Section of this Report may be taker out separately KEGISTRY-GENEV 25 JUL 1967 Pages. Contents. On . INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION. 11. Political Situation and Administrative Action: Meeting of the Congress Working Committee, New Delhi, 12 May 1967: Resolution for Social Control of Banks and Nationalisation of General 1-2 Insurance Adopted. 13. Press and Opinion: 3-5 CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS. 32. Public Finance and Fiscal Policy: a) Balanced Budget for 1967-68 presented to Parliament: Levies on Cigarettes, Tea, Coffee, Petroleum and Footwear 6-11 Increased. b) Railway Budgetfor 1967-68 presented in Parliament on 22 May 1967: 12-14 Fares and Freight Increased. 34. Economic Planning, Control and Development: a) Economic Survey for 1966-67 presented to Parliament on 24 May 1967: Measures to Check Inflation Outlined. 15-18 b) Council of Scientific and Industrial Research Survey: Imbalance in Deployment of Scientists Reported. 19-20 c) Kerala: Aid Offered to Industrialists to Start Industries. 21-22

	Contents.	Pages
36 .	Wages:	
	a) Madras: Minimum Rates of Wages Fixed for Employment in Snuff	
	Manufactory. b) Madras: Minimum Wages Act, 1948, extended to Employment in Gold	23
	Ornaments Manufactory. c) Kerala: Revised Minimum Rates of Wages Fixed for Employment in	24
	Match Industry. d) Petroleum Workers to get Higher	25–26
	Wages: Agreement Concluded with Indian Oil Corporation. e) AIR-INDIA Pilots to get more allowance	27 es
	from 1 July 1967: Award Announced by Central Industrial Tribunal, Bombay.	28
39 <u>.</u>	International Economic Relations	
	a) Rs.90 Million Loan given by United States of America for Science Education	on.29
	b) UNICEF Assistance for Science Teaching.	30
	CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.	_
41.	Agriculture:	
·	 a) Kerala Stay of Eviction Proceedings Bill, 1967. b) State Irrigation and Power Ministers' Conference, New Delhi, 14 May 1967: 	31–32
	Formation of an All-India Irrigation Commission suggested. c) Labour Ministry's Plan to Improve	33
	Agricultural Labour: Rural Works Programme and Scientific Agriculture Recommended.	34 → 35
42.	Co-operation:	
	Annual Report of the Department of Cooperation for 1966-67 published.	36-37

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS. 63. Individual Contracts of Employment: Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment)	-39
a) Working of the Plantations Labour Act,1951 during the year 1965. 38- b) Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 40- 52. Workefs' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education: Annual Report on the activities financed from the Coal Mines Labour Welfare Fund during the year 1965-66. 43- CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS. 63. Individual Contracts of Employment: Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 48- 67. Conciliation and Afbitration: a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. 50- b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51- CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.	-
a) Working of the Plantations Labour Act,1951 during the year 1965. 38- b) Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 40- 52. Workefs' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education: Annual Report on the activities financed from the Coal Mines Labour Welfare Fund during the year 1965-66. 43- CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS. 63. Individual Contracts of Employment: Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 48- 67. Conciliation and Afbitration: a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. 50- b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51- CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS. 71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	-
Act,1951 during the year 1965. b) Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 40- 52. Workers' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education: Annual Report on the activities financed from the Coal Mines Labour Welfare Fund during the year 1965-66. CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS. 65. Individual Contracts of Employment: Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 48. 67. Conciliation and Arbitration: a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.	-
Annual Report on the activities financed from the Coal Mines Labour Welfare Fund during the year 1965-66. CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS. 63. Individual Contracts of Employment: Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 48. 67. Conciliation and Afbitration: a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51. CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.	
from the Coal Mines Labour Welfare Fund during the year 1965-66. CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS. 63. Individual Contracts of Employment: Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 48. 67. Conciliation and Afbitration: a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51. CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS. 71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	
Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 67. Conciliation and Arbitration: a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51. CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS. 71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	- 47
Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill, 1967. 48 67. Conciliation and Arbitration: a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51 CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS. 71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	
Bill, 1967. 67. Conciliation and Afbitration: a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51. CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN	
a) Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. 50 b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51 CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS. 71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	- 49
(Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967. b) Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address. 51 CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS. 71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	
71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	
Workers:	
a) Gajendragadkar Commission Report placed	
before Parliament: Additional Dearness Allowance recommended to	
	- 53
its Employees at 50.	
CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.	
81. Employment Situation:	
a) Employment Exchanges: Working during the Month of March 1967. 55 b) Employment Exchanges: Working during the Month of April 1967. 59	E.C.

59-61

Contents.	Pages.
83. Vocational Training:	
a) Labour Ministry's Training Schemes Working during March 1967.	62-63
b) Labour Ministry's Training Schemes Working during April, 1967.	64
CHAPTER 9. SOCIAL SECURITY.	
92. Legislation:	
a) Uttar Pradesh: Employees' State Insurance Scheme extended to	
Certain Areas in the State. b) Maternity Benefit (Amendment) Bill.	65
1967.	66
c) Assam Tea Plantations Provident Fu Scheme (Amendment) Bill, 1967.	ina 67
CHAPTER 12. INDUSTRIAL COMMITTEES.	
121. Special Information:	
U.P.: Tripartite Conference on Text:	
Industry held at Lucknow, 2 June 1967 Appointment of a Committee Recommende	
BIBLIOGRAPHY - INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.	69 – 70
LIST OF ARTICLES - INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.	71-73

CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION.

INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.

11. Political Situation and Administrative Action.

Meeting of the Congress Working Committee, New Delhi, 12 May 1967: Resolution for Social Control of Banks and Nationalisation of General Insurance Adopted.

In a major policy resolution which was adopted by the Congress Working Committee on 12 May 1967, the Committee has called upon the Central Government to bring most of the banking institutions under Social Control in order to promote economic growth. The Committee also directed the Government to work out a scheme to bring general insurance under the public sector. The Committee placed on records its strong desire that the process of implementing the programme towards the attainment of a democratic socialist society should be accelerated.

The Committee adopted the following proposals for the prompt implementation by the Government and has called for:

- (a) Social control of banks.
- (b) Nationalisation of general insurance.
- (c) Progressive take-over of export and import trade.
- (d) A National policy of public distribution of foodgrains.
- (e) Organisation of consumer co-operatives for supply of essential commodities.
- (f) Effective action to curb monopolies and concentration of economic power.
- (g) Provision of minimum needs to the entire community.
- (h) Limitations on urban income and property.
- (i) Prompt implementation of land reforms.
- (j) Removal of privileges of ex-rulers other than privy purses.

The Committee has said that land reforms should be implemented promptly. Credit should be made available to agricultural labour against personal security or assets that are to be created.

Minimum wage legislation for agricultural labour should be implemented more effectively, the Committee said.

The Committee taking note of the current difficult food situation in the country has urged that "a national policy of public distribution of foodgrains particularly to the vulnerable section of the community should be worked out and for this purpose the Food Corporation of India and co-operative agencies should be utilised to the maximum extent.

(The Hindu, 13 May, 1967).

13. Press and Opinion.

India - May-June 1967.

In addition to the attached clippings the following references to the ILO appeared in Indian Journals received in this Office.

- l. The February-March 1967 issue of 'FCI News' (Fertilizer Corporation of India) refers to a training comrse at which the principal speaker was "Prof. Steve Dembicki, ILO Expert in the National Institute for Training in Industrial Engineering, Bombay".
- 2. The April 1967 issue of Survey published by the Indian Institute of Social Welfare and Business Management, Calcutta under its column 'Trands', publishes a note on 'Waste Reduction'. The source is given as 'Dr. Manfred Knayer, ILO Expert on Work Study'.
- 3. The May 1967, issue of 'Indian Shipping' publishes a review of the Second Session of UNCTAD Shipping Committee held at Geneva during February/March 1967. There is an incidental reference to the ILO.
- 4. The Indian Textile Journal, May 1967, publishes a review of Conference on 'human factors in industry' organised by the Bombay Textile Research Organisation. The Conference was inaugurated by Mr. Naval H. Tata. In the welcome address a mention is made of Mr. Tata's association with the ILO.
- 5. Asian Labour, May 1967, contains the following references to the ILO:
- a) Experpts from a statement made at the 23rd Session of the Commission on Human Rights of the Economic and Social Council of the UN by the Deputy Director-General of the ILO. The excerpts appear under the heading 'ILO in the Struggle for Human Rights'.
- b) Review of the 29th International Trade Union Course conducted by the Asian Trade Union College. Among visiting dignitaries mention is made of Mr. S.K. Jain and Mr. Borek Zofka from ILO.

- c) Excerpts from an address delivered by Mr. P.P. Narayanan Vice-President ICFTU-ARO at a meeting of Probationary Assistant Labour Commissioners held in Malaysia. There are incidental references to the ILO.
- d) A note on 'Free Education and Estate schools in Ceylon'. The note refers to the 'ILO Convention' specially recommending recommending "that there should be no discrimination in the field of education on the basis of race, religion, nationality or clolur".
- e) A note on 'Industrial Revolution in India'. Mention is made of ILO's assistance in the organisation of the Central and Regional Labour Institutes.
- 6. The 1 May issue of 'The Indian Worker' publishes an article on 'Concepts of Wages'. Mention is made of the ILO Recommendation on Minimum Wage Fixing Machinery.
- 7. Under its 'Foreign News' column, the May 1967 issue of 'AIOIE Labour News', short notes are published relating to (a) the 168th Session of the ILO Governing Body and (b) ILO Lance Inland Transport Committee.
- 8. In an article on 'problems of railways and railwaymen' published in the 20 May 1967 issue of Trade Union Record mention is made of the publication 'Man at Work an Outline of Work Physiology' by E.H. Christensen an "ILO Expert".
- 9. The Indian Worker dated 29 May 1967 publishes a news-item relating to the ICFTU concerning violation of trade union rights in Greece.

The same issue contains an article on the Cotton Textile Industry. There is a incidental reference to the ILO.

10. The 5 June 1967 issue of 'Trade Union Record' publishes a review of the V World Conference of Trade Unions of Chemical, Oil and Allied Industries held at Hungary. The review mentions that prominent among the 18 resolutions adopted were resolutions conerning "ILO, Korea, on Cypres ----"

- 11. The 19 June issue of 'The Indian Worker' publishes an article on "The International Institute for Labour Studées 1966 a year of Progress" by Robert W. Cox, Director of the Institute. The article is based on an interview with I. Wamala, African journalist and broadcaster.
- 12. The June 1967 issue of 'Asian Labour' contains the following references to the ILO.
- a) In an editorial on 'Emerging Challenge in Asia' a reference is made to suspension of trade union rights in Nepal although 'Nepal is now a member of the ILO and under an obligation to follow ILO Standards'.
- b) A news-item concerning complaints filed with ILO by the ICFTU regarding infringement of ILO Convention 87 by the Argentine Government.
- c) A news item concerning a protest made by the ICFTU to the Government of France against the illtreatment of striking dockworkers in French Somaliland. The protest draws attention to I.L.Conventions 87 and 98.
- d) A note on 'Women at Work'. The note says:-
- " --- Another organisation active in defence of women workers is the International Labour Organisation. Working Women provided a prominent item on the Agenda at the ILO annual conference in 1964 and 1965, and it has adopted one Convention calling for equal pay for women (which has so far been ratified by 48 countries) and another on discrimination against women (raified by 51 member-States).
- e) A review of a meeting of the Action Committee of the TCFTU-ARO held at Manila during May 1967. The note mentions that among other matters the Action Committee "suggested that the statement to be made on behalf of the ICFTU at the forthcoming ILO Conference should include a specific reference to trade union rights stressing the role which the ILO must play for their protection and promotion."

The review also says that as regards supression of trade union rights in Nepal a 'suggestion was made to raise the matter in the ILO as the Government of Nepal had now become a member of that body'.

Chapter 3. Economic Questions

32. Public Finance and Fiscal Policy. India - May-June 1967.

Balanced Budget for 1967-68 presented to Parliament: Levies on Cigarettes, Tea, Coffee, Petroleum and Footwear Increased.

The Deputy Prime Minister, Shri Morarji
Desai placed before the Parliament on 25 May
1967 a revised budget for 1967-68. The budget
aims to neutralise an overall deficit of
680 million rupees through enhanced or fresh
levies on selected items to bring in 690 million
rupees, The tothe Centre in the remaining part
of 1967-68. The total income from new excise
levies is expected to be 1155.2 million rupees.
Under the budget consumer items like tea, coffee,
cigarettes, motor spirit and footwear will become
more expensive.

The Deputy Prime Minister has made a series of changes in the structure of direct taxes, on individuals as well as on companies, the main objective being to stimulate savings, investment, tourism, export and research. The consequent net reduction in direct taxes will be no more than 50 million rupees and this is likely to be made up by better collection of taxes in the coming year.

The following table gives a summary of estimate of the budget:-

(Please see table on the next page)

	(In Thousands of Rupees)			
	Budget Estimate 19 6 6-67	Revised Estimate 1966-67	Budget Estimate 1967-68	
REVENUE RECEIPTS:				
Taxes, Duties and other Principal Heads of Revenue:				
Customs.	5,602,000	5,960,000	6,540,000	
Union Excise Duties.	10,105,900	10,302,100	- 109,200* 11,158,800 + 786,300*	
Corporation Tax. Taxes on Income other than	3,720,700	3,450,000	3,500,000	
Corporation Tax. Estate Duty. Taxes on Wealth. Expenditure Tax. Gift Tax. Other Heads. Debt Services. Administrative Service. Social and Developmental	1,624,500 3,000 140,000 1,500 12,900 269,717 3,606,202 94,481	1,429,019 22,057 122,500 1,100 18,500 289,926 3,717,266 93,863	1,584,178 3,059 125,000 900 15,000 320,040 4,090,037 93,051	
Service. Multi-Purpose River Schemes, Irrigation and Electricity	225,614	222,260	228,655	
Schemes. Public Works (including Roads and Schemes of Miscellaneous	1,153 3)	1,434	1,527	
Public Improvements. Transport and Communications	41,493	43,156	45,979	
(other than Roads). Currency and Mint. Miscellaneous. Contributions and Miscellaneous	84,549 649,416 190,683	95,926 657,999 220,812	109,523 780,213 214,196	
Adjunstments (other than contributions from Railways and P.& T.).	65 , 578	76,228	64 , 671	
Contributions from Railways. Contributions from Posts	326,091	313,881	309,806	
and Telegraphs. Extraordinary Items.	41,718 306,555	24,483 85,279	40 , 618 94 , 753	
Total.	27,113,750	27,147,789	29,320,006 + 677,100*	

(Table continued on next page)

	(111 1110	nagmas or mor	.0057
	Budget Estimate 1966-67	Re gised Estimate 1966-67	Budget Estimate 1967-68
D D SBURSEMENTS:			
Collection of Taxes, Duties and other Principal Revenue Debt Services. Administrative Services. Social and Developmental Services.	308,369 4,148,272 1,100,847 1,955,652	324,115 4,628,080 1,228,998 1,959,204	345,339 4,099,716 1,237,711 2,400,183
Multi-Purpose River Schemes, Irrigation and Electrictiy Schemes. Public Works (including Roads and Schemes of Missellaneou Public Improvements.	20,300 s) as 238,293	23 , 257 257 , 926	31,567 283,906
Transport and Communication (other than Roads). Currency and Mint. Miscellaneous. Contributions and	109,414 178,251 1,523,511	129,234 205,550 1,830,153	141,231 214,480 1,671,751
Miscellaneous Adjustments. Extraordinary Items. Defence Services (a).	6,140,735 373,771 7,976,670	6,392,089 151,411 8,272,855	6,904,916 104,818 8,424,948
Total.	24,074,085	25,402,872	26,860,566
Excess of Revenue over Expenditure or Surplus.	3,039,665	1,744,917	2,459,440 + 677,100*
Total.	27,113,750	27,147,789	29,997,106

(In Thousands of Rupees)

The following are some of the new tax proposals provided in the budget.

* Effect of Budget Proposals.

Export duty on jute sacking other than cotton sacking reduced by 150 per cent. on carpet packing and jute specialities by 300 rupees per tonne and on other hessians 550 rupees per tonne.

Excise duties on jute manufactures and hessians to be raised from 250 rupees and 125 rupees per tonne respectively to 350 rupees and 175 rupees per tonne.

The concessional rate of 45 per cent. to be extended to widely-held domestic companies having a total not exact exceeding 50,000 rupees against 25,000 rupees at present.

Excise duty on coffee and tea raised. Additional revenue expected 84 million rupees.

Changes in postal rates to fetch an additional revenue of 18.4 million rupees.

A slight rise in postage on parcels, newspaper packets, registration fee and fee for express delivery.

Telephone tariffs to be rationalized to fetch an additional revenue of 15.8 million rupees.

Telegraph charges raised by making the present minimum 10 words applicable to eight works words.

Excise duty on certain petroleum products raised from 10 per cent. ad valorem to 20 per cent. ad valorem.

Exemption limit for surcharge on unearned income raised from 16,000 rupees to 30,000 rupees.

A tax allowance of 400 rupees will be given to those with a total income of 10,000 rupees primarily to maintain dependent parents.

Excise duty on footwear and its parts re-imposed.

Basic excise duty on motor spirit raised from 420 rupees per kilolitre to 560 rupees.

Excise duty on artificial resins and plastics to be increased from 20 per cent. to 30 per cent. ad valorem.

Excise duty on cotton and yarn used in production of fine and superfine cloth in the powerloom sector to be raised.

Finance Minister's speech. Presenting the budget Shri Morarji said that the Centre's budgetary operations for 1966-67 since the interim budget (for details see pp.10-16 of the Report of this Office for January-February 1967) had turned out to be some somewhat smaller than anticipated, namely, of the order of 3,130 million rupees. The interim Budget had put the figure at as much as 3,500 million rupees was the result of a number of 370 million rupees was the result of a number of factors. Receipts from tax revenues had been of about the same order as estimated in the revised estimates, in fact a shade better.

External assistance, however, had shown a significant shortfall. But this had been made up by savings under various items of expenditure. Foodgrains transactions had turned out to be better than estimated. This accounted to a large extent for the reduction in the anticipated deficit.

About the Budgetestimates for the current year, Shri Desai daid that he anticipated some shortfall in the revenue from the excise duties on sugar on account of lower production. But this would be made up under other receipts and had, therefore, not made any change in the estimate of revenue receipts.

Reviewing the position in various fields of economic activity, Shri Morarji Desai said that there were five areas of immediate concern in the economic field. These were:

The situation created by the drought concerning food supplies in general and the wellbeing of the people in the scarcity areas in particular.

The steady rise in prices which had been prices at the prices which had been prices whic

There was need to revive industrial activity, particularly in a number of capital goods industries which were suffering from lack of demands.

The recent adverse trends in exports had to be reversed as soon as possible.

These immediate problems must be tackled in a manner which gave us confidence that we assurant tould hook forward to a long period of satisfactory growth with reasonable price stability and increasing self-reliance and without sacrificing the claims of national security and social justice.

Shri Morarji said that the present system of distribution of foodgrains imposed a heavy burden on the financial position of the Centre on account of the subsidized rates at which imported foodgrains were supplied to State Governments and others. This subsidy was expected to cost 1,180 million rupees to the Centre in the current year. Despite the difficult budgetary situation, it had been considered prudent for the present to continue the present Central subsidies on foodgrains. However, it was the Government's policy to reduce and eliminate this subsidy as soon as circumstances permitted.

Speaking about price stability Shri
Morarji said that a situation in which prices
had risen by 46 per cent. In three years
created apprehensions about further inflation.
This in turn depressed savings and encouraged
unproductive investment. Curbs on such investments
became more important than ever. The psychology
of inflation had to be ended.

It was proposed in the present budget to limit the outlays of the Central Government within the resources which could be mobilized in non-inflationary measures. Unauthorised overdrafts from the Reserve Bank by State Governments must be avoided. Taking into account both Plan and non-Plan requirements, the assistance now being proposed for the States was 980 million rupees more than in the interim Budget. This did not meet all the needs of the State Governments.

(The Statesman, 26 May, 1967)

Railway Budget for 1967-68 presented in Parliament on 22 May 1967: Rail Rares and Freight Increased.

The Railway Minister Shri C.M. Pooncha placed before the Parliament on 22 May 1967 the final Railway Budget for 1967-68. increase in railway passenger fares and freight rates from 15 June 1967 to bring inan additional 380 million rupees during the rest of the current financial year and 470 million rupees in a full year was announced by the Railway Minister. Railway Minister said that these increases had become absolutely unavoidable in view of the last year's deficit which had increased 240 million rupees as against 150 million rupees estimated in March. (For details of interim Budget please see pp.17-19 of the report of this Office for the month of January-February 1967).

The proposed increase in passenger fares will be the lowest for Third Class passengers by ordinary trains, who account for almost 90 per cent. of mon-suburban railway travel, and the highest for air-conditioned accommodation. This increase is expected to bring in 190 million rupees in the remaining nine months of the current year.

The increase in goods freight rates is much lighter. The supplementary charge on freight rates, now levied at 3 per cent. is to be raised to 6 per cent. apart from some adjustments in the freight on coal for distances beyond 515 kilometres. The rates for "smalls" has been rationalized and the concession applicable to manganese and iron ores for exports adjusted slightly. This revision of freight rates is expected to bring in about 190 million rupees, which is only 3.7 per cent. of the total goods earnings at present rates.

The proposed budget estimates are given in the following table:

(Please see table on the next page)

	(In Million	Rupees)	
	Approximates	Budget Estim	ate 1967-68
	1966-67。	As Presented in March, 1967.	As now Proposed.
Gross Traffic Receipts.	7702.9	8260.00	8470.00 (B)
Ordinary Revenue Working Expenses.	5313.6	5532.1	5672.l (c)
Appropriation to Depreciation Reserve Fund.	1000.0	990.0	1050.0 (D)
Appropriation to Pension Fund. Net Miscellaneous Expenditure	135 . 0	149.0	149.0
(including cost of Works charged to Revenue).	164.5	170.5	170.5
Total Expenses.	6613.1	6841.6	7041.6
Net Revenue.	1089.8	1418.4	1428.4
Dividend to General Revenues.	1328.6	1418.4	1415.6
Net Surplus (+)/ Deficit (-)	- 238.8(A)	-	+ 12.8

The estimate now presented of passenger earnings after revision stood at 2560 million rupees and of goods earnings at 5260 million rupees. Earnings from other coaching and sundries were expected to be 20 million rupees more. Gross traffic receipts for 1967-68 had been placed at 8470 million rupees in all.

The Minister also gave an account of what the Railways had done to enforce the strictest possible economy in expenditure and to increase earnings through more efficient service. He pointed out that staff costs constituted 63 per cent. of the ordinary working expenses, and materials and equipment accounted for the remaining 37 per cent. The Railways could exercise control only on the number of staff employed and the quantity of materials used. The level of wages and prices for materials, which depended on the general economic conditions in the country, were beyond their control.

The ban imposed in August last year on new recruitment would continue except where unavoidable. All over the Railways, there was a growing consciousness of the supreme need to keep strict control on increases in staff and expenditure, and earnest efforts were being made to achieve this objective.

There was strict control on expenditure on works also. In future investments priority would be given for schemes which would maximize returns from capital investments already made or which would quickly improve the Railways' earning capacity. Though steel prices had increased, expenditure on works and rolling stock was being kept at the March estimate of 3050 million rupees.

The Railway Minister assured the House that the economy measures would not be allowed to impair the efficiency of the railway system or its capacity to meet the future transport demands in full. In fact, in achieving economies the maximum emphasis would be on better and more efficient management and utilization of existing and future assets.

(The Statesman, 23 May, 1967)

34. Economic Planning, Control and Development.

India - May-June 1967.

Economic Survey for 1966-67 presented to Parliament on 24 May 1967: Measures to Check Inflation Outlined.

Shri Morarji Desai, Deputy Prime Minister and Finance Minister placed before Parliament on 24 May 1967 the Economic Survey for 1966-67. The Survey outlines the various budgetary and monetary correctives that were introduced during the year to combat the inflationary trend in the economy. But a major consideration in pursuing such a policy was that production was not hampered by a severe shortage of credit. The Survey calls for keeping in check public and private sector outlays in the present inflationary situation and tightening of credit controls.

At the same time, the Survey suggests, in order to combat recessionary tendencies in some sectors of the economy, "selective inducements for specific industries which merit attention within the overall constraint of budgetary resources and such savings as private industry can mobilize on its own."

"While investments whether in the public or the private sector have necessarily to be selective for the time being, it should be recognised that higher levels of demand might emerge soon when agricultural production is at higher levels as a result both of more normal weather conditions and the considerable effort being made to increase agricultural productivity."

It emphasizes that "suitavle investment" in export industries, to take advantage of the change in the par value of the rupee, is a matter of urgent importance in order to improve the balance of payment position.

On the credit and monetary policy, the Survey says there has to be restraint on the overall pace of credit expansion, particularly on credit for speculative and less essential purposes.

"At the same time, it has to be recognised that the price rise increases the genuine requirements of credit for productive purposes. It is partly in recognition of this that the Government is endeavouring to appropriate a smaller part of the permissible limit of credit expansion in the economy for its own purposes."

The Survey points out that continued vigilance will be required on the expansion of credit through the banking system both by the Government and the private sector if the policy of bringing about a reasonable stability of prices consistent with the growth of output is to succeed. An expansion of bank credit to the private sector on a scale significantly in excess of the growth of output has clearly to be avoided.

On the industrial depression, the Survey says selective attempts to stimulate demand cannot be made through credit expansion in a situation of acute food shortage. Selective inducements for specific industries have to be considered within the overall constraint of budgetary resources and mobilization of savings by private industry. The prospect of applying selective measures with success depends a great deal on the expectations in regard to agricultural production and incomes in the near future.

Acknowledging that internal demand for investment is depressed and that there are limits to a policy of selective stimulus, the Survey says production levels can be sustained by diversification and the building of export markets. The import policy must be geared to meeting specific supply shortages, to some extent, despite the difficult payments position. With all these efforts, it might not be possible to avoid under-utilization of capacity for some time at least in some industries.

Notwithstanding the "highly complex and difficult stituation" at present, the Survey adds, the tempo of development should be resumed "as soon as possible".

The Survey points out that the public sector, private industry and financial institutions "will all have to combine to excercise considerable restraint in the matter of starting new projects for the present with sustained effort to prepare for higher levels of investment activity in carefully selected areas as soon as circumstances become more propitious than at present."

On the balance of payments position, the Survey says the adverse agricultural situation led to severe strain on the balance of payments during 1966-67 with a sharp decline in foreign exchange reserves. India's indebtedness to the International Monetary Fund increased by \$130 million. Export earnings were largely utilized for food imports, freight charges on PL 480 supplies and raw jute imports. Debts servicing charges were also markedly higher in 1966-67 - \$374 million as against \$315 million in 1965-66.

Lower Imports.— On the balance Except for food fertilizers and selected agricultural raw materials, the year under review witnessed a sizable reduction in imports. Imports of iron and steel declined by 46 per cent., of machinery by 20 per cent. and of non-ferrous metals by 51 per cent. "This is a reflection both of the severe restrictions on imports that had to be imposed in 1965-66 and of the slackening in tempo of development necessitated by the concern with inflation."

Exports of jute goods and cotton textiles suffered due to shortages of raw materials. Vegetable of exports were negligible and tobacco exports were also affected by adverse weather conditions. World demand for major Indian exports like tea slackened. There was a step-up of exports of steel and a number of manufactured products but in the aggregate, export earnings in terms of foreign exchange were "significantly lower" in 1966-67 than in the previous year.

Reviewing the budgetary and monetary trends during the year, the Survey says the total Reserve Bank credit to Central and State Governments was 1950 million rupees which was "substantially lower" than in the previous year (4040 million rupees) in spite of larger outlays on relief measures and on Dearness Allowance.

Reserve Bank credit to the Central Government alone was 3330 million rupees, but a large part of this indebtedness was incurred, however, for reducing the indebtedness of the State Governments to the Reserve Bank.

The reduced reliance on Reserve Bank credit by the Government was an important move towards the objective of avoiding the inflationary impact of public expenditures. The extent of the Centre's budgetary deficit was, however, considerably larger than had been visualized when Budget estimates were framed; and while a degree of deficit financing was unavoidable in the context of the economic situation last year, there is clearly need for strenuous efforts to improve the budgetary position of both the Central and State Governments.

During 1966-67, overdrafts amounting to 1080 million rupees of the State Governments with the Reserve Bank had been cleared by the Government of India; and discussions were held with the State Governments with a view to avoiding the recurrence of such overdrafts. The Reserve Bank has adopted a new procedure whereby the State Governments, while having greater flexibility in regard to their ways and means position will not be able to resort to unauthorized overdrafts for any length of time.

(The Statesman, 25 May 1967).

Council of Scientific and Industrial Research Survey: Imbalance in Deployment of Scientists Reported.

According to a Survey conducted by the Research Survey and Planning Organisation of the Council of Scientific and Industrial Research, there exist imbalances in the deployment of nearly 100,000 research scientists in the country. Two vital fields of scientific activity — methematics and technology concerning electric lamps, electric traction and thermoelectricity — appear to be receiving little attention. Of the 8,000 research papers released in 1965 only 223 were in methematics and none in the other field.

"In view of the continued importance of technology and materials for electric lamps, large investments by the Indian railways in electrification of railway track and the possible utilization of solar energy, research and development in these fields are very important", says the study.

Papers on engineering and technology are few though the need for research work in these spheres is great.

The study also points out several defects in the organisation of scientists. It deplores the continuing trend to publish "single author" papers. In advanced countries these are discouraged and may become "extinct" by 1980.

There is a conspicuous lack of interdisciplinary approach in preparing papers. Normally research divisions or departments hesitate to employ scientists from other disciplines. Inter-disciplinary approach to research is an essential part of technological progress, says the study.

There is also need to arrange fuller utilization of costly equipment by bringing together scientists working in the same field in different parts of the country. India cannot afford high-priced equipment for individual researchers, it says.

For the optimum utilization of research facilities it is necessary to group together the smaller research units into bigger ones.

The annual investment on scientific research in India increased from 57.5 million rupees in 1951 to 260 million rupees in 1959 and to 840 million rupees in 1966, the study adds.

(The Statesman, 9 May 1967).

Kerala: Aid Offered to Industrialists to Start Industries.

A wide-ranging offer of help, assistance and encouragement has been made by the Kerala Government to enterpreneurs to set up industries in the State. In the State of Kerala the Government has been formed by the United Front of Left Party composed of various communist parties.

These include insurance of industrial units against loss of production due to power cut (if ever power cut occurs), a rebate in electricity duty for power intensive industries as also for industries started outside the existing principal industrial belts, preparation and supply of projects reports on medium and small-scale industries free of cost, 75 per cent. State contribution towards cost of preparation of feasibility studies on major projects and land on easy instalment payment basis.

Inviting intending industrialists both inside and outside the State to come forward and establish industries in Kerala, a Policy Statement issued by Industries Minister, Shri T.V. Thomas, assures industrialists that the State is conscious of the necessity of fostering industrial peace and avoiding strikes and lockouts. Government, while upholding the legitimate claims of labour for a share of the wealth produced by them, wishes to stress the importance of discipline and the supreme need for the maintenance of high productivity standards. At the same time workers will be protected from "unfair labour practices on the part of the employers". The State will favour recognition to trade unions having constitutions containing adequate provisions for maintaining industrial peace. It will encourage mutual negotiations at all levels to eliminate every cause of friction between labour and management. Steps will be taken to discourage multiplicity of trade unions.

The Kerala Government, the statement says will press for assistance from the Central Government for giving positive preference in the matter of industrial licences issued by assuring Kerala a certain minimum number of industrial licences issued every year and by giving preference in the matter of re-licensing those industries for which licences first granted be developed for this purpose into a top-quality technical and management consultancy service for medium industries.

For small-scale industries a technical assistance cell will be set up at the Directorate and advance and assistance made available at the district level. The State will contribute 75 per cent. of the cost of preparation of feasibility studies and major projects done through an approved agency. Such studies will remain the property of the State Government. If a particular project is implemented with a reasonable period in the State the full cost of the study will be converted as Government's contribution towards share capital of the project.

In the case of large industries Government will assist in obtaining from the Government of India licence and necessary approvals and clearance for import of capital goods and procurement of raw materials. They will also help in choosing proper sites for the industry and in securing land by acquisition at the cost of the industry. Land acquisition cost will ... overed for the industrial sites will be so chosen that in each district an industrial belt is formed. Ultimately the effort will be to extend industrialisation to every taluk.

> The statement announced that the Government proposes to constitute a Small-scale Industries Board to advise Government on matters relating to the development of small-scale industries. Government will endeavour to secure maximum assistance from the National Small Industries Corporation and the Central Small Industries Organisation.

> > (The Hindu, 13 May, 1967).

36. Wages.

India - May-June 1967.

Madras: Minimum Rates of Wages Fixed for Employment in Snuff Manufactory.

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Minimum Wages Act, 1948, the Government of Madras has, with effect from 1 July 1967, fixed the following minimum rates of wages for employment in snuff manufactory.

Employment in the Snuff Manufactory:

Class of Work.			Minimum	rat	es of	wages.	
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		-1-	•	Rs.	P.	
1. For converting 2. For cutting 1 k 3. For stripping 1 4. For roasting 1 5. For grinding and	ilo of tol kilo of kilo of to	bacco. tobacco. bacco.			0	82 05 10 26 41	

Provided the daily minimum wages payable under this employment shall not be less than Rs.3.45 P.

Provided further that when any category of worker is actually in receipt of higher rates of wages than the statutory minimum rates of wages, notified above, he shall continue to get the benefit of the higher rates of wages.

Provided also that when tobacco is ground by charges paid to the machine owners for grinding may be deducted and the workers should be paid the cost of mixing that is from the all-inclusive rate of 41 Paise for grinding and mixing one kilogram of tobacco, the charges for grinding paid to the machine owners should be deducted.

(GO. Ms.No.2068, Industries, Labour and Housing (Labour) dated 26 June 1967, Fort St. George Gazette, Part II, Sec.1, 28 June 1967, pp. 1225-1226).

Madras: Minimum Wages Act, 1948, extended to Employment in Gold Ornaments Manufactory.

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Minimum Wages Act, 1948, the Government of Madras has by a notification dated 5 May 1967 has added "employment in gold ornaments manufactory" to Part I of the Schedule to the said Act.

(G.O. Ms. No.1497, Industries, Labour and Housing, dated 5 May 1967, Fort St. George Gazette, Part II, Sec.1, 28 June, 67, page 1202).

Kerala: Revised Minimum Rates of Wages Fixed For Employment in Match Industry.

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Minimum Wages Act, 1948, the Government of Kerala has revised the tates of minimum wages payable to employeds employed in the match industry as specified below and has fixed 1 May 1967 as the date from which the rates shall come into force.

Category

Wage rate and work load.

A. Piece Rate:

- 1. Cowss cutting.
- 2. Splints and Tray setting.
- 3. Veneers Tray arranging (inner).
- 4. Veneers Tray arranging (outer).
- 5. Veneers (bundding inner).
- 6. Veneers(bundling outer).
- 7. Bottom piece bundling.

Rs.3.35 per metric ton. The work load for a team of two persons is fixed as two metric tons per day.

The work load is fixed at 30 trays per worker for a day. For the first 18 days the worker should be paid at the rate of $4\frac{1}{2}$ paise per tray and at the rate of 5 paise per tray above 18 trays (Tray 1.524 Metres x 139.70 Millimetres).

The normal workload for a day is 14 trays. The rate per inner tray is 9½ paise (Tray 1.524 Metres x 139.70 Millimetres).

Thenormal workload is 18 outer trays of 1.524 Metres x 139.70 Millimetres. The rate is $7\frac{1}{2}$ paise per days trays

The normal workload is fixed as 450 bundles. The rate is $29\frac{1}{2}$ paise per 100 bundles.

The normal workload is 450 bundles. The rate is $34\frac{1}{2}$ paise per 100 bundles. One bundle consists of one gross of outer boxes.

The normal workload is fixed at 350 bundles. The worker should be paid at the rate of $24\frac{1}{2}$ paise per 100 bundles (One bundle-one gross).

(Table continued on next page)

Category

Wage Rate and Work Load.

B. Time Rate:

Checker.
 Peeling operator (Splint and Veneers).

3. Chopping operator(Splint and Veneers).

4. Veneer cutter (inner and outer Veneers).

5. Peeling helpers: Men.

Women.

6. Boiler operator.

7. Dying Chamber Attender.

8. Black Smith.

9. Grinder.

10.Foreman.

11. General and Miscellaneous Workers:

Men. Women. Rs.1.85 per day.

Rs. 3.06 per day. Workload is 2

Metric tons.

Rs.2.80 per day. Workload is 2

Metric tons per day.

Rs.2.80 per day. Workload is between

3,000 and 4,000 gross inner and

outer veneers per day.

Rs.1.85 per day.

Rs.1.30 per day.

Rs.3.06 per day.

Rs.1.85 per day.

Rs.3.65 per day.

Rs.2.80 per day.

Rs.122.50 per month.

Rs.1.85 per day. Rs.1.30 per day.

C. Dearness Allowance:— The above wages are fixed in relation to an average index number of 550 in the consumer price index Numbers. All workers shall be paid in addition to the above wages a dearness allowance claculated at the rate of 1 paise per day for every 5 full points in the latest published consumer price index numbers of the District head quarters in the State in excess of 550. In case of monthly rated workers the rate shall be 25 paise per month for every 5 full points on the consumer price index numbers in excess of 550. In the case of Malabar area, the consumer price index figures published for Kozhikode may be taken for the purpose.

The adjustment of Dearness Allowance to changes in the consumer price Index numbers shall be made once in every six months beginning from 1 January, and 1 July every year based on the average of the index number for the respective District headquarters for the preceding six months. The rate so arrived at shall remain constant for the whole period of 6 months.

In case where the workers in any area are actually in receipt of higher wages than the minimum wages fixed, they shall continue to get the benefit of higher wages.

(Notification No.2844/H1/66/HLD dated 28 April 1967, Kerala Gazette, Part I, 9 May 1967, pp. 204-205)

27

Agreement Concluded with Indian Oil Corporation

According to a-three-year national settlement signed on 30 May 1967 at Baroda between the National Federation of the Petroleum Workers and the Indian Oil Corporation, workers employed at Gauhati and Gujarat refineries will be benefited by 20 per cent. increase in their basic salary. A similar agreement would be signed for workers of Barauni refinery in Bihar.

More than 5,000 workers of the three public sector refineries will be covered under the agreement. The new pay scales and dearness allowance had also been would be paid with restrospective effect from 1 April 1966. Shift allowance had also been newly introduced and would be paid at the rate of 50 paise per day to the workers in all three shifts. A gratuity scheme had also been introduced for the first time and the benefit would be paid at the rate of 15 days total emoluments inclusive of dearness allowance per year of service.

(The Hindustan Times, 2 June 1967).

AIR-INDIA Pilots to get more allowances from 1 July 1967: Award Announced by Central Industrial Tribunal, Bombay.

The Central Industrial Tribunal at Bombay, presided over by Salim M. Merchant, in its award given on 5 July 1967, on the dispute between Air-India and the Pilots' Guild, has held that Part II of the award of the National Industrial Tribunal headed by Mr. G.D. Khosla, should be implemented by Air-India from 1 July 1967, in respect of allowances.

The Air-India pilots struck work on 27 June 1967 for redress of their grievances but resumed work on 30 June 1967. Dr. Karan Singh, Union Minister of Transport, announced in the Lok Sabha on 29 June 1967, his decision to set up a job evaluation committee to lay down a scientific basis for future agreements with aviators.

Part II of the Khosla Award related to the parity or near parity in the wage structure of pilots of Indian Airlines and Air-India.

Mr. Merchant was satisfied that the demand of the pilots for the implementation of Part II of the Award of Mr. Justice Khosla from the date the Award became enforceable was not justified. He was also, on the other hand satisfied that the refusal of the management of Air-India to grant the same till 28 August 1968 when the agreement of July 26, 1965 would expire was not justified. He, therefore, awarded that the date from which Part II of the Khosla Award was to be implemented should be 1 July 1967.

Air India Pilots who were already getting Rs.200 more than Indian Airlines Corporation pilots, after the acceptance of the award by Government will receive about Rs.400 more than the salaries received by Indian Airlines Pilots.

(The Statesman, 6 July 1967).

39. International Economic Relations. India - May-June 1967.

Rs.90 Million Loan given by United States of America for Science Education.

Under an agreement signed at New Delhi on 2 June 1967, the United States of America has provided a loan of \$12 million (90 million Rupees) to assist Indian education. The loan, which will be used principally to support the science and technology education improvement programme, will provide laboratory equipment, books, films, projectors and other educational supplies required by teachers of secondary schools, polytechnics and colleges in science, mathematics, engineering and technology.

With this loan, the Government of India plans to implement an expanded follow-up programme to ensure that the new teaching methods developed in the Summer Science Institutes are applied at school and college level.

(The Hindustan Times, 3 June 1967).

UNICEF Assistance for Science Teaching.

A five year operational plan of a joint project for reorganising and science teaching in Indian Schools was sigged at New Delhi on 17 April 1967, with a \$1,182,000 commitment from the United Nations International Children's Emergency Fund (UNICEF) for the first two years. It provides for technical advice and guidance by the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organisation (UNESCO). The health and nutritional aspets aspects of the project will be taken care of by the World Health Organisation (WHO) and the Food and Agriculture Organisation (FAO).

Among the main features of the scheme, which will form an integral part of the fourth five-year educational Plan, are the preparation of improved syllabi and instructional materials, improving the training programmes and training of key personnel in modern techniques and content of science and providing necessary laboratory facilities.

(The Hindustan Times, 18 April 1967).

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.

41. Agriculture.

Kerala Stay of Eviction Proceedings Bill, 1967.

The Government of Kerala published on 21 June 1967 the text of the Kerala Stay of Eviction Proceedings Bill, 1967, proposed to be introduced in the Legislative Assembly of the State. The Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill points out that the Kerala Land Reforms Act, 1963, allowed the right of resumption of holding for certain specified purposes like personal cultivation, and construction of residential building for landlord. This has affected the interests of the tenants detrimentally. It was, therefore, considered necessary to suspend and stay all resumption proceedings and proceedings for eviction of tenants and kudikidappukars.

The Kerala Land Reforms Act also granted concession for payment of arrears of rent to be availed within a specified period. Accordingly, all arrears accrued due till 1 April, 1964, were to be discharged within six monthsfrom that date, failing which the tenants were liable to pay the entire arrears for the period to which such arrears relate. Thes period expired on 30 September, 1964. Many tenants were not able to avail themselves of thee benefits and suits for arrears of rent for periods ranging from ten to fifteen years have been filed against such tenants causing them great hardship. With a view to mitigating the hardships to tenants, it was considered necessary to stay all suits and proceedings for recovery of arrears of rent accrued due before the 1 April, 1964 and to grant time for payment of arrears accrued due on or after that date

Certain amendments to the Kerala Land Reforms Act, 1963, were also considered necessary.

Since the Legislative Assembly was not in session, the Kerala Stay of Eviction Proceedings Ordinance, 1967 (4 of 1967), was promulgated by the Governor on 19 May 1967, to achieve the above objects. The Bill seeks to replace the Ordinance by an Act of the Legislature.

The Ordinance provides for the stay of eviction of tenants and <u>kudikidappukuran</u>(hutment dwellers). It also stays all suits and other proceedings pending in courts or land tribunals for recovery of arrears of rent accrued due before 1 April, 1964.

It amends the Kerala Land Reforms Act of 1963 to provide that in no case the "fair tent" exceeds the "contract" rent and to provide certain additional benefits to "kudikidappukars".

The ordinance further provides that no suit or application or other proceedings, for the recovery of arrears of rent accured due on or after 1 April, 1964, and outstanding at the commencement of the ordinance shall lie in any court or land tribunal if the tenant or kudikidappukuran pays such arrears with interest thereon in three equal instalments. The first instalment should be paid, or deposited in court for payment, to the landlord within six months, from the commencement of the ordinance, the second instalment within 12 months and the third instalment within 18 months.

(Kerala Gazette, Extraordinary, 21 June 1967, pp. 1-5; The Statesman, 22 May 1967).

State Irrigation and Power Ministers'
Conference, New Delhi, 14 May 1967:
Formation of an All-India Irrigation
Commission suggested.

A Conference of State Irrigation and Power Ministers was held at New Delhi on 14 May 1967. Dr. K.L. Rao, Union Irrigation and Power Minister presided. Among others the Union Food Minister, Shri Jagjivan Ram addressed the Conference.

The Conference, inter alia, recommended the formation of anAll-India Irrigation Commission to review the impact of irrigation on the country's development and to determine its place in planning for future.

A resolution adopted at the two-day Conference said that water being the most important input for agriculture, irrigation projects should be speeded up in spite of the tight resources position. Projects in an advanced stage which can be completed within two or three years should be given the highest priority, it added. The Conference also felt that new schemes for irrigation should be started in States with a low percentage of irrigated land. They include Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Mysore and Gujarat. Asked about Bihar, Dr. Rao explained that once the schemes in hand in the State are completed it would have adequate irrigation.

The Ministers also urged the Centre to assist the major projects outside the State plans as all the money needed to hasten their completion could not be included in the annual plans of the States.

(The Statesman, 14 May 1967).

Labour Ministry's Plan to Improve Agricultural Labour: Rural Works Programme and Scientific Agriculture Recommended.

According to recommendations made by the Ministry of Labour and Employment for improving the conditions of agricultural labour, the permanent solution to the problem of unemployment and underemployment in rural areas lies in the universal adoption of scientific agriculture and diversification and strengthening of the rural economic structure.

While the rural economy is being built up and its employment potential is augmented on a permanent basis over a period of years, as an immediate measure the five-year plans envisaged rural works programmes for providing employment to unskilled agricultural labour in areas exposed to high incidence of unemployment and under-employment during the slack season.

Under the programme, employment was to be found for 100 days in a year in the slack season for 200,000 perons in the second year, about 1 million in the third year and 2.5 million in the last year of the plan.

The programmes covers 992 community development blocks. The employment generated under the programme rose from 1.9 millions man-days in the first year of the plan period to 2.224 million mandays in 1964-65.

During the last year of the third plan the employment generated was in the neighbourhood of 34.7 million man-days. The expenditure on the rural workers programme for the Third Plan period is about 190 million rupees resulting in the creation of about 83.5 million man-days of employment.

Community Assets. The main emphasis of the programme is on creation of community assets through labour - intensive community works. Accordingly, schemes such as soil conservation, minor irrigation, construction of market, roads, etc., have been permitted under the programme.

During the Third Five-Year Plan period, says the Ministry, 243 employment information assistance bureaux havebeen established in the selected community development blocks with a view to bring the employment service nearer home to the persons living in rural areas and providing a link between the employment exchanges at district headquarters and employment seekers residing in rural areas. These bureaux assist in registration and renewal of registration of persons living in rural areas, arrange for bulk requirement, report to district exchange shortages of manpower in the block and keep the informed about the members of the block informed about the employment situation. They also carry out employment surveys in blocks where rural works programme are in progress.

Housing Projects. The Ministry says that under the village housing projects scheme introduced by the Ministry of Works, Housing and Urban Development, landless agricultural workers receive house-sites for construction of houses. Financial assistance under this scheme is given in the shape of loans and grants to the State Governments by the Centre, loans for construction and improvement of houses and grants for providing house sites for landless agricultural workers and for laying of drains in selected villages.

For resettlement of landless agricultural workers on available Government waste land and surplus lands above the ceiling limits, a target of resettling seven 700,000 families on 5 million acres of land during the Third Plan was proposed.

For locating waste lands, surveys were undertaken by the Centre and the State Governments from grants by the Centre. So far 2.6 million acres have been located for reclamation and resettlement and more area is likely to be available as survey progress.

(The National Herald, 16 May 1967).

42. Co-operation. India - May-June 1967.

Annual Report of the Department of Cooperation for 1966-67 published*.

According to the annual report of the Department of Cooperation for the year 1966-67, there has been a substantial increase in the provision of agricultural credit through cooperatives. At the beginning of the Third Plan the total short and medium-term credit disbursed was 2030 million rupees. This increased to about 3450 million rupees in the last year of the Third Plan ending in June 1966. During the same period, membership of the societies increased from 17millions to 27 millions and the coverage of rural population increased from 24 per cent. to 33 per cent. Emphasis on the implementation of the production-oriented system of crop loan and the strengthening of the resources of the cooperatives was the keynote of the programme during the year under review.

Significant progress was registered in the field of marketing and processing of agricultural produce by cooperatives. The value of agricultural produce marke ted during 1965-66 was 3600 million rupees as against 3010 million rupees in the preceding year. Fiftytwo cooperative sugar factories which were in production during the 1965-66 seasonaccounted for 26.9 per cent. of the national production of sugar. A promising start was made in external trade with cooperatives exporting agricultural produce of the value of 9.6 million rupees. In the field of rural supplies, the progress made by cooperatives during 1965-66 was satisfactory. They distributed consumer articles of the value of 1940 million rupees during 1965-66 as against 1010 million rupees during the preceding year. The supply of agricultural inputs by cooperatives has also registered an increase from 1040 millton rupees to 1200 million rupees. Pho

^{*} Report 1966-67, Department of Cooperation:
Ministry of Food, Agriculture, Community
Development and Cooperation, Government of India,
1967, pp.51.

Urban consumer cooperative stores established under the Centrally Sponsored Scheme recorded significant progress during the current year. In the wake of devaluation, the programme was accelerated to open more selling points and strengthening the existing structure so that essential consumer goods could be made available at fair prices. During the year, 80 new wholesale stores in the with a net work of about 1,000 primaries/branches and 25 department stores in the metropolitan and big towns were The sales turn-over of the functioning. stores under this scheme during the year 1966 amounted to 1600 million rupees as against 1250 million rupees in the last year. The daily sales turn-over of the department stores exceeded 0.5 million rupees.

The recommendations made by the Committee of Direction on Cooperative Farming under the Chairmanship of Professor D.R. Gadgil led to important policy decisions regarding the approach to the development of cooperative farming societies during the Fourth Plan and revised patterns of financial assistance to be provided for the different items of the programme. The report given a review of the programme and the broad approach to future program development.

The National Cooperative Union of India and the Committee for Cooperative Training continued to be in overall charge of programmes of cooperative education and training in the country. Details of the courses conducted and the personnel trained are given in the report. A decision was taken to establish an Apex Institute of Cooperative Training. As a preliminary step the Central Institute of Management for Consumer Business was merged with the National Cooperative College and Research Institute, Poona.

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.

50. General.

Working of the Plantations Labour Act, 1951 during the Year 1965*.

The object of the Plantations Labour Act, 1951 is to provide for the welfare of labour and to regulate the conditions of work in plantation. The following is a brief review of the working of the Act during the year 1965, which has appeared in May 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal.

Employment. The total number of estates/plantations covered by the Plantations Labour Act, 1951, number of estates submitting returns and average daily labour employed in various States/Territories during 1965 are given below:

State/Union Territory.	No.of estates/ plantation		Average Daily labour ions employed.
Assam. Bihar. Kerala. Kerala. Madras. Mysore. Punjab. Uttar Pradesh. West Bengal. Himachal Pradesh. Tripura.	674 13 402 284 638 20 17** 273 1 45***	588 12 N.A. 267 157 20 12 246 1	408,473 424 200,000* 69,767 5,352 1,336 1,455 168,649 54 3,426

^{*}Approximate number of workers employed.

^{**} Number of working tea plantations at the end of the year was 12.

*** In all there are 57 tea estates out of which only 45 are
are covered under the Plantations Labour Act.

N.A. - Not Available.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, May 1967, Vol. VIII, No. 5, pp. 433-440.

Hours of Employment. The Plantations Labour Act, 1951 has fixed the maximum weekly hours of work for adults at 54 and for adolescents and children at 40. It has also prescribed the daily hours of work, their spread over and the time for rest intervals. The available information shows that normal weekly hours of work in Bihar were 42 for daily-rated workers and 18 to 24 for workers employed under the contract system as there was insufficient work available to them. In Kerala, Madras and Mysore, the maximum weekly hours of work were 54 for adults and 40 for adolescents and children. In Punjab, the weekly hours of work were between 45 to 48 hours. In Uttar Pradesh, the normal weekly hoursof work were 48 for adults and 40 for adolescents and In Himachal Pradesh, the normal working hours per week were 48 for adults and 24 for children. In Tripura, the normal weekly hours of work were 49 but usually plantation workers did not work for more than 36 hours.

Leave with Wages. The Act provides for the grant of leave with wages at the rate of one day for every 20 days worked for adults and one day for every 15 days worked for young persons. The number of persons who were granted leave with wages during the year was 419,896 in Assam, 67,675 in Madras, 1,649 in Uttar Pradesh and 193,065 in West Bengal.

Health. The important provisions of the Act in respect of health relate to (i) supply of drinking water, (ii) areangements for conservancy and (iii) provision of medical facilities. The extent to which these facilities were available to the workers in different States during the year was described in the Review.

Enforcement. In Assam, 472 plantations were inspected by the field staff. In Hihar, all the plantations were inspected by the inspectors and concerned. In Kerala, 1,552 inspections were conducted and 9 prosecutions were launched during the year. There was a carry-over of 10 prosecutions from the last year. Of these 19 prosecutions, 11 were disposed of and 8 remained pending at the end of the year. In Madras, the inspectors appointed under the Act inspected 7 plantations thrice, 221 plantations twice and 56 plantations once during the year. In Punjab, 63 inspections were conducted, 6 prosecutions were launched and 4 convictions were obtained. In Uttar Pradesh, 74 inspections were carried out to enforce the statutory provisions of the Act and 3 prosecutions were launched. The Inspector also made 59 inspections in order to check whether the provisions of Payment of Wages Act, 1936, were complied with properly. In West Bengal, 358 insepctions were carried out and 11 prosecutions were lacunched during the year under review.

Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments (Amendment) Bill, 1967.

The Government of Madhya Pradesh published on 28 June 1967 the text of the Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments (Amendment) Bill, 1967, proposed to be introduced in the Legislative Assembly of the State.

The Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill points out that during the working of the Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments Act, 1958 certain practical difficulties were experienced. It is, accordingly, proposed to amend the said Act for the purposes enumerated below:-

- (i) for enlarging the scope of definition of the "commercial establishments" so as to include societies which carry on business whether for gain or not;
- (ii) for making provision for the supply of identity cards by the employers of residential hotels, theatres, etc., to their employees;
- (iii) for fixing working hours for women and reducing working hours of young persons.

For the purposes aforesaid, the Madhya Pradesh Shops and Employments(Amendment) Bill, 1963 (4 of 1963), was previously introduced in the Vidhan Sabha and referred to the Select Committee. After the Select Committee had made its report, the Bill as amended by the Select Committee was placed before the House, but further action on the Bill was not possible after the 26th January 1965, as the language of the Bill was in English and under Article 210 of the Constitution, as it stood on and from that date, the business of the Vidhan Sahha could only be transacted in Hindi. Accordingly, it is now proposed to introduce the Bill in Hindi, incorporating the modifications suggested by the Select Committee.

Opportunity has also been taken to remove certain other ambiguities and difficulties experienced during the its working. Hence the Bill.

Abrief summary of the more important amendments to the Act of 1958 is given below.

Hours of Work. For the existing sub-section(1) of sec. 11 of the Act a new sub-section is to be substituted providing that:

- (a) no employee in any shop or commercial establishment shall be required or allowed to work for more than 48 hours in a week.
- (b) Subject to clause (a) no employee shall be required to work:-
- (i) in any shop, for more than nine hours on any day;
- (ii) in any commercial establishment, for more than ten hours on any day.

<u>Deductions.</u>— For the existing sub-sec.(4) of Sec.13 a new sub-section is to be substituted to provide that:

no deduction shall be made from the wages of any employee in a shop or commercial establishment on account of any day on which it has remained closed under this section. If any employee is employed on a daily wage he shall none the less be paid wages for the weekly holiday equal to the average of the daily wages earned by him during the preceding six working days. If any employee is paid a piece rated wage, he shall nonetheless be paid his wage for the day on which the shop or commercial establishment remains closed at a rate equivalent to the daily average of his wages for the days on which he has actually worked during the six days preceding such closed day, exclusive of any earning in respect of over time:

Provided that nothing in this sub-section shall apply to any person whose total period of continuous employment is less than six days.

Identity Cards. A new section 18A is to be added to the Act providing that the employer shall furnish every employee in a residential hotel, restuarant or eating house an identity card which shall be kept by the employee when on duty and shall be produced on demand by an Inspector. Such card shall contain the following and such other particulars as may be prescribed, namely:

- (a) the name of the employer;
- (b) the name of any, and the postal address, of the establishment:
 - (c) the name and age of the employee;
- (d) the hours of work, the interval for rest, if any, and the holiday of the employee;
 - (e) the signature(with date) of the employer;
 - (f) the identity eard mark of an employee; and
 - (g) the signature of thumb impression of the

(g) signature or thumb impression of the employee.

A similar provision is made in the new section 23A providing for the issue of identity cards to employees in theatres or othe places of public amusement or entertainment.

Employment of Children, Young Persons and Women. For the existing chapter VI of the Act dealing with employment of children, young persons and women, a new chapter is to be added.

Sec.24 provides that no child shall be required or allowed to work whether as an employee or otherwise in any establishment, notwithstanding that such child is a member of the family of the employer. Provision is made for the prohibition of night work of young persons and women in any establishment (before 7 a.m. and after 9 p.m.). The daily hours of work of young persons in any establishment is limited to five hours in any day. No young persons or woman working in any establishment, whether as an employee or otherwise, shall be required or allowed to perform such work as may be declared by the State Government, by notification, to be work involving danger to life, health or morals.

Other provisions of the Bill relate inter alia to enhanced penalty in certain cases after previous conviction, summary disposal of cases, etc.

(Madhya Pradesh Gazette, Extraordinary, 28 June 1967, pp. 1852-1860).

52. Workers' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education.

India - May-June 1967.

Annual Report on the activities financed from the Coal Mines Labour Welfare Fund during the Year 1965-66.

The Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation published on 27 May 1967 the annual report on the activities financed from out of the General Welfare Account of the Coal Mines Labour Housing and General Welfare Fund for the year 1965-66. A brief summary of the report is given below.

Medical Facilities: (a) Hospitals .- The two Central Hospitals (one each at Dhanbad and Asansol) - fields and one and the eight Regional Hospitals (two each at the Jharia and Hazaribagh Coalfields and one each at Raniganj, Pench Valley, Vindhya Pradesh and Korea Coalfields) continued to function. The construction of the Regional Hospital at Bhuli was completed during December 1964. Regional Hospitals at Bagmara (Jharia Coalfield) and Ramagundam (Andhra Pradesh Coalfield) were under construction. Work in connection with the expansion of Regional Hospitals at Katras (Jharia Coalfield) from 30 to 50 beds reached roof level. Work relating to the expansion of the Regional Hospital at Jamai (Pench Valley Coalfields) from 30 to 50 beds was completed. In order to meet the increasing demand for medical facilities in the Central Hospitals at Dhanbad and Asansol, sanction for increasing the bed strength from 250 to 300 was accorded and work on the expansion of the two Central Hospitals was in progress. During the first three quarters of theyear, the total number of new cases of in-patients and out-patients treated at the two Central Hospitals was 19,113 and 69,963, respectively and at the Regional Hospitals 8,891 and 29,633 respectively. The foundation stone of another Central Hospital with one hundred general and 50 T.B. beds at Manendragarh in the Korea Coalfield in Madhya Pradesh, was laid on Be 22 December, 1965 hy the Uniom Minister for Labour and Employment.

Possession of the requisite land was obtained and necessary formalities for putting the work to tender were under way. There was also a proposal for provision of similar Central Hospitals in Pench Valley and Ramgarh-Karanpura Coafields.

(b) Allopathic Dispensaries.— The two dispensaries at Bhuli and Mugma treated 32,066 patients during the year. Steps to start a dispensary at Bhara in the Raniganj Coalfield (West Bengal) in rented accommodation were being taken.

Colliery owners maintaining dispensaries of the prescribed standards were given grants amounting to Rs.1,332,981.20 Paise.

- (c) Ayurvedic Dispensaries.— Twenty three Ayurvedic Dispensaries were run by the Organisation in the various Coalfields. The number of new patients treated at these dispensaries during the period under review was 121,145. For the manufacture of medicines required for distribution to the Ayurvedic Dispensaries, the Ayurvedic Pharmacy continued to function at Patherdih in the Jharia Coalfield.
- (d) Family Welfare Centres and Maternity and Child Welfare Centres.— The family Welfare Centres attached to each of the Regional Hospitals continued to function. Besides, 8 such centres already established by the Fund in the various Coalfields were also functioning as independent units each under the charge of a qualified health visitor. Similarly 53 Maternity and Child Welfare Centres were being run by the Asansol/Jharia/Hazaribagh Mines Boards of Health for which the Fund continued to pay grants—in—aid towards their maintenance.
- (e) Other Medical Facilities: (i) Anti-T.B.

 Measures. Two 100 bedded T.B. Wings of the
 Central Hospitals at Dhanbad and Asansol started
 functioning. The 50 bedded T.B. Hospital at
 Searsol and the 12 bedded T.B. Clinic at Katras
 continued to function. Besides, 86 beds had also
 been reserved in various sanatoria for thebenefit
 of such patients.

The Domiciliary T.B. Teatment scheme as well as the scheme for payment of subsistence allowance to dependents of T.B. patients were continued.

(ii) Leprosy Relief. The number of beds provided by the Fund in the three leprosy hospitals remained the same, at 54.

- (iii) Relief for victims of Cancer. The arrangements for the treatment of Cancer patients at the Patna Medical College Hospital were continued. The number of cases attended to at the Deep X-Ray Therapy department of the Central Hospital, Asansol was 2150.
- (iv) Rehabilitation.— A Rehabilitation-cum-Physiotherapy Centre attached to both the Central Hospitals continued to function. A total of 27,790 patients were treated during the year.
- (v) Family Planning.— Due importance to the provision of family counselling service in the coalfields continued to be given by the Ogganisation. All the Medical Institutions as well as the family Welfare Centres of the Fund have a family planning clinic attached to them. The Scheme of cash payment to those who underwent sterilization operations was continued.
- (vi) Others.— Other important activities of the Fund were: Establishment of Blood Banks at the Central Hospitals at Dhanbad and Asansol, establishment of Health Promotion Centres, maintainance of ambulance vans, supply of spectacles, dentures, etc. Malaria Control Operations and Anti-Filaria Measures were the other important activities of the Fund.
- (f) Educational and Recreational Activities.—Some relevant statistics of the existing activities are given below:—

	Miners' Institutes 57	
	Welfare Centres for Women 60)	Includes 57
	Adult Education Centres 62)	Centres in
	in the second of	Multi-Purpose
)	Institutes.
	Feeder Adult Education Centres	163
•	Noiday Holiday Home	1
	Boarding Houses for Children	2
	Miners' Institutes under	
	Construction.	4

Bharat Darshan Special Trains for Coal
Miners. After a lapse of two years the scheme
for running of Special Trains for Bharat Darshan
carrying colliery workers to different places of
important all over Endia was revived. The 6th
Special Train carrying about 500 workers left
Dhanbad on 29 March 1965 on the North India tour.
The train returned to Dhanbad on 13 April 1965.
The miners were given a receiption at New Delhi
Station by the Union Labour Minister, the Deputy
Labour Minister, and the Coal Mines Welfare
Commissioner.

Boarding Houses for School-going Children of Coal Miners. For the benefit of the school-going Children of colliery workers studying in high schools far away from their place of residence, two Boarding Houses - one each in West Bengal and Madhya Pradesh - continued to function.

- (g) Other Welfare Activities: (i) Water Supply. Financial assistance from the Fund was given/ sanction for augmentation of water supply scheme as under:
 - (1) Rs. 253,932 to M/S. Andrew Yule & Co.Ltd.
 - (2) Rs. 5,000 to M/S. West Bokaro Colliery Co. Ltd. in addition to Rs.14,921 paid earlier.
 - (3) Rs.1.39 millions to the Government of Bihar for Jharia Water Supply Scheme.
 - (4) Rs.2.5 millions to the Government of West Bengal for Raniganj Water Supply Scheme.
 - (5) Rs. 29,775 to M/S. Satgram Colliery Ltd.

Under the scheme of sinking of wells on 50 per cent. subsidy basis, 388 wells were sanctioned in different collieries. Out of these 149 wells have since been completed and construction of most of the remaining wells was in progress.

(ii) Co-operatives. The Organisation continued to make rapid strides in the promotion of co-operative movement in the Coalfields. The total number of Credit Societies/Stores organised upto the end of the year reached 512. One new Central Stores was also opened, thus raising the total number of Central Stores Organised and functioning in the Coalfields to 10.

During the year, financial assistance to the extent of about 7.9 million rupees was given to the Co-operative Societies/Stores/Central Stores from the Fund by way of cleary credit, temporary advance for bulk purchase of food grains, share capital contribution, loan etc.

(iii) Coal Mines Fatal and Serious Accident
Benefit Scheme.— An amount of Rs.100,248 was
sanctioned for payment to 353 widows and 34
school going children of victims of accidents.

According to the Statement of Accounts for the year 1965-66, receipts amounted to 47.733 million rupees including a closing balance of 29.636 million rupees; expenditure during the year amounted to 29.461 million rupees leaving a closing balance of 18.271 million rupees.

(Notification SO 1851 dated 18 May 1967, the Gazette of India, Part II, Sec. 3, sub-sec(ii), 27 May 1967, pp.1879-1882).

Chapter 6. General Rights of Workers.

63. Individual Contracts of Employment. India - May-June 1967.

Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill,

The Government of Madhya Pradesh published on 24 June 1967 the text of the Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill, 1967, seeking to amend the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946, and the Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961, in their application to the State of Madhya Pradesh and the Madhya Pradesh Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1961.

The Statement of Objects and Reasons appended to the Bill declares that the Law Commission in paragraph 25, chapter 36 of its fourteenth report on the reform of the Judicial Administration has recommended as follows:-

"In minor cases, the accused should be allowed to plead guilty without appearing in the Court. For this purpose, provision should be made on the lines of section 130 of the Motor Vehicles Act,1939, and as suggested in paragraph 25, chapter 36. Such procedure should be extended to suitable cases under the Indian Penal Code, traffic cases and minor breaches of rules and regulations under various local and minor enactments."

The aforesaid recommendation has been accepted by the State Government and accordingly it is proposed to amend the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act,1945, and the Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961 in their application to the State of Madhya Pradesh and the Madhya Pradesh Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1961.

Opportunity has also been taken to amend section 10 of the Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961, with a view to affording the amenities provided therein to certain other classes of workers as well.

Amondments to Industrial Employment (Standing Orders)Act, 1946.— A new sub section (5) is proposed to be added to section 13 of the above Act providing that a Court taking congnizance of an offence under sub-section (2) shall state upon the summons to be served on the accused person that he —

(a) may appear by pleader and not in person; or

(b) may, by, a specified date prior to the hearing of the charge, plead guilty to the charge by registered letter acknowledgement due and remit to the Court such sum as the Court may, subject to the maximum limit of fine prescribed for the said offence, specify.

Where an accused person pleads guilty and remits the sum in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (5), no further proceedings in respects of the offence shall be taken against him.

Nothing contained in this section shall apply to the continuing offence referred to in subsection (2).

Amendments to Motor Transport Workers Act,

1961 - For the existing section 10 a new section
is to be substituted providing that:

- (1) The State Government may, by notification in the official Gazette, make rules requiring an employer of a motor transport undertaking to provide for the drivers, conductors, cleaners, watchmen and line-checking staff employed in that undertaking such number and type of uniforms, raincoats or other like amenities for their protection from rain or cold as may be specified in the rules.
- (2) There shall be paid to the drivers, conductors, cleaners, watchmen, and line-checking staff by the employer an allowance for washing of uniforms provided under sub-section(1) of such rates as may be prescribed:

Provided that no such allowance shall be payable by an employer who has made at his own cost adequate arrangements for the washing of uniforms.

Another new section 35A provides for the summary disposal of cases of offences under Sec. 30 of the Act.

Amendments to Madhya Pradesh Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1961. — A new section 17A proposed to be added provides for the summary disposal of cases of offences under section 17 of the Act.

(Madhya Pradesh Gazette, Extraordinary, 24 June 1967, pp. 1815-1819).

67. Conciliation and Afbitration.

India - May-June 1967.

Andhra Pradesh: Industrial Disputes
(Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill,
1967.

The Government of Andhra Pradesh published on 17 June 1967 the text of the Industrial Disputes (Andhra Pradesh) Amendment Bill, 1967, introduced in the Legislative Assembly of the State on 17 June 1967. The Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill declares that according to sub-slause (vi) of clause (n) of section 2 of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, the State Government may, if satisfied that public emergency or public interest so requires, by notification in the Official Gazette, declare any industry specified in the First Scheduleto the said Act to be a public utility service for the purpose of the said Act for a periodnot exceeding six months at a time. "Service in hospitals and dispensaries" is one of the industries specified in the First Schedule to the Act and theefore, service in hospitals and dispensaries in this State, is being declared by the State Government from time to time for a period of six months at a time as public utility service. As the need for declaring the service in the hospitals and dispensaries as a public utility service is a permanent one, it has been decided to include the service in hospitals and dispensaries within the definition of 'public utility service in clause (n) of section 2 of the said Act, so as to obviate the need for a declaration every six months. It is, accordingly proposed to amend section 2(n) of the said Act, in its application to this State and to omit item 9 in the First Schedule to the said Act.

(Andhra Pradesh Gazette, Part IVA, Extraordinary, 17 June 1967, pp. 1-2).

Officers' Course of Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations held at New Delhi, 11 May 1967: Labour Minister's Address.

The first senior officers' course of the Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations was held at New Delhi on 11 May 1967. Shri Jaisukhlal Hathi, Union Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation inaugurated the Course. In his inaugural speech, the Union Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation stressed the need for smooth industrial relations. Shri Hathi said: "In our complex industrial sockety, cordial employer-labour relationship is the most important prerequisite for achieving and carrying forward progress in various fields of activity. The extent to which we could achieve this would determine the progress of our five-year Plans."

Shri Hathi ruled out all possibility of enforced peace in industry in a democratic society like that of India. He said workers had the fullest freedom to organise themselves for protecting and advancing their interests. In fact political freedom had given an edge to their economic expectations — expectations which could be met only through rapid industrial development.

On the specific question of dealing with disputes, the policy in India had been not to eliminate disputes but to contain them and devise methods for resolving them in a peaceful manner without resort to trial of strength.

"We have our legal system which provided for conciliation and compulsory adjudication", Shri Hathi said. A purely legal system, he felt, hardly suited a society which was on the move. It had, therefore, been supplemented by a voluntary code of discipline and the current emphasis of policy was on voluntary arbitration, he added.

(The Hindustan Times, 12 May 1967).

CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.

INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.

71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers.

Gajendragadkar Commission Report placed before Parliament: Additional Dearness Allowance recommended to Central Government Employees.

In its report Gajendragadkar Commission on dearness allowance for Central Government employees (vide page 48 of the report of this Office for the month of July 1966) has recommended that employees drawing basic pay in the slabs Rs.450-499 and Rs.500-575, the additional dearness allowance would be Rs.11 and Rs.12 respectively for every ten point rise but this would be payable when the index reaches 205 in the case of the former and 225 in the case of the latter.

This means that with the index having already touched 186 points in January last, the employees drawing pay from Rs.70 to Rs.449 would get the additional dearness allowance from 1 February, if the Commission's recommendations in this regard are accepted. Neutralisation so far has been done for 175 points.

The Commission has recommended neutralisation ranging from 90 to 25 per cent. for a ten point rise in future.

The following table sets out the rates of additional dearness allowance recommended by the Commission:

(Please see table on the next page)

					_				
ray range (Basic pay without dearness	Lisation		Dear- -ness allow- ance	Additional dearness allowance to be paid in future when the average of the index reaches					
allowance	point	ance for a	now being	185	195	205	215	225	235
To the state of th	rise in the aver- age of the index above	rise.	paid at index 175。						

					•					
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
Rs.		Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	Rs.	
70-109* 110-149 150-209 210-399 400-449 450-499 500-575	90 55 45 25 24 24	6 7 8 9 10 11 12	47 70 90 110 120 120	6 7 8 9 10 -	12 14 16 18 20	18 21 24 27 30 33	24 28 32 36 40 44	30 35 40 45 50 55	36 42 48 54 60 66 72	

This is to be taken to mean Rs.70 and above but below Rs.110. same applies to all the other slabs except the last.

In regard to employees drawing pay between Rs.1,000 and Rs.2,250 per month, who receive at present dearness allowance of Rs. 120 or Rs. 100 per month, the Commission says that these categories would now cease to be eligible for the payment of additional dearness allowance in respect of the rise in prices beyond 175 points.

The present recommendations of the Commission will be valid for the next two years of until the 12-monthly average of the index reaches 245 whichever is earlier. When this happens, the Commission feels that the Government should revise pay scales and sanction suitable interim relief.

The report was presented to Parliament on 6 June 1967

(The Statesman, 7 June 1967)

Government Empowered to Retire its Employees at 50.

The Union Government decided on 6 May 1967 to invest itself with the power to retire a Government servant after he has attained the age of 50 years or completing 25 years of qualifying service, whichever is earlier. The Government servant concerned will be given three months' notice.

Under the present rules, the retirement age of a Government servant is 58 years.

However, in cases of services or posts which have a late age of entry, that is 35 years and above, the right will be exerciseble at the age of 55 years or on the completion of 25 years of qualifying service, whichever is earlier.

The implication of the decision is that normally speaking a Government servant can continue to be in service till he is 58. The power that is being taken by the Government will be used only to retire Government servants who are found incompetent or corrupt.

(The Statesman, 7 May 1967).

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.

81. Employment Situation.

Employment Exchanges: Working during the Month of March 1967.

According to a Review of the principal activities of the Directorate General of Employment and Braining the following was the position of registrations, placements, live register, vacancies notified and the employers using employment exchanges, during the month of March 1967:

Item	February, 1967 (March, 1967	Increase(+) Decrease(-)
Registrations Placements Live Register Vacantiles Notified-	230,945 31,373 2,574,422 49,383	299,050 37,151 2,560,503 57,442*	+ 68,105 + 5,778 - 13,919 + 8,059
Employers using Exchanges	9,760	11,319	+ 1,559

^{*} Includes 1,211 vacanties notified by private employers falling within the purview of the Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act,1959, against which submission action was not required.

Gorakhpur Labour Organisation. The Labour Depot Gorakhpur recruited and despatched 901 workers to various worksites during the month of March, 1967.

Employment Market Information.— At the end of March 1967 intensive employment market studies were in progress in 315 districts of the country. The following reports were released during the month.

1. Employment Review: 1961-66;

2. Report on Biennial Survey of establishments employing 5 to 9 workers.

A news digest containing a list of important news (in brief) having a bearing on employment situation in the country was-prepared for the quarter January-March, 1967 for circulation and use by State Directorates of Employment.

Vocational Guidance and Employment
Counselling. Vocational Guidance Sections
were functioning at 174 Employment Exchanges
at the end of the Month under report. One
more UEIGB at Agra University started functioning which makes a total of 38 Bureaux at the
end of the month under report.

For validating the aptitude tests for August, 1967 ITI recruitment, collection of the trade tests results of the candidates in the validation sample were completed.

Deployment of surplus and retrenched personnel at Projects. During the month under review 22 persons were retrenched, 903 were registered and 14 placed in employment. The detailed information is given below:-

Name of Project.	ing assist-	No.retren- -ched during the month.	No.of g retrench- ed per-	-pla	-left	ing	
	the end of February.	-	sonnel (includ-	dur	-cat-	0£ -	theend
	1967.		ing those left vol-	the	no	mon-	
			luntaraly registered			st-	
		•	during the month for		ance	•	
			employmen assistance		,		
1	2	3	4	5	6		7

	2	3	4	5	6	7
Damodar Valley	07.4	7.4	0.55			7 7 7 7 7
Corporation.	914	14	856		Street	1,770
Bhakra Nangal		_				
Project.	13	. 1	1	- '	4	10
Bhilai Steel						
Project.	880	. ••	39	13	· .=	906
Durgapur Steel						
Project.	11	· · · · · · ·	-	-	1	10
Special Cell of the					•	
Ministry of Home		en e				
Affairs.	84	<u> </u>	7	<u> </u>	5	<u>85*</u>
Total	1,902	22	903	14	10	2,781

50-2=48 2 expired/retired.

^{*} Class II 48, Class III & IV.... 37 = 85.

Note- Total of columns 2 and 4 is equal to the total of columns 5,6
and 7.

Displaced persons from East Pakistan.—During the month under report 372 East Pakistan Migrants were registered with various Employment Exchanges and 88 placed in employment. The total number of EPMs placed upto the end of the March 1967 was 2,462 against the total number 37,285 registered with various Employment Exchanges.

Repatriates from Burma. During the month of March, 1967, 363 repatriates from Burma were registered and 18 placed in suitable employment. This brings the total number of such registered persons to 3,738 and those placed in employment to 395.

Repatriates from Ceylon. During the month of March, 1967, 17 repatriates from Ceylon were registered and none placed in employment. This brings the total number of such registered persons to 154 and those placed in employment to 10.

Central Institute for Research & Training in Employment Service:

Staff Training Officers' Course. A special training course for State Staff Training Officers was held. Seventeen Officers from 14 States participated in the course.

12th Integrated Training Course for Employment Officers:— The 12th Integrated Training Course for Employment Officers commenced during the month. Twenty Officers from 9 States are attending the Course which is continuing.

Foreign Trainees. On completion of three months, training Mr. Camili K. Rwebisaka, an officer from Uganda, left in the last week of the month.

The training of Mr. Aiad Taiari, I.L.O. Fellow from Libya, continued during the month.

Study of Coal Industry.— Data collected through field survey relating to investment, structure of employment, educational/training requirements, etc. was analysed and the outlines for working Paper No.4 on the Coal Industry prepared.

The total number of employment exchanges including 38 University Employment Information and Guidance Bureaux and 11 Professional and Executive Offices in the country at the end of March 1967 was 435.

(Monthly Review of the Principal Activities of the Directorate General of Employment and Training for the month of March 1967: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India, New Delhi).

Employment Exchanges: Working during the Month of April 1967.

According to a Review of the principal activities of the Directorate General of Employment and Training, the following was the position of registrations, placements, live register, vacancies notified and the employers using employment exchanges during the month of April 1967:-

Item	March, 1967	April, 1967	Increase (+) or Decrease (-)	
Registrations. Placements. Live Register. Vacancies Notified.	299,050 37,151 2,560,503 57,442	325,460 34,201 2,588,189 60,101*	(+) 26,410 (-) 2,950 (+) 27,686 (+) 2,659	
Employers using Exchanges.	11,319	11,684	(+) 365	

^{*} Includes 2,040 vacancies notified by private employers falling within the purview of the employment exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act,1959 against which submission action was not required.

Gorakhpur Labour Organisation.— The Labour Depot Gorakhpur recruited and despatched 958 workers to various worksites during the month of April, 1967.

Employment Market Information. Intensive employment market studies were in progress in 315 districts of the country.

Thefollowing reports were released during the month:

All India Employment Review for the quarter April-June, 1966; Report on 'Occupational Pattern in India 'Public Sector - 1964'.

Deployment of surplus and retrenched personnel at Projects.— During the month under review 90 persons were retrenched, 203 were registered and 11 placed in employment. The detailed information is given below:—

ame of Project.	No. await- ing assist ance at the end of March, 1967.	ched durin the month	trees ed son (inc ing left tari tere empl	No. re- placed nch-during per-the nel month. lud- those volun- ly)regis- d during month for oyment stance.	indicat- ing no	No. awaiting assistance at the end of month.
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Damodar Valley Corporation. Bhakra Nangal	1,770	* ************************************	-	e pop e	<u>-</u> *	1,770
Project. Bhilai Steel	10	40	40		7	43
Project. Durgapur Steel	906		111	4	9	1,004
Project.	10	-	2	~		12
Special Cell of them Home Affairs.	85	50	50	7	-	*128
	2,781	90	203	11	16	2,957

* Class III 48, Class III 4-IV--- 80 = 128.

Note:- Total of Columns 2 and 4 is equal to the total of columns 5,6 and 7.

Displaced persons from East Pakistan. During the month under report 397 East Pakistani migrants were registered with various Employment Exchanges bringing the total number of EPMs registered so far to 37,682. Fortytwo East Pakistani Migrants were placed in employment during the month of April bringing the total number of EPMs placed upto the end of April 1967 to 2,504.

Repatriates from Burma. During the month of April 1967, 13 rep 480 repatriates from Burma were registered and 32 placed in suitable employment. This brings the total number of registered persons to 4,218 and those placed in employment to 427.

Repatriates from Ceylon. During the month of April 1967, 13 repatriates from Ceylon were registered and 2 placed in employment. This brings the total number of such registered persons to 167 and those placed in employment to 12.

One additional Professional and Executive Office was set up at Bangalore during the month under report. The total number of Employment Exchanges including 38 University Employment Information and Guidance Bureaux and 12 Professional and Executives Offices in the country at the end of April 1967 was 436.

(Monthly Review of the Principal Activities of the Directorate General of Employment and Training for the Month of April 1967: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India, New Delhi).

83. Vocational Training.

India - May-June 1967.

Labour Ministry's Training Schemes: Working during March 1967.

According to a Review of the principal activities of the Directorate General of Employment and Training the following was the position in March 1967 of instructor trainees on role at various C.T.Is in the session which commenced in August 1966:-

Name of the C.T.I.	No. of trainees on roll	<u>•</u>
C.T.I., Calcutta.	 355	
C.T.I., Bombay.	 337	
C.T.I., Kanpur.	 322	
C.T.I., Madras.	 285	
C.T.I., Hyderabad.	 282	
C.T.I., Ludhiana.	 219	
C.H.I.for Women Instru	ctors, New Delhi. 111	
	1,911	

Special Short Term Courses.— Apart from the regular course for Craft Instructors the C.T.Is. also run a few short term and pilot courses. The courses that were conducted during the month under review are indicated below.

Pilot Course. A pilot course for training Instructors in Workshop Arithmatic and Reading of Drawings is being conducted at CTIs. Calcutta. The current session which has commenced w.e.f. 1 August, 1966 which will be completed in July, 1967. Thirty trainees are undergoing training in this course.

Training of Junior Masters.— A course of above 3 months duration for training of Junior Masters was introduced at C.T.I. Hyderabad and Ludhiana weef. 13 February 1967.

Training of Workshop Instructors.— A course of three months duration at C.T.I. Calcutta for catering to the need of Industry under the Apprenticeship Training Programme was being conducted during March 1967.

Training of Millwright. This course of 6 months duration is being conducted at C.T.I. Calcutta. The present session commenced in November 1966. Eleven candidates deputed from State Governments are undergoing Training in this trade.

Training course for foremen not trained in the CTI.- A training course of 3 months duration for the training of Foremen (Group Instructors) who did not have the benefit of receiving C.T.I. training before their promotion, was started at C.T.I. Calcutta for Instructors, Calcutta w.e.f. 1 August 1966 and will run throughout IV Plan period.

Sanction of Seats under the Craftsmen

Training Scheme. During the month of March, 1967

no additional seats were sanctioned either under
the Craftsmen Training Scheme or under the Part-time
Classes for Industrial Workers. The total number
of seats sanctioned in I.T.Is. upto the end of
March was 156,070 (124,738 upto the end of III Plan +
31,332 sanctioned during the 1st year of IV Plan).
The total number of seats sanctioned under the
Part-time Classes for Industrial Workers was 6,717
(6,39% upto the end of III Plan + 230 during the
Fourth Plan).

Apprentices Act, 1961.— The number of apprentices undergoing training under the Apprentices Act was 30,326 at the end of December, 1966 of which 24,999 were full-term Apprentices and 5,327 short-term apprentices. These apprentices were engaged in 2,108 establishments.

(Monthly Review of the Principal Activities of the Directorate General of Employment and Training for the month of March 1967: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India, New Delhi.)

Labour Ministry's Training Schemes: Working during April, 1967.

According to a Review published by the D.G.E. & T of its principal activities during the month of April 1967, the admission position in the various Central Training Institutes for Instructors was as under:-

Name of the C.T.I.	No. of Trainees on Roll.
C.T.I., Calcutta. C.T.I., Bombay. C.T.I., Kanpur. C.T.I., Madras. C.T.I., Hyderabad. C.T.I., Ludhiana. C.T.I. for Women Instructor New Delhi.	355 337 321 2 35 232 218 s, 111 1,809

Next session of the training of Craft Instructors at all the C.T.Is. is scheduled to commence from 1 August, 1967. State Governments Public & Private Sectors, various Ministries of the Government of India etc. were asked to intimate their requirements by 31 May, 1967.

Sanction of Seats under the Craftsmen Training Scheme.— During the month of April, 1967, no additional seats were sanctioned either under the Craftsmen Training Scheme or under the Part-time Classes for Industrial Workers. The total number of seats sanctioned in I.T.Is. upto the end of April, 1967 was 156,070 (124,738 upto the end of III Plan + 31,332 sanctioned during the lityear of IV Plan). The total number of seats sanctioned under the Part-time Classes for Industrial Workers was 6,717 (6,397 upto the end of III Plan + 320 during the IV Plan).

Apprentices Act,1961.— (Figures are Provisional): The number of apprentices undergoing training under the Apprentices Act was 31,507 at the end of March, 1967 which of which 26,875 were full-time full-term apprentices and 4,632 short-term Apprentices. These apprentices were engaged in 2,135 establishments.

(Monthly Review of the Principal Activities of the Directorate General of Employment and Training for the month of April 1967: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India, New Delhi).

Chaplin a. Social Security

92. Legislation.

India - May-June 1967.

Uttar Pradedh: Employees State Insurance Scheme extended to Certain Areas in the State.

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Employees' State Insurance Act,1948, the Central Government has appointed the 28th day of May 1967 as the date on which the provisions of Chapter IV (except sections 44 and 45 which have already been brought into force) and Chapters V and VI (except sub-section (1) of section 76 and sections 77, 78, 79 and 81 which have already been brought into force) of the said Act, shall come into force in the following areas in the State of Uttar Pradesh namely:-

Villages:

(1) Bagahi (2) Puraini (3) Hariharpur (4) Chanditara (5) Khutaha (6) Saidpura (7) Fatehpur (8) Vyaspur (9) Mahabalpur (10) Karwat, in Pargana Radhoopur, Tehsil Chandauli, District

in Pargana Radhoopur, Tehsil Chandauli, District Varanasi.

(Notification SO 1924 dated 22 May 1967; the Gazette of India, Part II, Sec. 3, sub-sec. (ii), 3 June 1967, pp. 1945-1946).

Maternity Benefit (Amendment) Bill, 1967.

Shri Jaisukh Lal Hathi, Union Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation introduced in the Rajya Sabha on 14 June 1967 a Bill to amend the Maternity Benefit Act, 1967. According to the Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill, the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 does not, by reason of the provisions of sub-section (2) of section 2 thereof, apply to any factory or other establishment to which the provisions of the Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948, apply. Consequently, a woman worker employed in a factory or other establishment and entitled to maternity benefit under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, ceasesto be so entitled when the provisions of the Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 become applicable to such factory or establishment. such a woman unless she fulfils the conditions laid down under section 50 of the Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 is not qualified to claim any maternity benefit thereunder. Thus, she is deprived of maternity benefit under both the Acts. To remove this lacuna, it is proposed to amend the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, so as to provide that in the eventof the application of the Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 to any factory or establishment, maternity benefit under the Maternity Benefit Act would continue to be available to women workers therein, until they become qualified to claim similar benefit under the Employees! State Insurance Act.

(The Gazette of India, Eetraordinary, Part II, Sec. 2, 14 June 1967, pp. 483-485).

Assam Tea Plantations Provident Fund Scheme (Amendment) Bill, 1967.

The Government of Assam published on 14 June 1967 the text of the AssamTea Plantations Provident Fund Scheme (Amendment) Bill intorudced in the Assam Legislative Assembly on 9 June 1967.

The Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill states that the question of making statutory provision for the plantation workers under the Assam Tea Plantations Provident Fund Scheme Act has been engaging the attention of Government for sometime. This was discussed in a meeting of the Standing Labour Committee which decided that a Pension Scheme should be drawn up. Accordingly a Pension and Gratuity Scheme through Assam Tea Plantations Provident Fund has been drafted. total accumulations in the undisbursed interest account which stand at 10.5 million rupees up-to-date and any amount left undisbursed in the Interest account to be contributed to the Pension Fund which is estimated at 2 million rupees every year will form the pension and gratuity fund.

Therefore, in order to provide statutory pensionary and gratuity benefits to the employees in the tea plantations in Assam on their retirement from service or on death, it is considered necessary to amend the Assam Tea Plantations Provident Fund Scheme Act, 1955 in order to make provision for constitution of a Pension and Gratuity Fund.

The Bill seeks to amend the definition of the term 'Fund' to include 'the Provident Fund or Pension Fund as the case may be'. Necessary amendments to include the term 'Pension Fund' are made to several sections of the Assam Tea Plantations Provident Fund Scheme Act, 1955.

(Assam Gazette, Part V, 14 June 1967, pp. 44-47).

65

CHAPTER 12. INDUSTRIAL COMMITTEES.

INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.

121. Special Information.

U.P.: Tripartite Conference on Textile Industry held at Lucknow, 2 June 1967:

Appointment of a Committee recommended.

A tripartite conference on textile industry; was held at Lucknow on 2 June 1967. The conference was presided over by Shri Prabhu Narain Singh(SSP). State Minister for Labour and Industries. attended by leading textile mill-owners and representatives of various trade unions of the industry. Among other things, the conference decided that a one-man committee, comprising a High Court Judge or an equally eminent person, should be appointed to go into the question of standardisation of wages, workload and muster in the textile mills of Kanpur, and to give its recommendations "as early as possible". The conference, considered, problems relating to standardisation and permanency of wages, rationalisation and permanency of a large number of temporary workers in the Kanpur Mills.

As regards the question of rising cost of living and the need of raising the dearness allowance of textile workers, the conference decided to await the decisions of the wage board for the textile industry, and of the single-man expert committee, which had been appointed by the Union Government.

The participants generally agreed that representative unions should be evolved so that the formation of a large number of unions could be discouraged and collective bargaining fostered on healthy lines. The Minister also agreed to discuss the matter afresh with labour leaders so that necessary steps could be taken in the matter.

(The Statesman, 4 June 1967)

BIBLIOGRAPHY.

INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.

* "Annual Report on the Working of the Indian Trade Union Act, 1926 in Uttar Pradesh for the Year ending 31 March,1963": Allahabad: Superintendent, Printing and Stationery, Uttar Pradesh, India, 1967: Price Rs. 3.50: pp. 61.

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS.

* "Report of the Planning Sub-Group on Textile Industry - Woolen Textiles": Directorate of Commercial Publicity, Ministry of Commece, Government of India, New Delhi: Printed in India by the Manager, Government of India Press, Simla, 1965:pp.14.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

* "Report 1966-67": Department of Cooperation: Government of India: Ministry of Food, Agriculture, Community Development and Cooperation (Department of Cooperation): Printed in India by the Manager, Government of India Press, Faridabad, 1967: pp.i+51.

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

* "Report on Employment Position in Plantations by one-man Committee": Government of India: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation: Printed in India by the Manager, Government of India Press, Nasik and published by the Manager of Publications, Delhi-6:1966: Price Rs.7.25 or 16S.1ld. or \$2.61 cents. pp. ii+249.

^{*} Publications received in this Office.

CHAPTER 9. SOCIAL SECURITY.

* "Annual Report on the Working of the Employees' Provident Funds Scheme 1952 for the Year 1965-66": Employees' Provident Fund Organisation: Printed in India, by the Manager, Government of India Press, Coimbatore, 1967: pp.30.

CHAPTER 11. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH.

"Twenty-Fourth Session (New Delhi, July 29-30, 1966): Main Conclusions and Chairman's Opening Speech - Indian Labour Conference": Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment): Government of India, New Delhi: 1967: Printed in India, by the Manager, Government of India Press, Simla for the Manager of Publications, Civil Lines, Delhi: Price Re.0.85 or 2sh. or 31 cents: pp.18.

ιLt

^{*} Publications received in this Office.

LIST OF ARTICLES.

INDIA - MAY-JUNE 1967.

Title

Name of Journal

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.

25. Wage-Earners' Organisations.

Institutional Development of Trade Unions, by S.R. Mohan Das.

The Indian Worker, March 27,1967,p.5.

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS.

34. Economic Planning, Control and Development.

a) Scientific Materials Management: Commerce, 11
Key to Industrial Prosperity
by Dr. Rustom C. Cooper.
March, 1967,
p. 421.

b) Economic Development and Human Resources by C.B. Marmoria.

AICC Economic Review, 15 June, 1967, pp.5-10.

c) Price Policy by Madhuri Bhargava. AICC Economic Review, 15 June, 1967, pp.11-15.

35. Productivity.

Incentives Management: A Symposium by N.S. Mankiker, B.N. Datsr, J.N.Agarwal, A.C. Nanda. Indian Journal of Industrial Relations, April 1967, pp. 475-510.

36. Wages.

Social Implications of Wage Incentive Schemes by N.R. Sheth.

Im ian Journal of Industrial Relations, April 1967, pp. 460-474.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

41. Agriculture.

- a) Problems of Rural Kurukshetra, February
 Development: Tasks
 before Rural
 Institute.
- b) Planning and Progress AICC Economic Review, of Indian Agriculture 1 April 1967, p.5. by R.S.Srivastava.
- c) Working of the Planta- Indian Labour Journal, tions Labour Act, May 1967, pp.433-440.

 1951 during the year
 1965.

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

58. Absenteeism and Labour Turnover.

The Chronic Absentee Indian Journal of Worker by K.N. Vaid. Industrial Relations, April 1967, pp. 443-459.

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.

67. Conciliation and Arbitration.

- a) Arbitration As a Indian Labour Journal, Mode of Dispute March 1967, pp. 200-213. Settlement by K.M. Tripathi.
- b) Industrial Peace in Indian Labour Journal, Gujarat by Mohan Lal March 1967, pp.191-200.

 Vyas.

69. Co-operation and Participation of Industrial Organisations in the Social and Economic Organisation.

- a) Industrial Co-partnership: Commerce, 1st April Prospects in India Not 1967, p.585.

 Bright.
- b) Future of Industrial
 Relations: Prospects
 for more effective
 collective Bargaining
 Dim. by Dr.A.V.R. Rao.

Commerc, 4 March, 1967, p. 374.

Title

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

83. Vocational Training.

Training for Skilled Trades in India by G. Williams. Social Action, Jan-Feb. 1967, Vol. 17, p.11-19.

CHAPTER 9. SOCIAL SECURITY.

92. Legislation.

a) Review on the Working of the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923 during the year 1964.

Indian Labour Journal, April 1967, pp. 353-370.

b) Report of the Central Coal Mines Rescue Station Committee for the year 1965-66.

Indian Labour Journal, March 1967, pp. 214-216.

79220

INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE BRANCH OFFICE NEW DELHI.

Industrial and Labour Developments in

July-August 1967. N.B.-Each Section of this Report may be taken out Separately. 1..O. REGISTRY-GENEVA 26 SEP 1967 Pages. Contents. FIM NB3-2-304/19) With: on: CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION. 11. Political Situation and Administrative Action: (a) Samyukta Dal Government formed in l Madhus Pradesh. (b) Congress Panel to Study Labour 2 Situation Appointed. 3 12. Activities of External Services: 4-5 13. Press and Opinion: CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS. 25. Wage-Earners' Organisations: The Trade Unions (Madhya Pradesh 6-7 Amendment) Bill, 1967. CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS. 32. Public Finance and Fiscal Policy: 8-9 Finance Bill Adopted by Lok Sabha. 34. Economic Planning, Control and Development: (a) A Study of Index Earnings of Factory Workers on Base 1956=100 Linked with Index on Base 1951=100. 10-(b) Assets of Big Private Companies in India: Study made by Government. 11 (c) Outlay of Rs.22460 Million estimated for Annual Plan for 1967-68: National Income expected to rise by 20 per cent. 12-13 (d) Slow Growth of National Income and Inter-State Disparity in Per Capita

Income: Results of a Study published

14-15

by National Council of Applied

Economic Research.

Content	<u>s</u>	Pages.
34 • <u>Eco</u>	nomic Planning, Control and Development (Continued):	
(e)	Committees Appointed to Study Economic Recession, Wages, Incomes and Prices.	16–17
(f)	Administrative Reform's Commission's Recommendations on Reorganisation of Planning	,
(g)	Commission Accepted. Kerala: Sabarigiri Hydel Projectinaugurated.	18 t 19
35. <u>Pro</u>	ductivity:	•
(a)	Measurement of Productivity in the Manufacturing Industries in India - A Review of Methodogogy	: :
(b)	adopted in Different Studies. Conference of Productivity and Management Organisations held at	20-21
	New Delhi 24-25 July 1967.	22
36. Wag	<u>es</u> :	
(a)	Central Government accepts Recommendations of Central Wage Board for Iron Ore Mining	
(b)	Industry. Central Government accepts Recommendations of Central Wage	23⊶ 33
(c)	Board for Limestone and Dolomite Mining Industries. Central Government accepts	34-44
(b)	Recommendations of Central Wage Board for Coal Mining Industry. Annual Report of the Coal Mines	45-53
(e)	Bonus Schemes forthe Year 1965. Wage Freeze discussed at Chief Ministers' Conference.	54 55 – 56
(f)	Study of Wages in Private and Public Sectors published by National Council of Applied Economic Research: Lowest wages	
(g)	paid by Industries in Andhra. Final Report of the Wage Board for Working Journalists published	57-58



CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

•	DILAN OILDO CT 2122 TITLE TO THE PROPERTY OF T	
41.	Agriculture:	
·	(b) Recommendations of the Panel on Improvement in the Working of the Indian Agricultural Research	60-61
	Institute submitted: Autonomous Status suggested. (c) Maharashtra: Agro-Industrial Foundation set up.	62 63
42.	Co-operation:	
	 (a) Panel th Study Land Acquisition Act set up. (b) Meeting of Industrial Committee on Plantations held at Madras, 19 August 1967. 	64
50 .	CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS. General:	
	 (a) Service Conditions of Port Workers Reviewed: New Allowances Recommended by Court of Inquiry. (b) Kerala: Results of a Family Budget Survey published. (c) Main Recommendations of the Education Commission Accepted. 	66 67 – 68
51.	Hours of Work:	
E 0	Annual Report on the Working of the Hours of Employment Regulations (Railways) for the Year 1965-66.	70
720	Workers' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education:	•
	Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess (Amendment) Bill, 1967.	71

Contents.	Pages.
56. Labour Administration:	
(a) Annual Report 1966-67 of the Ministry of Labour and Employment published: Labour Problems	` 70 90
Reviewed. (b) Budget Demands of Labour Ministry Passed: Unemployment Insurance Scheme to be Introduced: Measures proposed to check recession and delay in Payment of Wages.	72 - 82 83-84
CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.	
67. Conciliation and Arbitration:	-
Industrial Disputes (West Bengal Amendment) Bill, 1967.	85–86
CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.	
71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	
 (a) Andhra Pradesh: Reviewed Revised Pay Scales recommended by Andhra Pay Commission. (b) Maharashtra: Revised Pay Scales recommended by Badkas Pay Commission. 	87 88
73. Officials and Public Employees of National, Regional and Local Administrations, of Nationalised Undertakings or Undertakings Managed with the Participation of the Public Authorities:	
Agreement Reached on D.A. Issue between Central Government and its Employees: Strike Withdrawn: Additional D.A. to be paid in Cash.	89 – 90
CHAPTER 9. SOCIAL SECURITY.	
92. Legislation:	
Working of the Maternity Benefit Acts during 1965.	91–92
BIBEIOGRAPHY - INDIA - JULY-AUGUST 1967.	93-95
LIST OF ARTICLES - INDIA - JULY-AUGUST 1967.	96 – 98

CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL TABOUR ORGANISATION.

INDIA - JULY-AUGUST 1967.

11. Political Situation and Administrative Action.

Samyukta Dal Government formed in Madhya Pradesh.

Consequent upon a number of defections by members of the Congress Party and defeat on a budgetary demand in the Madhya Pradesh Legislative Assembly, the Governor of the State accepted the resignation of the Council of Ministers led by Shri D.P. Mishra and invited the leader of Samyukta Dal, Rajmata of Gardor, to form a new Government. The Rajmata decided to choose Shri Govind Narain Singh as the Chief Minister who was sworn in on 30 July 1967 in Bhopal to head a non-Congress Government in the State. Other/representatives of the Constituent units of the SVD are the Jan Sangh, Krantikari Vidhayak Dal, Bharatiya Krantikari Dal, PSP and SSP.

(The Hindustan Times, 31 July 1967).

Congress Panel to Study Labour Situation Appointed.

The Congress Working Committee at-a meeting had at New Delhi on 1 August1967, appointed a five-man Committee to report on the labour situation in the country and suggest measures to restore cordial relations between the Congress and the Indian National Trade Union Congress. The Committee consists of three former Union Labour Ministers, Shri Jagjivan Ram, Shri Gulzari Lal Nanda and Shri Khandubhai Desai and Shri V.V. Dravid INTUC president and Shri S.R. Vasavada a former President, Shri Nanda will be the convener.

The intention is to resolve the differences between the Congress and the Indian National Trade Union Congress which are seriously harming the trade union movement in the country. The Working Committee has received alarming reports about the help the Governments of West Bengal and Bihar are giving to Communist unions are to break the INTUC and pro-Congress Union through intimidation, violence or otherwise.

The anti-Communist unions are not able to resist the infiltration because acute differences have arisen between the INTUC and the Congress units. Prominent INTUC leaders are supporting the opposition Ministries.

The Committee will visit some industrial centres for an on-the-spot study of the problem. It has been given two months to complete its work as because the serious situation brooks no delay.

(The Hindustan Times, 3 August 1967).

12. Activities of External Services. India - July-August 1967.

Meeting:

The Director attended by Special invitation a Conference of Productivity and Management Organisations convened by the National Productivity Council at New Delhi on 24 and 25 July 1967. He acted as chairman of one of the Sessions on "Areas of the Overlapping and Manner of Streamlining Activities".

13. Press and Opinion. India - July-August 1967.

In addition to the attached clippings the following references to the ILO appeared in Indian Journals received in this Office:

- 1. April 1967 issue of 'Oil and Chemical Worker', publishes the text of a statement submitted by the National Federation of Petroleum Workers at a tripartite meeting convened by the Government to discuss the problem of gob security in the three major oil companies operating in India. The statement among other matters draws attention of the Government to the recommendations made by the Petroleum Committee of the International Labour Conference held in October 1966 on the problem of Social Consequences of Structural and Technological Changes in the oil industry in different countries of the world. It adds "the Government of India is not a member of this industrial committee of the However, it should have no hesitation in accepting and implementing the ILO resolution and conentions on the issue in this Conference".
- 2. The June 1967 issue of 'the Wmddan Worker' contains the following reference to the ILO:
- (a) Text of address of the Indian Workers' delegate at the 51st session of the IL Conference.
- (b) An editorial entitled 'ILO Conference' which among other things welcomes the ILO's lead in highlighting the question of non-manual workers.
- (c) A news item relating to ILO Governing Body decisions on complaints of infringement of trade union rights in various countries.
- 3. The June 1967 issue of 'Hind Mazdoor' writing about workers participation in management mentions that "The International Labour Organisation (ILO) Institute for Labour Studies recently launched a research programme into worker-management schemes".

- 4. 'Labour Bulletin' (published by the Co-ordinating Committee of Independent Trade Union), dated June-July 1967 publishes a note under the caption 'Strike Recognised, Not Gherao'. Stressing the/gherao' was 'basically an unlawful act', the note adds: "like the lock-out, the strike is an acknowledged weapon and the ILO has considered it as a right of the workers which should not be whittled down by national laws and regglations".
- 5. 'Industrial Bulletin' issued by the Employers' Federation of India, contains a note on 'social secutiry in USA'. It says: "The term 'Social Security'--- was included in the Atlantic Charter in 1941 and later adhered to at the International Labour Conference in 1944".
- 6. AICC Economic Review dated 1 August 1967 contains an article on 'Unemployment Insurance in India: A Sociaological Perspective'. There is a reference to the "ILO Convention of 1954".
- 7. The August 1967 issue of American Labour, under the column 'World of Labour' publishes extracts of speeches of Mr. Paul G. Hoffman and of the U.S. Employer delegate at the June 1967 Session of the ILOonference.

Chapter 2. International and National Organisations

25. Wage-Earners Organisations. India - July-August 1967.

The Trade Unions (Madhya-Pradesh Amendment) Bill, 1967.

The Government of Madhya Pradesh published on 3 July 1967 the text of the Trade Unions (Madhya Pradesh Amendment) Bill, 1967, proposed to be introduced in the Legislative Assembly The Statement of Objects and of the State. Reasons of the Bill declares that the Trade Unions Act, 1926 provides for registration of Trade unions subject to fulfilment of certain conditions. One of the conditions is that the rules of any unions seeking registration should prescribe the minimum subscription of twenty-five paise per member per month. It is felt that in the case of workers employed in agriculture, this condition operates harshly keeping in view the meagre earnings of agricultural workers. Presumably, it is due to high rate of subscription that there is almost no unionisation amongst agricultural workers where it is needed most. In order to encourage unionisation amongst such workers, it is necessary to prescribe a lower rate of subscription.

Opportunity has also been taken -

- (i) to exclude those industries from the purview of Chapter III-A of the said Act for which the Central Government is the appropriate Government within the meaning of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (14 of 1947), and
- (ii) to declare Registrar, Additional Registrar and Deputy Registrar and members of the staff of their offices to be public servants within the meaning of section 21 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860 and also afford protection in regard to anything which is in good faith done or purported to be done under the Act.

For clause (ee) of sec.6 of the Trade Unions Act, 1936, the following clause is to be substituted:

"(ee) the payment of subscription by members of the **Trade** Union which shall be not less than twenty-five paise per month per member:

Provided that the minimum rate of subscription in the case of members of a Trade Union of agricultural workers shall be five paise per month per member."

For sub-section (1) of section 28-C of the Principal Act, the following sub-section is to be substituted namely:-

"(1) Any representative Union or where there is no representative Union any registered Trade Union in any industry other than an industry for which the Central Government is the appropriate Government within the meaning of subclause (i) of clause (a) of section 2 of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (14 of 1947) may apply in the prescribed form for being entered in the approved list."

New clauses 28K and 28L to the Act seeks to declare Registrar, Additional Registrar and Deputy Registrar of Trade Unions and members of the staff of their offices to be public servants within the meaning of section 21 of the Indian Penal Code, 1860.

(The Madhya Pradesh Gazette, Extraordinary, Part B, 3 July 1967, pp. 1953-1955).

Chapter 3. Recomming Questions

32. Pablic Finance and Fiscal Policy

32. Arby - Array 1867.

Finance Bill adopted by Lok Sabha.

The Lok Sabha approved on 28 July 1967 the Finance Bill after accepting several amendments moved by the Union Finance Minister, ShriMorarji Desai. The following are some of the changes proposed by the Finance Minister:

Indirect taxes: Loss of Revenue 153.6 million rupees in full year and 115.1 million rupees for the Cenre this year.

Footwear: Total excise exemption on leather footwear of value not exceeding Rs.5; between Rs.5 and 8 producers to absorb duty.

Aluminium: Total exemption at product stage duty of Rs.600 per tonne on circles of gauges used in makin g utensils.

On aluminium ingots, plates, sheets and circles duty reduced by Rs.120 per tonne; major producers to absorb to the extent of Rs.250 of excise per tonne; smaller absorption by smaller producers. Tax credit certificates for excess production of aluminium over 1964-65 level.

Countervailing duty on aluminium ingot imports at same rate as excise duty.

Rayon: Effective rates of excise duty of 20 to 40 paise per kg. with deeper cuts in the case of small units. Units with production on an average of less than 10 tonnes per day to be entitled to the concessional rates for small units.

Excise duty on nylon yarn of deniers less than 30 reduced by Rs.18 per kg. On nylon yarn of deniers 30 and above but not exceeding 74 reduction of Rs.3 per kg.

<u>Powerlooms:</u> Duty on sized yarn of superfine count reduced from Rs.6.20 per kg. to Rs.5.20 per kg.

Cigars and Charoots: Exemption from the "nominal increases in duty" proposd in the budget.

Iron and Manganese Ore: Export duty on lumpy iron ore with iron content of 62 per cent. or more to be increased from Rs.10 to Rs.10.50 per tonne, and the duty on the two inferior grades with iron tontent range from 60 to 61.9 per cent. and up to 59.9 per cent. respectively, reduced to Rs.9 and Rs.7.50 per tonne; duty dust on iron ore fines, including blue dust also reduced.

5

Payments by way of brokerage and commission or fees for professional services (but not interest) to be exempted from the purview of the provision for deduction of tax at source.

Limit of individual payments of interest which are exempt from the requirement of deduction of tax at source increased from Rs.200 to Rs.400.

Rate at which tax is to be deducted at source from interest proposed to be reduced from 25 per cent. to 20 per cent. in the case of payment to companies and to 10 per cent. on payments to non-corporate entitles.

Interest payments to banking companies, co-operative banks, including land mortgage banks, financial corporations and other bodies which the Central Government might notify to be excluded from the purview of the new provision for deduction of tax at source.

Postal tariffs: No change in the xisting postal rate of two paise for registered newspapers weighing not more than 60 grammes. This will particularly benefit language papers, dailies and weeklies.

(The Hindustan Times, 25 July and 29 July 1967).

34. Economic Planning, Control and Development. India - July-August 1967.

A Study of Index Earnings of Factory Workers on Base 1956=100 Linked with Index on Base 1951@100*.

The Labour Bureau of the Government of India has been compiling for many years past, indices of money and real earnings in respect of workers employed in manufacturing industries. The series, in the first instance, was compiled on base 1939=100 and later a new series was started with base 1951=100, which is still continuing. series with Base 1951=100, which covers the erstwhile 9 Part 'A' States and 2 Part 'C' States of Delhi and Ajmer prior to recorg reorganisation of States and to the corresponding area thereafter (details given in the next paragraph). The purpose of this study is to asceratin as to how far this series can be used to reflect the all-India position inspite of limited geographical coverage. This has been attempted by constructing an index series with an all-India coverage on a suitable base period and linking it with the one with base 1951=100

The article points out the limitation of the index of earnings series on base 1951=100 and shows in a table indices of money and real earnings for all India on base 1951=100 and an base 1956=100 linked with indices on base 1951=100 for the period 1956 to 1964.

s T s

^{*} The Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No.6, June 1967, pp. 505-509.

Assets of Big Private Companies in India: Study made By Government.

The Union Minister for Industrial Development and Company Affairs, Shri Fakhruddin Ali Ahmed, placed on the table of the Lok Sabha on 21 July 1967, a statement on the Department's study of the 43 largest private companies. According to the study eight out of first ten top private limited companies im India are foreign. Brooke Bond heads the list of these top 10 companies with assets worth-183.2 million rupees. Its paid-up capital is only 16.7 million rupees. Brooke Bond is also among the top 10 companies ranked both on the basis of their paid-up capital and net worth.

The other seven top foreign firms, ranked by assets, are: General Electric, Firestone, Glaxo Laboratories, I.C.I., Bata Shoes Company, Pfizer and Associated Electrical Industries, The only two Indian companies among the top 10 are Godrej and Tata Sons.

(The Statesman, 22 July 1967).

Outlay of Rs.22460-Million estimated for Annual Plan for 1967-68: National Income expected to rise by 20 per cent.

The annual Plan 1967-68 which was laid on the table of both Houses of Parliament on 26 July 1967, envisages a total outlay of 22,460 million rupees - 11,720 million rupees for the Centre, 10,100 million rupees for the States and 640 million rupees for the Union Territories - as against 22,210 million rupees in 1966-67. The national income is expected to rise at current prices by about 20 per cent. to 275,000 million rupees in 1966-67. Of this increase, 12 per cent. would be due to growth of real output and the remaining 8 per cent. on account of price rise.

The annual Plan leaves an uncovered gap in resources to the extent of 540 million rupees. This is besides budgetary deficit of the order of 150 million rupees. The Plan document says that measures for covering the gap in State plans are under consideration. In the event of any portion of the gap of 540 million rupees not being covered, "the Plans of the State Governments concerned may have to be suitably adjusted."

The Plan accords top priority to agriculture and allied programmes. The provision for agricultural schemes, community development, co-operation and irrigation amounts to 5232.7 million rupees. This includes 100 million rupees for the Agricultural Refinance Corporation and R50 million rupees for land mortgage banks.

In addition, provision has been made for production and supply of agricultural inputs such as electricity for tubewells and lift irrigation, fertilizers, pesticides and implements. As regards the physical targets, the Plan envisages a production potential of 100 million tonnes of foodgrains, 12 million tonnes of sugarcane, 7 million tonnes of cotton, 9 million tonaes of oilseeds and 7.5 million tonnes bales of jute.

The area under improved seed for food grains will be 134.53 million acres, of which 16.23 million acres will be covered by high-yielding varieties. Irrigation potential at the out-let at the end of the current financial year will be 21 million acresand utilization 17.4 million acres. In addition, minor works will provide irrigation for another 3.5 million acres.

In industry, an effort has been made to provide the minimum outlay necessary for expansion and consolidation of the industrial base. The outlay for organised industries is 5201.9 million rupees and for village and small industries 435.5 million rupees.

Among the principal physical targets for 1967-68 in industry are: steel ingots 7.5 million tonnes; metallurgical and other heavy mechanical equipment 20,000 tonnes; machine tools including accessories 290 million; industrial machinery, including coal and other mining equipment, cotton textile, jute, sugar. paper, cement, printing and dairying machinery 562 million rupees; precision instruments 100 million rupees; 325,000 power-driven pumps and 13,000 agricultural tractors. Other targets are: sulphuric acid \$50,000 tonnes, cement 13.2 million tonnes, mill-made cloth 4,200 million meters, khadi and handloom 3,300 million meters; sugar 2.2 million tonnes; fertilizers 786,000 tonnes; coal 72.50 million tonnes; crude petroleum 14.20 million tonnes.

For social services the allocations are as follows (in million of rupees): education 1116.6; scientific research 190.6; water supply 369.6; housing and urban development 258.7; welfare of backward classes 177.3; social welfare 44.3; craftsmen training and labour welfare 153.1; rehabilitation 160.8; rural works 65 and other programmes 260.8.

(The Hindustan mimes, 27 July 1967).

Slow Growth of National Income and Inter-State
Disparity in Per Capita Income: Results of a
Study published by National Council of Applied
Economic Research.

According to a study published by the National Council of Applied Economic Research, thefirst decade of planning did not bring about any major reduction in the inter-State disparity in per capita income. The study also said, the low growth rate of national income and its structural rigidity "seem to be bothering us as much today as at the time of the beginning of the Plan era".

The study gave comparable estimates of the income of States as well as the resultant national income for each of the three quinquennial years - 1050-51 (pre-Plan period), 1955-56 and 1960-61 - all reckoned at 1960-61 prices.

The analysis of the results of the study showed that India's national income in real terms increased by 38.3 per cent. in the first decade of planning while theper capita income rose from Rs.295 in 1950-51 to Rs.308 in 1955-56, and further to Rs.335 in 1960-61.

(The official estimate of national income released by the Central Statistical Organisation had shown that the national income in real terms increased by 44 per cent. over the period covered by the first two Plans).

An Improvement.— The annual rate of increase in per capita income was less than one per cent. in the First Plan period but improved to 1.8 per cent. in the second, according to the study. For the whole decade the average worked out to 1.3 per cent. Of the total increase of 15,800 million rupees in the Net Domestic Product(NDP) during the First Plan, Maharashtra, Madhya Pradesh, and Madras together contributed as much as 6,240 million rupees, accounting for more than 39 per cent. of the total increase in the NDP during the First Plan.

On the other hand fom States - Orissa, Assam, Punjab and Kerala - together contributed only 1,920 million rupees, which is a little more than 12 per cent. of the total increase of the All-India NDP during the First Plan.

During the Second-Plan period, out of a total increase of 25,060 million rupees in the all-Imdia NDP, Maharashtra alone contributed as much as 18.4 per cent.; U.P. contributed 14.4 per cent.; West Bengal 10 per cent.; and Madras 9.1 per cent.

This means these four States together contributed as much as 13,020 million rupees or about 52 per cent. of the total increase in theall-India NDP during the Second Plan, whereas five States - Assam, Kerala, Mysore, Orissa and Rajasthan - together accounted for only 3,280 million rupees of the total increase, or only for 13.1 per cent.

According to the study, the nly significant feature of the growth in per capita income was that the range of difference between the maximum and minimum was gradually narrowing down. In the last year of the pre-Plan period the State on top had a per capita income which was 2.61 times the figure of the lowest-ranked State.

The study conclided by saying "one may venture to pronounce, from the analysis of the results, that the low growth rate of the national income, its structural rigidity and the glaring disparity in the conomic status of different constituent States put against the tunchecked population growth, seem the beginning of the Plan era!

(The Statesman, 23 August 1967 (.

Committees Appointed to Study Economic Recession, Wages, Incomes and Prices.

The Deputy Prime Minister, Shri Morarji Desai told the Finance Standing Committee of the Congress Parliamentary Party on 1 August 1967 that the recession in the economy was a passing phase andwould be overcome in a few months. He explained the series of measures the Government was adopting to provide special assistance to the weak spots in the economy.

Under a new liberal policy adopted by the Reserve Bank of India, cheaper finance would be available for certain priority sectors like exports, engineering and metallurgical industries. agricultural machinery and equipment, trucks commercial vehicles and small-scale industries. The Reserve Bank has ensured supply of credit to ultimate borrowers in these specified sectors at 6 to 8 per cent. The Bank's steps to increase refinance in respect of advances to smallscale industries is expected to remove an impediment in the way of flow of credit into this sector. The new policy also envisages refinance facilities by the Reserve Bank at the preferential rate of 4.5 per cent.for packing credit advance to exporters of engineering and metallurgical products.

The Congress Party set up on 11 August 1967, two Committees of senior members to make a detailed study of the problems of economic recession and wages, incomes and prices. Shri K. Hanumanthaiya will head the committee to study recession, while Shri S.N. Mishra will be chairman of the committee on prices, wages and incomes. Both are deputy leaders of the party.

Suggestions of Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry .- The Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry has also submitted a note to the Government containing suggestions to combat the recession in the Indian economy. In the FICCI's view, recession is attributable to five principal factors. Cuts in Government investment have immobilized large sectors of the engineering industry, while the increase in food prices has reduced disposable income in urban areas with the result that demand for consumer durables has been sharply In the fan-making industry, 14 percent. of the capacity was idle in 1966 against 5 per cent. in 1965. Decline in exports taken together with liberal imports had an adverse effect on industrial production in some sectors. High taxation on companies allows them no elbow room to stimulate demand through price cuts. Finally the credit squeeze has inhibited industrial activity.

Offering suggestions to combat recession, the FICCI asks for cuts in excise duties on some industrial raw materials and finished products to encourage demand; a reduction of taxes on companies; and liberal credit. A pleas is made for scrapping administrative controls to give manufacturers freedom to adjust production to demand. Export is accepted as a possible solution for bringing idle capacity into operation, but this will require "special" incentives and facilities. At the same time, imports should be curbed by higher tariffs to enlarge the market open to indigenous manufacturers.

The FICCI is of the view that mengy, now going, for instance, into subsidies on food and fertilisers, should be diverted to industrial projects under construction and to superstructure development in the field of power and transport. A switch in Government spending from welfare to investment another spending remedy recommended the FICCI has recommended to combat the current recession in industry. A plea for higher efficiency is coupled with a reminder to the Government of its duty to ensure that labour legislation does not stand in the way of rationalising the whole gamut of employer-employee relations.

Symposium on Recession. A symposium on recession was held at Madras on 12 August 1967, by the Madras State Board of the All-India Manufacturers' Organisation. The remedies suggested by the symposium were: a significant reduction in taxation, pride of place to agriculture, no new development projects until the existing units in the country - both large and small - were worked to full installed capacities and found buyers for all their production, and early restoration of industrial peace all over India.

(The Hindustran Times, 2 August 1967; The Statesman, 6 August 1967; The Times of India, 12 August, 1967; The Hindu, 13 August, 1967).

Administrative Reform's Commission's Recommendations on Reorganisation of Planning Commission Accepted.

The Prime Minister of India Mrs. Indira Gandhi announced in the Lok Sabha on 17 July 1967, the Government's decision that the Planning Commission should not be burdened with excutive functions and should only formulate plans and evaluate performance. She said that this decision was on the lines of the Administrative Reforms Commission's recommendations and had the concurrence of the State Chief Ministers. Mrs. Gandhi told the House that the Government had also accepted the suggestion of the Chief Ministers that the Prime Minister should continue as chairman and the Finance Minister as member of the Planning Commission. While other Central Ministers will not be formally associated as members, the Prime Minister will, whenever necessary, invite them to participate in the deliberations of the Commission.

The Prime Minister indicated that there would be no Planning Minister. She said that financial, administrative and general questions relating to planning will be handled in Parliament by the Prime Minister, ether or the Finance Minister. Other Union Ministers will deal with their respective subjects, whenever they arise in the House.

The Planning Commission will have a whole-time deputy chairman who need not be a membeer of the Council of Ministers. The Government agreed with the broad approach of the Administrative Reforms Commission that the planning body should be a compact and small body of full-time members. The Government also felt it was not necessary to make any part-time appointments to the Commission, she said.

The Administrative Reforms Commission had recommended that the Paanning Commission should consist of five full-time members, including the deputy chairman, and two other part-time members as might be found necessary.

(The Hindustan Times, 18 July 1967).

Kerala: Sabarigiri Hydel Project Inaugurated.

The Vice-President of India, Shri V.V. Giri inaugurated on 28 August 1967, Kerala's gigantic Sabarigiri Hydel Project. With the commissioning of the 300-MW Sabarigiri project built at a cost of 370 million rupees mostly with U.S. assistance, Kerala's power generating capacity has been doubled. The Vice-President said that Kerala was poised for a resurgent industrialisation with several unique features. He mentioned the vast potential for generation of low cost hydro electric power and the major harbour at Cochin coupled with the shipbuilding yard on the anvil among these features.

(The Hindustan Times, 29 August 1967).

35. Productivity. India - July-August 1967.

Measurement of Productivity in the Manufacturing Industries in India - A Review of Methodology adopted in Different Studies*.

The purpose of the above-captioned study, which has appeared in July 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal, is to indicate the various attempts made by different authors and organisations in the field of measurement of productivity of the manufacturing industries in India and to highlight the main features of the methodologies adopted by these authors and organisations towards This study relates, in partitudar, to this end. particular, to the problem confronted in the measurement of productivity at industry level and does not cover the problems of productivity measurement at plant level. Further, the study is based on the available material and, therefore, may not necessarily bring out the complete picture. The study has referred to the various authors and their publications who have made attempts to measure productvity. Among others a reference is also made to the ILO Report on Method of Labour Productivity Statistics.

In conclusion the study states that methodology suggested for calculation of total productivity indices cannot be considered as perfect since the concept of total productivity is a difficult one and it is a complicated job to measure the various factors entering into the calculation of total productivity. Factors like education of workers, their social background, etc., which can hardly be measured numerically, also influence total productivity. Further, for calculating total productivity, salaried staff, working capital, etc., have also to be taken into account. Difficulty in the measurement of capital imput is indeed great. Because of the difficulties involved, Dr. Beri used an indirect method for measuring capital consumption by taking into account consumption of electric power which was deemed to be proportional to the amount of services of palm plant and

^{*}The Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.7, July 1967, pp. 597-612.

machinery used. Because of the various limitations involved in the measurement of total productivity, indices of total productivity as worked out by a few authors can at best be considered as a very crude estimate of the true values.

Conference of Productivity and Management Organisations held at New Delhi 24-25 July 1967.

A Conference of Productivity and Management Organisations was convened by the National Productivity Council at New Delhi on 24 and 25 July 1967. Shri Fakhruddin Ali Ahmed, Minister for Industrial Development and Company Affairs, and the President N.P.C. inaugurated the Conference. Among others, the Conference was attended by the Government officials and representatives of All-India Management Association, ATIRA, Ahmedabad, Employers' Federation, Institutes of NITIE, Industrial Engineers, Applied Manpower Research, etc. Shri P.M. Menon, Director of this Office also attended the Conference, and acted as a chairman of one of the sessions on "Areas of overlapping and manner of streamlining activities".

The Conference was divided into four sessions. The subjects of the session were: (i) Activities of individual organisations as part of national economic development; (ii) Areas of overlapping and manner of streamlining activities; (iii) Plans for the future; and (iv) Formulation of the recommendations of the Conference.

The following are among the important decisions taken by the Conference:-

- i) A co-ordination Committee would be constituted under the Chairmanship of Prof. M.S. Thacker to suggest methods of effecting closer liaison among organisations with similar objectives and programmes and to develop a system of exchange of information in an effective way.
- ii) Advance information about research projects proposed to be undertaken should be circulated to other organisations.
- iii) The NPC might reduce its emphasis on training activities and concentrate more on consultancy work. The training activities could be taken up by specialised agencies.
- iv) The NPC might divert some of its training activities towards the development of workers and supervisors.
- v) In consultancy work there should be greater emphasis on follow up work relating to implementation.

(Documents of the Conference have been sent to Geneva by surface mail as annexures to this Report).

'L' (Documents received in this Office).

36. Wages.

India - July-August 1967.

Central Government accepts Recommendations of Central Wage Board for Iron Ore Mining Industry.

A Resolution dated 3 June 1967 of the Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employmen t) states that the Central Wage Board for Iron Ore Mining Industry submitted its final report to Government on 21 Febrazy 1967. The Wage Board made recommendations for grant of two interim wage increases. These were accepted by Government and the parties were advised to implement them.

The Board's recommendations are unanimous. After careful consideration, the Government has decided to accept the recommendations of the Board as detailed below and to request the parties to implement them expeditiously.

The Government hopes that joint endeavours will be made by the managements of the Iron Ore Mines and the concerned labour unions to raise the existing level of productivity through technological improvements and better utilisation of the labour force.

Wage Board's Recommendations:

1. Extent of Industry Covered .- Iron ore mining industry will include all activities conncected, directly or indirectly, with the mining of iron ore such as prospectiving, survey, mining and preparation of ore, ore loading and ore handling, all engineering, mechanical and electrical installations, repairs and maintenance, transportation stores, laboratory and quality control, medical and sanitation, welfare and education, water watch and ward, etc. It will also include all administrative and record keeping offices in the mining areas and those in the districts within which the mining areas are situated. beneficiation (washing and screening) sintering and pelletisation plants are also situated in the mining areas, they too will be covered by the iron ore mining industry.

- 2. Categories of Employees.— (i) Unless otherwise stated, the Board's recommendations should apply to all workmen in the iron ore mining industry, time-rated as well as piece-rated whether employed directly or by or through contractors in raising or handling of iron ore or on work incidental thereto. They should also apply to clerical staff and to all workers doing administrative work, to health, medical, welfare and teaching staff and also to workers linke telephone operators, peons, chowkidars, etc. who come within the purview of clause(s) of Sec.2 of Industrial Disputes Act, 1947.
- (ii) Board's recommendation should not apply to the following:-
 - (a) Those who are temporarily or casually engaged on civil engineering, construction work relating to buildings, roads and expansion;
 - (b) Apprentices and learners engaged for training in trades or jobs of skill under the provisions of the Apprentices Act, 1961 or under any specific contract;
 - (c) Employees of head offices situated outside the mining areas.
- 3. Grouping of Mines for Wage Fixation. With a view to giving facilities of increasing wages in a phased manner to units of the industry wherein existing wages are low, the iron ore mines in the country should be classified into the undermentioned three groups or categories on the basis of the minimum level of wages (total emoluments) existing on 1 April, 1966:

Group of Mines	Mins, wherein total 1.4.66 w	minimum emoluments on ere:
	Per month	∄er day_
I II III	Below Rs.91/- Rs.91/-to Rs.104/- Above Rs.104/-	Below Rs.3.50 Rs.3.50 to Rs.4.00 Above Rs.4/

- 4. Minimum Total Emoluments in Various Groups of Mines.— The total minimum emoluments of the lowest paid unskilled workers corresponding to the All India average consumer price index number 166 (1949=100) with effect from 1 January 1967 in the various groups of mines mentioned in clause 3 should be as follows:—
 - (a) Rs.104 per month or Rs.4.00 per day in group I mines.
 - (b) Rs.117 per month or Rs.4.50 per day in group II mines.
 - (c) Rs.130 per month or Rs.5.00 per day in group III mines.

The total emoluments mentioned here and in clauses 3 and 14 include basic wage, dearness allowance, cash value of foodgrain concession, if any, interim wage increases recommended by the Board, mining allowance, house rent allowance, if any, and fuel allowance if paid in cash and not the money value of fuel supplied or the amount paid to the Forest Department to enable the workers to collect fuel in the forest.

- 5. Split up of Total Minimum Emoluments.— The total minimum emoluments should, in future, consits of basic wage and dearness allowance. When the total minimum emoluments are Rs.130 per month or Rs.5.00 per day the basic wage of the lowest paid unskilled worker should be Rs.75 per month or Rs.3.00 per day, and dearness allowance should be Rs.55 per month or Rs.2.00 per day.
- 6. Pay Scales for Workers other than Clerks and Teachers.— There should be the undermentioned 12 monthly and daily basic scales of pay for time-rated workers in the industry other than clerks and teachers, subjet to the recommendation about phased increase in the basic wage of the first four categories of workers. In column 4 of the statement below are the daily pay scales converted into monthly on the basis of 26 working days.

(Please see table on the next page)

Dearness

Sl. No.	Monthly pay scales.	Nearest equivalent daily-pay scales (on 26 working days basis).	basis of 26 working days.
775	(2)	(3)	(4)
(1) 1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10.	75-2-85 80-2-90 85-2-95-3-110 95-2-105-3-120 110-3-125-4-145	0.15-5.70	78.00-2.08-88.40 83.20-2.08-93.60 88.40-2.60-114.40 98.80-2.60-124.80 113-10-3.12-128.70- 3.90-148.20 132.60-5.20-184.60 156.00-6.50-221.00 171.60-9.10-262.60 215.80-10.40-278.20- 13.00-330.20 256.10-13.90-295.10- 14.30-395.20 325.00-14.30-396.50- 15.60-474.50 351.00-20.80-455.00- 23.40-572.00
	 A second of the s		
	should cons with variat allowance, correspond; price index reduced unl The other p rise or fal index numbe	ist of 2 parts, one	I India consumer O) will not be goes below 144. allowance should changes in the ollowing should be

	en se	per month.	per day	Allowance per day.
(1)		(2)	(3)	(4)
Upto Rs.149/- Rs.150-Rs.299 Rs.300-Rs.399 Rs.400 & above.		Rs.55.00 Rs.60.00 Rs.65.00 Rs.70.00	Upto Rs.5.70 Rs.5.71-Rs.11 Rs.11.51-Rs.15 Rbove Rs.15.35	.25 Rs.2.50

Basic wage per month Dearness allowance Basic wage

^{8.} Variable Dearness Allowance. - Variable dearness allowance should be determined in the manner shown below:-

- (1) For every variation of 2 points in the All India-consumer price index number beyond 166(1949=100) the dearness allowance should vary @ Re.1.50 per month for monthly-rated workers and @ Re.0.06 per day for daily-rated workers. shall be no adjustment for rise or fall of less than 2 points. If, for example. the index number goes upto 186 in one quarter, the workers will be entitled to an increase of Rs.15 in the dearness allowance they are entitled to at the cost of living index number 166; if again it goes from down to 178 in the next quarter, the increase will be Rs.9 in the dearness allowance at 166.
- (2) Inmines, wherein workers are supplied foodgrains, etc. at concessional rates, the rise in the cash value of such concession, from 1 January, 1967 onwards, should be adjusted against the variable dearness allowance. The cash value of such concession should be determined by mutual agreement between the parties, failing which, by arbitration.
- (3) There should be no revision in dearness allowance either upward or downward in the first two months from the date of revised wage structure coming into effect, i.e. from 1 January 1967. The first adjustment of variable dearness allowance should therefore come into effect from l March 1967 on the basis of average All India Consumer Price Index Number for the quarter ending 31 December 1966, as soon as index numbers for this quarter become available. The revision in future should come into effect from 1 June, 1 September, l December and 1 March, on the basis of the average All India consumer price index numbers for the previous quarters ending 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December respectively, as soon as such average index numbers areavailable.
- 9. Dearness Allowance as part of Emoluments.—
 The dearness allowance should continue to be treated as part of emoluments for the purpose for which it has been hitherto treated.

10. Phased Increase in Wages.— While the increments in the pay scales and the dearness allowance in the case of first four categories of workers, whose wages have been phased should remain unaffected, their basic wages should be phased on the basis of total emoluments in the three groups of mines mentioned in clause 3 as on 1 April 1966 in the manner shown below:—

(In rupees)

Daily wages from Total minimum emoluments Cate-1-1-68 1-1-69 1-1-68 1-1-70 as on 1-4-66. gories. (3)(5)(4) (6) 2.00 2.25 2.50 2.75 I 3.00 Below Rs. 3.50 per day. 2.20 2.45 2.70 2.95 3.20 II 2.40 2.65 3.15 2.90 III 3.40 2.80 3.05 3.30 IV 3.80 2.75 I 2.50 3.00 Rs. 3.50 to Rs. 4/-per day. 2.95 2.70 3.20 II 2.90 3.15 3.40 III 3.30 3.55 IV 3.80 Above Rs.4/- per day. I 3.00 0 0 II **3。20** 0 0 3.40 TTT 3.80 IV 0 0

Phasing of wages of similar categories of workers should be effected in respect of monthly-rated workers taking into account the basic wage and the dearness allowance prescribed for them.

11. Standardised Nomenclature. The parties should take steps, as soon as possible to evolve standardised list of nomenclature in the industry.

12. Categories of workers, otherthan Clerks.—All the time-rated workers, other than clerks, should be categorised by mutual agreement between the representatives of employers and workers in a mine in view of their present emoluments, nature of duties, responsibilities, experience, etc. and any dispute arising therefrom should be settled by voluntary arbitration or adjudication.

13. Piece Rates. The following provisions should govern the piece rates and fall-back wages in the industry:

- (i) With effect from 1 January 1967, in no case piece-rated workers should get total wages less than the wages fixed for a minimum paid daily-rated worker. A piece-rated worker should therefore get, with effect from 1 January 1967, a minimum wage of Rs.4, Rs.4.50 and Rs.5 in the groups I, II, III mines, respectively. The piece-rated worker should get the same percentage increase in their piece rated as theminimum paid daily-rated workers of a corresponding category get in their total emoluments under the revised scheme of wages.
- (ii) During the period of phasing, the piece-rated workers, corresponding to the first four categories of workers in whose case phasing of wages has been recommended, should be entitled to the same percentage increase in the piece-rates as would be given to the minimum paid daily-rated workers in the total empluments of those categories with the provise that their daily emoluments should, in no case, be less than the wages fixed for the minimum paid daily-rated workers in that category I worker is including the annual increment. For example, if the minimum wage of category I worker is raised from Rs.78 to Rs.104 per month, i.e. by 33 1/3 per cent the piece-rates of the piece-rated workers of the corresponding category should also be increased by 33 1/3 per cent. for the same work load.
- (iii) (a) A minimum fall-back wage should be paid to the piece-rated workers when they are unable to perform their norm of work under circumstances beyond their control such as when sufficient work is not available, when there is any natural impediments on account of which work cannot be carried on.
- (b) To be entitled to the fall-back wage, workers should not leave the premises before their shift is over without perior prior permission of management. The daily fall-back wage should be 80 per cent. of the daily wage of a time-rated worker of corresponding category.
- (c) The fall-back wage in the case of piecerated workers corresponding to the first four categories, whose wages have been phased, should also be worked out in similar manner taking phased increased in future years into consideration for calculation of the fall-back wage on 80 per cent. basis.

- 14. Minimum Total Emoluments of Clerks.— The minimum total emoluments of the lowest paid clerks, with effect from 1 January 1967, should be Rs.175 per month consisting of Rs.120 basic and Rs.55 dearness allowance at the consumer price index number 166 (1949=100).
- 15. Pay Scales of Clerks. The follwing should be the pay scales for three eates grades of clerks, with effect from 1 January 1967:

Grade Pay Scales

III Rs.120-10-170-12-290 (5+10 years).

II Rs.190-12-250-15-400 (5+10 years).

I Rs.300-15-375-20-575 (5+10 years).

Semi-clerical

grades. (increspect of some mines only) Rs.100-7-135-10-185 (5+10years).

Clauses 16 to 21 of the Report deals with dearness allowance for clerks, categorisation of clerical staff, teachers pay scales, dearness allowance for teachers, wages of apprentices and hearners, method of fitment of monthly-rated workers and daily-rated workers.

- 22. Holidays and Leave Facilities.— The workers in the mines, other than those of HSL, MISCO and NMDC should be allowed the undermentioned holidays and leave facilities, subject to the condition that if in any mine the existing holidays and leave facilities as a whole, are better than those recommended, they should continue.
 - (i) Six holidays with full pay which should include the Republic Day and the Independence Day, and
 - (ii) 18 days' sick leave with full pay on the basis of existing practice, if any, and where there is none, on the certificate of registered medical practitioner.
- 23. Gratuity Fund. The Board has recommended that the Government should consider the possibility of creating a gratuity fund out of a cess to be levied for the purpose. This recommendation will be considered by the Government.
- 24. New Gratuity Scheme. The existing gratuity schemes in the iron ore mines should continue unless and until a gratuity fund recommended in clause 23 is created. However, in the units of the industry, where there is no gratuity scheme, at present a beginning should be made by introducing a gratuity scheme providing for the following terms and conditions:

Events entitling gratuity

Quantum of gratuidy

- (1) On death or on physical/ mental incapacity, whilst in service, which renders - the workman unfit for furt further service.
- 15 days' basic wages, for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum of 15 months basis wages.
- (2) On superannuation at the age of not less than 58 years, after completion of not less than 5 years service.

-Do-

(3) Voluntary retirement or resignation:

(a) Upto 10 years of service.
(b) Over 10 years but below 15 years of service.

Nil 10 days' basic wages, for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum.

Over 15 years of (c) service.

15 days' basic wages for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum of 15 months' basic wages.

(4) On termination of service by the employer:

(a) Upto 5 years' of service.

- (b) Over 5 years' of service. 15 days' basic wages for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum of 15 months basic wages.
 - 25. Exemption from the above Gratuity Scheme .-The mines belonging to HSL and NDMC will not be covered by the above scheme and instead that will be covered by the scheme of gratuity which has been introduced in HSL, mines and which is going to be introduced in NDMC mines on the basis of the gratuity scheme for the public sector undertakings of the Government of India.
 - 26. Option to Convert Grain Concessions, etc. into cash - The present system of supplying foodgrains at concessional rates should continue unless the workers and management desire otherwise and agree to have the value of foodgrain concession as on 1 January 1967 converted into cash. In that fase from the said date onwards the workers would be entitled to full quantum of variable dearness allowance as recommended by the Board.

- 27. Permanency of Workers. The Board has recommended that all persons with six months? continuous service should be given facilities which are normally available to permanent workers. The Board has added that the break in service caused due to the stoppage of mining work in the rainy season, or by other reasons, on which the workers have no control, should be waived and this period of absence should count in the calculation of continuous service and that such workers return to work, they should be given preference over the new workers. As classification of workmen, e.g. permanent, temporary, etc. is one of the matters to be provided for in the Standing Orders of establishments covered by the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946, the above recommendation of the Board will apply only to those establishments which have no Standing Orders.
- 28. Contract Labour .- The Wage Board has recommended that there should be no discrimination between contract workers and regular workers in the This recommendation is accepted matter of wages. by the Government. The Board has also recommended that early steps should be taken to abolish contract system of labour in terms of the Supreme Court decision and the tripartite decision on this subject and that in particular, it should be the responsibility of the principal employer, wherever contract labour is continued, to see that all labour laws applicable are implemented. This matter is already being pursued by the Government who propose to undertake a general legislation on the subject of contract labour; no separate decision on this recommendation is called for.
- 29. Existing Earnings and Benefits.— The recommendations mentioned in the above clauses are without prejudice to the existing higher earnings, amenities, benefits, etc. which are at present available to the workers.
- 30. Period of Enforcement. The above recommendations are for a period of 5 years taking effect from 1 January 1967 and remaining in force till 31 December 1971 in respect of all categories of workers ext to which the above recommendations would apply.
- Bonus Schemes. The bonus earnings of the workers under the production/incentive bonus schemes, which are at present in operation in some mines will continue to be determined on the same basic wages in each case as were applicable prior to coming into force of this Board's recommendations till such time as in view of the changed circumstances, the production/incentive bonus schemes are not modified.

- 32. Prices of Iron Ore offered by MMTC. The Board has ecommended that since for the purpose of iron ore export, the MMTC has a monopoly, Government should consider the advisability of devising a suitable machinery to look into the question of fixing reasonable prices for the iron ore. This matter will have to be considered by the Government as a matter of policy and overall consideration of the country.
- 33. Machinery for interpretation.— If there are any differences about the interpretation of the Board's recommendations, they should be settled in a bipartite meeting consisting of the representatives of employers and workers in the concerned unit. If no settlement is reached therein, the dispute should be settled either by conciliation or abbitration or adjudication as provided under the Industrial Disputes Act,1947 and the Code of Discipline.

(The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part I, Sec.1, 7 June 1967, pp. 229-238).

Central Government accepts Recommendations of Central Wage Board for Limestone and Dolomite Mining Industries.

A Resolution dated 3 June 1967 of the Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment) states that the Central Wage Board for Limestone and Dolomite Mining Industries submitted its final report to Government on 21 February 1967. The Wage Board made recommendations for grant of two interim wage increases. These were accepted by Government and the parties were advised to implement them.

The Board's recommendations are unanimous. After careful consideration, the Government has decided to accept the recommendations as detailed below and to request the parties to implement them expedituously.

The Government hope that joint endeavours will be made by the managements of the Limestone and Dolomite Mines and the concerned labour unions to raise the existing level of productivity through technological improvements and better utilisation of the labour force.

Wage Board's Recommendations:

1. Extent of Industry Covered. Limestone/ Dolomite mining industry will include all activities connected, directly or indirectly, with the mining of these minerals such as prospecting, survey, mining and preparation of these minerals, loading and unloading and their otherwise handling, all engineering, mechanical or clerical installations repairs and maintenance and transportation, stores, laboratory and quality control, medical and sanitation, welfare and education, watch and ward, They will also include all administrative offices in the mining areas and those in the districts within which the mining areas are situated. Limestone mining will also cover all captive kilns if the owner of the kiln and the quarry from which the lime is being obtained for burning into the kilns is the same person and it is situated in the limestone mining area, i.e. within a radius of 10 kms. from the furthest limestone mine or quarry in the limestone mining centre.

The limestone mining industry will not include the following:

- (i) All limestone mines and quarries covered by the recommendations of the First Cement Wage Board and kilns connected the rewith;
- (ii) Shahabad Stone Quarries and Shahabad (Gulbargah district) and stone quarries of the Associated Industries(Kotah)Ltd., Ramganjmundi;
- (iii) Lime kankar quarries and calcite mines.
- 2. Categories of Employees.— (i) Unless otherwise stated, the Board's recommendations should apply to all workmen in the industry, time-rated as well as piece-rated, whether employed directly or by or through contractors in raising or handling of limestone and dolomite or on work incidental thereto.

They should also apply to clerical staff and to all workers doing administrative work, to health, medical, welfare and teaching staff and also to workers like telephone operators, peons, chowkidars, etc. who come within the purview of clause (s) of section 2 of Industrial Disputes Act, 1947.

- (ii) Board's recommendations should not apply to the following:-
 - (a) Those who are temporarily or casually engaged on civil engineering, construction work relating to building, roads and expansion;
 - (b) Apprentices and learners engaged for training in trades or jobs of skill under the provisions of the Apprentices Act, 1961 or under any specific contract;
 - (c) Employees of head offices situated outside the mining areas.
- 3. Grouping of Mines for Wage Function.— With a view to giving facility of increasing wages in a phased manner to units of the industry wherein existing wages are low, the limestone and dolomite mines in the country should be classified into the undermentioned three groups or categories on the basis of the minimum level of wages—(total emoluments) existing on 1 April 1966:

Group Mine			n total-minimum emoluments on ril 1966 were :
		Per month	Per day
I II III	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Rs.91 to Rs.104	Below Rs.3.50. Rs.3.50 to Rs.4. Above Rs.4.

- 4. Minimum Total Emoluments in Various Groups of Mines/Quarries.— The total minimum emoluments of the lowest paid un-skilled workers corresponding to the All India average consumer price index number 1966 (1949=100) with effect from 1 January 1967 in the various groups of mines/quarries mentioned in clause 3 should be as follows:—
 - (a) Rs.104 per month or Rs.4.00 per day in Group I mines/quarries;
 - (b) Rs.117/- per month or Rs.4.50 per day in Group II mines/quarites;
 - (c) Rs.130/- per month or Rs.5/- per day in Group III mines/quarries.

The total emoluments mentioned here and in clauses 3 and 13, include basic wage, dearness allowance, cash value of food grain concession, if any, interim wage increases recommended by the Beard, mining allowance, house rent allowance, if any, and fuel allowance if paid in cash and not the money value of fuel supplied or the amount paid to the Forest Department to enable the workers to collect fuel in the forest.

- 5. Split up of Total Minimum Emoluments.— The total minimum emoluments should, in future, consist of basic wage and dearness allowance. When the total minimum emoluments are Rs.130/— per month or Rs.5/— per day, the basic wage of the lowest paid unskilled worker should be Rs.75/— per month or Rs.3/— per day, and dearness allowance should be Rs.55/— per month or Rs.2/— per day.
- 6. Pay Scales for Workers other than Clerks and Teachers.— There should be the undermentioned 12 monthly and daily basic scales of pay for time-rated workers in the industry other than clerks and teachers, subject to the recommendations about phased increase in the basic wage of the first four categories of workers. In column 4 of the statement below are the daily pay scales converted into monthly on the basis of 26 working days.

		(In)	Rupees)	
Sl. No.	Monthly Pay Scal	Nearest equivalent daily pay scales (on 26 working days' basis).	Daily payscales converted into monthly on the basis of 26 working days.	
(1)	(2)	(多)	(4)	
2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10.	75-2-85 80-2-90 85-2-95-3-110 95-2-105-3-120 110-3-125-4-145 130-5-180 155-6-185-7-220 170-8-210-10-260 215-10-285-15-330 225-10-275-15-395 325-15-475	3.20-0.08-3.60 8 3.40-0.10-4.40 88 3.80-0.10-4.80 98 4.35-0.12-4-95- 11 0.15-5.70 3 5.10-0.80-7.10 13 6.00-0.25-8.50 15 6.60-0.35-10.10 17 8.30-0.40-10.70- 21 0.50-12.70 1 9.85-0.50-11.35- 25 0.55-15.20 1 12.50-0.55-15.25- 32 0.60-18.25 1	3.00-2.08-88.40 3-20-2.08-93.60 3.40-2.60-114.40 3.80-2.60-124.80 3.10-3.12-128.70- .00-148.20 2.60-5.20-184.60 6.00-6.50-221.00 1.60-9.10-262.60 5.80-10.40-278.20- 3.00-330.20 6.10-13.00-295.10- 4.30-395.20 5.00-14.30-396.50- 5.60-474.50	
12.	350-20-450-25-575	13.50-0.80-10.50- 35	1.00-20.80-455.00- 3.40-572.00	

7. The dearness allowance should consist of two parts, one of which should vary with variations in the cost of living. The dearness allowance which is a part of the total emoluments corresponding to the average All India consumer price index number 166(1949=100), will not be reduced unless the index number goes below 144. The other part of the dearness allowance should rise or fall depending upon the changes in the index number above 166. The following should be the monthly or daily rates of dearness allowance:

Basic wage per month.	Dearness Allowance per month.	Basic wage per m onth day.	Dearness Allowan- ance, per day.
(1)	(2).	(3)	(4)
	Rs.	<u>Rs.</u>	<u>Rs</u> .
Up to Rs.149 150-299 300-399	55.00 60.00 65.00	Upto 5.70 5.71-11.50 11.51-15.35	2.00 2.30 2.50
400 and above.	70.00	Above 15.35	2.75

8. Variable Dearness Allowance.-Variable dearness allowance should be determined in the manner shown below:-

- (1) For every variation of 2 points in the All India consumer price index beyond 166 (1949=100) the dearness allowance should vary @ Re.1.50 per month for monthly-rated workers and Re.0.06 per day for daily-rated workers. There shall be no adjustment for rise or fall of less than 2 points. If, for example, the index number goes upto 186 in one quarter, the workers will be entitled to an increase of Rs.15/- in the dearness · allowance they are entitled toan-increase es to at the cost of living index number if again it goes down to 178 in the next quarter, the increase will be Rs.9/- in the dearness allowance at 166.
- (2) In mines and quarries, wherein workers are supplied goodgrains, etc. at concessional rates, the rise in the cash value of such concession from 1 January 1967 onwards, should be a justed against the variable dearness allowance. The cash value of such concession should be determined by mutual agreement between the parties, failing which, by arbitrarion.
- (3) There should be no revision in dearness allowance either upward or downward in the first two months from the date of revised wage structure coming into effect, i.e. from 1 January 1967. The first adjustment of variable dearness allowance should therefore come into effect from 1 March 1967 on the basis of average All India consumer price index number for the quarter ending 31 December 1966, as soon as index numbers for this quarter become available. The revision in future should come into effect from 1 June, 1 September, 1 December and 1 March, on the basis of the average All India consumer price index numbers for the previous quarters ending 31 March, 30 June, 30 September and 31 December, respectively, as soon as such average index numbers are available.
- 9. Phased increase in Wages. While the increments in the pay scales and the dearness allowance in the case of first four categories of workers, shose wages have been phased should remain unaffected, their basic wages should be phased on the basis of total emoluments in the three groups of mines mentioned in Clause 3 as on 1 April 1966 in the manner shown below:

Total minimum	Categories.	Daily Wages from				
emoluments as on 1-4-66.	· .	1-1-67	1-1-68	1-1-69	1-1-70	1-1-71
(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)
Below Rs.3.50 per day.	IV III II	2.00 2.20 2.40 2.80	2.25 2.45 2.65 3.05	2.50 2.70 2.90 3.30	2.75 2.95 3.15 3.55	3.00 3.20 3.40 3.80
Rs.3.50 to Rs.4/- per day.	II III IV	2.50 2.70 2.90 3.30	2.75 2.95 3.15 3.55	3.00 3.20 3.40 3.80	° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° °	• • • • •
Above Rs.4/- per day.	I III IV	3.00 3.20 3.40 3.80	0 0 • • • •	• • • • • •	• • • • • •	• • • • • •

Phasing of wages of similar categories ofworkers should be effected likewise in respect of monthly-rated workers taking into account the basic wage and the dearness allowance prescribed for them.

10. Standardised Nomenclature. The parties should take steps, as soon as possible to evolve standardised list of nomenclature in the industry.

Il. Categorisation of Workers, other than Clerks.— All the time-rated workers, other than clerks, should be categorised by mutual agreement between the representatives of employers and workers in a mine in view of their present emoluments, nature of duties, responsibilities, experience etc. and any dispute arising therefrom should be settled by voluntary arbitration or adjudication.

12. Piece Rates.— The following provisions should govern the piece-rates and fall-back wages in the industry:-

(i) With effect from 1 January 1967, in no case piece-rated workers should get total wages less than the wages fixed for a minimum paid daily-rated worker. A piece-rated worker should therefore get, with effect from 1 January 1967, a minimum wage of Rs.4/-, Rs.4.50 and Rs.5/- in the groups I, II, III mines, respectively. The piece-rated workers should get the same percentage increase in their piece rates as the minimum paid daily-rated workers of a corresponding category get in their total emoluments under the revised scheme of wages.

- (ii) During the periodof phasing, the piecerated workers, corresponding to the first four categories of workers in whose case phasing of wages has been recommended. should be entitled to the same percentage increase in the piece rates as would be given to the minimum paid daily-rated workers in the total emoluments of those categories with the proviso that their daily emoluments should, in no case, be less than the wages fixed for the minimum paid daily-rated workers in that category including the annual increment. For example, if the minimum wage of category I worker is raised from Rs.78/to Rs.104/- per month, i.e. by 33.1/3per cent the piece rates of the piecerated workers of the corresponding category should also be increased by 33.1/3 per cent for the same work load.
- (iii)(a) A minimum fall-back wage should be paid to the piece-rated workers when they are unable to perform their norm of work under circumstances beyond their control such as when sufficient work is not available, when there is any natural impediments on account of which work cannot be carried on.
 - (b) To be entitled to the fall-back wage, workers should not leave the premises before their shift is over without prior permission of management. The daily fall-back wage should be 80 per cent. of the daily wage of a time-rated worker of corresponding category.
 - (c) The fall-back wage in the case of pieceratedworkers corresponding to the
 first four categories, whose wages
 have been phased, should also be worked
 out in similar manner taking phased
 increase in future years into consideration for calculation of the fall-back
 wage on 80 per cent, basis.
- 13. Minimum Total Emoluments of Clerks.— The minimum total emoluments of the lowest paid clerks, with effect from 1 January 1967, should be Rs.175/—per month consisting of Rs.120/— basic and Rs.55/—dearness—allowance at the consumer price index number 166 (1949=100).

14. Pay Scales of Clerks. The following should be the pay scales for three grades of clerks, with effect from 1 January 1967:-

Grade Pay Scales III .. Rs.120-10-170-12-290 (5+10 years) II .. Rs.190-12-250-15-400 (5+10 years) I .. Rs.300-15-375-20-575 (5+10 years)

Semi-clerical grade

(in respect of some mines only)

Rs.100-7-135-10-185 (5+5 years).

Clauses 15 to 20 of the report deals with dearness allowance for clerks, categorisation of clerical staff, teachers' pay-scales, dearness allowance for teachers, wages of apprentices and learners, and method of fitment into new pay-scales of monthly-rated workers and daily-rated workers.

- 21. Holidays and leave facilities.—The workers in the mines, other than those of HSL, MISL should be allowed the undermentioned holidays and leave facilities, subject to the condition that if in any mine the existing holidays and leave facilities as a whole, are better than those recommended, they should continue.
 - (i) Six holidays with full pay which should include the Republic Day and the Independence Day.
 - (ii) 18 days sick leave with full pay on the basis of existing practice, if any, and where there is none, on the certificate of registered medical practitioner.
- 22. Gratuity Fund. The Board has recommended that the Government should consider the possibility of creating a gratuity fund out of a cess to be levied for the purpose. This recommendation will be considered by the Government.
- 23. New Gratuity Scheme. The existing gratuity schemes in the limestone/dolomite mines/quarries should continue unless and until a geatuity fund recommended in clause 22 is created. However, in the units of the industry, where there is no gratuity scheme at present a beginning should be made by introducing a gratuity scheme providing for the following terms and conditions:

Events entitling gratuity.

Quantum of gratuity.

- (1) On death or on physical/mental incapacity, whilst in service, which renders the workman unfit for further service.
- 15 days' basic wages for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum of 15 months basic wages.
- (2) On Superannuation at the age of not less than 58 years, after completion of not less than 5 years' service.

-Do-

- (3) Voluntary retirement or resignation:-
 - (a) Upto 10 years of service.
 - (b) Over 10 years but below 15 years of service.
 - (c) Over 15 years of service.

10 days' basic wages, for each completed year of service. 15 days' bagec wages for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum of 15 months' basic wages.

- (4) On termination of service by the employers:
 - (a) Upto 5 years' service.(b) Over 5 years' service.

Nil.

15 days' basic wages for each completed year of service, subject to a maximum of 15 months' basic wages.

- 24. Option to convert grain concessions, etc. into cash .- The present system of supplying foodgrains at concessional rates should continue unless the workers and management desire otherwise and agree to have the value of foodgrain concession as on 1 January 1967 converted into ash. In that case from the said date onwards the workers would be entitled to full quantum of variable dearness allowance as recommended by the Board.
- 25. Permanency of Workers. The Board has recommended that all persons with six months! continuous service should be given facilities which are normally available to permanent workers. Board has added that the break in service caused due to the stoppage of mining work in the rainy season, or by other reasons, on which the workers have no control, should be waived and this period of absence should count in the calculation of continuous service, and that when such workers return to work, they should be given preference over the new workers.

As classification of workmen, e.g. permanent, temporary, etc., is one of the matters to be provided for in the Standing Orders of Establishments covered by the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946, the above recommendation of the Böard will apply only to these establishments which have no Standing Orders.

- 26. Contract Labour .- The Wage Board has recommended that there should be no discrimination between contract workers and regular workers in the matter of wages. This recommendation is accepted by the Government. The Board has also recommended that early steps should be taken to abolish contract system of labour in terms of the Supreme Court decision and the tripartite decision on this subject and that in particular, it should be the responsibility of the principal employer, wherever contract labour is continued, to see that all labour laws applicable are implemented. This matter is already being pursued by the Government who propose to undertake a general lewislation on the subject of contract labour; no separate decision on this recommendation is called
- 27. Existing Earnings and Benefits.— The recommendations mentioned to the above clauses are without prejudice to the existing higher earnings, amenities, benefits, etc. which are at present available to the workers.
- 28. Period of Enforcement. The above recommendations are for a period of 5 years taking effect from 1 January 1967 and remaining in force till 31 December 1971 in respect of all categories of workers to which the above recommendations would apply.
- Bonus Schemes. The bonus earnings of the workers under the production/incentive bonus schemes, which are at present in operation in some mines/quarries will continue to be determined on the same basic wage in each case as was applicable prior to coming into force of thes Board's recommendations till such time as in view of the changes circumstances, the production/incentive bonus schemes are not modified.

30. Machinery for interpretation.— If there are any differences about the interpretation of the Board's recommendations, they should be settled in a bipartite meeting consisting of the representatives of employers and workers in the concerned unit. If no settlement is reached therein, the dispute should be settled either by conciliation or abbitration or adjudication as provided under the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, and the Code of Discipline.

(The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part I, Sec. 1, 7 June 1967, pp.239-248).

Central Government accepts Recommendations of Central Wage Board for Coal Mining Industry.

A Resolution dated 21 July 1967 of the Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment) states that the Central Wage Board for the Coal Mining Industry submitted its final report to the Government on 13 February 1967.

The Wage Board had already made recommendations for grant of two interim wage increases. These were accepted by the Government and the parties were advised to implement them.

The Government has at carefully considered the Board's Report and decided that the recommendations in respect of the following matters should be accepted:-

(a) Minimum Wage;

(b) Dearness Allowance;

(c) Wage structure of the time-rated and piece-rated workers except reduction of work-loads in the case of loaders in Madhya Pradesh and Orissa;

(d) Pay scale of clerical, technical and

supervisory staff;

(e) Coal Mines Bonus Scheme, with the retention of the existing condition relating to minimum attendance;

(f) Allowances mentioned in Chapter XII of the Report other than underground

allowance;

(g) Underground allowance without the provision for annual increase of 1 per cent. recommended by the Wage Board;

(h) Sick leave without the provision for accumulation;

(i) Paid festival holidays;

(j) Leave without pay;(k) Quarantine Leave;

(1) Paid leave for T.B., Cancer and injury leave; and

(m) Railway fares.

The above recommendations, as accepted by the Government will be brought inot operation with effect from 15 August 1967.

The Board's recommendation regarding introduction of a gratuity scheme will be examined by the Government and decision taken thereon in due course.

In view of Government's recent decision to decontrol coal prices, it has been represented that it will take some time for employers to make the necessary readjustments to enable them to implement the recommendations. Employers and workers have generally agreed to enter into bipartite talks in this connection regarding the phasing of the disbursement of additional benefits in the initial period, wherever employers may have such difficulties. Government would commend to holding of such talks between the parties with a view to arriving at mutually acceptable arrangements.

Board's Recommendations.— The Neyveli Lignite Corporation was excluded from the scope of the reference to the Board by Government's decision dated 18 December 1962.

The reference would cover all employees in the coal mining industry who fall within the definition of the term 'workmen' in Section 2(s) of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 (Act XIV of 1947), including miners and other sirdars.

Minimum Wage. The Board is of the opinion that the minimum wage of category I surface worker of Rs.5 per day at All India Average Working Class Consumer Price Index Number 166 (Base 1949=100) would be fair and reasonable. Inclusive of bonus payment at the tate of 10 per cent. of basic pay pro-rate on attendance, the lowest paid category I surface worker will be entitled to Rs.5.50 per day or Rs.143 per month (Paras 24 and 25). Shri Worah, however, had his reservations on payment of bonus pro-rata on attendance.

of

Scheme for Dearness Allowance. "For every point rise over the Index Number 166, to which the Board's wage structure is linked, the dearness allowance shall be 3 paise per day. The method of calculation of the Index shall be on the basis of the average of six months; i.e., from January to June and July to December, in each year and the adjustments will be made on 1 October and 1 April each year respectively as at present. If there are fractions in the average the next higher integer will be taken."

The Board has made it clear that if there is a fall in the average cost of living Index Number for any period of six months from the average Index Number for the previous period of six months, the dearness allowance will be reduced to the extent of such fall at the rate of 3 paise per point per day, but not if the Index Number falls below 166.

Wage Structure: A. Time-rated Categories. The existing ten categories should be compressed into six categories, as shown in Appendix V of the Report.

The following are the scales of pay for the six daily rated categories at All India Average Working Class Consumer Price Index Number 196 (Base 1949=100).

Categories.	Daily wage Minimum.	Increment.	Daily WagePeriodAttendance Bonus. Period Maximum.	
I	5.00 5.35 5.90 6.90 7.95 10.90	0.10 0.12 0.15 0.20 0.28 0.40	6.00 6.55 7.40 8.90 10.75 14.90	10 years + 10 %

B. Collieries of the National Coal Development Corporation including categorisation of the Excavation Section, Deep Shaft and Mechanised Mines.— Monthly paid staff of the National Coal Development Corporation who are at present governed by the Central Pay Commission scales of pay, Railway Rules, Corporation Rules or by other rules should be allowed to opt for the scales of pay and other service conditions recommended by the Board for similar monthly rated staff in the private sector collieries. Such option shall be exercised within 12 months from the date the recommendations of the Board come into effect and the option once exercised shall be final and binding.

The Board recommends the following scales of pay for workmen of the excavation section:-

Category E - Rs.6.75-0.20-9.75 Category D - Rs.10.75-0.40-14.75 Category C - Rs.12.00-0.60-18.00 Category B - Rs.13.50-0.70-20.50 Category A - Rs.16.00-0.90-25.00

New appointees in category 'F' should be given the scales of the clerical grade III, with option to the existing employees to continue in category V daily scale or to opt for the monthly scale. Job descriptions for these categories given in the Award in Reference No.57 of 1959, should stand. Operators of shovel/drag lines of 10 cubic yard capacity and above or dumpers of 45 tonne capacity and above should be given 25 per cent. higher wages than what they draw in their present categories.

Piece-rated Workers. The Board has classified the piece-rated workers into 5 groups.

For these 5 groups, the Board recommends the following wage structure with its fall-back wage (minimum guaranteed wage) for each group, as shown below at the All India Average Working Class Consumer Price Index-Number 166(Base 1949=100):-

		Basic Wage	Fall-Back Wage	
•		Rs.	Rs.	
Group I Group II Group III Group IV Group V		5.25 5.40 5.90 6.00 6.75	5.00 5.00 5.25 6.00 6.00	***

Work loads have been prescribed for pick miner, machine loader, Quarry pick miner, Quarry miner, Drill coal miner, Quarry loader and Wagon loader.

Different scales of pay for the clerical staff who have been classified under four groups and for technical and supervisory staff classified under eight grades, have been prescribed.

The following are the scales of pay for clerical staff at the All India Average Working Class Consumer Price Index Number 166(Bsse 1949=100).

Group III - Rs.180-5-230-7-265 Plus 10% attendance bonus.

Group II - Rs.205-7-275-10-325 Plus 10% attendance bonus.

Group I - Rs.245-10-325-15-385 Plus 10% attendance bonus.

Special Grade - Rs.305-15-425-20-505 Plus 10% attendance bonus.

The Board has decided that the Technical and Supervisory staff should be divided into eight grades (A to H) and recommended the following pay scales at the All India Average Working Class Consumer Price Index Number 166(Base 1949=100):-

Grade A - Rs.405-20-605-25-730

Grade B - Rs.305-15-395-20-575

Grade C - Rs.245-10-305-15-440

Grade D - Rs.205-7-247-10-337 Grade B - Rs.180-5-210-7-273

Grade F - Rs.165-4-205-5-230

Grade G - Rs.146-3-176-4-184

Grade H - Rs.140-3-170-4-178.

Outlying Coalfields: Andhra Pradesh. - Coal cutters in this field should be placed in new category IV.

Subject to the broad agreements (reached between the representatives of the management af Singareni Collieries and the representatives of the Unions) the wage structure and the proposed categorisation for Bengal and Bihar should be made applicable to the Singareni Collieries Co.Ltd., with necessary modifications and changes, occasioned by the special condition.

Madhya Pradesh, Orissa and Maharashtra.—
Categorisation proposed by the Board for Bengal
and Bihar should be adopted in the outlying
coalfields of Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra and
Orissa. In the case of specific categories not
mentioned in the categorisation proposed by the
Board the managements and the unions concerned
should at local level, by agreement, fit in such
workers in the appropriate categories on the basis
of their present emoluments, skill involved and
other relevant factors. Workers employed in the
private power stations and railways should also
be fitted in the proposed categorisation recommended
by the Board.

Assam. The existing separate categorisation of surface and underground workers will be replaced by one categorisation for both surface and underground workers and the differential between surface and underground workmen, will be maintained by a separate underground allowance as in the rest of the country. All time rated daily paid workers shall be placed in six categories as shown in Appendix VA with the following basic consolidated scales of pay at All-India Working Class Consumer Price Index Number 166 (Base 1949=100).

Categories	• Daily-wag Minimum.		nt.Daily-wag Maximum.	e Period of scale.	=Attendance and deferred bonus.
I III IV V VI	Rs. 5.75 Rs. 6.15 Rs. 6.80 Rs. 7.95 Rs. 9.15 Rs. 12.25	Rs. 0.11 Rs. 0.14 Rs. 0.18 Rs. 0.23 Rs. 0.32 Rs. 0.46	Rs. 6.85 Rs.7.55 Rs. 8.60 Rs.10.25 Rs.12.35 Rs.17.15	10 years. 10 years. 10 years. 10 years. 10 years. 10 years.	Plus 10%

Clerical Staff. Basic consolidated scales of pay at All India Working Class Consumer Price Index Number 166(Base 1949=100).

Clerical Grade III - Rs.205-6-265-8-305 (15 years) Plus 10% attendance bonus and deferred bonus.

Clerical Grade II - Rs.235-8-315-12-375 (15 years) plus 10% attendance bonus and deferred bonus.

Clerical Grade I - Rs.280-12-376-16-440 (12 years) plus 10% attendance bonus and deferred bonus.

Special Grade - Rs.350-16-430-20-570 (12 years)
plus 10% attendance allowance bonus and
deferred bonus.

Technical and Supervisory Staff. - Scales of pay at cost of living at All India Working Class Consumer Price Index Number 166 (Base 1949=100).

Grade A - Rs.475-20-575-25-825 (15 years)
Plus atte 10% attendance and deferred bonus.
Grade B - Rs.350-16-430-20-630 (15 years)

Plus 10% attendance and deferred bonus.

Grade C - Rs. 280-12-340-16-500 (15 years)

Plus 10% attendance and deferred bonus.

Grade D - Rs.235-8-275-12-395 (15 years)

Plus 10% attendance and deferred bonus.

Grade E - Rs.205-6-235-8-315 (15 years)

Plus 10% attendance and deferred bonus.

Grade F - Rs.190-5-215-6-275 (15 years)

Plus 10% attendance and deferred bonus. Grade G - Rs.166-4-206-5-216 (12 years)

Plus 10% attendance and deferred bonus.

Grade H - Rs.160-4-200-5-210 (12 years)

Plus 10% attendance and deferred bonus.

The categorisation and grades will be the same as the ones recommended for the rest of the country. In the case of categories not covered or any other difficulty in categorisation the matter should be settled by mutual negotiation failing which by arbitration or adjudication.

Coal Mines Bonus Scheme-1948. The provisions in Para 8 of the Scheme relating to forfeiture of bonus because of participation in an illegal strike, should be removed.

Bonus should become a definite part of the wage of the worker and it should no longer be conditional on a minimum attendance qualfication.

The Board recommends that the Bonus should be paid quarterly as hitherto, but pro-rata on attendance. Shri Worah, however disagreed with the recommenation for payment on pro-rata attendance.

Bonus should be calculated at 10 per cent. of the new consolidated basic wage and the same should be paid quarterly pro-rata on attendance to all employees who are covered by the Board's recommendations and whose new basic pay does not exceed Rs.730 per month.

Underground Allowance. Underground allowance shall be paid to all these who are entitled to receive it at present at the rate of 5 per cent. of the new consolidated pay with a maximum of Rs.25 per month. This allowance shall be increased by 1 per cent. with a corresponding increase of Rs.5 per month in the maximum after every twelve months from the date the recommendations of the Board come into effect until it reached the rate of 10 per cent. of the basic pay, with a maximum elimit of Rs.50.

Ddiff Different allowances have been prescribed for tub pushing, stacking and leading reloading, overtime for persons holding positions of supervision and management and doing confidential work, officiating acting allowance, water seepage/bailing allowance, dressing allowance, their thin seam allowance, first-aid allowance, surplus allowance, bad ventilation allowance, night shift allowance, etc.

Leave and Railway Fare. The Board makes the following recommendations:-

Leave. - Privilege leave or annual leave with wages (Majority recommendation):-

- (a) A workman employed underground in a coal mine shall be entitled to annual leave with wages at the rate of one day for every twelve days of work performed by him;
- (b) A workman who is employed otherwise than as stated in (a) above shall be entitled to annual leave with wages at the rate of one day for every sixteen days of work performed by him.

Casual Leave. Five days paid casual leave in the year with liberty to prefix or suffix casual leave to Sundays, weekly rest days or paid festival holidays should be granted to workmen. (This is a majority recommendations Shri Worah dissenting).

Sick Leave. All workmen shall be entitled to 15 days sick leave with in the year on full pay or 30 days in the year on half pay with a right to the workmen to accumulate sick leave for a period of 60 days and 120 days respectively, in the entire period of service. (Majority recommendation one member dissenting).

Paid Festival Holidays. The existing provision for seven paid festival holidays in the year is adequate and should continue. If, however, any unit is granting more than seven paid festival holidays, it shall be continued.

Leave without pay. - One month's leave without pay in the year should be granted.

Quarantine Leave. The provision of the Model Standing Orders shall stand.

Paid leave for T.B., Cancer, Leprosy, Mental Disease, Paralysis and Occupational Diseaseslike Pneumoconeosis, Sillicosis, etc. - Special leave with pay on medical certificate for atleast six months in the first instance should be granted and paid by the Coal Mines Welfare Fund. If within a period of six months it is found that the disease is curable, longer leave should be granted depending on the circumstances of each case.

Injury Leave. The question of extending the applicability of Rules 83 and 83A of the Fundamental Rules to the Coal Industry should be gone into by the Industrial Committee on Coal Mining.

Railway Fare. The condition of three months' uninterrupted service on return from leave should be rescinded and all workmen should be paid return railway fare within a week of their being allowed to resume duty on return from leave.

Railway Fare concessions should be allowed to be accumulated for a period of two years. The members representing the industry do not agree with this recommendation.

Railway Fares should include boat fare wherever payable.

The Class by which the workmen shall be entitled to travel will be as follows:-

If the workman's basic wage is Rs.165/- or less per month - III class.

If the workman's basic wage is above Rs.165/- and upto Rs.265/- - II Class.

If the workman's basic wage is Rs.265/per month - I class.

House Rent Allowance.—Section 5.— House rent allowance of Rs.8 per month should be paid from 1 January 1967 to all workmen who are not provided with free housing. Those who are offered accommodation and do not avail themselves of the offer, will not be entitled to payment of the house rent allowance. The three employers' representatives on the Board do not agree with this recommendation.

No house rent should be charged to workers who are provided with housing accommodation.

Alternative light Employment for Disabled Workmen - Section 7.- Government should look into the matter and formulate a proper scheme to ensure that every disabled workman who is capable of performing lighter work is provided with such alternative employment.

Free Fuel - Section 9. - Free fuel should be supplied to all workmen in the coal industry. Where such practice does not exist it should be introduced and where free fuel is being supplied, the existing practice, quantity and manner of supply should be continued.

(The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part I, Sec. 1, 25 July 1967, pp. 375-392).

Annual Report of the Coal Mines Bonus Schemes for the Year 1965*.

A summary of the Annual Report for the year 1965 of the Coal Mines Bonus Schemes has been published in the June 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal.

Among other things, the Act provides for the payment of quarterly bonus equal to one-third of the basic earnings in the quarter provided certain conditions felating to minimum attendance, etc., are fullfilled. The Bonus Schemes were enforced in various States and in the year 1965 they were in operation in Andhra Pradesh, Assam, Bihar, Madhya Pradesh, Maharashtra, Orissa, Rajasthan, and West Bengal. The Schemes were applicable to those employees in coal mines, whose basic earnings did not exceed Rs.300 per month but they did not apply to persons employed (i) as malis, sweepers, or domestic servants, (ii) in a coal mine belonging to or under the control of the National Coal Development Corporation Ltd., on monthly rates of pay and under conditions of service which for the time being are similar to those obtaining in Railway establishments or under conditions of service which entitle them to pension under the Civil Rules, and (iii) as labourers of a contractor for building, brick making or tile making. The administration of the Schemes has been the responsibility of the Chief Labour Commissioner's Organisation since August 1952.

Out of the 822 collieries, the average number of quarterly bonus returns received during theyear was 650 and out of the average number of 563,179 workers employed during the year in collieries submitting returns 358,873 (i.e. 63.72 per cent.) qualified for bonus, as gainst 421,495 and 354,955 (i.e. 84.2 per cent.) respectively during the previous year. The average number of workers who were paid bonus was 327,818 as against 324,372 during the previous year. The total amount of bonus paid to the workers-during the year was Rs.64,744,916 as against Rs.62,895,210 during the previous year.

Of the total 4,808 irregularities including 1,045 brought forward from the previous year, 3,591 irregularities were rectified during the year under report and 82 irregularities were closed eitherafter issue of warning to employers or because unpaid bonuses had been subsequently paid or prosecution/certificate cases had been filed in the Courts.

.T.

^{*} The Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.6, June 1967, pp. 509-511.

Wage Freeze discussed at Chief Ministers' Conference.

At the recent Chief Ministers' Conference held at New Delhi, labour leaders all over the country sharply criticised the proposal to freeze wages. An opinion survey revealed a definite polarization of views on the issue with labour and Leftist political leaders opposing the move and industrialists and Congress leaders favouring it. The following are the views expressed by a cross-section of political, labour and industrial leaders:

Shri Namboodripad, Chief Minister of Kerala said that the talk of freezing prices, profits, dividends and wages, under the present circumstances, had no meaning. After all, the shooting up of prices was not a recent development; it had been going on for more than a decade. Too often had "holding the price line" been talked about. Nobody would believe that it would be done now, unless a serious re-examination is made of the reasons why prices have been spiralling.

Shri Brahamananda Reddy, Andhra Chief Minister was in favour of the move if it was going to arrest prices and ensure that the Plan resources were not upset. It was a big issue which required a threadbare examination and a series of measures should be taken to make the whole issue workable with utmost efficiency.

Shri Ram Swaroop Verma, U.P.Finance Minister said that the wage freeze would adversely affect thelabour and benefit the capitalists. There should be control over income and expenditure and more than anything else over prices. He suggested demonetisation to unearth black money, estimated at 15,000 million rupees. Shri S.R. Vasavada, president of the INTUC-affiliated National Federation of Indian Railwaymen did not approve of a wage freeze at a time when living costs were rising and productivity was going up. It would dishearten workers and take away the incentive to increase productivity. Since dearness allowance was generally linked to the cost of living index, wages would automatically fall if prices were lowered.

Shri S.R. Kulkarni, President of the All-India Port and Dock Workers' Federation said that if the Government decided to freeze wages, the organised labour movement would have to think seriously in terms of a "work freeze". The Deputy Prime Minister's statement on the question was likely to be "a camouflage to deprive the Government employees in particular and other workers in general of thebenefits of tise in dearness allowance to meet therising cost of living.

If the Government was serious in evolving and implementing a radical economic and fiscal policy and if it succeeded in holding price line and freezing profits, the question of wage freeze will not arise. There had been a substantial erosion of the real wages of workers, including government employees. The existing level of real wages was even below the pre-war level. It was therefore, clear that the wages were already frozen and there was nothing left to freeze.

(The Hindustan Times, 17 July 1967).

Study of Wages in Private and Public Sectors published by National Council of Applied Economic Research: Lowest wages paid by Industries in Andhra Radella

According to a study of wages in the private and public sectors conducted by the National Council of Applied Economic Research elimination of inter-State wage differentials must wait a more balanced regional economic development. The yearly earnings in the States during 1956-1963 show that wages in Andhra Pradesh were the lowest and those in Maharashtra the highest and double of those in Andhra.

Ranked on the basis of average annual earnings, the first six industries are petroleum and coal products, ship-building and repair, electricity, gas and steam, basic metal industries, cement and textiles.

Compared to the first six industries in Sweden, the U.S. and Canada, wage differentials in India are narrower than in those countries.

No generalisation can be made about either the private or public sector of industry paying higher wages. For instance, in Madras nine out of thel2 industries studied pay higher wages in the private sector; in Madhya Pradesh, seven out of the nine industries in the public sector pay higher wages. The wage differences in the cotton textile industry are slowly disappearing.

In the iron and steel industry, the public sector plants pay the highest wages (excluding incentive payments) TISCO and IISCO trail far behind.

In the sugar industry, wages are higher outside U.P. and Bihar.

The Council says that standardisation is necessary if a rational wage structure is to be evolved in the country. In the case of the textile industry, labour has already demanded and the employers have accepted it. "It is only a matter of time before the unions grow sufficiently in strength to demand this in other industries as the experience of other countries demonstrates it."

Specific Obligation.— The Council says that tripartite settlement of the wage question through the agency of wage boards has been accepted by the Government as a policy. It would, therefore, seem to be the best course of action open to the Government that this question of standardisation and the period of transition during which this policy would be implemented, were made a specific obligation of wage boards to work out. The magnitude of the rate schedule, the geographical differential and many other closely connected problems can be adequately dealt with only at the wage boards' level.

The Council has pointed out that, by and large, the wage boards have not considered it necessary to go into the structure of wage differentials in the industry they examined. As in the case of the fixation of the minimum basic wage in different parts of the country, there is no uniformity in their recommendations, each board tending to go its own way. "This is clearly not the desirable procedure."

"It is time at least that the future wage boards were specifically asked to examine the question and structure a scientific wage structure so that no problem of shortage of skills arose in any important field", the Council adds.

(The Hindustan Times, 22 August 1967).

Final Report of the Wage Board for Working Journalists published.

The Wage Board for Working Journalists has, in its final report submitted recently to the Government, recommended a monthly basic pay of Rs.105 for Journalists employed in the lowest class of daily or weekly. It says the basic wage for a working journalist on first class working newspapers and news agencies should be Rs.190 a month, while those working in first class weeklies or periodicals should be Rs.160. The Board has also divided the country into three areas for the purpose of dearness allowance - cities with a population of more than one million, those between 500,000 and one million and those under 500,000.

The minimum and maximum D.A. payable area-wise is: Rs.40 and Rs.120 in Area III, Rs.55 and Rs.140 in Area II and Rs.70 and Rs.150 in Area I.

The Board has recommended the classification of newspapers, news agencies, weeklies and other periodicals into seven categories on the basis of their gross annual revenue.

Working journalists have been grouped into various categories and scales of pay fixed for each of them.

(The Statesman, 10 August 1967).

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

INDIA - JULY-AUGUST 1967.

41 Agriculture.

Tea Districts Emigrant Labour(Repeal) Bill, 1967.

Shri Jaisukhlal Hathi, Union Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation introduced in the Lok Sabha on 26 June 1967 a Bill to provide for the repeal of the Tea Districts Emigrant Labour Act, 1932, and for matters connected therewith. According to the Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill, the Tea Districts Emigrant Labour Act, 1932 regulates recruitment of workers for tea gardens in Assam from outside the State and their repatriation. Experience gained in the working of the Act for the past few years has shown that it is no ·longer necessary for to continue in existence the pattern of assisted emigrant labour, for tea gardens in Assam, as conditions which justified the introduction of the scheme about thirty years ago, have greatly altered during the intervening period. It is, therefore, proposed to repeal this Act. Any residual functions after the repeal of the Act that may be left over are proposed to be entrusted to the Government of Assam by making an express provision to that effect in the repealing Act.

The Bill provides that notwithstanding the repeal of the Tea Districts Emigrant Labour Act, 1932, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the said Act,—

- (a) every emigrant labourer in whose case, on the 3rd day of August, 1960, a period of three years from the date of his entry into Assam had not expired,
- (b) every emigrant labourer entering Assam on or after the 3rd day of August, 1960, being the date of the Agreement arrived at the Ninth Session of the Industrial Committee on Plantations, and before the commencement of this Act, and
- (c) every emigrant labourer who is in Assam immediately before the commencement of this Act and whose right of repatriation has not been waived or

forfeited by agreement or otherwise under any provisions of the said Act,

shall, as from the date of expiry of a period of three years from the date of his entry into Assam, whether such expiry occurs before or after the commencement of this Act, have the right to be repatriated, and may be repatriated, under the said Act, as if it had not been repealed and the provisions of the said Act in so far as they relate to the enforcement of the right of repatriation of emigrant labourers shall continue to apply as if for the references therein to the Controller, references to the State Government of Assam or an officer authorised by that Government in this behalf had been substituted:

Provided that no such emigrant labourer shall have the right to be so repatriated unless he makes an application in this behalf-

- (a) within a period of six months from the commencement of this Act, where the aforesaid period of three years has expired before such commencement, or
- (b) within a period of six months from the date of expiry of the aforesaid period of three years, where the latter period expires after such commencement.

(The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II, Sec. 2, 26 June 1967, pp. 523-526).

Recommendations of the Panel on Improvement in the Working of the Indian Agricultural Research Institute submitted: Autonomous Status suggested.

The report of the Panel headed by Dr. Kanungo which was asked to review and suggest improvements in the working of the Indian Agricultural Research Institute, was recently submitted the to the Administrative Reforms Commission. In view of the Institute's national importance the panel felt that it must be autonomous and free from unduly complex administrative restrictions, subject, however, to appropriate audit and with its programmes and activities open to public view.

The panel recommended several short and longterm measures for improving the working and status of the Institute.

Realising the need for a simple straight line of authority to bring the best out of the scientists engaged by the Institute, the panel has suggested that the Institute should have a governing body with a scholar-scientist as its chairman and director of the Institute with an appropriate status. This should be the supreme policy making body.

To absorb the best talents available, the panel has suggested that all recruitments to academic and research posts should be by open competition. The appointment of professor and associate professor should be done by a committee of which the director should be the chairman.

The panel also recommended that divisional heads should be given more powers in the matter of employing temporary skilled labour and unskilled daily wage labour.

(The Statesman, 21 August 1967).

Maharashtra: Agro-Industrial Foundation set up.

The President of India, Dr. Zakir Husain inaugurated on 24 August 1967 the Indian Agro-Industrial Foundation at Uruli Kanchan, near Poona. The foundation will seek to work for the development of agriculture, horticulture, animal husbandry and allied activities on modern scientific lines to propagate the knowledge and techniques of these subjects among farmers. It proposes to undertake a three-fold programme covering: development, experiment and research, and extension service.

The main activity will be the organisation of a hybrid seed farm in co-operation with the National Seeds Corporation. The local authorities at Uruli Kanchan have offered 100 acres of land to the foundation.

(The Times of India, 25 August 1967).

42. Co-operation. India - July-August 1967.

Panel to Study Land Acquisition Act set up.

The Government of India announced on 30 July 1967, the appointment of a 25-member Committee comprising members of Parliament and representatives of State Governments to examine the entire framework of the Land Acquisition Act, 1894. The Committee which will be headed by Shri Anand Narain Mulla, M.P., will examine, among other things, the scheme of acquisition of land for public purposes and for companies in the public and private sectors under the Act. The Committee in particular, will examine principles which should govern acquisition of land for a public purpose, principles for determining compensation, reasons for administrative delays and remedial measures, extent of Government responsibility for rehabilitation of evicted families and recommendations about discharge of this responsibility; and feasibility of enacting a uniform Central Law on land acquisition. This may be applicable to the whole country although the subject is in the concurrent list.

The Committee is expected to submit its report to the Government by the end of March, 1968.

(The Hindustan Times, 31 July 1967).

Meeting of Industrial Committee on Plantations held at Madras, 19 August 1967.

The meeting of the Industrial Committee on-Plantations was held at Madras on 19 August 1967. Among others the meeting was addressed by Shri Jaisukhlal Hathi, Union Minister for Labour. Employment and Rehabilitation. Addressing the meeting the Union Minister said that the Government was formulating a retirement-cum-family pension scheme to cover workers who are members of the Employees' Provident Fund and the Coal Mines Provident Fund. The Government was examining the question of extending the Employees' Provident Fund to workers in Cinchona plantations. Among the plantations, only tea, rubber and coffee were covered under the provident fund scheme at present. He told the meeting a declining trendin employment had been evident for some time in teal plantations accompanies by higher productivity. The reasons attributed for the decline were: mechanization, rationalisation of work, increased labour productivity and tendency towards casualization.

The Minister said the main problem was how to make use of the surplus labour on plantations and the incapacity of the industry to absorb all the new entrants. The problem would become acute in the coming years when repatriate labour from Ceylon started arriving.

The Minister also spoke of the need to regulatize the working hours for children in plantations. While the Minimum Wages Act had stipulated a 27-hour week for children the Plantation Labour Act had allowed children to work up to 48 hours a week. He thought this anomaly should be rectified by amending the rules or the Plantation Labour Act.

The meeting decided that the system of contract labour in plantations should be abolished wherever possible. The meeting agreed to amend the Plantation Labour Act so as to raise the wage limit for coverage (by the Act) from Rs.300 to Rs.500 per month, Shri Hathi said. It was also agreed that the State Governments should not amend the Plantation Labour Act without getting prior approval of the tripartite industrial committee on plantations.

(The Statesman, 20 and 21 August, 1967).

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

INDIA - JULY-AUGUST 1967.

50. General.

Service Conditions of Port Workers Reviewed:
New Allowances Recommended by Court of Inquiry.

The Court of Inquiry presided by Shri Salim M. Merchant, which went into the service conditions of port trust workers, has made the following recommendations:

B Category workmen: (a) attendance money should be increased from Re.1.00 to Rs.1.75 per day; (b) privilege leave should be allowed at the rate of one day for every 17 days; (c) sick leave should be allowed at the rate of 14 days of half pay for every year; (d) five days' casual lave in a year; (d) five days' paid holidays in a year; (f) a gratuity scheme which is already in force in Bombay should be extended to other ports from 1 October 1967; and (g) medical andhousing facilities as for A Category categories workers should be extended to these workers.

C Category workers: The C Category workers are at present treated as purely casual labour and they do not get any facilities. The Court of Inquiry has recommended that after four years of services, these workmen should be put in Category B and will be entitled to all those facilities from that date. They will also be entitled to five days' paid helidays.

(The Hindustan Times, 26 August, 1967).

Kerala: Results of a Family Budget Survey published.

A family budget survey was conducted under the direction of a three-man committee appointed by the State Government for the purpose of computing a fresh series of working class consumer price indices. Though the survey was limited to a specific purpose, it has thrown interesting light on some aspects of the domestic economy of the working class.

According to the survey the average monthly informce per working class household is the highest (Rs.217), at Ernakulam, the hub of industrial activity in Kerala, while it is as low as Rs.116 in Trivandrum, which has very few industries. Ernakulam is also at the top with an average family expenditure of Rs.204.78 and Meppady in South Wynad, where tea, coffee and cardamom are grown, comes last with a little over Rs.122. The families were found to be managing with their income only at Ernakulam, Alleppey and Meppady.

Cost of Food. Food, clothing and shelter (including fuel and lighting) take away the lion's share of the earnings. The expenditure on this account varies from about 82 per cent. at Ernakulam and Punalur to 87 per cent. in Trivandrum, Alleppey and Trichur and 90 per cent. in Meppady.

The 'food group' alone includes as many as 33 items as aginst only 14 in the previous survey. Analysis of the data shows that the percentage expenditure on food ranged from 57.18 (lowest) at Ernakulam to 67.33 (highest) at Meppady. The expenditure on food goes to when there is no appreciable increase in income. Wheat and tapioca are also being consumed by the workers in varying quantities in addition to rice.

Size of Family.— The 'miscellaneous group' consists of 13 items, including toilet, recreation, betel leaves, arecanut and tobacco, beedi and intoxicants, newspapers, travel, medical care and education. The expenditure on these items varies from about 12 per cent. at Cannanore and Munnar to 13 per cent. in Trivandrum, Alleppey and Trichur and about 18 per cent. at Punalur and Ernakulam.

The average size of a working class family in Kerala ranges from five in Meppady to 6.65 in Trichur. The average size of anurban family in Kerala, according to the 1961 census was 6.19.

(The Hindu, 31 July 1967).

Main Recommendations of the Education Commission Accepted.

The Committee of Members of Parliament on Education Policy has accepted all but three of the important recommendation of the Education Commission. The Committee's report was placed on the table of both Houses of Parliament on 25 July 1967 by Shri Triguna Sen, Union Education Minister. The three recommendations which have not been accepted relate to the starting of five or six big universities, selective admission at the secondary and undergraduate stages and the creation of a new administrative structure. The report has recommended that priority should be given to the development of a national system of education to accelerate transformation of the existing social order, provide adequate and equal educational opportunity to every child, make the rising generation conscious of the fundamental unity of the country, proud of its cultural heritage and confident of its great future, emphasize science and technology, and cultivate high moral, social and spiritual values.

The Committee has also recommended that along with development of regional languages as media of education, every effort should be made to develop Hindi as the link language.

(The Hindustan Times, 26 July, 1967).

Chapter 5. Working Conditions and Living Standards.

51. Hours of Work. India - July-August 1967.

Annual Report on the Working of the Hours of Employment Regulations (Railways) for the Year 1965-66*.

A review of the annual Report on the Working of Hours of Employment Regulations (Railways) for the year 1965-66 has been published in August 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal. Among other things, the review discusses the scope and application of the regulations, administration, classification of employees, inspections conduction and irregularities and their rectification. During the year under review, 8,537 establishments were inspected as against 9,834 inspected during the previous year. Out of the total of 104,933 irregularities (including 33,004 irregularities from the previous year), the Railway Administration rectified 77,061 (73.4 per cent.) irregularities during the year under report leaving a balance of 27,872 (26.6 per cent.) irregularities at the close of the year.

T.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.8, August 1967, pp. 675-679.

52. Workers' Welfare, Recreation and Workers' Education.

India - July-August 1967.

Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess(Amendment) Bill, 1967.

Shri Jaisukhlal Hathi, Union Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, introduced in the Lok Sabha on 19 June 1967 a Bill to amend the Tron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess Act, 1964.

According to the Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill section 2 of the Iron Ore Mines Labour Welfare Cess Act, 1961, provides for the levy of a cess, on all iron ore produced in any mine, at such rate not exceeding fifty paise per metric tonne as the Central Government may from time to time fix by notification in the Official Gazette. At present, the rate of cess thus levied is twenty-five paise per metric tonne. The proceeds of the cess levied and collected, reduced by the cost of collection, are being utilised to promote the welfare of labour employed in the iron ore mining industry. For collection of the cess, eight Cess Commissioners have been appointed in the important iron ore producing States. The cost of machinery for collection comes to about four to five per cent. of the cess This cost of collection is likely to be higher when the full complement of staff necessary for checking, inspection, supervision and accounting is appointed. In order to reduce the expenditure towards the cost of collection, it is proposed to amend the Act so as to collect the cess as a duty of customs in respect of aron ore which is exported out of India and as a duty of excise in respect of iron ore which is sold or otherwise disposed of by the owners of mines to steel plants and other units producing pig iron, etc. The cess asauty of customs will be collected through the agency of the Customs Department (as is being done in the case of cess on mica) and as duty of excise will be collected through the agency of the steel plants, etc., at the time of receipt of the despatchesby them. A saving of approximately 200,000 rupees is expected from this change in the mode of collection of cess.

The Bill seeks to achieve the above object.

(The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II, Sec. 2, 19 June 1967, pp. 496-501).

56. Labour Administration. India - July-August 1967.

Annual Report 1966-67 of the Ministry of Labour and Employment published: Labour Problems Reviewed*.

The report on the activities of the Department of Labour and Employment, Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation during the year 1966-67, which has been recently published by the Government of India, is in two volumes. Volume I covers the activities of the Department in the fields of industrial relations, wages, social security, working conditions and allied matters. The activities in the field of employment and Training are reviewed in Volume II. The following are some of the salient features of the Report.

General Labour Situation - Reviewing certain significant of the economy during the year 1966-67 such as set back in agricultural production, slackness in industrial growth, devaluation, and the rise in wholesale prices and the working class consumer Price Index, the report points out that these developments had their impact on industrial relations situation during the year. The country lost 10.5 million man-days (provisional) in 1966 on account of strikes and lock-outs in industry as compared to 6.9 million man-days lost in 1965. The deterioration in the industrial atmosphere could be attributed partly to economic reasons, viz. continued rise in prices and consequent stresses and strains felt in the economy.

Report 1966-67, Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment) Government of India, New Delhi. Vol. I, pp. 103, Vol. II. pp. 48.

In the Central Sphere, while the labour situation was by and large in Railways, Defence establighments and oilfields, the atmosphere was somewhat disturbed in the ports and docks and insurance establishments. A number of strikes were reported in the ports of Calcutta, Bombay, Madras and Visakhapatnam. Industrial relations inCochin Port were also strained. In the Insurance Companies, there were agitations by the workers on various issues, including the introduction of electronic computers by the Life Insurance The settlement arrived at between Corporation. the Indian Banks Association and the Bombay Exchange Banks Association on the one side and the All India Bank Employees Association and the All India Bank Federation Employees Federation on ethe the other on 19 October 1966 was one of the constanding outstanding examples of the value of the collective bargaining in maintaining an atmosphere of cordial industrial relations.

In the Coal Mines there were 110strikes and five lock-outs accounting for about 0.18 million of man-days lost in 1966 as compared to 67 strikes and 0.19 million of mandays lost in Thus, it will be seen that the number of 196% strikes went up but their duration was reduced. During January-February, 1967, 11 more strikes were reported which resulted in a loss of more than 77,600 man-days. In mines other than coal and oilfields 115 strikes were reported and the man-days lost were 0.082 million was compared to 0.582 million of man-days lost in the previous Thus, there was a marked decrease in the man-days lost in the non-coal mines in the curpent year.

Workers had to undergo hardship owing to lay-off and retrenchment particularly in cotton textile mills. But the situation somewhat improved towards the end of the year. In the cotton textile industry as against 35 units which remained closed at the beginning of 1966 there were only 29 non-working units at the end of the year. The number of workers affected also decreased from 44,700 to 39,400. The main reason for the closure of cotton textile mills was the shortage of cotton. To retrive the situation Government had to take suitable measures for the procurement and distribution of cotton in the market. The mills were also directed to close for an extra day per week in addition to the normal weekly holidays on payment to the workers of compensation at 50 per cent. of their basic wages and dearness allowance.

Prevention and Settlement of Industrial Disputes.— On the legislative side the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 continued to govern industrial relations situation in the country. On the voluntary side the Code of Discipline in Industry and Industrial Truce Resolution continued to be the main instruments in the prevention and settlement of industrial disputes, enforcement of awards, etc. The working of the Voluntary Machinery can be judged from the data given below:—

Code of	Discipline &	Industrial
Truce	Resolution	

			•	
	1966	1965	1964	
(1) No. of complaints received. (2) No. of complaints not requiring	864	1,399	1,710	
any action.	154	233	168	
(3) No.of complaints requiring acti	on. 710	1,166	1,542	•
Of those requiring action, percenta of complaints:-	ge			:
(a) Not substantiated on enquiry. (b) Where the breaches were set rig	13 ht	7	9 .	:
or settled otherwise.	62	44	37	
(c) Under investigation.	25	49	54	1
			•	

A substantial reduction in the number of total complaints received in the year 1966 was perhaps a reflection of the increasing desire among the Central Organisation of Employers and Workers to settle their disputes through bipartite discussions and negotiations.

The Central Implementation and Evaluation Machinery continued to extend its activities in other directions. In 1966, it secured recognition for 14 unions under the Code of Discipline. It also collected information about the extent of establishment of the grievance procedure in the mines and oilfields and a report is under preparation.

During the year 1966, 20 cases of alleged violation of the Code of Conduct were received. Of these 6 did not require any action. Five were forwarded to the respective State Governments for appropriate action and 6 were not substantiated on enquiry. In three cases the breaches were brought to thenotice of the erring parties.

The conciliation machinery set up under the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, continued to play a very useful role in bringing together parties to the dispute and exploring ways of amicable settlement. The following table shows the functioning of the Central Industrial Relations Machinery:-

	. ·		
	1966	1965	
1. No. of disputes referred to Industrial	-		
Relations Machinery. 2. No. of failure reports received.	5 , 695 737	5 , 705 625	•
(i) Of (2) above, No.of disputes referred to adjudication.	255	291	
(ii) Of (2) above, No.of disputes referred	(35%)	(47%)	
to arbitration.	108 (15%)	169 (27%)	- - - - -
		•	

It will be seen that there was a marked decline in the cases referred to arbitration and adjudication in 1966 as compared to 1965. In order to promote greater recourse to voluntary arbitration for resolving disputes, the Government have decided to set up a tripartite National Arbitration Promotion Board.

Joint Consultation.— Joint consultation has been receiving greater emphasis. The scheme of Workers' Participation in Management which was started during the Second Plan made further headway. Joint Management Councils have been set up in 47 establishments in the public sector and 100 establishments in the private sector. More or less similar arrangements have been made in the State Bank of India. Seminars continued to be organised to acquaint employers, workers and their unions with the philosophy and techniques of Joint Management Councils. An assessment of the working of the scheme in 21 undertakings has been completed.

Wage Boards and Payment of Bonus Acto- During the year under report Wage Boards were appointed for three more industries viz., (i) Leather Industry, (ii) Road Transport, and (iii) Electricity Undertakings. The Wage Boards for Tea, Coffee, Rubber Plantations, Iron Ore Mining, Limestone and Dolomite Mining and Coal Mining submitted their final reports; the Wage Boards for Leather and Engineering Industries recommended an interim wage increase and the Wage Board for Port and Dock Workers submitted recommendations for a second interim wage increase. The recommendations of these wage boards are being implemented.

The following table indicates the position in regard to the Wage Boards set up since 1957:-

- 1. Wage Boards which have given final recommendations and which have been implemented, more or less, fully.
- Cotton Textiles Gement, Sugar, (1st Wage Board), Jute, Iron & Steel and Coffee Plantations.
- 2. Wage Board which have given final recommendations and which are now being implemented.

Tea and Rubber Plantations.

- 3. Wage Boards which have given interim Non-Journalists, Working recommendations and which have been more or less implemented.
 - Journalists, Cement (2nd Wage Board) and Port & Dock Workers Wage-Board(D.A. and lst interim increase).
- 4. Wage Boards whichhave given interim Port and Dock Workers (2nd recommendations and which are being implemented.
- interim increase) Engineering Industries, Leather Industry, Heavy Chemicals and Fertilizers and Sugar Wage Boards.
- 5. Wage Boards which have not yet made any recommendations.
- Second Wage Board for Cotton Textiles and Wage Boards for Road Transport and Electricity Undertakings.
- 6. Wage Boards whichhave submitted final report and which are report under consideration of the Government.
- Iron Ore Mining Industry, Lime Stone & Dolomite Mining Industry and Coal Mining Industry.

During the year the constitutional validity of the Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and its various sections was challenged in different High Courts and in the Supreme Court. While the Supreme Court has held Section 10 relating to the payment of minimum bonus as valid, it has declared Sections 33, 34(2) and 37 of the Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 as ultra vires the Indian Constitution. situation arising out of the Supreme Court judgment was considered by the Standing Labour Committee at its meeting on 26 October 1966. The Committee set up a bipartite committee to examine the matter further. The bipartite committee met twice but no agreement could be reached.

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 continued to provide wage protection to persons employed in sweated industries. In 1965, a one-man Committee was constituted by the Government of India to undertake a comprehensive survey of the various matters connected with the administration of the various matters Minimum Wages Act, 1948. This Committee has since submitted its report. The question of minimum wages for agricultural labour was discussed at a Seminar in August 1965. A Committee set up by this Seminar considered the question of fixation and revision of minimum wages for agricultural labour and made certain recommendations which have been brought to the notice of the State Governments. The need for strengthening of the enforcement machinery has also been emphasised. In pursurance of another recommendation made at the Seminar, a Co-ordinating Committee on Agricultural Labour consisting of representatives of the Planning Commission and the Ministries and Departments concerned with agricultural labour was set up in November 1966 to coordinate and review the progress of implementation of various schemes for improving the conditions of agricultural labour and to advise how best the activities in these respects could be developed. .

Social Security. In the field of social security, the coverage of the Employees State Insurance and Employees' Provident Fund Schemes has been enlarged. During the current year, the E.S.I. Scheme was extended to 43,000 workers bringing the total to over 3.1 millions in 273 centres. Medical care benefits were extended to 171.950 family units (Insured Persons) bringing the total number of family units covered so far to about 3.2 millions consisting of about 12.6 millions of beneficiaries. Steps were also taken to improve further the quality of the services rendered by the Corporation. The E.S.I.S. Review Committee set up on the recommendations of the Standing Labour Committee to review the working of the Scheme has submitted its Report. recommendations of the Committee are under the consideration of the Government.

The basic features of the E.P.F. Act and the Scheme remained unchanged in the year under report. The Act was extended to Tobacco, Paper Products and Licensed Salt industries in the current year bringing & total of 106 industries and classes of establishments under the purview of the Act. The membership of the Fund increased from 4.6 millions at the end of 1965-66 to 4.8 millions at the end of January 1967. The rate of contribution under the E.P.F. Act was increased from 64% to 8% in 23 more industries, bringing the total number of industries to which the enhanced rate of 8% now applies to 54 out of a total of 106 covered under the Act.

The Coal Mines Provident Fund Scheme, 1948 was extended to the coal mines and ancillary organisations of the Neyveli Lignite Corporation Ltd., with effect from 1 January 1967. The total number of collieries and organisations covered under the Coal Mines Provident Fund Scheme came to 1,287 at the end of 1966-67. The number of subscribers to the fund also increased by 45,956 in the year beginning the bringing the total to 484,521.

Un-employment insurance is an important ingredient of a system of SocialSecurity. draft outline of an un-employment insurance scheme covering the members of the Employeest Provident Fund and the Coal Mines Provident Fund has been under the consideration of the Government for sometime. The outline was briefly considered by the 23rd Session of Indian Labour Conference in October 1965. is under further study with reference to its financial and other implications and in the light of experience of comparable schemes in other countries. Meanwhile, the I.L.O. has also offered the services of an expert to assist the Government of India in finalising the Scheme of Unemployment Insurance; the offer has been accepted.

A scheme for Retirement-cum-Family Pension Benefits for workers is also currently under examination by an official working group.

Working Conditions and Welfare. Welfare, safety and working conditions of labour have an important bearing on production and productivity. There is widespæead awareness of the need for increasing productivity and to arrest the present spiralling prices, but little has been done to translate this awareness into practice. Increase of productivity involves the solution of a number of problems like the security of employment and sharing the gains of productivity, etc., which have to be squarely faced.

The President's Conference on Industrial Safety held in December 1965, endorsed the proposal for the setting up of a National Safety Council and State Safety Councils for industries other than Mines. The Standing Labour Committee, at its 24th Session, held in February 1966, approved the proposal. Accordingly the National Safety Council was registered as a Society under the Societies Registration Act with its headquarters in Bombay.

The National Council for Safety in Mines which was set up in July 1963 held safety and accident prevention classes in different mines regularly to educate the supervisory staff including the Overmen and Sirdars employed in coal mines. Three fully-equipped publicity vans have been carrying out publicity and propaganda work in mines through audio-visual means. During the year under report the Council was actively engaged in the revival of Pit Safety Committees to create a conscriousness among the miners about the safe methods of working and safety measures to be adopted. The enthusiastic celebration of Safety Week in the various coalfields and mica mining areas were was of great assistance in generally arousing safety conciousness and improving the working conditions in mines.

The activities of the Welfare Funds created for coal and mica mines were expanded during the year. A number of large water supply schemes were in various stages of implementation in the coalfields. In addition, 10 deep wells were dug in-coal mining areas and in the mica mine areas 60 wells were constructed. Thetotal number of Cooperative Credit Societies. Primary Cooperative Stores and Wholesale or Central Cooperative Stores of colliery workers which were registered and functioning in different coalfields up to the end of the year under report increased to In the mica mining area in Bihar a Central Covernment Consumers Cooperative Stores with 8 branches and 6 primary units continued to supply consumers' goods to mica mining population and 4 primary stores catered to the needs of mica miners in Andhra Pradesh. During the year under report constructions 5,770 houses and 23 barracks was completed under various housing schemes and another 11,974 hourses houses and 100 barracks were in different stages of construction in the coal mining areas.

A Committee on Labour Welfare was set up under the Chairmanship of Shri R.K. Malviya. The Committee, among other things, is to review the functioning of various statutory and nonstatutory welfare schemes in industrial industrial establishments and suggest ways and means for improving the functioning of existing welfare measures. It is also expected to suggest measures for introducing welfare schemes for rural labour in general with particular reference to agricultural labour.

So far, 2,748 Consumers Cooperative Stores or Fair Price Shops have been set up under this Ministry's Scheme in about 3,954 imustrial establishments in the country employing 300 or work The total coverage in both the public and the private sectors thus works out to 70%. In the public sector undertakings under the Central Government, the coverage is nearly 90%. The Department of Labour and Employment continued its efforts to persuade the defaulting employers to fall in line with those who had already set up such stores or shops. Since a number of establishments have not yet implemented the Scheme, legislation to make it obligatory for the employers to set up these shops is under consideration. Eleven wholesale stores have been set up with financial and managerial assistance from the statutory Welfare Funds in the coal and mica mining areas and 7 more are being organised. These stores to which about 350 primary stores are affiliated serve a large percentage of coal and mica mine workers.

Training in Labour Policy and Programmes .-Training of officers administering labour policies and programmes continued to receive adequate attention. The Central Institute for Training in Industrial Relations conducted two courses of specialised in service training for the Central and State Government officers of the Industrial Relations Machinery. Training facilities were also availed of by the mominees of some foreign Governments, under the Colombo Plan, the I.L.O. Expanded Programme of Technical Assistance, Special Commonwealth African Assistance Plan and Commonwealth Education Cooperation Plan. The Industrial Safety, Health and Welfare Centres of the Central Labour Institute and the three Regional Labour Institutes conducted a large number of training programmes on industrial safety and hygiene and related subjects. Besides, training programmes for the benefit of various organisations weré also organised by the Regional Labour Institutes. Exchange of trainees and experts under the various Technical Assistance Programmes continued. Thus, while India received technical assistance from advanced countries and International Organisations, it has also been possible for her to spare experts needed by other countries either directly or through agencies in charge of international cooperation.

The Scheme of Workers' Education operated through the Central Board for Workers' Education continued to maintain steady progress. Over 128,300 additional workers attended worker education classes held at factories and establishments. The Board brought out a number of publications on matters of interest to workers. The Scheme of grants—in—aid was expanded to include short—term courses, like one—day school and three—day seminar, which unions and workers could conduct with greater facility than the normal three—month course.

Size and content of the Fourth Plan.—In last year's report, it was mentioned that the labour policy and programmes to be pursued in the Fourth Plan will be an extension of the principles accepted by the Third Plan. The Labour Panel constituted by the Planning Commission is currently engaged in giving a final shape to its recommendations. The Labour Panel has now made its recommendations in regard to the Labour Policy and Programmes.

A sum of 1,450 million rupees has been tentatively indicated for the programme of craftsmen training and labour welfare in the Draft Fourth Plan. The break up of the remaining 200 million rupees is as under:-

TABLE	ourth Paan Provision (in Million Rupees)
I. Labour Schemes - Centre.	120.0
 (a) Safety, working conditions, etc. (b) Industrial relations. (c) Labour welfare & social security. (d) Research surveys. II. Labour Schemes - States. 	3 5.2 17.4 55.0 12.4 38.0
III.State Governments' share towards Employees' State Insurance Scheme. TOTAL.	42.0 30 0.0

Under safety and working conditions, it is proposed to expand the activities of Central and Regional Labour Institutes and to have a comprehensive programme including the more effective enforcement of mining and industrial safety legislation. The new programmes in the field of Industrial Relations relate to increasing emphasis on the preventive aspects. Besides, the Industrial Relations Machinery would be suitably strengthened and trained for more intensive conciliation work to preserve industrial harmony and for effective implementation of labour legislation and awards.

Additional welfafe measures are also envisaged both at the Centre and the State levels. These measures include an integrated programme for agricultural labour which contemplates extension and better enforcement of the Minimum Wages Act, introduction of an advisory service in rural areas and other welfare measures including provision of mobile dispensaries, mobile shops and mobile audio-visual vans. As the over-all size of the Fourth Plan is not yet final the programme content and also the allotment of funds for the craftsmen training and labour welfare is liable to undergo change.

National Commission on Labour. A comprehensive review of labour laws, industrial relations and working and living conditions of labour has not been made since the Royal Commission on Labour reported as far back as 1931. Government, therefore, decided to undertake a fresh and comprehensive review of the labour policy—and its working and appointed on 24 December 1966, a National Commission on Labour. (For details please see pp. 1-2 of the Report of this Office for Nevember-December 1966).

Among other things, Volume II of the report deals with programmes of craftsmen training and manpower and employment with tentative allocation of 1,250 million rupees. The Directorate-General of Employment and Training is incharge of the development and administration of programmes, relating to Employment and Vocational Training on a national basis.

A copy each of Volume I and Volume II of the Report, 1966-67, of the Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment) was sent to Geneva on 23 August 1967 vide the Office minute D.2/3607/67 of the same date.

32. Public Finance and Fiscal Policy. India - July-August 1967.

Budget Demands of Labour Ministry Passed: Unemployment Insurance Scheme to be Introduced: Measures proposed to check recession and delay in Payment of Wages.

Replying to the debate on the budget demands of the Ministry of Labout, Employment and Rehabilitation, the Union Minister Shri Jai Sukh Lal Hathi told the Lok Sabha on 20 July 1967, that the Government proposed to bring forward an unemployment insurance scheme and certain measures to ensure job security for workers.

The scheme, which may be introduced before the end of the year, will cover initially only those who are members of the Employees' Provident Fund, the Coal Mines ProvidentFund, and exempted funds under the Employees Provident Fund Act 1952.

The rate of benefit will be 50 per cent. of average pay in the case of members of the Employees' Provident Fund and 50 per cent. of average total emoluments in the case of members of the Coal Mines Provident Fund. The average will be calculated on the basis of pay or total emoluments received by an employee 12 months before termination of employment. The rate of contribution to the Unemployment Insurance Fund, which will be administered by a separate board, will be 0.35 per cent. of pay or total emoluments to be paid by both the employer and employees. The employer will be made responsible for collection of contributions. The Centre will meet the cost of administration of the fund.

To eliminate delays in regard to payment of wages, Shri Hathi said, "I am thinking of giving executive power and authority" to recover wage dues in the same way as land revenue arrears. The present procedure of going to labour courts for non-payment of wages took a long time, he noted. Shri Hathi recognised that "many things" had to be done for labour so that it might be inspired by a spirit of partnership in the country's industrial progress.

"Some of the things" which were proposed to be done, he said, included an amendment of the Industrial Disputes Act to give the labour tribunals the power to go into the merits of the case when there were complaints of wrongful dismissals. At present the tribunals had only the power to inquire whether proper procedures had been followed. He also proposed to provide for a "subsistence allowance" to workers during the period of suspension.

Referring to the hardship caused to workers because of the present recession, Shri Hathi said the industries which had been most hit were textile andengineering. His Ministry had taken up the question with the Ministries concerned. A decision had been taken to set up a textile corporation to take care of "sick mills". As far as the engineering industry was concerned, the Railway Ministry had decided to place more orders for wagons and this should help the industry.

Referring to the demand for wage freeze, Shri Hathi said he might point out that the Government was considering increasing the wages of coal mine labour as recommended by the Wage Board. Shri Hathi emphasised that the exertions of labour alone would not bring about productivity. They had also to see that there was a "progressive management" and a carre of managers who would carry the workers with them, not merely "extract" work from them.

In this context, Shri Hathi spoke of the importance of quick redressal of workers' grievances. The implementation machinery both at the Centre and in the States had to be geared up. The State Governments had agreed to call meetings of the implementation committee as often as possible.

On the subject of automation, Shri Hathi said: "In a country where there is growing unemployment we should take care that this is a selective one." Workers should not be rendered surplus on account of introduction of automation."

Shri Hathi also condemned gheraos and railed out any wage greeze in isolation.

(The Hindustan Times, 21 July 1967; The Statesman, 29 July 1967).

Chapter 6. General Rights of Workers.

67. Conciliation and Arbitration. India - July-August 1967.

Industrial Disputes (West Bengal Amendment) Bill, 1967.

- The Government of West Bengal published on 6 July 1967 the text of the Industrial Disputes (West Bengal Amendment) Bill, 1967, proposed to be introduced in the Legislative Assembly of the State. The Statement and of Objects and Reasons of the Bill declares that in accordance with judicial pronouncements, universities and other educational institutions, solicitors' firms, research institutes, etc., are not "industries" under the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. These are, therefore, outside the purview of the said Act and there is thus no machinery for settling disputes arising therein. This is not a happystate of affairs. Disputes or differences between the employers and the persons employed in such institutions or establishments are not uncommon and, in the absence of any machinery for promoting a settlement, they often lead to considerable It is considered necessary, therefore, to amend the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, in its application to West Bengal, to bring the aforesaid institutions and establishments within the purview of the said Act. To guard against any other establishments remaining outside the purview of the Act, it is also necessary to give Government powers for bringing such establishments under the Act, when considered necessary, by a notification.

Difficulties are sometimes experienced in filling up the posts of Presiding Officers of the Labour Courts. Persons with requisite qualifications as laid down in the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, are not always easy to find. To remove this difficulty, it is considered necessary to provide for appointment of First Class Magistrates and persons employed in Higher Labour Service with five years' experience as Presiding Officers of the Labour Courts.

Theobject of this Bill is to amend section 2 and 7 of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, in its application to West Bengal, keeping the aforesaid purposes in view.

A proposed amendment to clause(j) and section 2 of the Act provides that after the word "workmen", the following words shall be added, namely:-

"and notwithstanding any decision of any Court to the contrary, shall also include any university, college, school and other educational institution, institute for carrying on research work, auditor's or solicitor's firm, and any other establishment as the State Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, declare as industry".

(The Calcutta Gazette, Extraordinary, 6 July 1967, pp. 2037-2038).

CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.

INDIA - JULY-AUGUST 1967.

71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workets.

Andhra Pradesh: Revised Pay Scales recommended by Andhra Pay Commission.

The Chief Minister of Andhra Pradesh, Shri K. Brahmananda Reddi placed before the State Assembly in Hyderabad on 24 June 1967 the report of the Andhra Pay Commission submitted by Shri N.D. Krishna Rao, former Chief Justice of Andhra who headed the Commission. As a result of the revised pay scales, the additional expenditure to be incurred would be 3.6 million rupees this year and 12.5 million rupees next year. The additional cost in future would be 22.1 million rupees. There are more than 0.23 million Government employees.

The Commission had reduced the existing 146 different pay scales, excluding I.A.S., I.P.S., and other special scales to 26.

(The Hindu, 26 July 1967).

Maharashtra: Revised Pay Scales recommended by Badkas Pay Commission.

The Finance Minister of Maharashtra, Shri S.K. Wankhede, placed on both the Houses of Maharashtra Legislature on 5 July 1967 the 815-page printed report of the Badkas Pay Commission. The report has recommended rationalised pay scales for the employees of Maharashtra Government, involving an additional expenditure of about 50 million rupees to the Government. The Commission has recommended that the minimum pay of Class IV employees should be Rs.70 per month against the present Rs.65. This is to rise to a maximum of Rs.90 per month. The pay-scales for the junior clerk, recommended by the Commission, is Rs.110 to Rs.200.

At present, there are three scales for junior clerks, the starting pay being Rs.100 in one and Rs.120 in two others.

The revised scale for the senior clerks is Rs.150 to Rs.270. The Commission has recommended this uniform scale for thes category, abolishing the existing multiplicity of scales. The starting pay in these existing scales varied between Rs.120 and Rs.200 per month.

In the base of Government employess getting mofussil scales of pay at present, there will be no immediate benefit to those getting a pay of over Rs.1,100. Those getting between Rs.500 and Rs.1,100 will get an increase between Rs.30 and Rs.10. The increase in the case of those drawing a salaries between Rs.100 and Rs.500 will vary between Rs.10 and Rs.20, while those getting below Rs.100 will get a rise between Rs.8 and Rs.20.

(The Times of India, 6 July 1967).

73. Officials and Public Employees of National, Regional and Local Administrations, of Nationalised Undertakings or Undertakings Managed with the Participation of the Public Authorities.

India - July-August 1967.

Agreement Reached on D.A. Issue between Central Government and its Employees:
Strike Withdrawn: Additional D.A. to be paid in Cash.

The Central Joint Council of Action of Central Government Employees served a notice for a nation-wide token strike on 11 September 1967 if the demands of the Central Government employees including the payment of dearness allowance dues in cash were not met by the Government. Consequent upon an agreement reached between the Government and the union leaders at a meeting held at New Delhi on 29 August 1967, the strike notice by the JCA was withdrawn. The Deputy Prime Minister, Shri Morarji Desai agreed to pay in cash the additional dearness allowance to employees in thepay-slab of Rs.70-449 from 1 September 1967.

About 2.7 million Central Government employees in the income slabs up to Rs.449 a month will receive additional dearness allowance in cash with their September pay due on 1 October 1967. The D.A. arrears for the period of February 1 to 31 August will remain deposited in the employees' provident fund accounts till 31 March 1968, and can be withdrawn by them at their option the following month.

According to the revised rates, employees in the lowest slab will get an additional D.A. of Rs.12 over the existing rates of Rs.47 a month, and Rs.20 in the highest slab ever the existing Rs. 120.

The increased rates seek to neutralize the rise in the cost of living up to 185 points(from 1 February) and 195 points (from 1 June).

On rough calculation, the revised D.A. rates would cost the exchequer an approximate amount of 290 million rupees during September to March 1968. The arrears for the period of February to August are estimated at 240 million rupees.

The Government will have to pay in cash another 72 million rupees during the rest of the current financial year if the cost ofliving index rises further by 10 points to 205, when employees in the income slab of Rs.450 to Rs.499 will also be entitled to revised D.A. rates.

The D.A. rates rise for every 10 points is Rs.6 for employees drawing less than Rs.110 a month; Rs.7 for the Rs.110-149 slab; Rs.8 for the the income slab of Rs.450 to Rs.499 will Rs. 150-209 slab; Rs.9 for the Rs.210-399 slab; and Rs.10 for the Rs.400-499 slab.

(The HindustanTimes, 30 August and 12 September, 1967).

Chapter 9. Social Seainty

92. Legislation. India - July-August 1967.

Working of the Maternity Benefit Acts during 1965*.

June issue of the <u>Indian Labour Journal</u> contains a review of the Working of the Maternity Benefit Acts during 1965.

During the year under report, the percentage of establishments submitting returns to the total number of establishments covered by the State Acts/Central Act varied from 11.8 in Madhya Pradesh to 100.0 in Bihar, Orissa and Uttar Pradesh in respect of factories and 49.0 in Tripura to 100.0 in Punjab and West Bengal in respect of plantations.

Among the various States, Kerala reported the largest number of cases in which maternity benefit was paid either fully or partially. Next in order came Mysore, Madras and Gujarat. In plantations, Assam reported the largest number of cases in which maternity benefit was paid during the year under review. The number of claims paid in factories as well as the amount of maternity benefit paid was the highest in Kerala. The proportion of women workers who were paid maternity benefits in full or part in factories and plantations, to the total number of women workers who claimed such benefits during the year under review was fairly high in all the States.

The percentage of claims to the total number of women employed in 'factories' and in 'plantations' was the highest in Kerala and West Bengal respectively. As compared to 1964, the overall percentage of claims to the total of women employed were lower in factories, plantations and mines during 1965.

^{*} The Indian-Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.6, June 1967, pp. 511-513.

The average amount of benefit paid per case in factories varied from State to State, the highest (Rs.251.00) being in 'Bihar' and the lowest (Rs.63.00) in Punjab. The average amoun t of maternity benefit paid per case during 1965 was Rs.117.00, Rs.120,00 and Rs.196.00 for factories, plantations and mines respectively.

The number of complaints received was the highest in Kerala in respect of factories and in Assam in respect of plantations. Prosecutions were launched only in a few cases, as generally the villation of the Acts or the Rules thereof, which led to complaints was reported to be of a minor nature.

BIBLIOGRAPHY.

INDIA - JULY-AUGUST 1967.

Chapter 3. Economic Questions.

*(a) "Industry Reports on Engineering Group of Industries": Occupational Wage Survey (1958-59)(Vol.V): Labour Bureau, Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment) Government of India: 1967: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press, Simla for the Manager of Publications, Civil Lines, Delhi: Price Rs. 13.00 or 30sh. 6d. or

4\$ 68 cents. pp. ii+248.

*(b) "Industry Reports (Vol.V) - Occupational Wage Survey (1958-59) on Sugar, Hydrogenated Oil, Cigarettes, Bidi, Tobacco Curing, Cashewnut": Labour Bureau: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment): Government of India: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Simla for the Manager of Publications, Civil Lines, Delhi: 1967: Price Rs.9.00 or 21sh. or 3\$24 cents. pp. 66i + 189.

*(c) "Report 1966-67": Government of India: Department of Communications, New Delhi: Printed by the General Manager Government of India

Press, Minto Road, New Delhi: pp.20.

*(d) "Fifth Annual Report 1965-66": Hindustan Teleprinters Limited, Madras:pp.30.

*(e) "16th Annual Report 1965-66": Indian Telephone

Industries Ltd., Bangalore: pp.52.

*(f) "Report 1966-67": Government of India: Ministry of Works, Housing and Supply, New Delhi: Printed by the General Manager, Government of India Press, Minto Road, New Delhi:pp.130.

*(g) "Report 1966-67": Government of India:Ministry of Steel, Mines and Metals (Department of Iron and Steel), New Delhi: Printed by the General Manager, Government of India Press, Minto Road,

New Delhi: pp.37.

*(h) "Minimum Wages 1963": Labour Bureau, Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment):Government of India: Published by the Manager of Publications and Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Simla:1967: Price Rs.8.00 or 18sh.8d. or 2\$88 cents. pp. iii+89.

^{*} Publications received in this Office.

Chapter 4. Problems Peculiar to Certain Branches of the National Economy.

*(a)"Implementation of Land Reforms - A Review by the Land Reforms Implementation Committee of the National Development Council": Planning Commission, New Delhi: August 1966: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Simla for the Manager of Publications, Civil Lines, Delhi:1967: Price Rs.5.25 or 12sh. 3d. or 1\$89 cents. pp.283.

*(b) "Report of the Experts' Conference on Cooperative Marketing 15-21 January 1967:" International Cooperative Alliance: Regional Officer and Education Centre for South East Asia:

Post Box 639, 18, Friends' Colony, New Delhi-4:

pp.47.

*(c) "Effects of Bhakra Dam Irrigation on the Economy of BaraniVillages in the Hissar District 1964-65": Publication No.1: Issued by Economic ans Statistical Organisation, Government of Enda Haryana: Price Rs.14.00: pp.vii+264.

*(d) "Report 1966-67": Ministry of Irrigation and Power, Government of India, New Delhi.

Chapter 5. Working Conditions and Living Standards.

*(a)"Report on Survey of Labour Conditions in Cotton Textile Factories in India": Labour Bureau:Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation(Department of Labour and Employment), Government of India: 1967: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Simla for the Manager of Publications Civil Lines Delhi: Price Rs.7.00 or 16sh.4d. or 2\$ 52 cents.pp.iv+121.

*(b) "Report on Family Living Survey Among
Industrial Workers 1958-59": Kolar Gold Field:
Labour Bureau: Ministry of Labour, Employment
and Rehabilitation(Department of Labour and
Employment), Government of India: Printed in
India by the Manager Government of India Press
Simla for the Manager of Publications, Civil
Lines, Delhi:1969: Price Rs.8.50 or 19sh.10d.

or 3\$ 6 cents. pp.iv+111.

*(c) "Report on Family Living Survey Amomg Industrial Workers 1958-59": Kanpur: Labour Bureau, Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment), Government of India: Printed in India by the Manager Ghvernment of India Press, Simla for the Manager of Publications, Civil Lines, Delhi: 1967: Price Rs.10.00 or 23sh.4d. or 3\$ 60cents. pp. iv+127.

*(d) "Report 1966-67": Vol.I: Government of India,
Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation(Department of Labour and Employment),
Government of India: Printed by the General
Manager, Government of India Press, New Delhi:

pp.102.

* Publications received in this Office.

Chapter 5. Working Conditions and Living Standards (Continued):-

*(e) "Report 1966-67": Vol.II: (Employment and Training): Government of India, Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation (Department of Labour and Employment), New Delhi: Printed by the General Manager, Government of India Press, New Delhi: pp.ii+48.

Chapter 8. Manpower Problems.

* "Census of Delhi Administration Employees
(As on 31st March 1966)": Directorate of
Employment and Training and Technical Education
(State Employeyment Market Information):
Delhi Administration, New Delhi-1: No.5 EMI-6/67:
May 1967: pp.ii+43.

Chapter 11. Occupational Safety and Health.

* "Report 1966-67": Ministry of Health and Family Planning, Government of India, New Delhi: pp.vi+243.

ιLt

^{*} Publications received in this Office.

LIST OF ARTICLES.

INDIA - JULY-AUGUST 1967.

Title

Name of Journal

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.

(a) The New Trade Unionist by C.M. George.

(b) Trade Union Finance - A Guide to Union Officials.

Indian Worker, 14 August, 1967, p. 23.

Oil & Chemical Worker, May 1967, p.22.

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS.

(a) Choice of Techniques in The Indian Worker, Undeveloped Countries, 17 July 1967, p.5. by M.L. Jhingan.

(b) Economic Development and Human Resources, by C.B. Mamoria.

The Indian Worker, 17 July 1967, p.6.

(c) The Role of Wages in Industrial Conflict by G.R. Reddy.

Labour Bulletin issued by Labour Department, Uttar Pradesh,p.1, No.12, December, 1966. India Quarterly, April-June 1967,

(d) Economic Progress in the Nehru Era: The Plan and the Standard of Living by S. Subramanian and S.B. Baurukar.

(e) Respective Roles of Public and Private Sectors in a Mixed Economy by C.N. Vakil.

Commerce, 12 August 1967, p.IV.

pp. 173-182.

(f) Private Sector in India and Abroad by

Commerce, 12 August 1967, p.VI.

(g) Manubhai Shah. (g) Administrative Aspects

of Private Sector in
Mixed Economy by
H.M. Patel.

Commerce, 12 August 1967, p.XI.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

(a) Cooperative Milk Unions in India.

Reserve Bank of India Bulletin, June, 1967,

(b) Marketing Cooperatives and Agricultural Development by Vidyapati Singh.

p.775% AICC Deconomic Review, 15 August 1967, p. 25.

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

Problems and Tasks of Trade Union Education in Asia by V.S. Mathur. Asian Labour, August, 1967, pp.4-6.

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.

(a) Human Relations in Industry by B.K. Tondon.

(b) Human Relations in Industry Series - Conventional Approach of Management by Dr. B.K. Tondon.

(c) New Techniques in Personnel Management by L.S. Kudchedkar.

(d) Jurisprudence behind the Disciplinary Jurisdiction of Management by T.K. Jagdesh.

(e) Changing Patterns of Managements and Our Economic Goals by Dr. Gyaneshwar Nigam.

(f) Labour Participation in Management by Dr. B.K. Tondon.

(g) Thoughts of Industrial Relations by Jaishukhlal Hathi.

(h) Geheraos: Their Implications by R.M. Goil.

The Indian Worker, 17 July, 1967, p.6. The Indian Worker, 10 July, 1967, p.5.

The Labour Gazette, Government of Maharashtra, Vol. XLVI, No.9, May 1967, p.1196. The Labour Gazette, Government of Maharashtra, Vol. XLVI, No.9, May 1967, p.1201.

The J.K. Review, No.1, June 1967, p.47.

The Indian Worker, 24 July 1967, p.5.

Tndian Worker, 14 August, 1967, p.9.

AICC Economic Review, 15 August, 1967, p. 25.

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

(a) Apprenticeship Training with Special Reference to Textile Industry.

(b) Child Labour in India I - by D.S.Mehra and
 N. Saksena.

(c) Child Labour in India -II - by D.S. Mehra and N. Saksens. Labour Bulletin - Issued
by Labour Department,
Government of Uttar
Pradesh,p.1,No.10,
October 1966.
AICC Economic Review,
Vol.19,No.1,July 15,
1967,p.13.
AICC Economic Review,
Vol.19,No.2, 1 August,
1967, p.29.

Title

Name of Journal

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS (CONTINUED).

(d) Training in Marketing and Export Management by T.AMA. Latiff. SIET Institute, Hyderabad.

The Journal of Industry and Trade, Vol. XVII, No.6, June, 1967, P.689.

CHAPTER 9. SOCIAL SECURITY.

Unemployment Insurance Scheme in India: A Sociological Perspective by G.C. Hallen. Indian Worker, 14 August, 1967, p.37.

13

COPY NO. 1



INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE BRANCH OFFICE, NEW DELHI

Industrial and Labour Developments in	
September-October 1967.	
N.BEach Section of this Report may be taken	
out Separately.	
Contents. C 33-2-305 (A)	Pages
OOT OO O	
C.	
CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION	•
ar political distriction and Administrative A	otion.
11. Political Situation and Administrative A	201011.
Twenty-Seventh Session of Standing	
Labour Committee, New Delhi,	
27 September, 1967.	1-4
10 Ashimitian of Entermal Countage	5
12. Activities of External Services:	ر د
13. Press and Opinion:	6
CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL	
ORGANISATIONS.	
25. Wage-Earners Organisations:	
TO HORSE CONTRACTOR OF THE PARTY OF THE PART	
(a) Maharashtra: Trade Unions Opposed	
to Automation: Convention held	
at Bombay, 22 October 1967. (b) Hotel Workers Convention held	7
at Bombay, 1 October 1967.	8
(c) 11th Annual Convention of the	
National Federation of Indian	
Railwaymen held at Gauhati,	0 77
20-23 October 1967.	9-11
CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS.	
32. Public Finance and Fiscal Policy:	
(a) Aggressive Export Drive Recommended	
by UN Expert Promotion Team.	12
(b) 11 Per Cent Fall in Exports	
Estimated after Devaluation.	13

		Contents.	Pages.
34。	Ecor	nomic Planning, Control and Development:	<u>.</u>
	(a)	Report of the Mudaliar Committee on Foreign Collaboration: Continuance of Import of Know-How and full utilisation of indigenous Technology Recommended.	14-15
	•	Hazari Report on Planning and Industrial Licencing submitted to Planning Commission.	16
		Report on Banking System Relations Released: Formation of Credit Council recommended: Nationalisation of Banks Disfavoured.	17
	(d)	Monopolistic and Restrictive Trade Practices Bill, 1967.	18-19
35•	•	luctivity:	
		How Far Size Affects Productivity of the Industrial Unit.	20
-	(0)	Productivity of Bhopal Electrical Workers on par with Britain.	21
36。	Hage	es:	
	(b)	Journalist Wage Board Report accepted by Government. Working of the Payment of Wages Act, 1936 on Railways during 1965. Madras: Minimum Wage Rates of Wages fixed for employment in Hosiery	22 23 25
	•	Industry.	26-27
CHA		4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN NCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.	
41.	-	iculture:	
	(a)	74th Annual Conference of the United Planters' Association of Southern India, held at Ootacamund, 2 Septembe 1967.	r, 28 - 29
	(b)	Fourteenth Annual Conference of the Association of Planters of Madras State held at Coonoor, 29 August, 1967.	30-31
	(c)	Central State Farms Project Started.	32 32

	·	. ,
	Contents.	Pages.
44.	Merchant Marine and Fisheries:	
	Commission to be set up for development of Ports.	33
CHA	PTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.	
50。	General:	
	 (a) Labour Events during 1967 Reviewed. (b) Working of the Employment of Children Act, 1938, in Respect of Railways and Major Ports during 1965. 	34 – 35 36
56 。	Labour Administration:	
5	Punjab: Annual Administration Report on the Working of the Labour Department in the State for of the year 1966.	37–3 9
CHAI	PTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.	
63.	Individual Contracts of Employment:	
	Punjab: Annual Report on the Working of the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act 1946 for the year 1966.	40
67。	Conciliation and Arbitration:	
	 (a) Agreement reached on Code of Discipline in Banking Industry. (b) Industrial Peace reported in Public Sector Undertakings: Findings of 	41
	Case Studies. (c) "GHERAO" Held Unlawful by High Court. (d) Punjab: Annual Report on the Working of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947,	42 43
	in the State for the Year 1966. (e) Industrial Disputes (Amendment) Bill, 1967.	44 - 46 47
68.	Labour Courts:	
	(a) "Inam" (Reward) paid to Workers is not Wages under ESI Act: Judgment of Supreme Court.	48
	(b) Club Not to be Treated as Industry: Supreme Court Ruling.	46 49 /

Contents.

Pages.

CHAI	TER	7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.	
71.	Emp.	loyees and Salaried Intellectual Workers:	•.
		Madras: State Government Staff to get Central D.A. and Allowances.	50
74.	Ind	igenous Labour:	
		Annual Convention of the All-India Backward Classes' Federation held at Hyderabad, 10 September 1967.	51
CHAI	TER	8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.	
81.	Emp.	løyment Situation:	
	(a)	Findings of a Study Team on Recruitment and Selection Set up by Administrative	ıt
. ('nl	Reforms Commission. West Bengal: Tenthousand Jute	52
,		Workers Retrenched.	53
	(0)	Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Bill, 1967.	54-58
83.	Voc	ational Training:	
		Seminar on Educational and Training Programmes for the Advancement of Women in Asia, Bombay 27 September, 1967.	5960
CHAI	TER	9. SOCIAL SECURITY.	
93.	App	lication:	
		Punjab: Annual Report on the Working of the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, in the State during the year 1966.	61–62
CHA	PTER	12. INDUSTRIAL COMMITTEES.	
121. Special Information:			
		Recommendations of Industrial Committee on Jute, held at New Delhi, 28 October 1967.	6 3– 64
August 1999		·大···································	

Contents.	Pages.
BIBLIOGRAPHY - INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTO HER,	65 – 68
LIST OF ARTICLES - INDIA - SEPTEMBER-	69 – 72

CHAPTER 1. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION.

INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTOBER 1967.

11. Political Situation and Administrative Action.

Twenty-Seventh Session of Standing Labour Committee, New Delhi, 27 September 1967.

The Twenty-Seventh Session of the Standing Labour Committee was held at New Delhi on 27 September 1967. The meeting, chaired by Shri J.L. Hathi, Union Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, was attended by representatives of State Governments and Employers' and Workers' Organisations. The Director of this Office attended the meeting by special invitation.

Agenda. The meeting had before it the following agenda:

- 1. Casual Labour (Regulation and Abolition)
 Bill, 1967, as proposed by the Government
 of West Bengal.
- 2. Amendments to Employees' Provident Fund Act, 1952.
- 3. Powers to be given to certain officers for enforcing payment of dues to workers under the Payment of Wages Act, Minimum Wages Act and Payment of Bonua Act.
- 4. Wage Boards Review of existing procedure for implementation of recommendations whether provision should be made for statutory enforcement.
- 5. Unemployment Insurance Scheme.
- 6. The Industrial Disputes (West Bengal Amendment) Bill, 1967.

Items 1 and 6 was later withdrawn from the agenda on the request of the Government of West Bengal as the State's Labour Minister could not attend the meeting due to illness.

Chairman's address. The Chairman in the course of his address said that important subject for consideration related to the implementation of Wage Board recommendations. There have been complaints that implementation has been far from complete and a suggestion has been made that the entire system of Wage Boards should be placed on a statutory basis. It was not by any means clear that this would be a complete remedy. The system of tripartite Wage Boards had been painstakingly built up over the years. In a sense, it was a system of assisted collective bargaining. on a legal basis, it would be robbed of its voluntary character and approximate towards the system of wage determination by tribunals, which already existed. Giving statutory backing to the recommendations of the Wage Boards might require consequential changes in the constitution and working of these bodies. Another alternative suggested was that employers' organisations should assume the responsibility to ensure that the recommendations of the Wage Boards were honoured by all their constituents. But, if in spite of their efforts, implementation through persuasion was not secured to the fullest extent, some effective method had to be found for bringing round the recalcitrants at the margin.

Much had been made of the principle of unanimity in Wage Board recommendations. Unanimity was certainly an eminematly desirable principle but to say that only unanimous recommendations of the Wage Boards were to be implemented, could be an indirect way of inviting dissent. It had again, been suggested that Government exould have no right to modify the recommendations of a Wage Board. He wondered whether such a provision was desirable. After all, a democratic Government should be in a position to take the total view of the economy and of the interstsof the different sections of the community. And it might not be in public interest to require that in dealing with the recommendations of a Wage Board, Government should keep its wider responsibilities responsibilities in abeyance. He would suggest an impartial consideration, on available evidence, whether there was anything to show that Government had ever exercised its discretion lightly.

Main Conclusions:

Abolition) Bill, 1967, as proposed by the Government of West Bengal.— This item was withdrawn from the Agenda at the request of the West Bengal G overnment.

- Item 2: Amendments to Employees' Provident

 Funds Act, 1952.- (i) There was general agreement
 that the present procedure for instituting
 prosecutions and recovery proceding proceedings
 involved delay. To reduce such delay, powers
 should be vested in the Provident Fund Commissioner
 to issue certificates for recovery of dues and
 to request Collectors direct to recover dues under
 the R.R. Act. A suggestion was made that in the
 matter of instituting prosecutions the Central
 Provident Fund Commissioner and the State
 Governments may have concurrent powers.
- (ii) As regards exemption, it was agreed that no further exemption should be granted unless.
 workers teh themselves want exemption. So far as the existing exemptions are concerned they should be withdrawn in case of default by the employers.
 - (iii) It was also felt that the penalty provision for failure to deposit Provident Fund collections should be made more stringent.
 - (iv) Workers' and employers' representatives were of the view that the Provident Fund money need not necessarily be invested in Government securities and that the investment policy and pattern should be revised with a view to ensuring higher returns without risk to the fund.
 - Item 3: Powers to begiven to certain officers for enforcing payment of dues to workers under the Payment of Wages Act, Minimum Wages Act and Payment of Bonus Act. (i) It was agreed that the present procedure for recovery of workers dues in the shape of wages and bonus should be revised.
 - (ii) The consensus of opinion was that designated officers should be vested with powers to issue certificates for the recovery of wages and the minimum bonus of 4 per cent., payable under the Payment of Wages Act, the Minimum Wages Act and the Payment of Bonua Act. Such Officers should, however, b e of sufficiently high status.

- Item 4: Wage Boards Review of existing procedure for implementation of recommendations whether provision should be made for statutory enforcement. (i) There was general agreement that the delay involved in the working of Wage Boards should be eliminated and a procedure should be evolved for securing fuller implementation of Wage Board recommendations.
- (ii) To work out concrete proposals to this end, a Sub-Committee was constituted, consisting of 4 employers' members and 4 workers' members with the Labour Minister of Assam as the chairman. The Sub-Committee would submit its report within a period of two months.
- Item 5: Unemployment Insurance Scheme. This subject was briefly discussed. It was decided that the views of the State Governments should first be ascertained on the general scheme of Unemployment Insurance as also on the pilot scheme.
- Item 6: The Industrial Disputes (West Bengal Amendment) Bill, 1967. This item was withdrawn from the Agenda at the request of the Government of West Bengal.

(Documents received from the Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, New Delhi).

12. Activities of External Services.

India - September-October 1967.

(a) Visitors:

On 22 September 1967, a three-man UNESCO Study Group of the Singapore Trade Union Congress visited this Office and called on the Director.

(b) Talks and Lectures:

On 19 September 1967, the Director addressed the Delhi Management Association. The subject of his talk was "The Influence of the ILO on Indian Labour Legislation".

On 18th September 1967, the Director gave the valedictory address to the 21st batch of Worker-Teacher Trainees of the Workers' Education Centre, Delhi.

13. Press and Opinion.

India - September-October 1967.

In addition to the attached clippings, the following references to the ILO appeared in Indian Journals received in this Office.

- 1. The Indian Worker, New Delhi, dated 21-8-67, publishes a news-item about the visit to India of Mr. Whitaker, the ILO's Asian Regional Adviser on Management Development and Small-Scale Industries.
- 2. The Indian Worker, New Delhi, dated 14-8-67, publishes -
- (a) An item about the ILO Governing Body's interim-report on complaints by ICFTU and others concerning violation of trade union rights in Liberia.
- (b) Am article entitled "Inaugust Ordeal Facing INTUC this August". The article makes an incidental reference to the ILO.
- (c) An article on the progress of workers' education in India. The article under sub-title 'ILO Experts' Views' makes a reference to Dr. Charles A Orr.
- (d) An article entitled "Unemployment Insurance Scheme in India: A Sociological Perspective". The article makes an incidental reference to the ILO.

Chapter 2. International and National Organisations

25. Wage-Earners' Organisations.

India - September-October 1967.

Maharashtra: Trade Unions Opposed to Automation: Convention held at Bombay, 22 October 1967.

Shri Saroj Chowdhary, Convener of the All-India Committee Against Automation, opened in Bombay on 22 October 1967, a Convention of trade union organisations. Shri D.P. Chadda, presided over the Convention. Those taking part in the Convention were the Communist controlled Trade Union Congress, the SSP controlled Hind Mazdoor Panchayat, the United Trades Union Congress, the PSP dominated Hind Mazdoor Sabha and the Jana Sangh sponsored Bharatiya Mazdoor Sangh.

In a resolution adopted by the Convention it called upon the Union Government to halt the process of automation and relieve the "resultant unemployment" reports. The Convention urged the State Government to intervene and "force" the Union Government to take action in this regard. The resolution, said that it was not opposed to technological progress or automation on principle, but it was opposed to automation as it was resulting in large-scale unemployment.

(The Statesman, 23 October, 1967).

Hotel Workers Convention held at Bombay, 1 October, 1967.

A Convention of hetel workers was held at Bombay on 1 October 1967. Among other matters the Convention urged the Government to review revise the minimum wage scale, reduce the working hours from nine to eight and improve the workers' service condition. A resolution adopted at the Convention demanded Rs.200, Rs.150 and Rs.125 for skilled, semiskilled and unskilled workers. The Convention demanded the application of the Shops and Establishments Act and the "full legal protection" of workers.

Another resolution wanted the gratuity scheme, the Bonusact and the provident fund benefits to be applied to the workers of all establishments, irrespective of the number of persons employed.

(The Times of India, 2 October, 1967).

Ilth Annual Convention of the National Federation of Indian Railwaymen held at Gauhati, 20-23 October 1967.

The eleventh Annual Convention of the National Federation of Indian Railwaymen was held at Gauhati from 20 to 23 October 1967. Shri S.R. Vasavada presided over the Shri A.P. Sharma, the General Secretary of the N.F.I.R. submitted his annual report. The Convention was addressed by the Railway Minister Shri C.M. Poonacha. Among others, the Convention adopted resolutions. on full neutralisation of the price-rise, steps to stabilise country's economy, wrongful equation of Railways with civil services, promotion-prospects and procedure, compulsory pre-mature retirement, prevention of accidents in railway workshops, economy measures, railway finances, casual labour, supply of foodgrains to railwaymen and housing accommodation for gangmen.

Presidential address. - Delivering his presidential address, Shri S.R. Vasavada said that the Gajendragadkar Commission's report was highly unsatisfactory in certain respects. Even the minimum paid worker was denied full neutralisation of the rise in the cost of living and that no improvement was suggested in the D.A. formula. He also asked the delegates to work for a new pay commission, as recommended by the Gajendragadkar Commission, if the Government failed to curb the rising prices. He disapproved of the Government's rejection of this recommendation of the commission. was the duty of the federation 'to secure justice for the employees', he affirmed. Shri Vasavada welcomed the joint consultative machinery as a step that conferred equal status to the employees in the industry, and asked the railwaymen to make the machinery effective and fruiful.

Rising Prices. He, however, cautioned them that arbitration would clase to be the mighty weapon it was unless the employees strengthened themselves and were ready to use the alternative weapon of strike either when arbitration was not available for when the employer failed to implement the award of the arbitrator.

Shri Vasavada condemned gherao as a trade union weapon. He waid 'once the working class movement gives up demorratic and peaceful methods, it will cease to be a constructive movement of masses and may well become a movement which will savour of gangsterism'.

Resolution .- Adopting the resolution on full neutralisation of the price rise the National Federation of Indian Railwaymen held the view that dearness allowance was a device to help employees maintain their standards of living in the face of rising prices when there was no automatic adjustment of wages with the in other words, it was simply price Index: the neutralisation of the effects so far as the wage rates were concerned, of changes in the price level of the commodities on which wage earners spent their incomes. Taking into view the conclusions of the Fair Wage Committee and the recommendations of the Second Pay Commission the Federation demanded that the lowest categories of employees namely all the class IV staff, should be allowed cent per cent neutralisation of the price-rise, with adequate neutralisation for other employees.

The resolution on steps to stabilise country's economy suggested the following measures for being taken by the Government: 1) Suppression of hoarding and profittering; 2) Effective distribution policy; 3) Removal of the restriction on movement of food-grains; 4) Ban on export of commodities of daily consumption like oil seeds, vegetable oils.etc.; 5) Curtailment of all credit facilities which would encourage hoarding and speculation; 6) Investment out of tangible resources only on those Projects which if discontinued might result in huge losses to the country; 7) Check over profits of corporate sector and income of proprietory firms through adequate-monetary measures; 8) Legy of agricultural income tax; 9) Tightening up of the machinery for the collection of Income-Tax; and 10) Avoidance of wasteful administrative expenditure.

The resolution on Promotion Prospects and Procedure put forth several demands which stated that: i) Direct recruitment in intermediate grades should be stopped; ii) Proposals for upgrading of posts and distribution of higher percentage posts in gigher grade, should be considered on their merit; iii) Seniority should be reintroduced as an important factor in the selection test for considering the fitness of a candidate for promotion; iv) Marks under various counts, should be re-arranged so as to leave less scope for individual discretion of officers; v) The Selection Tests should be prescribedonly when there is a distinct change in the responsibilities and the work on promotion is of a higher order; vi) The procedure laid down for non-selection tests also be suitably revised; and vii) The clause in the Confidential Report authorising an officer to give opinion on the suitability or otherwise of the concerned employee, for promotion should be dëleted.

The resolution on Prevention of Accidents in Railway Workshops urged upon the Railway Board to arrange to reconstitute Safety Committees in all Workshops with equal or more representation to brganised labour and provide for their periodical meetings. The main functions of these Committees should be (1) to review the accidents taking place in the Workshops and to evolve preventive measures; (2) to look for possible few causes of accidents and plan effective preventive measures.

Adopting the resolution on Casual Labour, the General Body of the National Federation of Indian Railwaymen expressed its satisfaction at the determined and successful efforts made by the Federation in securing for the casual labbourers labourers employed on the railways, various concessions like absorption in the regular cadre, leave, medical attendance, protection against artificial break in service etc. At the same time this General Body was aware that till and until the question of the daily rates of pay of these employees was satisfactorily settled, the main problem of the casual labour would have remained unsolved and the exploitation of this huge mass of labour would not have stopped. The daily rates allowed to these employees were appallingly low. Also, the rules laid down for fixing the daily rates of wages were confusing. unrealistic and difficult to implement. General Body strongly urged upon the Government to guarantee the casual labourers, the daily minimum rates of way at the rate of 1/26th of the minimum of the pay-scale together with the dearness allowance allowed to the employees in the permanent cadre doing same or similarwork.

(Documents received in this Office during November 1967).

Chapter 3. Economic Questions

32. Public Finance and Fiscal Policy.

India - September-October 1967.

Aggresative Export Drive Recommended by UN Export Promotion Team.

The UN Export Promotion Team which visited India early this year, has recommended in their report submitted to Government recently, that India should launch an aggressive and concerted drive to sell its products abroad. The report emphasises that if India is to make a dent in sophisticated foreign markets, a well-planned promotion and sales campaign should be formulated and executed jointly by the public and private sectors.

After a comprehensive study of the export potential of various products, the team has selected 19 engineering, chemical and other items with good chances of sales abroad, provided vigorous steps are taken immediately to encourage their export.

Other steps recommended to boost export of these products include quality control, reduction of production costs by adopting modern manufacturing techniques, attrative attractive packaging and launching marketing programmes on a scientific and sustained basis.

(The Hindustan Times, 6 September, 1967).

11 Per Cent Fall in Exports Estimated after Devaluation.

According to an official review prepared

for the Board of meeting held on 3 October 1967,

India's exports fell by 11 per cent. during
the 12 months after devaluation of the rupee.

The review estimates exports during the period
at \$ 1,520 million, \$ 189 million less than
exports during the previous 12 months.

In spite of the overall setback in exports after devaluation, gains in overseas sales have been reported in iron and steel, leather and leather manufactures, raw jute, iron and steel scrap, pulses and fruits and vegetables. These increases were not sufficient to offset the substantial decline in exports of many items including traditional items such as tea, jute goods and cotton piece goods.

According to the review, exports to the US recorded a drop of about 300 million rupees during June 1966-May 1967 against exports of the previous 12 months. Exports to Britain fell by 300 million rupees, to West Germany by 45 million rupees and to Russia by about 300 million rupees.

(The Hindustan Times, 30 September, 1967).

34. Economic Planning, Control and Development. India - September-October 1967.

Report of the Mudaliar Committee on Foreign Collaboration: Continuance of Import of Mnow-How and full utilisation of indigenous Technology Recommended.

A Committee on Foreign Collaboration headed by Dr. A.R. Mudaliar which was appointed in February 1966 submitted its report recently to the Government. The Committee was required to recommend to the Government general guidelines regarding the utilisation of indigenous know-how and the types of cases in which foreign collaboration might be allowed.

Regarding its first term of reference as to the extent to which import of technical know-how from abroad could be dispensed with at the present stage of economic development in India, the Committee has come to the conclusion that there is no ground at all for taking the "extremist view that import of foreign know-how should be dispensed with".

The Committee has at the same time stressed the need for full utilization of indigenous technology capable of commercial exploitation, and has recommended that both at the licensing stage and the foreign agreements approval stage, a scheme based on indigenous know-how should normally be given preference to one based on imported know-how.

In this connection it has emphasised the importance of an independent Corporation, like the National Research Development Corporation to ensure the availability of design and engineering services and provide the risk capital for the entrepreneurs taking up commercial development of indigenous know-how. It has also suggested that the Council of Scientific and Industrial Research should take action to generate confidence in industry regarding indigenous know-how.

The Committee in its report has pleaded for the continuance of the import of know-how to enable Indian industry to keep in touch with the world technological mainstream. The Committee feels that in industries where substantial import of capital goods is involved and where the Government's policy allows foreign capital participation joint ventures involving foreign equity participation are more beneficial, compared to other forms of collaboration.

Among other important recommendations is a suggestion that no rigid rule should be followed in the matter of the duration of technical collaboration agreements. Accepting the suggestion the Government considers that in the matter of extension of existing agreements, a stricter approach than has adepted hitherto been followed should be adopted.

(The Statesman, 19 September 1967).

Hazari Report on Planning and Industrial Licencing submitted to Planning Commission.

Dr. R.K. Hazari the Bombay Economist, submitted, recently his final report on planning and industrial licencing to the Planning Commission. The report is in two parts. In his final report Dr. Hazari calls for careful planning of credit to reinforce the priorities of set by national plans. He feels that it is necessary to get guidelines to make sure that bank credit is apportioned among various industrial sectors in the light of the country's overall needs and not merely on the basis of security borrowers offer.

(The Statesman, 16 September, 1967).

Report on Banking System Released:
Formation of Credit Council recommended:
Nationalisation of Banks Disfavoured.

In a report prepared by Shri V.A. Pai Panandikar of the Reserve Bank of India, commissioned by the Finance Minister apropos the AICC Resolution demanding social control over banks, Shri Pai has recommended that the primary emphasis of reform should be on change in the operating methods rather than a change of ownership. The report recommends the constitution of a National Credit on the French pattern to set guidelines for the operation of commercial banks to make their credit policies and practices conform to national priorities and social objectives. report argues that a nationalized banking system is incompatible with a mixed economy. Functioning under adequate and proper controls, private banking could subserve social objectives at the same time as it retains the flexibility and responsiveness necessary to meet the varying needs of private individuals and enterpreneurs.

The report takes into account arguments both for and against complete nationalisation of the banking system to come to the conclusion that nationalisation has "a series of adverse economic, administrative and financial implications".

(The Statesman, 6 October, 1967).

Monopolistic and Restrictive Trade Practices Bill, 1967.

Shri Fakhruddin Ali Ahmad, Minister of Industrial Development and Company Affairs, Government of India, introduced in the Rajya Sabha on 18 August 1967 a Bill to provide that the operation of the economic system does not result in the concentration of economic power to the common detriment, for the control of momopolies, for the prohibition of monopolistic and restrictive trade practices and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto.

According to the Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill, the Bill is designed to ensure that the operation of the economic system does not result in the concenteation of economic power to the common detriment and to prohibit such monopolistic and restrictive trade practices as are prejudicial to public interest.

It is in pursuance of the recommendationssmade made by the Monopolies Inquiry Commission in their report submitted to the Government on the 31st October 1965, and the resolution dated 5 September 1966, containing Government decisions thereon laid down before both Houses of Parliament on 6 September 1966. The structure of the Bill basically remains the same as recommended by the Monopolies Inquiry Commission. Certain modifications have been introduced in accordance with the terms of the Government Resolution dated 5 September 1966, in so far as the powers of the proposed Monopolies and Restrictive Trade Practices Commission are concerned. Certain other modifications introduced, include provisions for comprehensive control over undertakings which along with other inter-connected undertakings under the control of the same persons or groups command assets of 200 million rupees or more in order to more effectively control concentration of economic power.

The proposed Commission is sought to be vested with mandatory powers in regard to cases of restrictive trade practices and advisory powers in respect of cases concerning monopolistic practices and concentration of economic power. In respect of the latter category of cases, the final decision would lie with the Government.

The main provisions of the Bill fall under the following heads:-

- (i) Regulating expansions, mergers and amalgamations and appointment of directors in respect of "dominant undertakings" having assets of 10 million rupees and more and of undertakings which by themselves or with inter-connected undertakings have assets of not less than 200 million rupees in value.
- (ii) Regulating the starting of new undertakings which would become inter-connected undertakings of such existing undertakings the total assets of which exceed 200 million rupees.
- (iii) Control over and prohibition of monopolistic and restrictive trade practices as are found to be prejudicial to public interest.

(The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II, Sec. 2, 18 August 1967, pp. 943-990).

35. Productivity.

India - September-October 1967.

How Far Size Affects Productivity of the Industrial Unit*.

The object of this article which has appeared in September 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal is to test on the basis of the data collected, the correctness of the theoretical principle that the larger size industrial units are more efficient and economical in operation due to their high productivity. The author describes the criteria by which the size of an industrial unit is measured, and gives formulae for measurement of productivity and labour efficiency. illustrate his point of view the author has given a table of rank correlation coefficients between size and productivity in major industries of $I_n dia$. Also he has given figures measuring productivity (from 1953 to 1958) by size in Iron and Steel industry of India, in Cotton Textile industry, in Sugar industry and Jute industry.

ιLι

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No.9, September 1967, pp. 768-780.

Productivity of Bhopal Electrical Workers on Parwith Britain.

According to a press report which has appeared in the Statesman of 4 September 1967, workers of the 52 sections of the Bhopal Heavy Electricals plant have achieved a per capita labour productivity comparable to that obtaining in Britain. The plant's management is confident of achieving with 18,000 men a level of output by 1970 for which its British consultants thought it may need 28,000. In assessing the plant's longrange labour requirements, the consultants, Associated Electrical Industries proceeded on the assumtion that Bhopal would require half as many men again as a comparable British The sophisticated nature of the industry, phant. and the fact that Bhopal is the first plant of its kind, accounted for the difference felt by the consultants.

Their estimate of per capita productivity held good during the first four years of production at the plant (1960-64). But now - in the 52 sections of the plant where a production bonus incentive was introduced two years ago - performance has touched British levels.

As a result of this scheme, the output of 2,850 men now employed in these sections exceeds that of 3,400 men deployed before incentives were introduced. Bonus nets them an additional 20 per cent. to 25 per cent. take-home pay. The staff rendered surplus in these sections has been transferred to new production divisions. The scheme is proposed to be extended to the rest of the plant shortly.

(The Statesman, 4 September 1967).

36. Wages.

India - September-October 1967.

Journalist Wage Board Report accepted by Government.

A notification was issued on 27 October 1967 accepting all the recommendations by the Government of the wage board for working journalists, except those relating to the age of retirement and re-employment. The wage board had recommended that the retirement age of a working journalist should be 58 years, but he should be continued in service up to the age of 60 years on production of a fitness certificate. The Law Ministry is understood to have turned down this particular recommendation on the ground that it was untenable with the terms of reference laid down for the board.

The board considered the paying capacity of the industry and the financial burden likely to fall upon the industry as a result of the new scales recommended. It was held that some newspaper establishments were already in a position to bear the financial burden arising out of its recommendations while some others were not at present able to do so.

It had, however, observed that management of papers which did not appear now to be in a position to bear the additional burden imposed by the new wage scales, could improve their capacity by tightening up their organisation.

The date of operation of the recommendation of the wage board would be 1 January 1967, in the case of class I, II, and III of newspaper and news agencies and class I periodicals. In the case of all others, the date would be 1 July, 1967.

Working of the Payment of Wages Act, 1936 on Hailways during 1965.

A summary of the annual report on the Working of the Payment of Wages Act, 1936 on Railways for the year ending 31 December 1965* has been published in October 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal.

The Payment of Wages Act seeks to ensure regular and prompt payment of wages to the workers and to protect them against unauthorised deductions and fines. The review describes the various amendments made to main Act during the year.

Employment and Wages.— The total average daily number of persons employed on Railways (excluding Railway Factories) covered by the Act was approximately 1,105,540 and the gross amount paid as wages to such persons was Rs.1,727,752,764.11 during the year under report. As regards Contractors' Establishments, annual returns were received only from 220 out of 899 establishments. The figures of average daily employment and total amount paid as wages in these 220 Contractors' Establishments were 22,783 (including 5 children) and Rs.12,250,441.89 respectively.

Inspections and Irregularities .- During the year under report 9,809 establishments (8,850 Railways establishments and 959 Railway Contractors' Establishments) were inspected and 18,274 irregularities (14,635 relating to Railway establishments and 3,639 relating to Railway Contractors' establishments) were detected. Out of 14,635 irregularities detected in respect of Railway establishments, 7,800 (53.3 per cent.) related to non-payment of wages; 3,708 (25.3 per cent.) to non-display of notices etc.; 1,014 (6.9 per cent.) to delayed payment of wages; 554 (3.8 per cent.) to non-maintenance of registers; 202 (1.4 per cent.) to improper maintenance of registers; 423 (2.9 per cent.) to unathorised deductions; 53 (0.4 per cent) to fines; 9 (0.1 per cent.) related to deductions for damage or loss; and 871 (5.9 per cent.) miscellaneous irregularities. The percentage of irregularities relating to the recovery of advance was negligible being only one case.

Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.10, October 1967, pp.867-872.

Out of 3,639 irregularities detected in Railway Contractors' establishments during the year under report, 1,342 (36.9 per cent.) related to non-maintenance of registers; 1,173(32.2 per cent.) to non-display of notices etc.; 108 (3.0 per cent.) to non-payment of wages; 587 (16.1 per cent.) to improper maintenance of registers; 30 (0.8 per cent.) to delayed payment of wages; 6 (0.2 per cent.) to recovery of advances; 28 (0.8 per cent.) related to unauthorised deductions; and 365 (10.0 per cent.) to miscellaneous irregularities.

Rectification of Irregularities.— Out of a total of 21,441 irregularities, 15,132 irregularities (70.6 per cent.) were rectified during the year, leaving a balance of 6,309 (29.4 per cent.) irregularities for rectification at the end of the year.

As megards rectification of irregularities noticed in respect of Railway Contractors' establishments out of a total of 1,177 irregularities were pending rectification at the end of the calendar year 1964 and 3,639 irregularities were detected during the year under report, making a total of 4,816 irregularities for rectification. Of these 4,816 irregularities, 3,619 (75.2 per cent.) were rectified during the year, leaving a balance of 1,197 (24.8 per cent.) for rectification at the end of the year.

Fines and Deductions.— As authorised under Section 8 of the Act, fines were imposed in 10,249 cases in respect of Railway Establishments (other than Railway Factories) involving an amount of Rs.171,292.94 during the year under report. The amount of fines realised is credited to the Staff Benefit Fund and the disbursements from the Fund during this year amounted to Rs.2,235,097.74 in respect of persons employed in Railway Establishments (other than Railway Factories).

In respect of Railway Establishments (excluding Railway Factories) deductions amounting to Rs.4,241.48 and Rs.171,042.16 weremade from wages on account of breach of contract(absence) and damage to or loss of goods in 348 and 14,558 cases respectively during the year under report.

Claims. - Out of the total amount of Rs.4,347,753.45 claimed as wages in 2,492 applications, only a sum of Rs.36,371.21 was awarded. Of the total amount of Rs.1,079,354.30, claimed at compensation in 2,492 applications, only a sum of Rs.4,594.00 was awarded as compensation.

Madras: Minimum Rates of Wages fixed for employment in Hosiery Industry.

In exercise of the powers conferred under the Minimum Wages Act, 1948, the Government of Madras has with effect from 30 August 1967 fixed the following minimum rates of wages for the different classes of employees employed in hosiery industry in the State.

Class of Employees.	Minimum Rates of Wages.
(1)	(2)
Class II Class III Class IV Warping(Piece Rate) Superviser/Foreman/	Rs. 1.55 per day. Rs. 2.35 per day. Rs. 3.10 per day. Rs. 3.90 per day. Rs. 2.35 per roll.
Mechanic Clerks Watchmen/Peons	Rs.155.00 per mensem. Rs.115.00 per mensem. Rs. 62.00 per mensem.

Categorkes of employees under the classes mentioned above and employed in any hosiery manufactory.

Class I.

Labelling boys.
Cutting Department helpers.
Demage and pruning.
Tailoring Department helpers.
Finishing Department helpers.
Mending.

Class II.

Machineman or machine attendant, Grade II. Finishing.
Pressing.
Ironing.
Packing.
Warping (piece rate).

Class III.

Machineman or machine attendant, Grade I (after one year of service).

Khalasis.
Boilerman.
Chair and Ch

Chain and Chainlock tailors.

Class IV.

Overlock tailors. Flatlock tailors. Cutting.

- 1. Adolescents and women employees wherever employed shall be paid the same rates of wages fixed above.
- 2. Where any category of employees are actually in receipt of higher rates of wages than the statutory minimum rates of wages fixed, they shall continue to get the benefit of the higher reates of wages.
- 3. Weekly holiday wages have to be necessarily paid.

(GO.Ms.No. 2742, Industries, Labour and Housing (Labour) dated 29 August, 1967, Fort St. George Gazette, Part II, Sec.1, 30 August 1967, page 1513).

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTOBER 1967.

41. Agriculture.

74th Annual Conference of the United Planters Association of Southern India, held at Ootacamund, 2 September 1967.

The 74th annual Conference of the United Planters' Association of Southern India was held at Ootacamund on 2 September 1967. The Conference was inaugurated by Shri V.V. Giri, the Vice-President of India. The Conference was addressed, among others, by Shri M.R.M. Punja, Chairman of the United Planters' Associatiom of Southern India, Shri Bhagwan Singh, Chairman of Tea Board and Shri Babeeb Mohamed, Chairman of Rubber Board.

Inaugurating the Conference Shri V.V. Giri, the Vice-President of India, stressed the importance of scientific plantation development for increasing productivity quantitatively and qualitatively so that both the Industry and the country could get the much needed foreign exchange in an abundant measure. In the matter of exports, he advised the planters to be honest and to have a 'special eye' on quality.

Speaking on the importance of maintenance of good industrial relations and the rights and responsibilities of the industrial partners, viz., the managements and workers, Shri Giri satt that the employers should realise that in a changing social and economic order which had the ultimate object of achieving a socialistic pattern of society, they should concede to the workers a greater measure of participation in the management of industries. It should be clearly understood, he said, however, much the employers might invest, the industry would be paralysed if the workers refused to work. The basic criterion for determining the line of advance should not be mainly private profit, but social gains.

Chairman's Address. - Addressing the Conference, Shri M.R.M. Punja, Chairman of the United Planters' Association of Southern India, said that in all the three major plantation crops, tea, coffee and rubber they had achieved new records in the levels of production and yields during last year. The coffee crop had made a significant rise from a bare 16,054 tonnes in 1947-48 to over 76,000 tonnes during 1966-67. South India produced 95.4 marlion kilogrammes of tea last year compared to 43.6 million kgs. produced two decades ago. The rubber crop which stood at 16,712 tonnes in 1947 had risen to 53,196 tonnes last year, inspite of the "longest strike" the industry had ever suffered.

Shri Punja said Government policies and executive actions were unrelated to facts prevailing in the industry and this caused them grave concern. He said that there should be a direct link between the Government and the industry, without making the necessity to go through statutory bodies like the Tea Board.

(The Hindu, 3 September, 1967).

Fourteenth Annual Conference of the Association of Planters of Madras State held at Coonoor, 29 August 1967.

The 14th annual Conference of the Association of Planters of Madras State was held at Coonoor on 29 August 1967. The session was inaugurated by Shri C.N. Annadurai, Chief Minister of Madras. Among others, the session was addressed by Shri N.H. Sethna, Chairman of the Association of Planters of Madras State.

Chief Minister's speech.— Addressing the Conference, Shri C.N. Annadurai said thathe would advocate the cause of plantation industries with the Union Government for better amenities and tax relief. He agreed to look into forest legislation which hindered plantation practices.

The Chief Minister agreed with the planters that the internal market for tea should not be neglected in favour of exports. He complimented the planters on improving the living conditions of the workers. The Chief Minister asked planters to absorb 10,000 repatriates from Ceylon and said that he was requesting the Union Government to declare a tax holiday for three years for those plantations which absorbed the Ceylon repatriates.

Chairman's Address. Shri N.H. Sethna, Chairman of the Association of Planters of Madras State, urged the State Government to give concessions under the Agricultural Income—Tax, and also provide other incentives, in additions to those offered by the Union Government. Expressing concern at the fall in tea exports — exports from South India were 45 million million kgs. in 1966 — Shri Se as as against 48 million kg. in 1965 — Shri Sethna urged Government to reduce the tax burden on the industry. Other countries had been able to sell their produce at prices lower than our cost of production and show profits, he said.

Shri Sethna said: Production of tea in Madras had gone up by 46 per cent. in the last ten years, as against an increase of 9.3 per cent. in area. The yield was 1,452 kg. per hectare, as against 1,082 kg. in 1957. Production of tea in the State was 48.68 million kg. in 1966, a rise of 0.91 per million kg. over 1965.

Referring to coffee, Shri Sethna said that with a total area of 25,849 hectares, Madras produced only 8,555 tonnes in 1966-67, a yield of 331 kg. per hectare in Mysore.

Company & 671 kg. per because in Papare.

(The Hindu, 30 August, 1967).

Central State Farms Project Started.

According to a news item appearing in the <u>Hindustan Times</u>, 5 October 1967 spade work has just begun on 2,000 acres on the periphery of Hirakud lake for the rabi crop to initiate the first of the 15 Central State farms to be started all over the country during the n ext six years. There will be two Central State Farms laid out along the edge of Hirakud. Each of the mechanised farms envisaged will have a minimum of 10,000 acres.

Under the new project agreement with the Soviet Government machinery for the first five farms will be received as a gift and the rest bought from Soviet manufacturers.

With the diversion of water to the Bhakra-Nangal canal system, much of the alluvial Sutlej bed is available for cultivation. The third farm project will be located here and staff appointments are now being made to get it under way.

Negotiations with the Haryana Government for siting the fourth Central State farm at Hissar are now in the final stages.

Land is being acquired in the Tungabhadra area to obtain a contiguous stretch of 10,000 acres for the fifth farm.

Kerala and Maharachtra have shown interest in location of one farm project in their States. The technical and economic feasibility of their bids are being examined.

The first five farms will be in operation by the end of the next year. The others will come into being during the next five years two each year.

(The Hindustan Times, 5 October, 1967).

44. Merchant Marine and Fisheries.

India - September-October 1967.

Commission to be set up for development of Ports.

Addressing a meeting of the National Shipping Board held at Bombay on 8 September 1967, the Union Minister Transport Minister announced, that the Government proposed to appoint a high-power commission of enquiry to go into the entire subject of the development of major pre ports, in the country particularly with a view to meeting the changing requirements of foreign trade.

The proposed enquiry would help in achieving the twin objectives of the well-being of port personnel and the economic and efficient working of the major ports.

Dr. Rao said that the Indian shipping industry should go in for large bulk carriers and tankers to meet the requirements of iron-ore and oil trades and to keep pace with the technological revolution.

In the liner trade, the future of shipping industry in the world seemed to belong to container ships he added.

The change-over from the conventional liner vessel to the container ship would require sweeping changes in other sectors also. The ports would have to wear a new look. The road and rail systems would also have to be geared up to meet the requirements of the container age. Customs procedures would have to be modified. All these matters required urgent and detailed consideration he added.

(The Hindu, 9 September, 1967).

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTOBER 1967.

50. General.

Labour Events during 1967 Reviewed.

An article entitled "Twentyieth Year of Independence - Work in the Field of Labour", published in September 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal reviews, after a brief introduction of the economic progress made by India, some of the important events and developments in the field of labour during 1967. These are broadly in respect of appointment of Wage Boards in additional industries, extension of Social Security benefits under the Employees State Insurance and Provident Fund Schemes, progress made under the Workers' Education Scheme, constitution of Commission on Dearness Allowance and the National Commission on Labour, etc.

In the field of industrial relations, the Governments' policy of voluntary settlement of disputes through the Code of Discipline in Industry and the Industrial Truce Resolution continued to exercise its restraining influence. Figures of man-days lost owing to industrial disputes are an index of the climate of industrial relations. The country lost 10.5 million man-days (Provisional) in 1966 on account of strikes and lock-outs in industry as compared to 6.9 million man-days in 1965. The deterioration in the industrial atmosphere could be attributed partly to economic reasons, namely, continued rise in prices and consequent stresses and strains felt in the economy. the Central Sphere, while the labour situation was by and large peaceful in Railways, Defence establishments and Oil-fields, the atmosphere was somewhat disturbed in the ports and docks and insurance establishments. The Code of Discipline reinforced by the 1962 Industrial Truce Resolution, continued to guide industrial relations in the country during the year 1966-67.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.9, September, 1967, pp. 747-768.

The conciliation machinery set up under the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, continued to play a very useful role in bringing together the parties to the dispute and exploring ways of amicable settlement. The following table shows the functioning of the Central Industrial— Relations Machinery during the year 1965 and 1966:

	1965	1966
l. No. of disputes referred to Industrial Relations Machinery.	5 , 705	5 , 695
2. No.or failure reports received.	625	737
(i) Of (2) above, No.of disputes referred to adjudication.	291 (47%)	255 (35%)
(ii) Of (2) above, No.cf disputes referred to arbitration.	169 (27%)	10 (15%)

It will, thus, be observed from the above Table that there was a marked decline in the cases referred to arbitration and adjudication in 1966 as compared to 1965. In order to promote greater recourse to voluntary arbitration, for resolving disputes, the Government have decided to set up a tripartite National Arbitration Promotion Board.

The article also describes the functioning of the various labour welfare schemes, commer cooperatives and fair price shops, health and safety of workers, etc.

Working of the Employment of Children Act, 1938, in Respect of Railways and Major Ports during 1965.

The Employment of Children Act,1938 prohibits the employment of children under 15 years of age to work in any occupation connected with the transport of passengers, goods or mails by Kailways and in the handling of goods within the limits of a port. The Act also lays down that children between 15 and 17 years of age, employed in these occupations, must be allowed an interval of rest of not less than 12 consecutive hours in a day (including 7 consecutive hours between 10 P.M. and 7 A.M.).

Inspections and Irregularities.-During
1965, in all 3,850 establishments (3,788 Departmental and 62 Contractors() were inspected and 392
irregularities (380 in Departmental Establishments
and 12 in Contractors(Establishments) were
detected.

Of the 392 irregularities detected, 390 (99.5 per cent.) related to non-display of abstracts and one each related to employment of under-aged children and other irregularities (0.5 per cent.).

Rectification of Irregularities.— One hundred and fifty six irregularities were pending rectification at the end of the pregious year and 392 irregularities were detected during the year, making a total of 548 irregularities for rectification. Of these, 442(80.7 per cent.) were rectified during the year under report and 106 (19.3 per cent.) irregularities remained pending at the end of the year.

(Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.10, October 1967, pp. 873-874).

56. Labour Administration.

India - September-October 1967.

Punjab: Annual Administration Report on the Working of the Labour Department in the State for the year 1966.

TheGovernment of Punjab publighed on 15 September 1967 its review on the annual administration report on the working of the Labour Department in the State for the year 1966. According to the review the Labour Commissioner, Punjab, is assisted by the Joint Labour Commissioner-cum-Chief Conciliation Officer, Deputy Labour Commissioner, Assistant Labour Commissioners, Chief Inspector of Shops, Statistical Officer and Wage Inspector, 2 Labour Officers, 4 Conciliation Officers, 1 Medical Inspector of Factories, 5 Inspectors of Factories, 9 Labour Inspectors, 5 Wage Inspectors and 20 Shop Inspectors helped the Labour Commissioner in the administration of labour laws in the field.

new

Two hundred two/factories were registered as against 94 factories deregistered. The total number of registered factories at the end of the year 1966 was 4,069. The Shops and Commercial Establishments Act continued to be enforced in 92 towns, covering 133,224 shops/establishments which employed 86,162 persons. Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961, was enforced with respect of 91 undertakings during the year under report.

In addition to the Labour Welfare Scheme, the following Centres/States Labour enactments were administered by the Labour Department:-

(a) Central Legislation - (i) The Factories Act, 1948. (ii) The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. (iii) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936. (iv) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948. (v) The Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923. (vi) The Trade Unions Act, 1926. (vii) The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act. (viii) The Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961. (ix) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. (x) The Working Journalists (Conditions of Service and Miscellaneous provisions) Act, 1955. (xi) The Working Journalists (Fixation of Rates of Wages) Act, 1956. (xii) Employment of Childrens Act, 1938.

(xiii) The Plantations Labour Act, 1951.

- (b) State Legislation- (i) The Punjab Shops and Commercial Establishments Act,1958. (ii) The Fair Wage Clause and East Punjab Public Works Department Contractors Labour Regulations. (iii) Punjab Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1965. (iv) Punjab Industrial Establishments (National and Festival Holidays and Casual and Sick Leave) Act, 1965.
- (c) Labour Welfare Schemes- (i) Workers Holiday
 Home. (ii) Labour Welfare Centres. (iii) Subsidised
 Industrial Housing Scheme of Government of India.

During the year under report 5,118 complaints were received by the field staff from workers/unions. One hundred sixty-five compalints were pending at the beginning of the year. Out of these 5,383 complaints, 5,089 complaints were settled/disposed of, leaving a balance of 194 complaints. This shows that the staff of the Labour Department had been doing good work during the year, 1966.

The Labour situation in the State remained somewhat disturbed. The main factor contributing to the same was the closure of industrial establishments, particularly in the border districts in consequence of Indo-Pakistan conflict as well as the spiralling prices of essential commodities. Four hundred fifty-four disputes were pending in the beginning of the year and 1,510 were received during the year 1966, making a total of 1,964. Out of these, 522 were successfully settled in conciliation, 16 cases were referred for arbitration by the parties, 402 disputes were withdrawn by the workmen/unions, 172 disputes were referred for adjudication and 232 were rejected or filed, leaving a balance of 620 disputes. Twentyone work-stoppages (20 strikes and one lock-out) with a loss of 170,642 mandays took place during the year under report. Ninetyeight out of 204 establishments, required to constitute works committees had constituted such committees by the beginning of the year under report, 9 new such committees were constituted and 10 works committees ceased to function during the year leaving the total number of works committees at 97. Out of these, 76 counts The Industrial Tribunal Labour Court gave 192 awards during the year out of which 105 required implementation. Out of these, 76 awards were implemented leaving 29 unimplemented. Onehundred thirtyseven Industrial and Newspapers Establishments had their standing orders certified by the beginning of the year and 31 more establishments got the same certified raising the total to 169 during the year under report. Four hundred fortythree trade unions were functioning at the

beginning of the year. Thirty were registered during the course of the year, raising the total to 473 at the end of the year under report.

The Industrial Establishments in the State satisfactorily complied with provisions of the Payment of Wages Act, 1936. For fixing of minimum rates of wages 22 Scheduled Employments were covered under the Minimum Wages Act at the beginning of the year. As a result of the re-organisation of the State, Tea Plantation Industry in Kangra District has gone to Himachal Pradesh, but at the same time minimum rates of wages were fixed in respect of one more scheduled employment namely Ferrous Metal Rolling and Re-Rolling Industry during the year, thus maintaining the number of Scheduled Employments at 22 at the end of the year. Out of 31 claims regarding less/non-payment of wages, 16 were decided by the authority under section 20 of the Minimum Wages Act directing payment of Rs. 45,970.

A sum of Rs.64,501.68 Paise was paid as compensation under the Workman's Compensation Act in the 208 accidents cases. Out of 208 accidents in various establishments, 12 were fatal. A sum of Rs.309.50 was paid to as maternity benefit on only one claim.

In the Industrial towns in the State, 13
Labour Welfare Centres continued to function
satisfactorily. Workers and members of the
families numbering 192 availed themselves of the
facilities of the Holiday Home for industrial
workers at Dalhousie. During the year under
report, 7Advisory Committees under the Minimum
Wages Act continued to function for fixation/
revision of minimum rates of wages. The Implementation and Evaluation Committee held its
34th Meeting on 25 August 1966.

The following industries were declared as public Unitility Service: (1) Motor Transport Services. (2) Cement Industry. (3) Cotton Industry. (4) Service in Hospitals and Dispensaries. (5) Fire Brigade Service.

(Supplement II to Punjab Government Gazette, 15 September 1967, pp.143-146).

Chapter 6. General Rights of Workers.

. 63. Individual Contracts of Employment.

India - September-October 1967.

Punjab: Annual Report on the Working of the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act for 1946 for the year 1966.

The Government of Punjab published on 4 August 1967 its review on the working of the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946, in the State for the year 1966. According to the review, 222 establishments employing 52,084 workmen were covered under the Act at the end of the year under report as compared to 183 employing 41,824 workers in the beginning of the year 1966. During this year 39 establishments employing 10,260 workmen were covered under the Act.

Twenty-five applications for certification of the standing orders were pending at the beginning of the year and 29 more were received during the year. Thirty-one applications were disposed of leaving a balance of 23 applications.

At the beginning of the year under report 137 establishments employing 32,495 workers had their standing orders. Standing orders of 31 establishments were approved during the year. Thus there were 168 establishments employing 44,500 workers which had their standing orders at the end enf of the year under report.

Neither any establishment was prosecuted nor any exemption was granted to any establishment from the Provisions of this Act during the year under review.

(Supplement II to Punjab Government Gazette, 4 August 1967, pp. 65-66).

67. Conciliation and Arbitration. India - September-October 1967.

Agreement reached on Code of Discipline in Banking Industry.

Some important decisions pertaining to management-employees relations in the banking industry were taken at New Delhi on 6 October 1967, at the behest of the Union Labour and Employment Minister, Shri Jaisukhlal Hathi. Two representatives of the Indian Banks Association and four each from the All-India Bank Employees' Association and the All-India Bank Employees' Federation were present at the meeting.

Both employers' and employees' representatives agreed to accept a common code of discipline and it was decided that all the unions claiming the support of a majority of workers would be recognised. The majority union would have the right of collective bargaining. The minority union would not disturb the agreements reached by the banks with the majority union.

It was decided that the Indian Banks' Association would similarly see that its members do not disturb the uniformity that had been brought about as a result of a bipartite agreement.

It was also agreed that a grievance procedure should be established at the local, State and national levels. The employers' representatives agreed to pay a subsistence allowance on a part par with the provisions contained in the Central model standing orders.

Regarding the adoption of the code of discipline and recognition of the majority union, the committee which www constituted in 1965 would be revived. The Indian Banks' Association would nominate a new representatives.

Industrial Peace reported in Public Sector Undertakings: Findings of Case Studies.

According to case studies of labour conditions and industrial relations in five Public Sector Undertakings conducted in 1966-67 by the Union Ministry of Labour and Employment, industrial peace reigns in all excepting one. The exception is Fertilizers and Chemicals, Travancore Ltd., of Alwaye, Kerala. Here, while the management has provided excellent service conditions and have a record of fair implementation of most labour laws, inter-union and intra-union rivalry have been blamed for much labour unrest.

Indian Telephone Industries, Bangalore, has on the other hand, been held up as a plant where cordial relations between labour and management have brought it several coveted honours among public sector undertakings. This happy state of affairs as attributed to the "enlightened personnel and labour policies consistently followed by the management".

(The Hindu, 30 August, 1967).

"GHERAO" Held Unlawful by High Court.

In a judgement in the Jay Engineering Gherao case, delivered in Calcutta by Shri Dan. Sinha, Chief Justice of the Calcutta High Court, the Gherao at the company's affair office was held unlawful and the Chief Justice said that the Labour Minister of West Bengal, had acted without jurisdiction in giving directions to the police in the connection. The police, the Chief Justice held, should act according to law, Inaction by the police was reprehensible, he observed. He quashed the circulars of March 27 and 12 June relating to industrial disputes, especially gheraos, and directed the executive authorities not to give effect to them.

The case arose out of an application made by Jay Engineering Works Ltd., under Article 226 of the Constitution complaining of unlawful acts, wrongful confinement, restraint and trespass by its workers.

In his judgment, the Chief J stice said:
"All workmen guilty of wrongfully" restraining
any person belonging to the management, or
wrongfully confining him during a gherao, are
guilty under Section 339 or 340 IPC, and have
committed cognizable offences for which they are
liable to be arrested without warrant and
punishable with imprisonment and fine".

(The Statesman, 30 September, 1967).

not to intermely

Punjab: Annual Report on the Working of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, in the State for the Year 1966.

The Government of Punjab published on 15 September 1967 its review on the annual report on the working of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, in the State for the year 1966. According to the review, the Labour Department had been directing its full energies towards the promotion of cordial relations between labour and management and towards the maintenance of industrial peace in the State during the year 1966。 The conciliation machinery consisting of one Chief Conciliation Officer and 4 Conciliation Officers under the overall control of the Labour Commissioner made all endeavours to settle the disputes quickly and promptly and to effect settlements between disputants. The implementation and enforcement of other labour laws was also carried out through the labour officers and inspectors.

Disputes. In the beginning of the year 1966, 454 disputes were pending as against 244 at the beginning of the previous year. A total of 1,510 fresh disputes were received during the year raising the total number of disputes to be disposed of during the year to 1,964. these 522 cases were settled during conciliation as against 707 cases out of 2,315 in the previous year, 402 cases were withdrawn during conciliation by the workmen as against 429 cases during the previous year; in 16 cases parties agreed to arbitration as against 31 cases during referred the previous year; 172 industrial disputes were referred for adjudication as against 195 during the previous year; 232 cases were rejected against 195 during the by the Government as against 409 during the previous year. The number of industrial disputes pending at the end of the year was 620 as against 454 during the previous year.

Strikes.— There were only 20 strikes and one lock-out during the year 1966 as compared to 27 strikes during the previous year. The number of man-days lost during the year under report, however, increased to 179,642 as compared to 54,484 during the previous year, 12 cases of work stoppages occurred in the private sector and 9 in the public sector. The causewise classification of work stoppages is given below:-

(1)	Wages and bonus		16
(2)	Retrenchment		1
$(\overline{3})$	Others		4
, - ,		Total.	21

Speedy Disposal of Disputes. - Out of 522 disputes settled amicably during the year under report, about 39 per cent. were settled in less than a month's time.

Works Committees. Out of 98 Works Committees functioning at the beginning of the year 10 camed to function during the course of the year under report and 9 new Committees were constituted during the year. The number of Works Committees functioning at the close of the year was 97.

Adjudication Machinery. Eighty-one cases were pending with the Industrial Tribunal/Labour Court at the beginning of the year under report and 172 cases of disputes under section 10 and 31 cases under section 33-A of the Industrial Disputes Act, were referred for adjudication during the year under report making a total of 284 cases to be disposed of during the year. One hundred ninety-two cases were disposed of during the year and the number of pending cases at the clase of the year was 52.

In addition 2,080 applications under section 33 of the Industrial Disputes Act were received during the year under report. Six hundred fifty-eight such cases were padi pending at the beginning of the year making a total of 2,746 applications to be disposed of during the year under report. A total of 2,362 applications were disposed of during the year and the balance at the close of the year was 384 applications.

Implementation of Awards/Settlement. - One hundred ninety-two awards under sections 10 and 33-A of the Industrial Disputes Act were received from the Industrial Tribunal/Labour Court during the year under report as against 253 awards received during the previous year. Of these, 105 awards required implementation, 76 awards were implemented during the year and 29 awards remained unimplemented at the close of the year as against 34 at the close of the previous year. ed these, 105 a Prosecutions were launched under section 29 of the Industrial Disputes Act in four cases. In 13 cases recovery certificates were issued against the management for effecting recovery of the workers' dues in terms of various awards/agreements.

An amount of Rs.45,711.25 Paise representing workers' dues was realised from the various managements as arrears of land revenue as against Rs.5,750.74 Paise realised during the previous year.

Implementation and Evaluation Committees.— The State Evaluation and Implementation Committee held its 38th Meeting on 25 August 1966. The Committee is now being reconstituted.

Recognition of Unions. No union applied for recognition during the year under report.

General. On the whole different provisions of the Industrial Disputes Act were smoothly administered during the year under review. The number of strikes decreased as compared to the previous year. The number of man-days lost, however, increased as compared to the previous year. This was due to strikes in some of the big industrial concerns involving heavy loss of man-days.

(Supplement II to Punjab Government Gazette, 15 September 1967, pp.141-142).

Industrial Disputes (Amendment) Bill, 1967.

Shri Jaisukhlal Hathi, Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India, introduced in the Rajya Sabha on 3 August 1967 a Bill further to amend the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947. According to the Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill, Section 25FFF of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, provides for payment of compensation to workmen in case of closing down of an undertaking and the amount is calculated at the rate of fifteen days' average pay for every completed year of continuous service or any part thereof in excess of six months. But, in the case of closure on account of unavoidable circumstances beyond the control of the employer, the ceiling limit of compensation is the average pay for three months.

A central workers' organisation has suggested an amendment of section 25FFF of the Act to remove the ceiling limit of compensation in case of closure of a mining undertaking by reason of exhaustion of its reserves. According to its suggestion such closing down should not be deemed to be on account of unavoidable circumstances beyond the control of the employers be cause the employers have definite knowledge of the exhaustion of the ore-reserves of mines. Industrial Committee on Coal Mining, in its ninth session (Calcutta - 10-11 August 1964) and the Industrial Committee on Mines other than Coal in its fourth session (New Delhi - 20-21 February, 1965), have agreed to the suggestion to amend the Act for the aforesaid purpose. Accordingly, it is proposed to amend section 25FFF to provide for payment of full compensation to workmen in the event of closing down of a mining undertaking due to exhaustion of its reserves subject to the condition that no retrenchment compensation would be payable to the workmen concerned when an employer provides them with alternative employment with effect from the date of closure at the same remuneration as they were entitled to receive, and on the same terms and conditions of service as were applicable to them, immediately before the closure.

The Bill is designed to give effect to the above proposal.

(The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II, Sec. 2, 3 August 1967, pp. 647-649).

68. Labour Courts.

India - September-October 1967.

"Inam" (Reward) paid to Workers is not Wages under ESI Act: Judgment of Supreme Court.

In a judgment given by the Supreme Court at New Delhi on 6 October 1967, the "inam" paid by a company to its workmen as an incentive for greater production under a scheme cannot be called "wages" under the Employees' Insurance Act and therefore no contribution either as employers' special contribution or employees' contribution was payable by the company in respect thereof. The court examined the scheme and said that the payment of "inam" did not become a term of the contract of employment.

(The Hindustan Times, 7 October, 1967).

Club Not to be Treated as Industry: Supreme Court Ruling.

While dismissing the appeal filed by the Madras Gymkhana Club Employees' Union against the management on 3 October 1967 for payment of bonus to them for 1962, the Court held that activities carried on by the Madras Gymkhana Club did not make it an "industry" as defined in the Industrial Disputes Act and hence no reference could be made under the said Act for the adjudication of a dispute between the club and its employees. It upheld the award of the Industrial Tribunal, Madras, that the club was not liable to pay bonus to its employees for the year 1962 as it was not an "industry".

(The Statesman, 4 October, 1967).

CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.

INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTOBER 1967.

71. Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers.

Madras: State Government Staff to get Central D.A. and Allowances.

The Madras Government sanctioned on 9 October 1967 additional dearness allowance to its employees to bring it on a par with that drawn by the Central Government employees. The Government has also decided to sanction with effect from 1 October 1967, City Compensatory allowance to its employees within the limits of Madras City drawing a pay not exceeding Rs.500 a month. The additional rates of D.A. which will also be applicable to the employees of local bodies and to teachers in aided schools, will take effect from 1 November 1967 (pay drawn on 1 December 1967).

The following are the revised rates (figures within brackets indicate the present D.A.): Pay below Rs.90 (Rs.47), Rs. 59; Rs.90 and above but below Rs.150 (Rs.70), Rs.84; Rs.150 and above but below Rs.210 (Rs.90), Rs.106; Rs.210 and above but below Rs.400 (Rs.110), Rs.128; Rs.400 and above but not exceeding Rs.500 (Rs.120), Rs.140; Above Rs.500 but not exceeding Rs.519, the amount by which the pay falls short of Rs.640. (Those who get Rs.400 and above but below Rs.1,000 get already Rs.120).

(The Hindu, 10 October, 1967).

74. Indigenous Labour. India - September-October 1967.

Annual Convention of the All-India Backward Classes' Federation held at Hyderabad, 10 September 1967.

The annual Convention of the All-India Backward Classes' Federation was held at Hyderabad on 10 Saptember 1967. The Convention was inaugurated by Shri V.V. Giri, Vice-President of India. Choudhary Braham Parkash presided.

Inaugurating the Conference Shri V.V. Giri said that the solution for the problems of backward classes lay in an integrated approach to their social and economic development and the provision of maximum opportunity, in political terms, to the people to grow to full measure of their capacity. Englightened public opinion in the country was not only seized of the special needs of these classes but also would support efforts to accelerate the pace of their development.

Shri Giri said that educational assistance to students belonging to backward classes should go beyond the award of scholarships. There should be provision for coaching facilities and arrangement for watching their progress.

Choudhary Brahma Prakash, in his presidential address, said that during the last 20 years a few classes and a small percentage of people had become very rich, while the vast masses had gone poorer. He complained that the precentage of backward classes in the services was negligible. He suggested that the backward classes must organise themselves and should be completely non-political.

(The Hindu, 11 September, 1967).

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTOBER 1967.

81. Employment Situation.

Findings of a Study Team on Recruitment and Selection Set up by Administrative Reforms Commission.

According to a study team of the Administrative Reforms Commission which went into the problems of recruitment, selection and training, India has six million Government employees:

2.4 million in Central Services and 3.6 million in the States. The number of employees is going up by about 6 per cent. a year both at the Centre and in the States. The number Over 100,000 new posts have on an average been created by the Centre every year.

The study team is also of the view that the quality of candidates entering non technical allandia services is going down. With fewer first class students taking competitive examination, the proportion of men holding second and third class degrees has sharply increased among recent entrants.

(The Statesman, 20 October, 1967).

West Bengal: Tenthousand Jute Workers Retrenched.

According to a leading jute industrialist, 10,000 jute workers were retrenched in West Bengal during August 1967 and an equal number are likely to be thrown out of employment in the next 8-12 weeks. It was stated that this course had been forced on the industry by the Government's refusal to agree to a proposal that a day's production should be cut - workers being paid 50 per cent. of their wages for the day - to overcome the "recession" caused by shrinking demands for jute sacking. Had the industry's proposal been accepted, he says, this large-scale retrenchment could have been avoided.

(The Statesman, 3 September, 1967).

Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Bill, 1967.

Shri Jaisukhlal Hathi, Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India, introduced in the Lok Sabha on 31 July 1967 a Bill to regulate the employment of contract labour in certain establishments and to provide for its abolition in certain circumstances and for matters connected therewith.

According to the Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill, the system of employment of contract labour lends itself to various abuses. The question of its abolition has been under the considefation of Government for a long time. the S_cond-Five-Year-Plan, the Planning Commission made certain recommendations, namely, undertaking of studies to ascertain the extent of the problem of contract labour, progressive abolition of the system and improvement of service conditions of contract labour where the abolition was not possible. The matter was discussed at various meetings of Tripartite Committees at which the State-Governments were also representedend the general consensus of opinion was that the system should be abolished wherever possible and practicable and that in cases where this system could not be abolished altogether, the working conditions of the contract labour should be regulated so as to ensure payment of wages and provision of essential amenities.

The proposed Bill aims at the abolition of contract labour in respect of such categories as may be notified by the appropriate Government in the light of certain criteria that have been laid down, and at regulating the service conditions of contract labour where abolition is not possible. The Bill provides for the setting up of Advisory Boards of a tripartite character, representing various interests, to advise the Central and State Governments in administering the legislation and registration of establishments and contractors. Under the scheme of the Bill, the provision and maintenance of certain basic welfare amenities for contract labour, Like drinking water and first-aid facilities, and in certain cases rest-rooms and canteens, have been made obligatory. Provisions have also been made to guard against defaults in the matter of wage payment.

The salient provisions of the Bill are summarised below.

The provisions of the Bill are to be made applicable to every establishment in which twenty or more workmen are employed or were employed on any day of the preceding twelve months as contract labour; and to every contractor who employe or who employed on any day of the preceding twelve months twenty or more workmen.

The appropriate Government may, after giving not less than two months' notice of its intention so to do, by notification in the Official Gazette, apply the provisions to any establishment or contractor employing such number of workmen less than twenty as may be specified in the notification.

The provisions do not apply to establishments in which work only of an intermittent or casual nature is performed.

The word 'establishment' is defined to mean any office or department of the Government or a local authority, or any place where any industry, trade, business, manufacture or occupation is carried on.

A workman shall be deemed to be employed as "contract labour" in or in connection with the work of an establishment when he is hired in or in connection with such work by or through a contractor, with or without the knowledge of the principal employer.

The appropriate Government may, after consultation with the Central Board or, as the case may be, a State Board, prohibit, by notification in theOfficial Gazette, employment of contract labour in any process, operation or other work in any establishment.

Before issuing any such notification in relation to an establishment, the appropriate Government shall have regard to the conditions of work and benefits provided for the contract labour in that establishment and other relegant factors, such as -

(a) whether the process, operation or other work is incidental to, or necessary for the industry, trade, business, manufacture or occupation that is carried on in the establishment;

- (b) whether it is of perennial nature, that is to say, it is of sufficient duration having regard to the nature of industry, trade, business, manufacture or occupation carried on in that establishment;
- (c) whether it is done ordinarily through regular workmen in that establishment or an establishment similar thereto;
- (d) whether it is sufficient to employ considerable number of whole-time workmen.

Welfare and Health of Contract Labour. The appropriate Government may make rules requiring that in every establishment -

- (a) to which this Act applies,
- (b) wherein work requiring employment of contract labour is likely to continue for such period as may be prescribed, and
- (c) wherein contract labour numbering one hudred hundred or more is ordinarily employed by a contractor,

one or more canteens shall be provided and maintained by the contractor forthe use of such contract labour.

Such rules may provide for -

- (a) the date by which the canteens shall be provided;
- (b) the number of canteens that shall be provided and the standards in respect of construction, accommodation, furniture and other equipment of the canteens; and
- (c) the foodstuffs which maybe served therein and the charges which may be made therefor.

In every place wherein contract labour is required to halt at night in connection with the work of an establishment -

- (a) to which this Act applies, and
- (b) in which work requiring employment of contract labour is likely to continue for such period as may be prescribed,

there shall be provided and maintained by the contractor for the use of the contract labour such number of rest-rooms or such other suitable alternative accommodations within such time as may be prescribed.

It shall be the duty of every contractor employing contract labour in connection with the work of an establishment to which this Act applies, to provide and maintain -

- (a) a sufficient supply of wholesome drinking water for the contract labour at convenient palces;
- (b) a sufficient number of latrines and urinals of the prescribed types so situated as to be convenient and accessible to the contract habour in the establishment; and
 - (c) washing facilities.

There shall be provided and maintained by the contractor so as to be readily accessible during all working hours a first—aid box equipped with the prescribed contents at every place where contract labour is employed by him.

Wages.— A contractor shall be responsible for payment of wages to each worker employed by him as contract labour and such wages shall be paid before the expiry of such period as may be prescribed.

Every principal employer shall nominate a representative duly authorised by him to be present at the time of disbursement of wages by the contractor and it shall be the duty of such representative to certify the amounts paid as wages in such manner as may be prescribed.

It shall be the duty of the contractor to ensure the disbursement of wages in the presence of the authorised representative of the principal employer.

In case the contractor fails to make payment of wages within the prescribed period or makes short payment, then the principal employer shall be liable to make payment of wages in full or the unpaid balance due, as the case may be, to the fontract labour employed by the contractor and recover the amount so paid from the contractor either by deduction from any amount payable to the contractor under any contract or as debt payable by the contractor.

53

Other provisions of the Bill relate inter alia to constitution of advisory boards, registration of establishments employing contract labour and licensing of contractors, penalties and procedure.

(The Gazette of India Extraordinary, Part II, Sec.2,31 July 1967, pp. 617-637).

83. Vocational Training.

India - September-October 1967.

Seminar on Educational and Training Programmes for the Advancement of Women in Asia, Bombay 27 September, 1967.

An international Seminar on "Long-term educational and Training Programmes for the Advancement of Women in Asia", was held in Bombay from 27 September to 1 October 1967. The Seminar, a ttended by 130 delegates and some 40 observers, was organised by the National Council of Women in India in collaboration with the Indian National Commission of UNESCO and the Maharashtra State Women's Council, Bombay.

Among other recommendations, the Seminar suggested that the education for women should be planned to suit the particular needs of the community and the basic right to education up to the level of university should be accepted. Another recommendation was that scientific, education should be imparted in villages to make the rural areas self-sufficient and to create conditions of agro-industrial bias. Agricultural colleges should be established in taluka towns. The Seminar felt that university students should be sent to rural areas, before they obtained the degree, to work for a year so that the dignity of labour would be enhanced.

To attract women to work in villages and rural areas, special village allowance, health insurance and social security transport facility and recreational facilities should be provided.

A report on training women for economic advancement said the Government in co-operation with councils of women or other non-Governmental organisations establish hostels for unattached professional women in central villages equipped for co-operative livings and improve communications between villages and towns,

60

To tackle the problem of shortage of trained personnel in nursing and health, a three-year training programme leading to a degree in nursing and a one-year training programme which would prepare women as practical nurses should be begun, it said. Rationalisation of the pattern of financing of the pattern of units under the socio-economic schemes, traison between the production centre and the market were among the suggestions.

For training increasing the training opportunities for rural women, it supported the idea of establishing a mobile training unit.

(The Times of India, 2 October, 1967).

1

Chapter 9. Social Security

93. Application.

India - September-October 1967.

Punjab: Annual Report on the Working of the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, in the State during the year 1966.

The Government of Punjab published on 15 September 1960 its review on the annual report on the working of the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923, in the State for the year 1966. According to the review, the Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923 (Central Act), provides protection to the workmen (getting up to Rs.500 per mensem) against industrial hazards, occupational diseases and accidents.

The Compensation Commissioners, under the Act, in the State had 201 cases for disposal during the year including 73 cases which were pending at the beginning of the year. Out of 201 cases, 110 were related to fatal accidents, 63 to permanent disablement and 28 for temporary disablement. One hudred forty-one cases were disposed of during the year under report leaving a balance of 60 cases pending at the end of the year. Out of these 60 cases, 32 related to fatal accidents, 13 to permanent disablement and 5 to temporary disablements. There were 340 cases of accidents during the year under report. Commensation was paid in respect of 207 cases. Twelve were fatal, 20 related to permanent disablement and 175 temporary disablement. Various managements in the State paid Rs.64,501.68 as compensation under the Act. There was no report regarding any death or permanent disablement caused by occupational diseases. Twentynine complaints about non-payment of compensation for the injuries sustained by workmen were received by the Department. There were three pending complaints from the last year. All but one complaints were disposed of during the year under report. No amendments in Act/ Rules were made during the year under report.

The Employees State Insurance Scheme was extended to four more towns in Punjab during the year under report. Therefore, the scope of Workmen's Compensation Act diminished to this extent as this Act does not apply to the Factories where Employees State Insurance Scheme is applicable.

(Supplement II to Punjab Government Gazette, 15September 1967,pp.142-143).

CHAPTER 12. INDUSTRIAL COMMITTEES.

INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTO ER 1967.

121. Special Information.

India - September-October 1967.

Recommendations of Industrial Committee on Jute, held at New Delhi, 28 October, 1967.

The Industrial Committee on Jute which held its 4th session at New Delhi on 28 October 1967, recommended among other matters, establishment of a small committee (comprising, among others, the State Labour Commissioner, the jute Commissioner and the workers' and employers' representatives), to go into specific instances of non-implementation of the Wage Board's recommendation concerning payment of fall-back wages and suggest measures to secure its full implementation. The proposed Committee should look into the cases of defaulting mills complained of and not of individual workers. The session also suggested that Wage Board's recommendations regarding permanency of workers should be implemented without further delay, As for wherever this had not been done so far. the workers' suggestion about fixing the quantum of the 'permanent complement' on a basis other than the formula laid down by the Wage Board, the two sides should get together and try to reach a settlement.

In the discussions on the bonus problem, the workers' representatives urged that there should be a proper procedure under which mill accounts and bonus calculations were available to them for examination. It was agreed that for this purpose the jute mills would make available a number of copies (say 5) of the following documents/papers to the State Labour Department: (a) balance sheets; (b) profit and loss accounts; and (c) details showing how the 'allocable surplus' had been worked out by them. On the question of bonus for the uncovered period during 1964 i.e. for the months for which no bonus had been paid to the workers either in terms of the Jute Wage Board's recommendations or the Payment of Bonus Act, it was agreed that the two sides would get together and try to reach a settlement.

A suggestion was made that the scope of the proposed Textile Corporation should be extended to the jute industry so that the sick jute mills which had closed down, due to mis-management could also be taken over, wherever necessary, by the proposed Corporation. The Chairman said that the suggestion would be brought to the notice of the Ministry of Commerce for their consideration.

As regards revision of wages after 31
December 1967, the Committee recommended that
the employers and workers should enter into
bipartite discussions to reach an agreement.
The revision of the dearness allowance scheme
would naturally be covered within the scope
of these discussions. The Chairman suggested
that dearness allowance could be revised
quarterly rather than every six months as at
present. If, however, no agreement was possible
through such discussions, a meeting of the
Industrial Committee could be convened again,
say, some time early next year, to help the
parties in coming to a settlement.

(Document received in this Office from the Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation during the month of November 1967).

BIBLIOGRAPHY.

INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTOBER 1967.

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.

*(a) "Report of the Committee of the Bengal Chamber of Commerce and Industry for the year 1966": Vol.I: Calcutta: 1967: pp.xxii+318. *(b) "Report on the Seminar on Floor Level

Leadership": Editor, R.D. Joshi: Bombay Labour

Institute, 1967: pp.viii+26.

*(c) "Speech of Shei B.D. Somani, President, the All-India Manufacturers' Organisation, delivered at the First Quarterly Meeting of the Central Committee of the Organisation held an Saturday, the 26th August 1967, at the Tajmahal Hotel, Bombay": The All-India Manufacturers Organisation, "Jeevan Sahakar", Sir Pherozshah Mehta Road, Bombay-1: pp.20.

*(d) "Twenty Years of UNESCO": A series of lectures in commemoration of the 20th Anniversary of UNESCO: India International Centre, 40 Lodi Estate, New Delhi-3: 1967: pp. 88.

*(e) "United Front Ministry and Trade Unions in West Bengal": Impact of the United Front Ministry on the trade union movement in the State of West Bengal, India: ICFTU Asian Regional Organisation, C-324, Green Park Extension, New Delhi-16: pp. iv+49+x.

*(f) "Report of the Millowners' Association, Bombay - Report for the Year 1966": Presented to the Annual General Meeting, held on Thursday, 20 April 1967: Bombay: 1967: pp. x+426.

CHPATER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS.

*(a) "The Activities and Constitution": The Institute of Industrial Engineers (India), Bombay: June 1966: pp.9.

*(b) "Report of the Bonus Commission 1964": The Government of India, Ministry of Labour and Employment: 1964: Printed in India by the Managef Government of India Press Nasik and Published by the Manager of Publications Delhi-8: pp.ii+154.

Publications received in this Office.

GRAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

*(a) "Relations on the Development of Small-Scale Industries in India": S.T. Merani: 13 January, 1965:

pp.59.

*(b) "Report 1966-67": Department of Cooperation: Government of India, Ministry of Food, Agriculture, Community Development and Cooperation: Printed in India by the Manager, Government of India Press,

Faridabad: 1967: pp.1+51.

*(c) "Report 1966-67": Government of India,
Ministry of Food, Agriculture, Community Development
and Cooperation (Department of Community Development)
New Delhi: Printed by the General Manager, Government
of India Press, Minto Road, New Delhi: pp.53.
*(d) "Cooperative Sugar Factories in India": Issued
by the Government of India: Ministry of Food,
Agriculture, Community Development and Cooperation
(Department of Cooperation): Printed by the Manager
Government of India Press, Minto Road, New Delhi:
pp. 29.

*(e) "Farming Guidance in the Cooperative Movement in Japan": International Cooperative Alliance, Regional Office on Education Centre for South-East Asia, 18, Friends Colony(West), New Delhi-14: August 1967: Price Rs.2.50 or 35 US cents:pp.36.

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

*(a) "Indian Labour Statistics 1967": Labour Bureau: Department of Labour and Employment: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation: Government of India: 1967: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Simla for the Manager of Publications Civil Lines Delhi: Price Rs.7.00 or 16sh.4d. or 2\$52cents.:pp.xxv+ii+215. *(b) "Report on Familiy Living Survey Among Industrial Workers 1958-59": Howrah: Labour Bureau: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation: Government of India: 1967: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Simla for the Manager of Publications Civil Lines Delhi: Price Rs.10.00 or 23sh.4d. or 3\$60cents: pp.v+134. *(c) "Report on Family Living Survey Among Industrial Workers 1958-59": Madurai: Labour Bureau: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation: Government of India (Department of Labour and Employment): 1967: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Simla for the Manager of Publications Civil Lines Delhi: Price Rs.8.50 or 19sh.10d. or **3\$6cents:** pp. v+121.

Publications received in this Office.

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS (CONTINUED):-

*(d) "Prospectus": Bombay Labour Institute: Government of Maharashtra: Dadabhai Chamarbaugwala Road, Parel, Bombay-12 DD: 1964: Printed at the Government Central Press Bombay:pp. vi+29. *(e) *Report 1966-67": Department of Social Welfare, Government of India, New Delhi:pp.60. *(f) "Report of the Second National Seminar on Education for International Understanding, New Delhi, 22-27 November 1966": Indian National Commission for UNESCO: 1967: pp.104. *(g) "Report 1964-65": Coal Mines Welfare Organisation: Government of India, Ministry of Labour. Employment and Rehabilitation: Printed by the Government of India Press, Faridabad: 1967: pp.27. *(h) "Report on Survey of Labour Conditions in Manganese Mining Industry in India 1962-63": Labour Bureau: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press, Faridabad and published by the Manager of Publications, Delhi:1967: Price Rs. 4.85 or 11sh. 4d. or 1\$75cents: pp.iv+69. "(i) "Report on Survey of Labour Conditions in Sugar Factories in I_dia 1962": Labour Bureau: Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India: 1967: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Simla for the

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.

Manager of Publications Civil Lines Delhi:

* "Three Years of Research at the Shri Ram Centre for Industrial Relations 1964-67": March 1967: Shri Ram Centre for Industrial Relations, 5, Pusa Road, New Delhi-5: pp.ii+14.

Price Rs.2.50 or 10sh.6d.or 1\$62cents.:PP.iv+77.

CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.

(a) "Report of the Commissioner for Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes for the Year 1964-65": (Fourteenth Report): Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Faridabad and published by the Manager of Publications Delhi: 1967: price Rs.3.00 or 7sh. or 1\$8cents:pp.viii+314.(b) "Report of the Commissioner for Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes for the Year 1965-66": (Fifteenth Report): Vol.I & II: Printed in India by the Manager Government of India Press Faridabad and published by the Manager of Publications Delhi: 1967: Price Rs.3.00 or 7sh. or 1\$8cents:pp.vi+231.

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

* "Job Security of Industrial Workers in India": MonographNo.6: The Employers' Federation of India, Army and Navy Building, 148, Mahatma Gandhi Road, Bombay-1: pp.58. 1965.: Price Rs.2.

 \mathbf{L}^{1}

^{*} Publication recaived in this Office.

LIST OF ARTICLES.

INDIA - SEPTEMBER-OCTOBER 1967.

Title

Name of Journal

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS.

ICFTU Asian Trade Dynamics of Labour movement by Asoka Mehta. Unionist September 1967, Vol .I,No.3,pp.1-14.

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS.

Wage Criteria and Wage (a) determination, by M.R. Meher.

(b) Economics and Labour Motivation by Dr.B.N. Pal.

(c) Handicrafts Exports in Third Plan and Targets for FoutshPlan, by P.N. Kaul.

(d) Wage Board Awards Leave Everybody Dissatisfied by Stradas Banerjee.

(e) How Far Size Affects Productivity of the Industrial Unity by Dr. P.C. Maheshwari.

(f) Wage Board Awards Leave Everybody by Sivadas Banerjee.

(g) Essential of Wage Policy

Lost in a Jungle of Awards Setober, 1967. by Dr.B.M. Bhatia. (h) Labour in Small Scale Industries by B.N.

Datar. (i) Wage Freeze Incomes Policy in India by Sunil Banik.

(j) Finances of Coal Industry in India, by Chhote Lal.

(k) Productivity and Rapid Economic Development of India by R.S. Kulkarni.

(1) Productivity of Industries by K. Pennathur.

The Indian Worker, 11 September 1967.p.8.

Southern Economist, Vol.VI,No.9, September 1,1967, pp.11-13. Foreign Trade Review, July-Sept., 1967.

The Statesman, 29 September, 1967, p.8.

The Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No. 9, September 1967, pp.768~780. The Statesman, 28 September, 1967.

The Indian Worker, 6 November, 1967, p.9.

The Statesman, 16

Journal of the Indian Merchants' Chambers. No.10,0stober,1967,p.31 AICC Economic Review, 15 October, 1967, p.27.

Maharashtra Government Labour Gazette, No.1, September 1967, p.11.

The Indian Wrker, 16 October,1967,p.3.

Name of Journal

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS (CONTINUED):-

(m) Industrial Wages, by S. Banerjee.

The Indian Journal of Labour Economics, Vol .IX, July-October, 1967, p.190.

(n) Labour in Coal Industry, The Indian Worker, 2 by Dr.Radha Krishna October, 1967, p.19. Akhauri.

(o) No Automation at Cost of Workers' Jobs by Satish Chatterjee.

Trade Union Record. 20 September, 1967, p.4.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERDAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY.

(a) New Production Strateggy AICC Economic Review, in Indian Agriculture - 1 November, 1967, p. 23. A Rtitique by Ruddar Dutt.

(b) Cooperation as a Method Village India, October, to Increase Agricultureal 1967, p.2, Productivity by Prof. A. Aziz.

(c) Cooperative Movement, by Dr. S. Mathur.

ModernReviewm October, 1967, p. 281.

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

(a) A Note on Workers' Education in India by N. Mukherjee.

ICFTU Asian Trade Unionist, September 1967, Vol. I, No. 3, pp. 35-49.

(b) Child Labour in India-I, The Indian Worker, 11 by D.S.Mehra and Nagendra Saksena.

September 1967, p.6.

(c) Child Labour in India-II, The Indian Worker, 18 by D.S. Mehra and N. September 1967, p.5. Saksena

(d) Twentieth Year of Independence - Work in the Field of Labour.

The Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No.9, September 1967,pp. 747-768.

(e) Levels of Living of Industrial Workers: Regional Variation, by J.N. Sharma and B.P. Guha,

The Indian Journal of Labour Economics, Vol. IX, July-October 1967, p.227.

(f) The Role of Workers' Education in Economic Development.

--Do-- , p.345.

(g) Socio-Economic Study of U.P.Government Labour Potteryworkers at Khurja (U.P.).

Bulletin, January 1967. p.4. --do--, August 1967,

(h) A Paper on Workers Education by Dr.A.M. p.1930. Chansarkar

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.

(a) The Ballot in Aid of Industrial Peace, by Sivadas Banerjee.

The Statesman, 26 October, 1967.

(b) The Problems of
Personnel Evaluation
- Psychological
approach to Selection

Supervisory Development News Letter, July-September 1967, p.1.

and Metit Rating by Dr. Topodhan Ganguly.

(c) Talking of Management - The Asian Bulleting, Administrative Staff No.6, November, 1967. College of India.

(d) Human Relations in Industry by K.G. Desai.

Maharashtra Government Labour Gazette, No.1, September 1967, p.5.

(e) Labour Arbitration and the Role of Labour Management Institute by So Subramanian. U.P.Government Labour Bulletin, May 1967, p.1.

(f) Evaluation and
Development of
Tripartite Industrial
Relations System in
India by K.C.Sethi.

The Indian Worker, 16 October 1967,p.9.

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS.

(a) Changing Occupational The Indian Worker, 18
Pattern in India September 1967, p.11.
by R.L. Sharma.

(b) Unemployment Prob
lems in India: October, 1967, p.6.

Nature and Charaeteristics.

(c) Promotion of Social --Do--, 30 October, 1967, poly Justice and Development of Human Resources by P.M. Menon.

(d) Recruitment, Selection, Oil & Chemical Workers, and Promotion - A July-August 1967, p.18. Study by S.N. Sinha.

(e) A Note on Utilisation of Training Facilitis and Placement of Personnel in Consumer Cooperation.

Cooperative Informatical Bulletin, October, 196, p.13.

(f) Produce and Prosper: Maharashtra Government Employment Situat- Labour Gazette, No.1, tionin India by September 1967, p.21. L.N. Misra, Union

Minister of State for Labour, Employment and Rekabilitation

Name of Journal.

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS (CONTINUED):-

(g) A Study of Managerial
Promotions in a
Large Engineering
Undertaking by
N. Mukerjee.

The Indian Journal of Labour Economics, Vol. IX, July-October 1967, p.273.

(h) Personnel Administration and Industrial
Democracy in a Growing
State Enrterprise: A
Case Study in Bhilai
Steel Plant by Bimal
Jain.

--do--, p.295.

(i) National Teaching

Manpower - Some

Economic Aspects
by Qutabuddin Khan.

AICC Economic Reveew, 1 October 1967,p.29.

CHAPTER 9. SOCIAL SECURITY.

Practicability of Unemployment Insurance in India by Miss M. Badhawar and B.N. Shukla.

Indian Journal of Labour Economics, Vol.IX, July-October 1967, p.318.

INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE BRANCH OFFICE, NEW DELHI

Industrial and Labour Developments in November-December 1967

N-B. - Each Section of this Report may be taken out Separately.

Contents	Pages
GHAPTER I. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION	
12. Activities of External Services	1
13. Press and Opinion	2 - 5
CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS	
25. Wage Earners Organisations	•
Maharashtra: Indian Trade Unions and Bombay Industrial Relations (Amendment) Bill, 1967	6
Fifteenth Convention of National Federation of Petroleum Workers held at Baroda, 11 November 1967	7
Fourteenth National Convention of the Hind Mazdoor Sabha held at Baroda, 2 - 5 December 1967	8 - 9
28. Employers Organisation	
Annual Meeting of the Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry held at Calcutta, 18 December 1967	10 - 13
CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS	
34. Economic Planning Control and Development	
Meeting of the National Development Council held at New Delhi. 1.12.1967 Proposal of Agricultural Income-tax opposed.	14
Fourth Plan put off by another year and begin from 1969: Economy to be stabilised during 1968-69	15

	Contents	Pages
	Study of Economic and Scientific Research Foundation Published: In-flation responsible for recession.	16
	Study on Performance of Indian Companies Published by Economic and Scientific Research Founda- tion: Profitless Expansion of Public Undertaking.	17 - 18
	50th Session of Indian Economic Conference held at Madras, 27 December 1967	19
•	National Credit Council to be set up for assessing credit needs	20
	Rise in National Income Estimated by Central Statistical Organisation: 37.8 increase in per capita income	21
. •	Computer Centre opened at New Delhi. 7 November 1967	22
	Cotton Textile Companies (Management of Undertakings and Liquidation or Reconstruction) Bill, 1967	23 - 25
35.	Productivity	
	Meeting of the Heads of Public Under- takings held at New Delhi, 19 December: Incentive Scheme to be introduced.	26
36.	Wages	
	Meeting of the Central Minimum Wages Advisory Board held at New Delhi, 26 December 1967: A Compromise Minimum Wage proposed by Union Labour Minister	27 - 28
	Air India Staff to get Bonus: Agree- ment Concluded with Management.	29
CHAP	TER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY	
41.	Agriculture	
	Rs.31.9 million Sanctioned for Agricul- ture in Fourth Plan.	30
44.	Merchant Marine and Fisheries	
	Dock Workers (Regulation of Employment) Amendment Bill, 1967	31 - 32
	Hindustan Shipyard Workers to get more Dearness Albwance: Agreement concluded with Board of Directors	33
	National Conference on Shipping, Shipbuilding and Ports held at New Delhi, 16 December 1967	34 - 35

	- iii -	
	Contents	pages
CHAPTER 5	WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS	
50. Gener	<u>ral</u>	:
Indus	ing Conditions of Labour in Jute stry: Report of the Indian Jute 111s [†] Association for 1966	36 - 45
Build	er Conditions in the Air-Craft ling and Repairing Industry in a: Results of a case Study Published	46 - 54
Fourt of Sc	seenth Session of Indian Conference ocial Work held at Madras, 27 December 1967	55 - 56
Madhy (Amen	a Pradesh Shops and Establishments adment) Act, 1967. (No.19 of 1967)	57 - 58
CHAPTER 6.	GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS	
61. Civil	and Political Rights of Workers	
Unlaw	ful Activities (Prevention) Act 1967 (No. 37 of 1967)	59 - 60
"One I	Plant One Union" formula Rejected by Government	61
63. <u>Indiv</u>	vidual Contracts of Employment	
Madhy ment	va Pradesh Labour Laws (Amend- Act, 1967 (No.18 of 1967)	62 63
67. Conci	lliation and Arbitration	
Indus	trial Disputes (Amendment) Bill 1967	64
Work (Sta	ing of the Industrial Employment nding Orders) Act, 1946, during 1965	65 - 66
Repor ment	rt on the Working of Joint Manage- Councils for the Year 1966	67
Annu	al Report on the Working of the ral Industrial Relations Machinery for the year 1965	68 - 69
68. Labo	ur Courts	
Rs. to W	0.96 Million to be paid as Bonus orkers of Hindustan Motors Ltd: Supreme Court Judgment.	70

	Contents	pages
CHAPT	TER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS	
71.	Employees and Salaried Intellectual Workers	
	D.A. for Central Government Employees Raised Again	71
	Kerala: Dearness Allowance of State Government Employees raised to Central Rates	72
	Rationalisation of Central and State Government Pay Scales recommended by Study Team	73
74.	Indigenous Labour	•
	Board set up for Tribal Welfare	74
CHAPT	TER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS	
81.	Employment Situation	
·	Population of India: Rise of 11.07 per cent in Rural Population and 20.15 in urban population estimated	7 5
	Employment Exchanges: Working during November 1967	76 - 78
83.	Vocational Training	
	Labour Ministry's Training Schemes: Working during November 1967	7 9
84.	Vocational Rehabilitation of Disabled Persons	
	All India Council Set Up for Physically Handicapped: Recommendations of the National Seminar on Rehabilitation of the Handicapped held at Trivandrum, 4-6 December 1967	80 L
	Employment for disabled Armymen	81
CHAPT	TER 12. INDUSTRIAL COMMITTEES	
121.	Special Information	
	Industrial Committee on Banking Industry Appointed	82
LIST THE	OF THE PRINCIPAL LAWS PROMULGATED DURING PERIOD COVERED BY THE REPORT NOVEMBER - DECEMBER 1967	83
BIBL	IOGRAPHY - NOVEMBER - DECEMBER 1967	84 - 86

CHAPTER I. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967 12. Activities of External Services

1. Lectures

a) On 22nd November, on the invitation of the Director of the Indian School of International Studies, the Director of the Branch Office addressed a batch of Indian Foreign Service Probationers. The subject of his address was "The ILO".

on 12 December 1967, on the invitation of the Director of the Asian Institute of Educational Planning and Administration (a project of the Government of India which is run in collaboration with UNESCO) the Director of this office addressed the participants on their current course. The subject of his talk was "Training for Industry". The participants are senior Govt. Officials drawn from different Asian countries. his talk he also explained the part played by I.L.O. in rendering assistance in the training of craft Instructors, development of Apprenticeship Scheme, Productivity and Management Development etc. through various Technical Assistance and Special Fund Projects in this country.

2. Meetings

- a) The Director represented the ILO at the Fifth Indian Cooperative Congress held at New Delhi from 2-4 December 1967.
- b) The ILO was represented by the Director of this office at the Sixth Session of the Governing Board of the International Institute for Educational Planning held in New Delhi on 8-9 December 1967.

CHAPTER I. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR ORGANISATION

INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

13. Press and Opinion

In addition to the attached clippings, the following references to the work of the ILO appeared in Indian Journals received in this Office:-

- 1. The 2nd October 1967 issue of Indian Worker? (Gandhi Jayanti Number) publishes an article on 'Gandhiji's immortal Role in the emancipation of Labour?. The article makes an incidental reference to the ILO.
- 2. The September 1967 issue of *Bank Karmachari*, reviews the First World Conference on Education in the Labour Movement, held in Montreal from 24 August. There is an incidental reference to the ILO.
- 3. The November-December 1967 issue of *Bank Karmachari*, publishes an article on *ILO and Workers* Education*.
- 4. The Same issue of the journal publishes a report on the ICFTU World Conference on education in Labour Movement. The report contains references to the ILO.
- 5. The October 1967 issue of All India Organisation of Industrial Employers? Labour News! under its !foreign news! column, publishes a news-item concerning the signing of an agreement for the establishment of the Cyprus Productivity Centre with ILO as the Executing Agency.
- 6. The September 1967 issue of *Asian Labour* publishes an article on *Non-Manual Employment*. The article discusses the ILO's role in the field and concludes: "This constant watch and careful study of national prospects and policies are what led the ILO Director-General to choose the role of the non-manual worker in economic and social development as the main theme for discussion at the 51st session of the International Labour Conference held in Geneva in June this year."

7. The July-September 1967 issue of *Oceanite* editorially writes about the *technological revolution in maritime industry and the role of the ILO*. After commenting on the ILO*s maritime work the editorial concludes:

"The 50th Anniversary (Diamond Jubilee) of the setting up of the IIO will be due in 1969. Let us hope there will be world-wide celebrations of the historic event. A special Maritime Session of the ILO will be held in that year to give it the most fitting recognition as a wing of the United Nations that has done such a lot for all the seafarers of the world."

- 8. The October 1967 issue of *Asian Labour* contains the following references to the ILO:
- a) A write up on *Buiter the new ICFTU General Secretary *: mention is made of his association with the ILO *s Metal Trades Committee.
- b) A summary of a paper by the Education Officer, USDAW, Great Britain submitted to the ICFTU World Conference on Education in the Labour Movement held in Montreal: Mention is made of the ILO's valuable contribution to growing documentation on the subject.
- c) An article on The United Nations and Human Rights. There is an incidental reference to the ILO.
- d) A news item about the appointment of Dr. Vladimir Velebit as Chief of the Research and Planning Department of the ILO.
- 9. The October 1967 issue of Workers Education contains the following references to the ILO:
- a) A news item regarding the distribution of certificates to the trainees of the 21st Worker Teachers Training Course at the Delhi Centre. The prizes were distributed by the Director of this Office who also delivered the valedictory address.

b) A news-item about a talk on India

- Norker" publishes the inaugural speech of the Labour Minister in the United Front Government (since dismissed) of West Bengal at the Second National Convention Against Automation held at New Delhi in December 1967. In the course of his address, the Minister second Served: "Has not the ILO observed that as a result of automation "displacement" among the clerical employees doing book-keeping, filing, accountancy, invoicing works "will be very high" (Effects of "Mechanisation and Automation Page 22),
- 15. An article on 'Personnel Management in Asian Countries' is published in the November-December issue of 'Social Action'. The article observes: "Labour legislation in some of the countries also gives varied connotation to these terms and hence a very useful service to industry would be for the ILO to constitute a select committee which would recommend to industries in all member countries standard terminology and functional descriptions in the field of labour-management relations."
- 16. Indian Labour Journal, dated November 1967 publishes a news-item about the 51st International Labour Conference.
- 17. November 1967 issue of *Labour Gazette* publishes an article on *Promotion of social Justice and Development of .

 Human Resources by the Director of theo Office. The article dealing with the work of the ILO was sent to the UNIS in connexion with the U.N. day celebrations.

6

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS

INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

25. Wage-Earners Organisations.

Maharashtra: Indian Trade Unions and Bombay Industrial Relations (Amendment)
Bill, 1967. **

The Government of Maharashtra published on November 16, 1967 the text of the Indian Trade Unions and Bombay Industrial Relations (Amendment) Bills 1967 whih was introduced in the Maharashtra Legislative Assembly on 9 November 1967.

According to the Statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill the Indian Trade Unions Act, 1926, provides for the registration of Trade Unions, and in certain respects defines the law relating to registered Trade Unions. The Act, however, does not contain any provision for deciding internal disputes in a registered Trade Union. disputes, which are at present decided by civil courts take a long time to decide with the result, that pending the decision of the dispute, the work of the registered Trade Union, which cannot function, is paralysed. To tide over this difficulty, it is proposed to take power to members of Trade Unions with the consent of the Registrar of Trade Unions to refer such disputes to the Industrial Court constituted under the Bombay Industrial Relations Act, 1946, and to bar the jurisdiction of civil courts from entertaining such dispute & It is also proposed to empower the Industrial Court to pass interim orders, and its decisions are to be made final and binding on parties. The Bill seeks to achieve these objects.

^{*(}Maharashtra Gazette, Part V, 16 November 1967, pp. 299-310)

Fifteenth Convention of National Federation of Petroleum Workers held at Baroda, 11 November 1967 *

The 50th Convention of the National Federation of Petroleum Workers was held at Baroda on 11 November 1967. The Convention was inaugurated by Shri Jaisukh Lal Hathi, Union Minister for Labour, Employment, and Rehabilitation. Shri Hathi in his address called for a "radical readjustment of trade union strategy in India as the country was developing on a planned basis with the public sector emerging as the biggest employer. Just as public-sector employers should strive to be model employers, trade unions in the public sector should strive to be "model unions". A model union need not be a tame body, it should be a strong organisation with self-confidence but should always avoid "trial of strength through work stoppages". Referring to the current economic difficulties, Shri Hathi said "If we lose confidence in ourselves and in our plans, the path of recovery will be more I have every hope that your difficult. organisation will have the level-headedness to consider the general economic situation in an objective way and extend its help in restoring to the economy the momentum it seems to have lost". Dealing with the progress of the oil industry, he said the Oil and Natural Gas Commission had created new history in exploration, oil production by ONGC, which now stood at three million tonnes a year, would be doubled in the next few years. By the end of the Fourth Plan, ONGC and Oil India would together produce about 9.5 million tonnes.

^{*} Times of India, 13 November 1967.

Fourteenth National Convention of the Hind Mazdoor Sabha held at Baroda, 2 - 5 December 1967

The 14th National Convention of the Hind Mazdoor Sabha was held at Baroda from 2-5 December 1967. Shri Devan Sen presided over the Session. Among others, the Convention adopted resolutions on wage freeze, trade union activity, bonus, social security and wage boards. resolution on wage freeze adopted by the Convention alerted all trade unions in the country against the efforts of the Central as well as the State Governments to impose under the pressure of big business, a policy of wage freeze on the country. The resolution on trade union unity reiterated that unified movement of the working class representing the biggest organised force in the society could play a decisive role not only in defending workers interest and in promoting social justice but also in preserving and further strengthening the cause of democracy.

The resolution on bonus adopted by Hind Mazdoor Convention called upon the Government of India to bring before Parliament a bill to amend the payment of Bonus Act with a view to

- 1) enhance the rate of minimum bonus payable;
- 2) to clarify that tax as a prior charge is not the national tax payable but the tax payable after taking into account the bonus payable as was the original intention according to the statement of the Labour Minister in Parliament, during the debates on the said bonus law;
- 3) to ensure, through a more carefully worded provisions of the law that past levels of Bonus, determined under the Labour Appellate Tribunal formula or by long standing practice, should not be adversely affected;
- 4) that the rate of return on paid-up capital and reserves should be at rates lower than stipulated in the said Act; and
- 5) Confer the benefits of the Act on employees of Government undertakings too.

Resolution on Social Security. The resolution on social security adopted by the Convention demanded, among other things, that the Government should take immediate steps to

- i) implement the recommendations of the Study Group on Social Security about the integration of the Provident Fund and ESI Scheme and introduction of additional benefits, after discussing them in the Indian Labour Conference,
- ii) to implement the recommendations of the Employees State Insurance Scheme Review Committee;
- iii) to finalise and enact a scheme for unemployment benefit in consultation with the Central Organisations of workers; and
- iv) provide a suitable death/disablement/retirement gratuity scheme for all workers.

Resolution on Wage Boards. The resolution on wage boards urged that

- i) the practice of appointing sitting judges of High Courts or the Supreme Court, as Chairman of Wage Boards should be adopted
- ii) the Wage Boards should be required to submit their decisions expeditiously, and in every case within a time limit of not more than two years;
- iii) it should also be laid down that the date of effect of the wage revision recommended should be from the date of appointment of the wage board or from the date of expiry of the previous wage board's recommendations; and
- iv) the terms of reference to the wage board shall be settled in consultation with the representatives of trade union organisations.

28. Employers? Organisation

Annual Meeting of the Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry held at Calcutta, 18 December 1967

The annual meeting of the Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry was held at Calcutta on 18 December 1967 under the Chairmanship of Mr. C.A. Pitts, the Chamber's President. Among others, the meeting was addressed by Shri Morarji Desai, the Deputy Prime Minister and Finance Minister.

Presidential Address. - In his presidential address Mr. C.A. Pitts pinpoined agricultural failures, over ambitious planning and the ineffectiveness of devaluation as the three major causes of recession and said what was needed was to determine how to take advantage of the bountiful harvests to overcome recession.

Mr. Pitts said that in the short term pood increase in demand for consumer goods and easier food prices would have a lowering effect on the cost of living, and on the balance of payments situation through a decrease in food imports.

In this context, Mr. Pitts suggested, despite the Finance Minister's opposition to it, that if some measure of deficit financing was necessary, then "it should be accepted".

Mr. Pitts felt that a beginning to new investment in projects which were vital to the economic growth of the country was essential if a real and lasting recovery from economic recession was to be put in train. And if some measure of deficit finance was necessary for this, this should be accepted.

Mr. Pitts suggested a lowering of the rates of direct taxation on companies and on individuals. In the present situation such a suggestion might "smack of irresponsibility", but Mr. Pitts averred that he was doing so, not because of a desire for relief for a privileged sector of society, but because the Chamber was convinced that such a step would have a stimulating and expansionist effect effect on savings and investment out of all proportion to the immediate loss of revenue.

Other suggestions made by Mr. Pitts were better returns from public sector investments, the utilization of the knowledge and experience of organized private sector industry and commerce in the formulation of national plans, the mobilization of rural resources and intensification of exports and import substitution.

Mr. Pitts also criticized the provisions of the Patents Bill and the Monopolies Bill, now before Parliament. He felt that the Government would be more apt, if it concentrated on restrictive trade practices, and shelved for some years its proposals on the concentration of economic power.

On labour, Mr. Pitts was happy that, leaving aside West Bengal, there was little unrest in the rest of the country. The Labour administration was one area in which no accusing finger could be pointed to the Government. He was glad that "gheraos" had come to an end. Its continuance would have spelt the death-knell to any expansion of industry in West Bengal, and perhaps an end even to established industry.

Deputy Prime Minister's Speech: The Deputy Prime Minister and Finance Minister, in his address to the Associated Chambers of Commerce and Industry underlined increased food production, mobilization of resources and promotion of exports as the three major problems facing the country. He pointed out that it would not be right for the private industry to say that Government policies were responsible for all this; nor would the Government be right in putting the blame on the people or the private sector. The main question was how to resume the momentum of growth without jeopardizing the chances of a return to economic stability.

In the context of resource mobilization and the need to stimulate investment, Shri Morarji Desai said that the present tax structure had to be given a close look. He agreed with Mr. Pitts that the scope for further simplification and rationalization of the tax structure must be examined. The Government would consider concrete suggestions in this regard. A simple tax system would certainly reduce the burden on the honest tax-payer.

While the Government recognized the role of the private sector the latter would also appreciate that its role in development had a wider social purpose. The legislative action, which might appear to restrict the freedom of action of private enterprise, would also have to be viewed in the larger perspective. In this connexion, he mentioned the Patents Bill and observed that the grant of "everlasting monopoly" of the results of research to any individual or organization would go against the social purpose.

Mr. Desai again reminded his audience of the need to maintain the advance on the agricultural front on the one hand, and to develop industries with export potential on the other.

Mr. Desaid declared that no economic progress was possible unless law and order was preserved. The enthusiasm of the few - whether misguided or otherwise - should not be allowed to disrupt the quiet but steady endeavours being made by many.

Resolutions. The following are some of the important resolutions moved in the meeting:

1) Resolution on agriculture

Moving the resolution on agriculture, Mr. D. Hogg said it was not fully appreciated that ceilings and scientific land management did not go together, for large-scale farming was a prerequisite to scientific management. In view of the fact that cooperative farming had not made much headway and recent trends even in the collectivist countries were towards "de-collectivization" an effective breakthrough in the semi-stagnant sector could be through a policy of establishing joint stock companies to undertake large-scale farming.

The resolution pleaded for an energetic campaign to promote efficient water conservation through major projects but particularly through minor irrigation, including the sinking of wells. It said agro-industries, including those units which provided agricultural inputs and those which processed and marketed agricultural lproduce, should be given a high degree of priority in such matters as the supply of capital, credit and raw materials and in the grant of tax concessions.

2) Resolution on Direct Taxation

Moving the resolution on direct taxation, Mr. John K. John pointed out that an income-tax rate of 70% could hardly enthuse overseas investors to invest in India. The Chambers would, therefore, plead for a reduction in the high rate of tax to create conditions for further foreign investment.

The Chambers recommended that excise duties, which formed the greatest part of indirect taxes, be used by the Government as a more positive and flexible instrument of economic policy. A rationalization of the existing system of collection of excise duties should be made to reduce the inordinately large and costly machinery, reduce the number of resident and supervisory staff, simplify the rules and forms, eliminate procedural delays and reduce the cost of collection. The Chambers also suggested evolution of a suitable machinery whereby manufacturers could obtain a rebate on excise duties paid on constituent items of cost for goods exported to enable exporting manufacturers to compete in world markets; and an effective system of granting rebates on excise duty in return for increased beyond specified levels.

In a tersely worded resolution, keeping in view the "deterioration in labour relations in some of the most industrialized parts of the country", it said the situation was seriously "damaging national prosperity and economic growth". The resolution also condemned The resolution laid equal emphasis gheraos. on "inter-union" rivatry being the most important single cause of failure of labour relations. It stressed the urgent need to speed up existing legal machinery for settling disputes by appointing additional tribunals and putting time limits for them.

The Hindustan Times, 19 December 1967 The Statesman 20 December 1967.

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS

INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

34 Economic Planning Control and Development

Meeting of the National Development
Council held at New Delhi. 1.12.1967
Proposal of Agricultural Income-tax
opposed **

At a meeting of the National Development Council held at New Delhi on 1 December 1967, the Chief Ministers of States rejected the Centre's proposal for an agricultural tax (see pp. 30 of this report)

During the discussion the Chief Ministers expressed their own difficulties about raising resources. Mr. Sukhadia said that his State had reached the saturation point in taxation. He opposed the proposal for an agricultural income-tax and said that theretshould be uniform irrigation charges in Rajasthan, Punjab, Haryana and U.P.

Mr. Brahamananda Reddy felt that the idea of an agricultural income-tax had relevance only for States where cash crops and plantations existed in large areas. He felt it was wrong to imagine that all States had a uniform capacity for resource mobilization.

Mr. V.P. Naik felt that not only would the yield from the proposed agricultural income-tax be small, but would also lead to much harrassment of the farmer.

Mr. S. Nijalingappa was also of the same view. He felt that this tax could be levied only on cash crops.

Mr. C.N. Annadurai felt this was not the time to consider new tax proposals.

The Gujarat Chief Minister, Mr. Hitendra
Desai said that while a "bold attempt" would have
to be made to raise resources the Plan should be
related to realities. What shape mobilization of
resources from the agricultural sector should
take should be left to the States.

Fourth Plan put off by another year and begin from 1969: Economy to be stabilised during 1968-69 *

The Union Government endorsed on 28 November 1967 the proposal of the Planning Commission to put off the finalisation of the Fourth Plan by one more year in view of the continuing uncertainty about the resources, internal and external. It was also decided that the three years between the Third Plan and the postponed Fourth Plan be treated as consolidation Jannual plans.

In deciding to postpone the beginning of the Fourth Plan to 1969-70, the Union Cabinet considered in detail the present economic situation, the likely impact of the measures taken to over-come the current recession, the possible beneficial effects of the bumper harvest this year and the prospects for external assistance. The consensus was that the 1968-69 plan should also be an anual affair mainly to stabilize the This will provide a firm base to economy. make reasonably realistic long-term projections for the formulation of the Fourth Plan. It was also recognized that even this would not be possible unless immediate efforts were made to hold the price line, mobilize savings and channelize investments to priority spheres.

The extremely unsatisfactory resources position generally and that of the States in particular also came up for consideration. The Commission's suggestion for the imposition of an agricultural income-tax so as to mop up the enormous gains expected from the bumper harvest found general support. Since agricultural income is essentially a State subject, it was decided that the proposal should be placed before the NDC.

No precise estimates of the likely yield from agricultural income-tax have yet been made. But there have been unofficial estimates that about Rs.1,000 crores of additional income might be generated in the agricultural economy as a result of bumper food and cash crop production this year.

^{*} The Kindustan Times 29 November 1967.

Study of Economic and Scientific Research Foundation Published: Inflation responsible for recession *

According to a study entitled "Recession and After" published by the Economic and Scientific Research Foundation, the research wing of the Chambers of Commerce and Industry, the main reason for the present recession in manufacturing activity was not the drought but inflation. The foundation says the strategy of demand-induced growth, which maintains as a matter of deliberate policy a level of aggregate demand substantially in excess of the aggregate supply mainly through the creation of paper money to finance excessive Government expenditure and investment, has led to the present "squeeze" in manufacturing activity.

The fact that a large proportion of this expenditure has been generally wastefully used has further aggravated the inflationary situation.

The only effective long-term solution to the recession is a re-casting of the planning strategy to promote and expand real output rather than attempt to lure the economy forward through excess demand.

The foundation cautions that it will be wrong to dismiss the current recession or squeeze as a passing phase or to think that the situation will correct itself automatically as soon as there is an improvement in the food supply. It is also wrong to think that a bigger Plan would remove the squeeze.

^{*} The Times of India 1 November 1967.

Study on Performance of Indian Companies
Published by Economic and Scientific Research Foundation: Profitless Expansion
of Public Undertakings.

According to a recent study entitled "Top 200 Companies" published by the Economic and Scientific Research Foundation, public sector undertakings are expanding in size more rapidly than the private compates but their growth has been unprofitable in terms of returns.

In fact, the leading companies are going through a phase of profitless growth, "which does not augur well for the future of Indian industry, since it is the top companies which set the pace for growth. When they falter the entire industrial sector falters.

The study shows that not a single manufacturing company in the public sector is included among the first 20 according to return or net assets.

According to the study, Indian Oil Corporation, a public sector undertaking, has pushed ahead from 17th place in 1964 to fourth place in 1965 and is surging forward so rapidly that it may soon displae at least one of the private sector steel companies".

The three steel companies continued to lead in the field headed by the State-owned Hindustan Steel which had a sales turnover of Rs.205 crores, followed by TISCO (Rs.123 crores) and Indian Iron Rs.79 crores. The annual turnover of Indian Oil Corporation was Rs.78 crores. The six other companies among the first ten by sales turnover were Hindustan Lever (Rs.71 crores), MMYC (Rs. 68 crores), TELCO (66 crores) Imperial Tobacco (Rs.59 crores), Delhi Cloth Mills (Rs.53 crores) and ACC (Rs.52 crores)

The study points out that while the sales turnover of the top 200 companies increased by 14 per cent during 1965, their net profits actually declined by nearly five per cent from \$\ift(s.121\) crores in 1964 to Rs.115 crores in 1965.

The foundation study is in contrast to a Reserve Bank study which had stated that the net profits of the corporate sector as a whole increased by 4.5 per cent during the same period, along with a nine per cent increase in sales.

Comparing its own study with that of the Reserve Bank, the Foundation says: "The conclusion is inevitable that while the biffger companies are increasing in size - a wholly desirable development reflecting international trend in business growth - the growth has been unprofitable in terms of returns.

Engineering companies form largest group (58) in the list of top 200 companies, followed by textiles (52). The petroleum companies are the largest in unit size in terms of sales, each with an average turnover of Rs.45 crores and the paper companies the smallest

^{*} The Hindustan Times, 18 December 1967 The Statesman 19 December 1967.

50th Session of Indian Economic Conference held at Madras 27 December 1967 *

The 50th Session of the Indian Economic Conference was held at Madras on 27 December 1967. Shri L.K. Jha, Governor of the Reserve Bank inaugurated the Conference. Among others the Conference was addressed by Shri M.V. Mathur, Vice-Chancellor of Rajasthan University. Shri Mathur in his address advocated the constitution of a standing finance commission and an inter-State planning and finance council. Prof. Mathur also said that State-level planning and finance boards should be set up. These steps, he said, would strengthen the planning process, raise additional resources and regulate the flow of Central Funds to the States for Plan and non-Plan purposes.

Prof. Mathur said that the postponement of the Fourth Plan the worsening of the financial position of the States and the altered political complexion of the State Governments necessitated an immediate review of outstanding Union-State financial issues by a Presidential commission. He proposed that the Governor of the Reserve Bank Governor be treated as an ex-officio member of the Planning Commission and a panel of 15 or 20 best brains in the business and professional spheres should be appointed to advise the commission.

Shri L.K. Jha, Governor of the Reserve Bank who inaugurated the Conference said that in underdeveloped countries a chronic shortage of capital coupled with shortage of foreign exchange meant that very few industries were exposed to competition, internal or external. In the absence of free competion, he said, economists had to find out what alternative spur to efficiency could be devised. Another problem, Mr. Jha said, was how to prevent the growth of monopoly in such a situation.

^{*} The Statesman 28 December 1967.

National Credit Council to be set up for assessing credit needs *

The Government of India is considering the formation of a National Credit Council with 20 members. The Council will be a consultative Advisory Body which will assess the credit needs of different sectors of the economy and laying down credit priorities.

The Council will advise the Government and not the Reserve Bank. In that sense the Council's authority will not impinge on the Reserve Bank's powers. Even so, the functions of the Council relating to credit requirements would tend to overlap those of the Reserve Bank. Similarly, the Council's role in working out credit priorities would involve consultation with the Planning Commission.

Both bodies are, therefore represented on the Council to be headed by Mr. Morarji Desai. The Reserve Bank will have on the Council its Governor, Mr. LK. Jha, as its vice-Chairman and the Deputy Governor in charge of agricultural finance Mr. P.N. Damry, as a member. The Secretary of the Reserve Bank Central Board, Mr. Narasimham, will be its Secretary. The Vice-Chairman of the Planning Commission Mr. D.R. Gadgil and the Chairman of the State Bank, Mr. V.T. Dahejia, will also be its members.

^{*} The Statesman
3 December 1967.

Rise in National Income Estimated by Central Statistical Organisation: 37.8 increase in per capita income *

According to a brochure brought out by the Central Statistical Organisation, the net national product at factor cost also known as national income, increased from Rs.13,453 crores in 1960-61 to Rs.20,424 crores in 1964-65.

The per capita income at current prices increased from Rs.310 in 1960-61 to Rs.427.1 in 1964-65. This shows an increase of 37.8% as against an increase of 9.4% at 1960-61 prices.

The gross national product at current market prices increased from Rs.15,137 crores to Rs.23,308 crores during the same period.

^{*} The Statesman 6 November 1967.

Computer Centre opened at New Delhi. 7 November 1967 *

A computer Centre comprising of two computer units was opened at New Delhi on 7 November 1967 which marks the beginning of electronic data processing in Government The Centre was inaugurated by the Deputy Prime Minister, Shri Morarji Desai. The Units are medium sized in operative capacity and are designed for a variety of business and scientific application. The Computer Centre will operate mainly as an open shop for public undertakings and Government departments to get their records organised to expedite routine operations. The operating offices will make their own arrangements for programming, preparation and transfer of data to punch cards that will be fed into the computers for specific operations.

Nearly 30 organisations are ready to use the new facility.

Inaugurating the Centre, Shri Morarji
Desai said the experience of advanced countries showed that the use of computers had increased the employment potential. The Government had assured the employees that no unemployment would be caused by the use of computers and those rendered idle would be provided alternative jobs

He said that in the present world there was no escape from use of electronic devices for processing data. The human mind could do a lot but circumstances were bound to enter into calculations leading to subjective judgments. This could be easily avoided by using machines which arrived at conclusions based on facts devoid of emotions.

^{*} The Hindustan Times 18 November 1967.

Cotton Textile Companies (Management of undertakings and Liquidation or Reconstruction) Bill, 1967

Shri Dinesh Singh, Commerce Minister, Government of India, introduced in the Lok Sabha on 20 November 1967 a Bill to provide in the public interest for the liquidation of cotton textile companies while keeping the undertakings as running concerns or for the reconstruction of cotton textile companies in certain cases and for matters connected thereunder.

According to the statement of Objects and Reasons of the Bill The cotton textile industry provides one of the basic necessities of life and affords gainful employment to millions of people. Over the last few years, this vital industry has been passing through difficult times. Some mills have already had to close down and the continuing economic operation of many others is beset with serious These difficulties have been difficulties. aggravated in many cases by the heavy burden of past debts. The taking over of the management of these mills for a limited time and then restoring them to the original owners has not remedied the situation. Steps, are, therefore, necessary to bring about a degree of rationalisation of the financial and managerial structure of such units with a view to their rehabilitation, so that production and employment may not suffer.

While keeping such financially weak textile mills in operation, the provisions contained in the Bill enable Government to consider their compulsory liquidations or their reconstruction.

Where liquidation is called for, provision has been made for the sale of the undertaking concerned as a running concern at or made above a reserve price which will be fixed by Government after taking into account the financial condition of the companies and other relevant factors. If no satisfactory offer is received, the undertaking will be purchased by Government at the reserve price fixed by it.

Where reconstruction is appropriate Government would prepare a suitable scheme for the purpose. Such a scheme may, inter alia, provide for the appointment of a new Board of Directors, the reduction of the

interests or rights of the members and creditors and for the acquiring of controlling interest in the company by Government. Any loans and advances made to the Company after the Government has started running the undertaking would not however be subject to reduction.

The Bill seeks to give effect to the above proposals.

The Bill was passed by the Lok Sabha on 28 November 1967. During the debate Mr. Dinesh Singh said the Government contemplated to set up a textile corporation. The object was to create under the Government an agency with expertise for running the textile industry.

The corporation would also set up textile mills in the public sector.

Mr. N.K. Somani (Swa-Raj) accused the Government of failing to come to the aid of the faltering mills at the right time.

He said representatives of the Government never provided any positive answers to the problems of the textile industry.

He said that a heavy excise duty combined with decline in the purchasing capacity of the consumer had hit the industry hard. To add to it the prices of cotton had gone up and so had wages.

He was doubtful that the Government would be able to muster necessary expertise to run the mills it proposed to take over.

Mr. P. Ramamurti (CPI (M) - Madras) expressed disappointment with the Bill and said what was needed in the present-day conditions of the textile industry was complete nationalisation.

The second best thing for the Government to do would have been to bring a Bill to confiscate the "sick" mills as a punishment for mismanagement.

Mr. Bedabrata Barua (C - Assam), supporting the Bill, said the Government should come into the textile in a big way.

Mr. Brij Bhushan Lal (JS-U.P.) said existing laws gave the Government ample powers to step in if a mill was mismanaged. The present Bill was really an attempt to nationalize the industry by the back door.

The Commerce Minister, Mr. Dinesh Singh assured the House that both production and employment in the textile industry would be maintained at all costs. The Minister told the House that the Corporation to run the "sick" mills taken over by the Government would consist of experts and not bureaucrats. Labour would be associated with the running of these mills whose boards of management would be reconstructed.

The Rajya Sabha passed the Bill on 11 December 1967. Winding up the debate, Deputy Minister for Commerce, Mohammed Shafi Qureshi said the Bill was intended to safeguard the interests of cotton growers, consumers, management and labour. It was a step towards modernization and "towards achieving a revolution in cotton textile industry.

The Deputy Minister assured that the workers of mills under liquidation proceedings would not be rendered jobless since they would be kept as "running concerns".

The Bill as passed by Parliament received the Assent of the President on 26 December 1967 and was gazetted as Act No. 29 of 1967.

^{*(}The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II, Sec.2, 20 November 1967, pp. 1103-1117; Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II Sec.1, 26 December 1967, PP 363-373)
The Hindu 28.11.67. The Statesman (DeDelhia) 29.11.67 and the Hindustan Times 12.12.1967.)

35. Productivity

Meeting of the Heads of Public Undertakings held at New Delhi, 19 December 1967: Incentive Scheme to be Introduced. *

At a meeting of the heads of public undertakings held at New Delhi on 19 December 1967, Shri M. Chenna Reddy, Union Minister for Steel, Mines and Metals said that several remedial measures were now under preparation to improve relations between management and workers. The present unsatisfactory relations which were causing serious losses in production must end, he felt. The Government proposed to associate labour with the management at all levels in public sector undertakings.

While the Government was now planning a scheme of incentives to all staff of public sector undertakings, including their chairmen, it also proposed to provide deterrent punishment to thos whose performance fell below certain levels.

Mr. Reddy said that he favoured the idea of providing a "statutory set-up" for these undertakings as this would help define the "precise relationship" between Parliament, Government and the project concerned. When the limits of accountability of each project were thus defined, there would be no danger of work being hampered by unnecessary interference in its day-to-day work.

^{*} The Statesman 20 December 1967.

36. Wages

Meeting of the Central Minimum Wages

Advisory Board held at New Delhi, 26

December 1967: A Compromise Minimum

Wage proposed by Union Labour Minister **

A meeting of the Central Minimum Wages Advisory Board was held at New Delhi on 26 December 1967. Addressing the meeting Shri Jaisukh Lal Hathi Union Labour Minister said that the minimum wage will have to be an ad hoc compromise for quite some time to come. He also felt that the minimum wage would have to be fixed with reference to the region and the industry, implying thereby that a statutory minimum wage for the entire country would not be possible in the immediate future. Mr. Hathi said at present there had to be a compromise between needs and the translation of such needs into a statutory minimum wage. Thus what "we can attempt to do right away is to fix what will seem a compromise minimum wage which takes care of the various essential considerations" he added.

Mr. Hathi said the Minimum Wages Act did not spell out the contents of the minimum wage nor did it outline the various elements that should make up the minimum wage.

Mr. Hathi said a minimum wage should not lead to serious unemployment because of the employer; sinability to pay. However, he added "we should make it quite clear that if an employer wishes to engage labour he must be prepared to pay a certain minimum wage, as laid down from time to time".

The Board was also told to make concrete proposals to fix a minimum wage for agricultural labour and to ensure that such a wage is paid in all the States.

^{*} The Statesman, 27 Necember 1967.

Recommendations of Second Wage Board for Cement Industry: Higher Wages suggested *

The second wage board for the cement industry has recommended a minimum wage of Rs.164.60 less Rs.3 for amenities provided, against the present wage of Rs.152.47. It has also increased the minimum house rent allowance from Rs.7.50 to Rs.13 for one category of workers and provided an allowance ranging from Rs.15 to Rs.19.50 for another.

The Wage Board has also suggested guaranteed increments ranging from Rs.10 to Rs.12 for lower grade workers and from Rs.27.50 to Rs.30.50 for higher grade employees.

While the employees representatives had demanded 100 percent neutralization of the increase in the cost of living, the wage board has recommended only 90 per cent neutralization. It has linked DA to the consumer price index and has suggested a fluctuation of Rs.1.49 for every rise or fall of two points in the price index.

The date of operation of the recommendations is April 1, 1967. The board has exempted new factories from the provisions of its report for a period of 18 months from the date they start production. It has however stipulated that these factories will have to bear the additional cost to the extent of 75 per cent of therevised wages.

^{*} The Hindustan Times, 29 November 1967.

Air India Staff to get Bonus: Agreement Concluded with Management.*

An agreement was concluded on 11 November 1967 between Air India and the Air Corporation Employees Union over the 1966-67 bonus issue which had been under negotiations since some time past. Under the terms of the agreement a bonus equal to half the monthly salary for March 1967 will be paid to the employees in addition to the bonus payable under the Payment of Bonus Act, as ex gratia payment.

A month s salary as bonus was paid to the employees for the past three years.

^{*} The Times of India 12 November 1967.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY

INDIA- NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967 41. Agriculture

Rs.31.9 million Sanctioned for Agriculture in Fourth Plan :

The Union Government has approved recently a co-ordinated research and development plan for soils, irrigation, agronomy and engineering.

Sponsored by the Indian Agriculture and Research Institute, the plan is being implemented in co-operation with the universities and agricultural institutes of State Governments. Over Rs. 3.19 crores have been sanctioned for the scheme during the Fourth Plan.

Under the scheme of simple fertilizer trials 75 centres have been planned all over the country. Over Rs.2.26 crores have been sanctioned for the scheme which aims at obtaining scientific information on growth factors in different soils with emphasis on the newly introduced high-yielding crop varieties.

The national demonstration on major food crops is to cost Rs.10 lakhs for the current year over 2,000 demonstrations have been planned. The main object of the scheme is to demonstrate convincingly the modern techniques of obtaining maximum production for the whole year by taking multiple cropping, best varieties of seeds and best agronomic soil and water management practices over plots of one to two acres.

The scheme for research in irrigation in river valley projects areas is aimed at finding out water requirement of crops, to evolve a suitable cropping pattern and to study the inter-relationship of irrigation to other farm practices and properties of soils.

Three centres are to be opened in different parts of the country under the scheme for which Rs.21 lakhs have been approved.

^{*} The Statesman 13 November 1967.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY

INDIA - NOVEMBER - DECEMBER 1967

Щ. Merchant Marine and Fisheries

Dock Workers (Regulation of Employment) Amendment Bill, 1967 *

Shri Jaisukh Lal Hathi, Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India, introduced in the Rajya Sabha on 20 November 1967 a Bill to amend the Dock Workers (Regulation of Employment) Act, 1948.

According to the Statement of Objectives and Reasons of the Bill Dock Workers (Regulation of Employment) Act, 1948, provides mainly for reducing the hardship caused to dock workers on account of the casual nature of their employment. The Act empowers the Central Government, in relation to any major port, and the State Government, in relation to any other port, to make a scheme for the registration of dock workers and regulating the employment of dock workers, whether registered or not, in a port.

So far schemes have been framed for certain specified categories of stevedore labour in the ports of Calcutta, Bombay, Madras, Cochin, Vishakhapatnam and Mormugao, providing for allotment of work by rotation payment of guaranteed minimum wages, attendance allowance, etc.

The actual working of the Act and the schemes made thereunder has made it necessary to make certain amendments in the Act. Though a scheme made under section 3 of the Act may make provision for welfare measures with respect to dock workers, there is no provision in the Act empowering the Central Government to make provision for welfare measures with respect to the staff of the dock labour boards in such a scheme. In order to enable the Board to incur expenditure on welfare measures with respect to its staff, it is proposed to amend suitably sub-section (2) of section 3 of the Act.

At present when a company (including a firm or other association of individuals) commits an offence under the Act, there is no provision making the Director, Manager, etc. of the company liable for the offence. It is proposed to insert a new section in the Act on the lines of section 22C of the Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and similar provision contained in some other labour laws, for making the Directors, Managers, etc., of the companies liable for offences or abetment thereof punishable by schemes framed under the Act.

The Bill seeks to give effect to the amendments proposed above.

⁽The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, Part II Sec. 2, 20 November 1967, pp. 1099-1101)

Hindustan Shipyard Workers to get more Dearness Allowance: Agreement concluded with Board of Directors. *

Following an agreement reached at Visakhapatnam on 30 October 1967 between the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Staff Association, the 56-day old strike by 1,180 workers of the Hindustan Shipyard was called off.

Under the agreement, 93 workers, whose services were terminated, would be taken back immediately into service.

The workers would be paid dearness allowance on par with Central Government employees with retrospective effect from February 1967, and the ad hoc DA increase of Rs.10 being paid from 1 July would be discontinued.

The DA dues for the five months from February to June 1967 would be credited into provident fund account.

The staff members would not be paid salary during the period of strike. They would, however, be paid one month's salary as advance, redeemable in 10 equal instalments. Those not in station would be given reasonable time to join duty.

Meanwhile, the Wage Board for engineering industries would be approached with a request to constitute a separate sub-committee for the purpose of examining the Wage structure of shipyard employees.

The Patriot, 31 October 1967.

National Conference on Shipping, Shipbuilding and Ports held at New Delhi, 16 December 1967

The National Conference on Shipping, Shipbuilding and Ports held its 3 day session at New Delhi on 16 December 1967. Among others, the Conference was addressed by Dr. V.K.R.V. Rao, Minister for Shipping and Transport and Mr. R. Venkataraman, member in Charge of Transport and Shipping in the Planning Commission.

The Conference was of the unanimous view that in the overall interests of the national economy, the ship industry should be given the highest priority.

The Conference took an integrated view of the developments needed in all sectors connected with the shipping industry. With regard to acquisition of additional tonnage a committee of the Conference suggested that adequate allocation of resources be made to the Shipping Development Fund to finance purchase of new vessels. The amount suggested was a minimum of Rs. 20 crores a year.

In view of the difficulty in buying ships on deferred payment basis, the committee recommended that the period for payments of the deferred portion of the price could be reduced. Saying it would be unrealistic to insist that deferred payment terms must be spread over eight to 10 years, it asked the Government to ascertain from the shipbuilding countries the new basis on which orders from India could be accepted.

The committee suggested that where export trade was hampered due to lack of shipping tonnage and where there are distinct possibilities of improvement in exports, the Government should release foreign exchange to buy new vessels.

Mr. R. Venkatraman, member in charge of transport and shipping in the Planning Commission, suggested that since heavy investment on shipbuilding facilities might not be possible in the immediate future, it might be advisable for India to buy at least the larger ships for the present. But this was a matter which has to be looked into, he added.

He said the Planning Commission was fully alive to the problem of development of ports and added that to be able to receive some of the larger vessels which were being built in the world, it would be necessary to concentrate on improvement facilities at three or four major ports instead of attempting to modernize all major ones.

Summing up, Dr. V.K.R.V. Rao, Minister for Shipping and Transport, said it was not proposed to go in for big investment in ship construction for the next three years. He hoped the Vizag shippard would become a profitable concern in three years. For this, its capacity would have to be raised to six ships a year from the present three.

Since resources were scarce, Dr. Rao felt that methods should be evolved to raise them without too much dependence on the Government.

The Statesman, 19 December 1967

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS.

INDIA - NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967.

50. General.

Working Conditions of Labour in Jute Industry: Report of the Indian Jute Mills' Association for 1966*.

The following review of the working conditions of labour in the Jute Industry is summarised from the Report of the Committee of the Indian Jute Mills Association for the year 1966.

General Labour situation .- The industry's production drive received a severe set-back during the year under review owing to the acute shortage of raw jute. Thus the industry had to face a period of the difficulty which inevitably had some impact on the general labour situation. After exhausting all means of alleviating the jute shortage without exposing the workers to the risk of large-scale displacement, the mills were ultimately obliged to resort to a six-day block closure. With a view to minimising the effect on the labour, lay-off compensation for the period of the block closure was paid to the workers on a more liberal basis than is prescribed by the law. Nevertheless, some labour unrest could not be avoided over this issue, and demands for lay-off compensation by some workers in spite of their ineligi. bility for it led to indiscipline and riotous activities in a number of mills.

^{*} Indian Jute Mills: Association: Report on the Committee for the Year ending 31st December, 1966: 1967: pp.vi+XXXI+182.

Apart from the political stimulus which usually encourages agitational activities during a pre-election year, there appeared to be an environment of growing indiscipline throughout the country. The food shortage and the continuous rise in the cost of living aggravated the situation. The position was made wrose by the leftist parties, whose calls for general strikes were the cause of 91 per cent. of the work stoppages in the jute mills during the year under review. of violence which followed one of the general strikes created a serious law and order problem warranting the imposition of a curfew in many areas. As a result a number of jute mills suffered a further loss of production.

Multiple machine assignments, such as the operation of two looms or two spinning frames by one man, are no longer new in the industry. Yet, in the eventof labour unrest, it was noticed that the trade unions incited the workers to stop such operations even though the dispute was not connected with multiple machine assignments. Another way of causing difficulty was to incite the night-shift workers to stop work over the demand for a night-shift allowance or a reduction of working hours without a corresponding drop in wages in spite of the fact that these demands had been duly considered and negatived by the Wage Board.

It is against the background of general unrest prevailing in the country that the work stoppages in jute mills have to be seen and the fact that only 9 per cent. of the stoppages during the year were connected with industrial disputes says a great deal for the standard of labour relations maintained in the industry.

In order that the jute mill employees might continue to enjoy the benefit of a bonus before the Pujas holidays in West Bengal, and to maintain a standard practice in the industry within the ambit of the Payment of Bonus Act, the Association in consultation with the Government of West Bengal advised member mills in West Bengal to follow previous year's practice by paying to their employees in 1966 the minimum bonus prescribed by the Act as an interim bonus payment.

Bonus to jute mill workers was paid up to 1964 on the basis of the unanimous recommendations of the Central Wage Board for the Jute Industry. Ignoring the fact that the recommendations of the Wage Board are to remain effective up to 31 December 1967, the unions contended that bonus in 1964 was payable on the basis of the formula prescribed in the Bonua Ast by virtue of Section 33 of the Payment of Bonus Act stipulating a retrospective application of the Act in some specified cases. The dispute was ultimately referred to the Second Industrial Tribunal, West Bengal, for adjudication.

The Tribunal awareded awarded that "the bonus payable to workers in jute mills for the year 1963-64 cannot be regulated or determined in accordance with the provisions of the Bonus Act 1965 and the Tribunal can only accept the other alternative, namly, bonus payable to the workers employed in jute mills for the year 1963-64 must be regulated and determined in accordance with the recommendations of the Central Wage Board for the Jute Industry." The controversy regarding the payment of bonus to jute mill workers in 1964, which was started by the unions soon after the acceptance by Government of the Report of. the Bonus Commission with certain modifications and which was also discussed by the Industrial Committee on Jute in 1964 and 1965, thus came to an end.

The Association's Labour Department. The role of the Association's Labour Department in the sphere of labour-management relations continued to be as effective as before. The Labour Department maintained constant touch with all units and kept the Association informed of the genefal labour situation either daily or weekly according to circumstances. The tribunal awards, labour laws and judicial verdicts on labour matters were constantly scrutinised by the Labour Department explaining their implications and devising a standard procedure mainter for their application by member mills so as to ensure the maintenance by the units of a uniform labour policy.

Officers of the Labour Department devoted a considerable part of their time to attending joint conferences, both bipartite and tripartite, in resolving various disputes which might otherwise have resulted in major industrial unrest or have been sent for adjudication.

A number of night offices established in the jute mill areas were fully utilised by the Association's Area Labour Officers in redressing various types of grievances by holding discussions directly with the workers or their trade union leaders. cussions held at the night offices, as well as at the Association's headquarters, ironed out many points of misunderstanding which could have given rise to labour unrest. Complaints recorded attne night offices, and those forwarded by the Labour Directorate, were speedily enquired into by the Association's Area Labour Officers, and the necessary remedial action in the light of their findings was taken without delay. Another aspect of the activities of the Association's Labour Department is the constant vigilance on all matters affecting labour-management relations and the timely preventive steps taken to guard against potential vulnerability.

With the growing appreciation of the value of joint negotiations, more and more disputes are now settled through bipartite and tripartite agreements in which the Association's Labour Department is not only brought into the matter but called upon to play a leading role.

The absence of proper negotiating machinery on behalf of the labour is, however, often felt. Because of a multiplicity of unions and interunion rivalry, there is no particular union in the jute industry which can claim to represent the generality of workers. The trade unions therefore have no official recognition, but the Association has an opendoor policy for all unions and deals with any union for the settlement of disputes, as and when the situation so warrants.

The Association's Labour Department Officers are in charge of the administration of group welfare centres in the jute mill areas where various welfare activities are organised. They also act as secretaries of a number of welfare organisations functioning in different areas for the promotion of labour welfare.

Strikes and Lockouts. The number of strikes and/or lockouts in the jute industry and the consequent loss of man-hours in each of the past five years if given below:

Year	Number of Strikes and/or Lockouts	Man-hours lost
1962	11	4,640,483
1963	15	2,104,280
1964	86	5,870,328
1965	30	5,600,487
1966	145	11,595,834

The total man-days-it man-hours lost due to work stoppages for the year 1966 increased considerably to a figure that has been the highest in the last decade. There were 145 stoppages resulting in a loss of 11,595,834 man-hours in the previous year. It may be noted that 91 per cent. of these stoppages (i.e. 132 stoppages), involving 538,857 workmen and a loss of 4,497,694 man-hours, were not connected with any industrial dispute but were brought about by the calls for general strikes on 10 March, 7 April and on 22 and 23 September as protests against the Government's food policy.

The remaining 13 stoppages, involving 49,620 workmen and a loss of 7,098,140 man-hours, were connected with industrial disputes in individual mills. Rowdy and indisciplined conduct, intermittent strikes, go-slow tactics etc. accounted for three of these stoppages. Protests against the issue of charge-sheets, the dismissal of some workers, a reorganisation of work etc. accounted for five other stoppages. An illegal strike and riotous conduct on the papt of a large section of non-permanent workers in support of their demand for lay-off compensation for the period of the block closure without qualifying for this benefit was responsible for another stoppage. Intermittent strikes by the night-shift workers of a mill to press their demand for the rotation of shifts and a night-shift allowance etc. caused one more stoppage of long duration. Another workstoppage was brought about by the workers of a mill demanding his the recall of a mill labour officer who had submitted his regignation. Demand for the dismissal of the canteen manager, and insistence on the part of the workers of a mill to keep the unit closed during the block closure as against the management's decision to keep it running, were the reasons for the remaining two stoppages.

In addition to the foregoing stoppages
threw therewere also 30 short duration
sectional stoppages during the year. Protests
against warnings and suspension orders, claims
for reversion to time rate, dissatisfaction
with the quality of yarn, demands for lay-off
compensation for the period of block closure
by the non-permanent workers who did not qualify
for such benefit, a refusal by spinners to work
on parir pair frames, and the apprehension of
a shrinkage of employment prospects for budli
hands etc. were some of the reasons for these
short duration sectional stoppages.

Paid Holidays. In pursuance of the award of the Second Omnibus Tribunal the jute mills in West Bengal, as in the past, granted nine festival holidays. An additional holiday with pay was granted by the mills on 12 January 1966, because of the death of the Prime Minister.

Works Committees. The Works Committees which have been functioning in the mills since 1947 continued to serve as a valuable medium of communication between labour and management. These committees not only helped the management to solve, many day to day problems but also rendered invaluable services in times of major labour troubles. Works Committees were also utilised for the purpose of obtaining a fair assessment of the workers reactions to the various management policies and decisions.

On the expiry of the terms of office of the Works Committees fresh elections were held in seventeen mills during the year. The importance of these committees was also evident from the keen interest taken by the various trade unions in securing representation on these committees through their nominees. An analysis of the composition of the existing Works Committees reveals that 29.5 per cent. of the elected members are the nominees of the INTUC, 24.7 per cent. of the ATTUC and 11.7 per cent. of the other unions functioning in the jute mill areas. The remaining 34.1 per cent. are independent candidates without any declared pelicy party affiliation.

Industrial Health. Industrial Health remained generally satisfactory during the year. A few cases of chicken-pox and small-pox, however, were reported from the jute mill areas; but there was no outbreak of a small-pox or cholera epidemic due to the usual steps taken by the mill managements for mass vaccination and innoculation.

With the commencement of the 'benefit period' in the Hooghly District from August 1966 all the jute mills in West Bengal came under the full purview of the Employees' State Insurance Scheme, and mills were no longer required to pay sick leave pay as stipulated by the award of the Omnibus Tribunal. Absenteeism due to sickness showed an appreciable increase due to the workers taking advantage of the sickness benefit under the Employees' State InsuranceScheme.

Social and Welfare Activities.— The promotion of social and welfare activities in the jutemill areas continued during the year 1966 to be part of the social work programmes of the Association and its member mills.

As in the past, the Association's Welfare Centres offered facilities to the workers for the proper utilisation of their spare time. These centres conducted various activities in the social, educational, recreational as well as cultural fields and to supplement these activities the network of welfare centres run by individual mills also functioned effectively.

Indoor and outdoor games, reading rooms, libraries, radio programmes, physical culture classes, athaetics, music lessons, dramatic societies, etc., were some of the attraction of the welfare centres which were well patronised by the workers and their dependants; special programmes on the occasion of important national or festival holidays were also organised.

The promotion of education amongst the workers' children has been one of the chief functions of the Association's Welfare Centres since their inception. Free primary schools attached to these centres catered for a large number of workers' children.

The family planning campaign, which was initiated at the instance of the Association's Labour Department last year, has been successful in bringing home to both employees and employers the importance of family planning. Propaganda work through the media of cinema show, talks hand-bills, posters, etc. continued throughout the year. Over one hundred trainees (both men and women) from various mills joined a three-day

family planning orientation camp organised by the Howrah Town Jute Mills Welfare Association. Encouraged by the workers' response another camp was organised and a group of 73 workers from three mills attended a three-day family planning orientation camp organised by the of the mills. In collaboration with the Central Ministry of Health and the State Publicity Department, one mill organised a family planning exhibition and orientation camp for three days. Dr. Jack Lippes, the inventor of "the loop" inaugurated a family planning unit at another mill on 29 May.

To observe India Productivity Year the Howrah Town Jute Mills' Welfare Association organised a symposium at Fort William Mill on 6 January when the different aspects of productivity were discussed. The symposium was attended by the mill managers, personnel officers and supervisors of a number of mills in the Howrah Anout one thousand workers of Barnagore District Mill attended a meeting on productivity on 7 January when an oath to the effect that every effort would be made to increase productivity was taken by the participants. Special meetings of the Works Committees of a number of mills. stressing the need for an organised effort to increase productivity were also convened.

In pursuance of a programme organised by the Central Board of Workers' Education, unit level classes were opened for the training of workers in a number of mills.

Employees' Provident Fund Rules - In order to bring the existing Jute Mills Workers' Provident Fund Rules into line with the corresponding provisions in the Statutory Provident Fund Scheme various amendments had to be made. These amendments were the subject matter of a series of discussions between the Association and the Provident Fund Authorities. As a result the proposed amendments to the Jute Mill Workers' Provident Fund Rules were submitted to the Provident Fund Authorities for approval. After the Rules had been duly approved by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, and after the formal adoption of the amendments by their respective Boards of Trustees, member mills in West Bengal gave effect to the amended Rules from 1 June 1966.

Employees' State Insurance Scheme. The Employees' State Insurance Scheme was extended to the district of Hooghly from 31 October 1965. The benefit period under the scheme, however, started in that district from August 1966. As from that date all jute mills in West Bengal were no longer obliged to make sick leave payments to workers in accordance with the award of the Omnibus Tribunal.

Widespread dissatisfaction amongst the workers due to inadequate medical facilities provided by the scheme caused serious concern amon g mill managements, as this often resulted in agitation culminating in demonstrations against the mill authorities.

The administration of the medical benefits scheme suffered from a number of inadequacies which gave rise to many genuine grievances viz., a shortage of panel doctors, a shortage of hospital beds, a lack of specialist's treatment, the resusal of approved chemists' shops to supply medicines, the inadequate stock of medicines, the absence of ESI officers for the ambulances, the location of hospitals and specialists' centres at long distances from the mill areas etc.

Factories Act, 1948. By a notification dated 28 December 1965, the Government of West Bengal extended for a further period of one year, the permission to employ women in the departments from batching to winding and handsewing at any time between the hours of 5 a.m. and 10 p.m. in all jute mills which, on account of inadequacy of machinery, had to work doubleshift to supply yarn to their looms.

Apprentices Rules, 1962. By a Notification No.91(1)/62-ET dated 5 October 1966, the Government of India amended sub-rule (1) of Rule 7 of the Apprenticeship Rules, 1962 as a result or which the minimum stipend payable to an apprentice under the Act has been revised.

Industrial Tribunals, High Courts, etc. Of the fourteen cases referred to the industrial tribunals for adjudication during the year, "no dispute" awards were given in respect of two cases on account of the failure of the unions concerned to pursue the disputes any further. Another case relating to the dismissal of two workmen was settled out of court; and the remaining eleven cases were pending at the end of the year under review.

Awards in respect of seven cases pending before different industrial tribunals at the end of 1965 were published during 1966. The terms of settlement arrived at by the parties concerned were incorporated in one of these awards. other cases "no dispute" awards were given as the workers' representatives failed to appear before The issue involved in two more cases the tribunal. related to the dismissal of individual workmen and the award in one of them went against the management for their failure to substantiate the charge of habitual neglifence or neglect of work; but the management has moved the High Court against this award. In adjudicating in another dispute relating to the demand of the weavers for the abolition of night-shift work the Tribunal held that the workers concerned "cannot certainly ask the company to stop working of the night-shift altogether. What they can demand and get is that they should not be made to work in the night-shift" and be allowed to work in two shifts in the same manner as they were working till March 1963. In another award the tribunal reinstated five workmen with arrear wages on the ground that subpension for an indefinite periodwithout an enquiry amounted to substantive punishment and violated the principles of natural justice.

One hundred one applications under Section 33(2) (b) were filed during the year, out of which only five were heard by the tribunal. As the tribunal has refused approval in one of these applications the management has filed an appeal before the High Court. The remaining four applications received the approval of the tribunal.

In a case in 1965 involving three mills, the Special Industrial Tribunal was of the opinion that the closure of the mills consequent upon the strikes by budli hands amounted to lockouts which, though not illegal, were unjustified. In the circumstances, the Tribunal directed that the permanent workers in all the three mills should be given 50 per cent. of their wages for the period of the closure. The appeal which was preferred last year against the judgment is yet to be disposed of by the Supreme Court.

Labour Conditions in the Air-Craft Building and Repairing Industry in India*: Results of a case Study Published.

The results of a case study undertaken by the Labour Bureau on labour conditions in the air-craft building and repairing industry in India have been published in November 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal.

In order to ensure comparability, data in respect of employment from all the three units selected for the survey were collected. The total number of persons employed in the three units on 30 June 1961 was 79, 23 and 59 respectively. Their distribution according to the internationally accepted classification of occupations is given in the following table:

Units	Total No.of Work- ers.		trative, as Executive, and Manage- rial Personnel.	nd to Related Re Workers Wo (includ- o ing	ion & elated orkers (includ- ing Super-	Services.
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
III III	79 23 59	11.4 13.0 5.1		5.1 8.7 &&x4:1.7	79.7 78.3 86.4	3.8 - 5.1

None of the three units had any woman or child worker on their roll on 30 June 1961.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol.VIII, No.11, November 1967, pp. 981-1002,

The Time-rated and Piece-rated Workers. None-The system of employing workers on piece-rate basis was not found prevalent in any unit and all the workers employed were time-rated. Workers were not employed through contractors in any of the three units surveyed.

System of Recruitment. The services of Employment Exchanges had been utilised on a fairly large scale as all the employees in Unit No.II and nearly 89 per cent. in Unit No.I had been so recruited. In the third unit, on the other hand, about 95 per cent. of the employees had been recruited directly at the factory gate. The remaining workers, i.e., ll and 5 per cent. in Units I and III respectively had been recruited through advertisement.

The overall absenteeism rate during the year July 1960 to June 1961, was quite high (19.0 per cent.) in Unit No.II as compared to that in the other two units. Month to month variations in the rate of absenteeism were quite marked in all the three units and could be attributed to factors such as festivals, marriages, hot weather, etc. None of the three units had adopted any measure to reduce absenteeism except that disciplinary action in the event of unauthorised absence could be taken.

Training and Apprenticeship. No regular schme for the training of apprentices existed in any of the units surveyed. In Unit No.III, however, 15 nominees of the Air Technical School were found to be under training as mechanics on an ad hoc basis. The period of training varied from 6 to 12 months. Only 5 of these apprentices were being given a stipend of Rs.75 per month each while the rest were unpaid. There was no contract, written or verbal, between the apprentices and the management nor was employment after the completion of training guaranteed.

Wage Revisions. In Unit No.I, only one wage revision was made to implement the recommendations of the Commission of Enquiry on Emoluments and Conditions of Service of Central Government Employees, appointed by the Government of India in 1957. In Unit No.II, wages had been revised twice, once with effect from 1 April 1958 when under the National Industrial Tribunal Award, an interim relief of Rs.5 per month in the shape of dearness allowance was given to employees drawing up to Rs.250 per month as basic pay, and for the second time with effect from 1 April 1960 as a result of a collective agreement, which revised the minimum and the maximum wage rates as follows:

Before Revision

After Revision

Minimum Wage Rate

Baisc Pay Rs. 50-2-80

Rs • 50-3-59-4-75-5-90

Dearness Allowance Rs.23.00 p.m.

Rs.40.00 p.m.

Maximum Wage Rate

Basic Pay Rs.340-15-550

Rs.355-15-400-20-600

Dearness Allowance Rs.78 p.m.

Rs.125.00 p.m.

Earnings. Information relating to man-days worked and the basic wages, dearness allowance allowance and other allowances earned by workers during June 1961, was collected separately for All-Workers, 'Production Workers', 'Lowest-Paid Production Workers', 'Clerical Staif' and 'Watch and Ward' and 'Other Services'. The average daily earnings of different categories of employees are given in the following table:-

Units	All Workers*	Production Workers	Lowest-Paid Production Workers	Clerical and Related Workers (including Suppervisory Staff)	Watch and Ward and Other Services
	2	3	4	5	6
I III	10.83 19.55 10.39	8.50 13.51 9.85	3.33 7.41 2.87	6.56 9.68 11.07	3.85 3.61

^{*} Including 'Professional and Technical' and 'Administrative, Executive and Managerial' Personnel.

Taking into account all the categories of workers, the average daily earnings were the highest (Rs.19.55) in Unit No.II. In the case of 'Production Workers' also the average daily earnings were quite high (Rs.13.51) in Unit No. II as compared to those of others. The highest higher average daily earnings of 'All Workers' as compared to 'Production Workers', in each unit, were obviously dus to the impact of higher pay of 'Professional, Technical and Related Personnel'. In Unit No.III, the earnings of the clerical staff, which were more than those of the 'Production Workers', could also be responsible for pushing up the average daily earnings of 'All Workers'. The 'Lowest-Paid Production Workers' earned, on an average, Rs. 7.41 in Unit II, Rs.3.33 in Unit No.I and Rs.2.87 in Unit No.III. They were employed as Cleaners.

Assistant Air Craft Mechanics and Junior Cleaners in the three units respectively. The earnings of 'Clerical Staff' were the highest (Rs.11.07) in Unit No.III and the lowest (Rs.6.56) in Unit No.I. 'Watch and Ward Staff' employed in Unit Nos. I and III only, earned Rs.3.85 and Rs.3.61 per day respectively. Dearness allowance in addition to basic wages was being paid in Unit Nos.I and II only. The rate of dearness allowance in both the units, varied according to income slabs. In Unit No.II it varied from Rs.40 to Rs.125 per month and in Unit No.I from Rs.10 to Rs.20 per month.

Working Conditions.— Hours of Work,— The number of hours worked daily was 7 in Unit No.1, 6 hours 50 minutes in Unit No.II and 8 hours in Unit No.III. The total number of hours worked each week was 42, 34 hours and 10 minutes and 48 hours respectively. In Unit No.III, for night shift workers also the hours of work were the same. Rest interval of half an hour was being allowed to workers in all the three units. In Unit No.I, in particular, workers employed in the general shift enjoyed a total rest of 1½ hours allowed at three different timings in the shift.

Dust and Fumes. Battery charging in Unit No.II and Welding in Unit No.III were the only two processes reported to be giving off fumes, vapours or gases. As a precautionary measure these processes had been isolated in both the units. Besides, local exhaust ventilation had also been provided in the first Unit. The general house-keeping of the places where these processes were being carried on, was found to be good.

Seating Arrangements. Seating arrangements for workers obliged to work in a standing position, as required under the Factories Act, had been provided in Unit No. To only. In Unit Nos. II and III it was stated that no such arrangements were made as the workers were not required to work at any fixed place, but had to move about in the factory.

Conservancy. Adequate number of latrines and urinals had been provided by all the three units and they were found to have been exceed screened properly. The typeof latrines provided was water-borne sewer in Unit No.I and water borne septic tank in the other two units. Water taps, in or near the latrines, were also found to have been provided in all the three units. All the latrines and urinals provided were permanent constructions with impervious floors and plastered walls.

Earned Leave. All the three units were granting earned leave to their workers employees. In Unit No.I, the leave was admissible to all workers as per Central Government Rules. In Unit No.II, the number of days allowed in a year was 30 and all employees after one year of service we re entitled to it. In Unit No.III, all the permanent workers who had completed one year's service were eligible for 15 days earned leave in a year.

Sick Leave. In Unit No.I, sick leave was permissible as per Central Government Rules. In Unit No.II, all employees after completion of one year's service were entitled to 10 days' sick leave in a year at full basic pay and dearness—allowance. In the shird Unit, all permenent employees, on production of medical certificate, were entitled to 14 days sick leave in a year, at half the normal rate of pay.

Casual Leave. Ten days' casual leave in a year was being allowed, without any condition, to all employees in Unit No.II and to permanent workers only in Unit No.III. In Unit No.I it was admissible as per the Central Government Rules.

Festival and National Holidays.— The number of festival and national days holidays allowed in a year was 18 in Unit No.I, 15 in Unit No.II and 12 in Unit No.III. As against all employees in the first two Units, only permanent workers and paid apprentices in the third Unit were entitled to these holidays with pay. Condition such as attendance on the preceding and/or succeeding day was insisted upon in Unit Nos.I and III only for purposes of pay for holidays.

Weekhy Offs. A weekly day of rest with pay was being allowed to all workers in Unit No.I and II and to permanent workers and paid apprentices only in Unit No.III. Temporary workers in a latter unit were generally working on all the days in a month but could avail of an unpaid weekly off if they so desired.

Recreation Facilities.— Arrangements for the recreation of workers existed in Unit No.I only where facilities for indoor games such as carrom, table tennis, playing cards and chess wereavailable. Since only those workers who paid the prescribed subscription of Rs.3 per month could avail of this facility, in practice, it was virtually limited to officers. Besides organising film shows and religious/social functions, the unit had also provided a radio set. All these facilities were being financed solely by the contribution of the members. For the management of these facilities a committee, consisting of elected representatives

of the workers, had been constituted. In Unit No.III, although no regular arrangements for the recreation of workers existed, the management organised a religious function, i.e., Vishwa Karama Puja each year.

Education Facilities. In none of the three dnits, the management had provided any facility either for adult education of for the education of workers' children.

Medical Facilities.— A hospital was being run by the management in Unit No.I only. It was manned by two full time doctors (one male and one female) assisted by 7 nurses, 2 nursing orderlies and 2 ward boys. Unit No.II was covered under the Employees' State Insurance Scheme and as such the management had not provided any medical facility of their own. In the third unit, the management had entered into a contract with a medical practitioner for attending to workers in the event of sickness and accident. The cost of the medicines was generally borne by the workers and, in only exceptional cases, by the management.

Housing Facilities .- Only in Unit No.I, the management had provided housing accommodation to about 72 per cent. of its employees. Of a total of 57 houses provided, 13 were one room tenements, 31 two-room tenements and each of the remaining 13 houses consisted of three rooms. One room tenements were usually given to low-paid employees like peons, store orderlies, assistant air-craft mechanics, etc. Two-roomed tenements were meant for general production workers. Officers and supervisory production workers were accommodated in three-roomed houses. All one room tenements were free of rent. For two-roomed tenements. the rent charged was 5 per cent. of basic wages for some employees and 10 per cent. for some others. Those allotted three-roomed houses were charged 10 per cent of basic wages. Facility of loan for house building was available to employees in Unit NosI and II.

Provident Fund Scheme .- The survey has shown that the benefits of a contributory provident fund scheme were available to workers in Unit No.II only. All employees, after the completion of one year's service, were required to become members and contribute 8-1/3 per cent. of their basic pay. The management were also contributing an equal amount. On the specified date (30 June 1961) all the 23 employees were members of this fund. In Unit No.I, also there was a provident fund scheme but of a non-contributory type. Under this scheme, all employees, after completion of one year's continuous service, were required to contribute at the rate of 61 per cent, of basic pay. The third unit had been exempted from the introduction of provident fund scheme on the ground that it was

not a manufacturing unit.

Pension Schemes. Only in Unit No.I the employees were entitled to the benefit of pension as per the Central Government pension Rules. No information was available respect in respect of the beneficiaties in this unit on the specified date.

Gratuity Schemes.— Gratuity schemes were in force in Unit Nos. 1 and IJI only. In the first unit, gratuity was payable as per the Central Government Rules. In the other unit, there was a regular gratuity scheme applicable to all permanent employees excluding Supervisory, Technical, Administrative and Managerial Personnel getting more than Rs.500 per month as total salary at the time of retirement. Gratuity was payable only after completion of 15 years' service except in the cases of death and retirement on medical grounds. The rate of gratuity payable was as follows:-

I. On Retirement:

- (i) On completion of ly years or more but less than 20 years of service \frac{1}{2} month's basic wages for each completed year of service.
- (ii)On completion of 20 years or more hut less than 25 years of service - 3/5th of a month's basic wages for each completed year of service.
- (iii) On completion of 25 years or more of service 3/4th of a month's basic wages for each completed year of service.

II. Death: On Death:

- (i) Before completing 15 years of service † month's basic wages for each completed year of service.
- (ii) After completing 15 years of service At the scale mentioned against items I(i), I(ii) and I(iii) above.
- III. On Approved Voluntary Resignation. At the rate scale mentioned at I(i), (ii) and (iii) above.

TV. Termination of Service by the Employers on Medical Grounds:

- (i) Before the completion of 15 years of service 1/3rd of a month's basic wages for each completed year of service.
- (ii) On completion of 15 years of service At the scale mentioned against items I(i),(ii) and

No information was available in respect of the beneficiaries in the units, on the specified date.

Industrial Accidents.— Information about the industrial accidents that took place during the period from July 1960 to June 1961 was also collected. It was reported that in Unit No.II only one accident had taken place which resulted in temporary diability of a single worker involved, in it. However, no accident register, as required under the Factories Act, 1948 was being maintained In Unit No.III, too, no accident register was being maintained while such information in respect of Unit No.I was not available.

It was reported that in none of the three units, workers suffered from any occupational diseases.

Industrial Relations: Trade Unionism. - Workers were organised into trade unions in all the three units. It appears that the trade unions functioning in these units were quite popular as all the employees in Unit No.I, 87 per cent. in Unit No.II and over 86 per cent. in Unit No.III were members of the unions. The Nowhere, any multiplicity of trade unions was observed. The unions functioning in each of the unit was registered under the Indian Trade Unions Act, 1926, but was not affiliated to any Central Trade Union Organisation. Only in Unit No.III the management had not recognised the trade union functioning in the unit, on account of the latter's allegedly hostile attitude.

As regards the activities of the trade unions, in Unit No.I its main contribution was towards providing relief to workers suffering from certain dangerous diseases like tuberculosis. In Unit No.II, the trade union was mainly preoccupied with securing redress of the workers' grievances. In the third unit, however, besides securing claims of workers under the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947, the union also rendemed relief in certain acute cases of sickness.

Collective Agreements. Information about the collective agreements concluded in the unit since 1956 was also collected. It was found that such agreements had been concluded in Unit Nos. II and III only. In the former unit, of the two agreements concluded, one related to revision of wages and the other covered items such as allowances, leave, medical facilities, uniforms, housing, recruitment, etc. In the latter unit, four agreements had been concluded which covered items such as grant of advances at the time of festivals, issue of appointment letters in the prescribed form, formulation of gratuity scheme and grant of national and festival holidays.

Standing Orders.— In Unit No.I there were no Standing Orders as such butthe employees' service conditions were governed by the Central Government Conduct Rules. In Unit No.II, the Standing Orders framed under the Air Corporation Act, 1953, were duly approved by the Government of India and covered Production Workers, Clerical and Watch and Ward staff. In the third unit, Standing Orders framed under the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders)Act, 1946, were duly certified and covered Production Workers, Clerical and Watch and Ward Staff.

Labour Cost.-Information pertaining to labour cost was collected in respect of employees covered under the Factories Act, 1948, and receiving less than Rs. 400 per month as wages. This study was modelled on the lines of the Study of Labour Cost in the European Industry made by the International Labour Office in 1956, with suitable modifications. In order to have a clearer picture in respect of labour cost, salaries and allowances, etc., of personsemployed in connection with the provision of any of the welfare amenities, etc., were not included under the general heads 'wages' and 'other cash payments' but recorded against the particular item of welfare amenities, etc. for which they were employed. The information was collected for a period of one year i.e. April 1960 to March 1961 in the case of Unit Nos. I and II and July 1960 to June 1961 in the case of the third unit.

Fourteenth Session of Indian Conference of Social Work held at Madras, 27 December 1967

The 14th Session of the Indian Conference of Social Work was held at Madras on 27 December 1967. The Session was inaugurated by Shri Ujjal Singh, Governor of Madras. Among others the Session was addressed by Mrs. Mary Clubwala Jadhav, retiring President of the Indian Conference of Social Work and Dr. P.V. Cherian, Governor of Maharashtra.

About 325 delegates from different parts of India besides half a dozen observers from foreign countries attended the Conference.

The theme for the Conference was "Social Welfare and Human Rights"

Addressing the Conference Mrs. Mary Clubwala Jadhav, retiring President of the Indian Conference of Social Work, said that in a country where thirst for doing good to others was considered a self-imposed duty, social work, as a subject dealing and working with people rather than for them, had had to fight and uphill task. From a forum-oriented organisation in 1947 to a function-oriented one to-day, the Indian Conference of Social Work had evolved itself, meeting the demands of the times.

She said it was the Indian Conference of Social Work which was instrumental in pressing the demand for the establishment of Ministries of Social Welfare at the Central and State levels. The Indian Conference had undertaken special studies of social problem. A study of juvenile delinquency in India, and a study on beggard in Bombay, were some of the activities in the past. It had recently completed two studies, namely 'Employment Position and Functions of Trained Social Workers' and 'Evaluation of Institutional Programmes under Bombay Children's Act, with special reference to After-Care'.

Dr. P.V. Cherian, Governor of Maharashtra said the physically handicapped section of the community had not received as much attention and expertise as had been given to it in other parts of the world. He had an opportunity of

knowing in detail the excellent work that was being done in this field in Madras and Bombay. The Workshop for the Blind and the Fellowship of the Physically Handicapped were among the leading institutions in Bombay. A special centre for rehabilitation of the war wounded had been started in Mahrashtra and was working well. handicapped wanted was specialised training in suitable skills and an opportunity to stand on their own. It was here that social workers could be of the maximum use. They could organise institutions where training could be given to such people in things they could do as well as other people.

> *The Hindu, 28 December 1967

Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments (Amendment) Act, 1967. (No.19 of 1967)*

The Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments (Amendment) Bill (vide pages 40-42 of the report of the office for May-June 1967) as passed by the Madhya Pradesh Legislature received the Assent of the President on 17 October 1967 and has been gazetted as Madhya Pradesh Act No. 19 of 1967. The amendment Act makes a number of amendments to the Act of 1958 and a brief summary of the more important amendments is given below.

Hours of work of employees in shops or commercial establishments are limited to 48 hours in a week. The daily hours of work of employees in a shop are limited to nine hours in any day and in commercial establishments ten hours on any day.

Employers in residential hotels and theatres or places of public assessment or entertainment should give their employees an identity card containing the following particulars

a) the name of the employer;

b) the name, if any, and the postal address, of the establishment;

c) the name and age of the employee;
 d) the hours of work, the interval for rest, if any, and the holiday of the employee;

e) the signature (with date) of the employer

f) the identity mark of an employee; and

g) signature or thumb impression of the employee.

Employment of Children, young persons and women. For VI chapter of the Act of 1958 a new chapter IV has been substituted.

No thild shall be required or allowed to work whether as an employee or otherwise in any establishment, notwithstanding that such child is a member of the family of the employer. No young person or woman shall be required or allowed to work whether as an employee or otherwise in any establishment before 7 a.m. and after 9 p.m. notwithstanding that such young person or woman is a member of the family of the employer.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Act no young person shall be required or allowed to work whether as an employee or otherwise, in any establishment for more than five hours in any day.

No young person shall be required or allowed to work whether as an employee or otherwise, in any establishment for more than three hours in any day unless he has had an interval for rest of at least half an hour.

No young person or woman working in any establishment, whether as an employee or otherwise, shall be required or allowed to perform such work as may be declared by the State Government, by notification, to be work involving danger to life, health or morals.

Other provisions of the Act deal inter alia with enhanced penalty in certain cases after previous conviction, summary disposal of cases, etc.

^{(*} Madhya Pradesh gazette, Extraordinary 28 October, pp. 2719 - 2726)

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

61.Civil and Political Rights of Workers.

Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 (No.37 of 1967) *

The Government of India gazetted on 30 December 1967 the text of the unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967 as passed by Parliament. The Act which received the Assent of the President on 30 December 1967 provides for the more effective prevention of certain unlawful activities of the individuals and associations and for matters connected thereunder. The salient provisions of the Act are summarised below.

Definitions

The term 'unlawful activity' in relation to an individual or association has been defined to mean any action taken by such individual or association (whether by committing an act or by words, either spoken or written, or by visible representation or otherwise)-

- i) which is intended, or supports any claim to bring about, on any ground whatsoever, the cession of a part of the territory of India or the secession of a part of the territory of India from the Union, or which incites any individual or group of individuals to bring about such cession or secession;
- ii) which disclaims, questions, disrupts or is intended to disrupt the sovereignty and territorial integrity of India;

An 'unlawful association' means any association which has for its object any unlawful activity, or which encourages or aids persons to undertake any unlawful activity, or of which the members undertake such activity.

If the Central Government is of opinion that any association is, or has become, an unlawful association, it may, by notification in the Official Gazette, declare such association to be unlawful. Every such notification shall specify the grounds on which it is issued and such other particulars as the Central Government may consider necessary.

No such notification shall have effect until the Tribunal has, by an order made under section 4, confirmed the declaration made therein and the order is published in the Official Gazette.

Where any association has been declared unlawful by a notification issued under subsection (1) of section 3, the Central Government shall, within thirty days from the date of the publication of the notification under the said sub-section, refer the notification to the Tribunal for the purpose of adjudicating whether or not there is sufficient cause for declaring the association unlawful. On receipt of a reference the Tribunal shall call upon the association affected by notice in writing to show cause, within thirty days from the date of the service of such notice, why the association xt should not be declared unlawful. After considering the cause, if any, shown by the association or the office-bearers or members thereof, the Tribunal shall hid an inquiry in the manner specified in section 9, and decide whether or not there is sufficient cause for declaring the association to be unlawfulland make, as expeditiously as possible and in any case within a period of six months from the date of the issue of the notification under sub-section (1) of section 3, such order as it may deem fit either confirming the declaration made in the notification or cancelling the same.

The Central Government may, by notification in the Official Gazette, constitute, as and when necessary, a tribunal to be known as the "Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Tribunal" consisting of one person, to be appointed by the Central Government, provided that no person shall be so appointed unless he is a Judge of a High Court.

Other provisions of the Act deal <u>inter alia</u> with offences and penalties, punishment for unlawful activities, power to prohibit use of funds of an unlawful association and penalty for dealing with funds of an unlawful association.

^{*} The Gazette of India, Extraordinary, part II, Section I, 30 December 1967 pp. 416-426.

"One Plant One Union" formula Rejected by Government *

The Union Labour Ministry has rejected a proposal put forward by the Ministries of Iron and Steel and Industrial Development for the recognition of only one union per plant in the public sector industries.

Union rivalry has been a major source of trouble in the steel plants and the heavy electrical corporation at Bhopal. As a remedy the Ministries concerned had come up with the proposal that rivalry between political factions in the trade union movement could be contained if only one union was recognized by the management of the plant concerned for collective bargaining. Steel Minister Chenna Reddy had gone a step further and had suggested that representatives of the union should find a place on the management.

The Labour Ministry's decision in turning down the proposal comes after a series of consultation which Labour Minister Hathi had had with political and trade union leaders.

^{*} The Hindustan Times, 12 December 1967.

63. Individual Contracts of Employment.

Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Act, 1967 (No. 18 of 1967)

The Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Bill (vide pages 48-49 of the report of this office for May-June 1967) as passed by the Madhya Pradesh Legislature received the Assent of the President on 27 Neptember 1967 and has been gazetted as Madhya Pradesh Act No.18 of 1967. The Act makes certain amendments to the Industrial Employment (standing orders) Act, 1946, and the Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961, in their application to the State of Madhya Pradesh and the Madhya Pradesh Industrial Employment (standing orders) Act, 1961.

Amendments to Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

A new sub-section (5) added to section 13 of the Act of 1946 provides that a Court taking cognizance of an offence under sub-section (2) shall state upon the summons to be served on the accused person that he

a) may appear by pleader and not in person; or

b) may, by a specified date prior to the hearing of the charge, plead guilty to the charge by registered letter acknow-ladgment due and remit to the Court such sum as the Court may, subject to the maximum limit of fine prescribed for the said offence, specify.

Where an accused person pleads guilty and remits the sum in accordance with the provisions of the sub-section (5), no further proceedings increspect of the offence shall be taken against him. Nothing contained in this section shall apply to the continuing offence referred to in sub-section (2)

Amendments to Motor Transport Workers Act, 1961

For the existing section 10 of the Act a new section has been substituted providing that the State Government may, by notification in the official Gazette, make rules requiring an employer of a motor transport undertaking to provide for the dirvers, conductors,

cleaners, watchmen and line-checking staff employed in that undertaking such number and type of uniforms, rain-coats or other like amenities for their protection from rain or cold as may be specified in the rules. There shall be paid to the drivers, conductors, cleaners, watchmen, and line-checking staff by the employer an allowance for washing of uniforms provided under sub-section (1) at such rates as may be prescribed. As such allowance shall be payable by an employer who ke has made at his own cost adequate arrangements for the washing of uniforms.

A new section 35A provides for the summary disposal of cases of offences under section 30 of the Act.

Amendment to Madhya Pradesh Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1961

A new section 17 A provides for the summary disposal of cases of offences under section 17 of the Act.

^{(*} Madhya Pradesh Gazette, Extraordinary, 10 October 1967, pp 2659-2661)

67. Conciliation and Arbitration

Industrial Disputes (Amendment) Bill, 1967 *

An official Bill seeking to empower labour courts and tribunal to set aside a management's order of discharge or dismissal and direct reinstatement of a workman on such terms and conditions as they thought fit was moved in the Rajya Sabha today by Labour Minister Jaisukhlal Hathi on 28 November 1967. The Bill also seeks to empower the labour courts and tribunals to give other reliefs to a work-man including the award of any lesser punishment in lieu of discharge or dismissal as the circumstance of the case may require.

The Bill was passed by the Rajya Sabha. The Labour Minister, Mr. Jaisukhlal Hathi, informed the House that the Union Government had approved a legislation of the United Front Ministry in West Bengal providing for payment of 50% of wages to workers during the period of inquiry.

He said the Union Government had also accepted this principle and had recently issued a notification providing that workers should be paid 50% of wages during the first 90 days of an inquiry. If the inquiry continued beyond 90 days then the concerned workers would be entitled for 75% of wages.

Mr. Hathi expressed his inability to delete the provision that labour courts shall rely on the materials on record and shall not take any fresh evidence in relation to the matter. He said the Government had to avoid, as far as possible any scope for more litigations.

^{*} The Hindustan Times 29 November 1967. The Statesman (Delhi) 1.12.1967.

Working of the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946, during 1965

An article on the working of the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 during 1965 has been published in November 1967 issue of the <u>Indian Labour</u> Journal. The following is a brief review of this article.

The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 is a statutory measure adopted by the Government of India to minimise friction between the employers and employees in industrial establishments and to foster harmonious relations between them by regulating the conditions of recruitment, discharge, disciplinary action, holidays, etc. Under the Act, the employers are required to frame Standing Orders which define precisely the conditions of employment in industrial undertakings for information of workmen employed therein. The 'Standing Orders' so framed are required to be certified by the *Certifying Officeri appointed by the appropriate Government. The Act extends to the whole of the Indian Union except the State of Jammu and Kashmir and is applicable to all industrial establishments wherein 100 or more workers are employed or were employed on any day of the preceding 12 months. The Act also empowers the appropriate Government to extend its scope to any establishment employing less than 100 workmen or to any other class or classes of establishments after giving them not less than 2 months; notice of its intention to do so as well as to exempt any establishment or classes of establishments from all or any of the provisions of the Act.

According to the review, the total number of establishments coming within the purview of the Act was 16,361 employing 5.11 million workers in both the Central and State sphere undertakings. At the beginning of the year, the number of establishments having certified standing orders in respect of all or a group of employees was 13,239 or 80.9 per cent., of the total establishments covered by the Act. The number of employees in these establishments was 426 million or 83.4 per cent., of the total employees in the establishments covered by the Act. The percentages of the establishments having Certified Standing Orders to the total number of establishments covered by the Act were 79.6 and 91.3 in the State sphere and Central sphere undertakings respectively at the beginning of the year. The percentages of workers employed in establishments xxxxxxx having Certified Standing

Orders to workers employed in establishments covered were 82.3 and 87.1 in the State sphere and Central sphere undertakings respectively. At the end of the year, the total number of establishments having Certified Standing Orders for all or a group of employees were 81.3 and 94.3 per cent., of the establishments covered in the State sphere and Central sphere undertakings and the percentages of employees theein were 83.6 and 91.4 respectively of the total employees in the establishments covered by the Act. It will thus be seen that there has been improvement in the certification of Standing Orders in both the State and Central sphere undertakings during the year under review.

The article also describes the salient features regarding progress in the certification of the Standing Orders in some States in which a good number of Standing Orders were certified during the year under report.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal. Vol III, No.11 November 1967. pp.1002 - 1018.

Report on the Working of Joint Management Councils for the Year 1966 *

A review of the Report on the Working of Joint Management Councils for the year 1966 has appeared in December 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal.

According to the article at the end of 1966, 140 Joint Management Councils were functioning, 43 in the public sector and 97 in the Private Sector. These included 83 Joint Management Councils in the manufacturing; 49 in the mining and 8 in the plantation industries. Besides, the State Bank of India had constituted a Central Consultative Committee at the Central Office and a Circle Consultative Committee at each of the seven local head offices. While Joint Management Councils had become defunct in 3 enterprises, new ones were formed in 44.

The article among other matters deals with the size, representation and essential features of Joint Management Councils, and working of the Councils in textile, engineering, mining and plantations industries.

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No.12, December 1967. pp. 1085-1102.

Annual Report on the Working of the Central Industrial Relations Machinery / for the year 1965

A review on the working of the Central Industrial Relations Machinery for the year 1965 has been published in December 1967 issue of the Indian Labour Journal. The article after describing the functions and set up of the organisation, reviews the state of industrial relations during the year under report. According to the review during the year 1965, 5,708 industrial disputes were reported to the Organisation as against 5,514 in the previous year. Of these, 59 disputes were found to be with out any substance and considered unfit for intervention by the Industrial Relations Machinery and 3,590 disputes were settled without recourse to formal conciliation tion proceedings. Of the 1,660 disputes conciliated upon, settlements were arrived at in 993 disputes while the proceedings ended in failure in the remaining 667 disputes as against 679 during the previous year. At the end of the year, the remaining 339 disputes (about 6 per cent.) were pending disposal as against 454 disputes (about 8 per cent.) at the close of the previous year.

The number of strikes was 249 during the year under report as against 361 in the previous year and the number of lock-outs also declined to 7 from 9 in 1964. The mandays lost due to strikes and lock-outs were 7,00,130 and 1,98,969 respectively, as against 7,89,642 and 54,336 respectively during the previous year. Of the 249 strikes reported during the year, the Industrial Relations Machinery intervened in 119 cases, as a result of which strikes were called off in 101 cases. Further, timely intervention by the Officers of the IRM averted threats of strike in as many as 250 cases out of a total of 271 cases where threats of strike were reported.

Implementation of Labour Laws- The Officers of the Industrial Relations Machinery & carried out inspections in the Central Sphere undertakings under the various labour laws, details of which are briefly described below:

Minimum Wages Act, 1948 - As many as 2,223 inspections were carried out and 11,621 irregularities detected during the year as against 2,824 inspections leading to detection of

of 16,439 irregularities for rectification (including 4,818 pending at the beginning of the year). Of these, the employers rectified 12,911 irregularities during the year under review.

Verification of Membership of
Trade Unions - The verification of the
membership of the unions, affiliated to
the 4 Central Trade Union Organisations
is carried out by the CIRM in accordance
with the procedure agreed to at the 16th
Session of the Indian Labour Conference held
in May 1958. The latest available verification figures as on 31st March 1963 were
as under-

Organisa- tion	No. of unions claimed	Member- ship claimed	No. of unions verified	Member- ship veri- fied
INTUC	1,596	18,28,785	1,219 1	2,68,339
AITUC	1,567	10,37,884	952	5,00,967
H.M.S.	349	5,84,851	253	3,29,931
UTUC	335	1,82,843	241	1,08,982
Total	3,848	36,34,363	2,665 2	2,08,219

^{*} Indian Labour Journal, Vol. VIII, No.12 December 1967, pp. 1158-1162.

68. Labour Courts

Rs.0.96 Million to be paid as Bonus to Workers of Hindustan Motrs Ltd.: SupremCourt Judgment. *

The Supreme Court allowed on 21 November 1967 two appeals by the workmen of Messrs Hindustan Motors Ltd., and set aside the decision of the First Industrial Tribunal, West Bengal, in a dispute relating to payment of bonus for 1960-61 and 1961-62. The court accordingly directed the company to pay to the workmen a total amount of Rs.9.60 lakhs as bonus, representing 20 per cent of the annual wages of workmen. This would leave Rs.21.03 lakhs with the company for being utilized for other purposes.

The case of the workmen was that the company had earned a net profit of over Rs. 249 lakhs and, therefore, they were entitled to six months; bonus. As the monthly wage bill of the workmen was about Rs.4 lakhs, the total amount claimed towards bonus by the workmen came to Rs.24 lakhs.

Mr. Justice Bhargava, however, held that there was no justification for granting the bonus at such a high rate of 6 months? wage which would amount to Rs. 24 lakhs.

Though the company, he said, has earned a large amount of profit during the year of bonus, it is to be noticed, that for quite a large number of years the company had been running at a loss. The company had an expanding business and the total amount of surplus available for allocation between the capital and labour was Rs.30.56 lakhs. In these circumstances, he said, they considered it just and proper that the bonus should be paid to workmen at the rate of 20 per cent of their annual wages.

^{*} The Hindustan Times 22 November 1967.

CHAPTER 7. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF WORKERS.

INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

71. Employees and Salaried / Intellectual Workers

D.A. for Central Government Employees Raised Again. *

The Union Finance Ministry announed on 18 December 1967 a further increase - the third one during 1967 - in dearness allowance to Central Government employees. The additional DA ranges from Rs. 6 to Rs. 10 per month in the case of those drawing up to Rs.449. Those in the pay range of Rs.450 to Rs.499, who were not granted any increase on the last two occasions, have also been sanctioned additional DA of Rs. 33 a month.

The revision of DA is consequent on the twelve-monthly average of the All-India Working Class Consumer Price Index Number having crossed 205 in October 1967. The rate of the increased D.A. are on the lines of the recommendations of the Gajendragadkar Commission.

The increases, which will have retrospective effect from November 1, 1967, are payable fully in cash. According to preliminary estimates, this may cost the exchequer an additional Rs.2.5 to Rs.3 crores every month.

^{*} The Hindustan Times, 19 December 1967.

Kerala: Dearness Allowance of State Government Employees raised to Central Rates *

The Kerala Cabinet, at its meeting held in Trivandrum on 6 December 1967, decided to enhance the dearness allowance of its employees on a par with the Central rates with effect from 1 December 1967. The increase ranging from Rs.12 to Rs.20 will benefit about two-and-half lakh employees and cost the State exchequer Rs.4.36 crores more annually. The enhanced D.A. rates will also be applicable to teachers in the aided schools.

^{*} The Hindu 7 December 1967.

Rationalisation of Central and State Government Pay Scales recommended by Study Team. *

A study team of the Administrative Reforms Commission which submitted its report to the Commission on 14 December 1967 has recommended the rationalisation of all Central and State Government pay scales into 12 standard grades.

The 12 standard grades arecommended by the team are: Rs. 70 - 90, Rs. 90 - 140, Rs. 140 - 240, Rs. 240 - 500, Rs. 500 - 900, Rs. 900 - 1,300, Rs. 1300 - 1600, Rs. 1600 - 2000, Rs. 2000 - 2500, Rs. 2500 - 2750, Rs. 3000 and Rs. 3500.

As regards discipline and other allied matters, the report recommends a consolidated legislation bringing together the large number of regulations conduct rules, court rulings and enactments currently in force. A statutory enactment by Parliament is also recommended regarding all conditions of service of civil servants.

The study team's recommendations pertaining to service structure, promotion policies, discipline, and morale and incentive are aimed at enabling the civil servant "to identify his personality with that of the Government for which he works in a fuller measure than hitherto".

While recommending the abolition of the present classification of the Government posts into four classes, the study team has also suggested doing away with the division into gazetted and non-gazetted categories.

The six-man study team on "promotion policies, conduct rules, discipline and morale" of Government employees was headed by Mr. K.N. Nagarkatti, a retired ICS Officer. Other members were Mr. R.S. Khandekar, M.P., Mr. R.S. Gae, Union Law Secretary, Dr. M.S. Patel, an eminent chemical engineer, and Mr. Dharam Yash Dev, a journalist. Mr. N. Chidambaram was the member-secretary.

The Statesman, 14 December 1967.

74. Indigenous Labour

Board Set up for Tribal Welfare *

The Union Government of India has decided to set up a 21-member Central Advisory Board for Tribal Welfare under the Chairmanship of Shri Asoka Mehta, the Union Minister for Social Welfare.

The membership of the board, which will not exceed 25, includes members of Parliament, social workers, social scientists and representatives of voluntary organisations.

^{*} The Hindustan Times 16 December 1967

CHAPTER 8. MANPOWER PROBLEMS

INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

81. Population of India: Rise of 11.07 per cent in Rural Population and 20.15 in urban population estimated

According to a sample census conducted in 1966, the population of India has increased by 11.07 per cent in the rural areas and 20.15 per cent in the urban areas compared to 1961.

The results show that the total population in India on 1 July 1966, was 495 million, 400 million living in the rural and 95 million in the urban areas.

The sample census was carried out in nearly 2,000 villages and 1,200 urban blocks. Each block had a population between 75 and 1,000.

The estimated population (in millions) in different States, according to the sample census, is as follows: Andhra Pradesh 39.42, Assam 14.26, Bihar 52.30, Gujarat 23.11, Madhya Pradesh 36.14, Madras 41.51, Orissa 19.44, Uttar Pradesh 82.03, Maharashtra 42.77, West Bengal 40.43, Delhi 3.08, Himachal Pradesh 1.46, All India 495.00.

^{*} The Times of India 22 December 1967.

Employment Exchanges: Working during November 1967

According to the monthly review of principal activities of the D.G.E. & T. for the month of November 1967, the employment position was as follows:

Seria No.	l‡ Items	foctober 1967	November Increase 1967 Decrease
1.	Registrations	250,869	301,631 _ \$ 50,762
2.	Placements	31,915	36,599 ¹² 1,684
3•	Live Register	27,84,219	27,37,598 46,621
4.	Vacancies notified	54,138	56,127 1,989
5•	Employers who used exchanges	10,380	11,471 1,091

Includes 1113 vacancies notified by private employers falling within the purview of the Employment Exchanges (compulsory notification of vacancies) Act, 1959 against which submission action was not required.

Educated applicants. At the end of June, 1967 there were 10.03 lakhs of educated persons (educational level of Matriculation and above) seeking jobs through Employment Exchanges as against 8.89 lakhs at the end of June 1966. Nearly 1.10 lakhs of these educated applicants were either graduates or post-graduates. During January to June, 1967 the number of placements effected by the employment service in respect of educated persons was about 70,562 of which 10,612 related to graduates (including post-graduates).

Gorakhpur Labour Organisation. The Labour Depot Gorakhpur recruited and despatched 960 workers to various worksites during the month of November 1967.

Vocational Guidance and Employment Counselling Analysis of aptitude tests and criterian data collected from a few industries in country on an experimental basis in connection with the proposed extension of aptitude testing programme for selection of suitable apprenticeship trainees in industries was under progress during the month under review.

Annual issue of Bulletin on Job Opportunities 1965 (Vol. II No.4) issued At the end of November, 1967 intensive Employment Market Information Studies were in progress in almost all the districts of the country (Excluding 8 economical unimportant districts of Rajasthan, Goa, Daman and Diu; Andaman and Nicobar Islands and Laccadive Islands). In all these areas, all public sector establishments and non-agriculural establishments in the private sector employing 10 or more workers were covered.

Displaced persons from East Pakistan: During the month of November, 1967, 293 East Pakistan Migrants were registered with various Employment Exchanges and 28 (EPMS) were placed in employment thus bringing the total number of EPMS registered to 40,340 and those placed to 2,800.

Repatriates from Burma: During the month of November 1967, 323 Repatriates from Burma were registered and 27 placed in employment. This brings the total number of such registered personsto 6,164 and those placed in employment to 622.

Repatriates from Ceylon: 23 Repatriates from Ceylon were registered and none placed in employment, This brings the total number of Ceylon Repatriates registered to 306 and those placed in employment to 15.

Deployment of surplus and retrenched personnel: During the month under review 5 persons were retrenched, 38 registered and 31 placed in employment. The detailed information is given in the following table:

Name of Project

:07

¥No.\ awai-10ct. 67

No. re-

No. of reting assis- trenched personnel tance at during lincluding the end of the month those voluntrenched tarily registered during

lanie if Project	ling assis-	No. retren- ched during the month	iched perso (incld. th	nnel i No. ose iplaced y re-iduring uring the uring month	findica- ting the de-	Number awaiting assis- tance at the end of the month
l. Damodar Valley Corporation	1886	m		-		1886
2. Bhakra Nangal Project	35	-	4		, 2	37
3. Bhilai teel Project	924	-	34	21	19	918
4. Durgapur Heel Project	8			·		7
5. Special Ce		-	· * -	10	. 	86
f Home Iffairs.	(Class (Class		6) 3)			
lotal:	2949	***	30	31	22	2934

Opening of of additional Employment Exchanges. The Project Employment Exchange at Nagarjunasagar was closed and another Ditrict Employment Exchange was opened at Rupar during November, 1967. The total number of Employment Exchanges including 38 University Employment Information and Guidance Bureaux and 13 professional and Executive Employment Offices in the country at the end of November, 1967 remained 437.

Monthly Review of Principal Activities of the D.G.E.&T. for the month of November 1967: Issued by the D.G.E. and T., Ministry of Labour and Employment, Govt. of India.

83. Vocational Training

Labour Ministry's Training Schemes: Working during November 157

According to the monthly review of the Principal activities of the D.G.E. & T., the following was the position of Instructor trainees on roll at various C.T.Is. in the current Session which commenced in August 1967.

Name of the CTI	No. of Trainees on roll
C.T.I. Calcutta C.T.I. Bombay C.T.I. Madras C.T.I. Kanpur C.T.I. Hyderabad C.T.I. Ludhiana C.T.I. Curzon Road, New Dec	282 233 124 340 79 206 1hi 120
	1384

The position of Craftsmen trainees on roll at the Model Training Institutes attached to the C.T.Is was as under:

M.T.I. M.T.I. M.T.I. M.T.I.	Calcutta Bombay Kanpur Madras Hyderabad Ludhiana			445 210 240 350 207 149
	e de la companya de l	.5.	•	1601

Apprentices Act, 1961. The number of apprentices undergoing training under the Apprentices Act was 33688 at the end of September, 1967 of which 28153 were full-term apprentices and 5535 short-term Apprentices. These apprentices were engaged in 2378 establishments.

The total number of institutes for training craftsmen and the number of centres holding part-time classes stood at 356 and 36 respectively. In all 140584 seats were introduced and the number of persons undergoing training under the craftsmen training scheme was 111621.

Monthly Review of Principal Activities of the DGE&T for the month of November 1967 issued by the DGE&T, Ministry of Labour & Employment, Government of India.

84. Vocational Rehabilitation of Disabled Persons.

All India Council Set up for Physically Handicapped: Recommendations of the National Seminar on Rehabilitation of the Handicapped held at Trivandrum, 4 - 6

December 1967. **

The National Seminar on Rehabilitation of the Physically Handicapped was held at Trivandrum 4 - 6 December 1967. The Seminar, among other things, recommended the setting up of an All-India Council for planning, co-ordinating and developing the work of rehabilitation of the physically handicapped, comprising of representatives of leading voluntary agencies, the Ministries concerned and the Planning Commission. The Seminar wanted that there should be a Central and State policy accepting the responsibility towards all groups of handicapped people. It also entered a plea for requesting the State bureaus of economics and statistics to carry out a survey of the disabled in India.

Stressing the need for opening one or more centres in the country for training of all categories of rehabilitation personnel, the seminar suggested taking the assistance of the Department of Health, Education and Welfare of the U.S. Government or other international agencies for this purpose. It urged the Indian Medical Council to accept rehabilitation medicines as an integral part of medical education.

The seminar called upon the Union and State Governments to formulate and make liberal provisions in their budgets for implementing well-planned and integrated national programms of research in medical, social, vocational and economic rehabilitation and other related activities.

^{*} The Hindu 8 December 1967.

Employment for disabled armymen *

The Union Government has decided that all disabled defence personnel will be eligible for appointment to civil posts in or under Government. They will also be given certain concessions in respect of age and educational qualifications.

The concessions will apply to posts filled through the Union Public Service Commission as well as employment exchanges.

For the purpose of employment in Class I and II posts recruitment to which is normally made through UPSC otherwise on the results of a competitive examination conducted by the commission, the cases of disabled defence services personnel who possess the required qualifications and whose age does not exceed 45 years (50 years in the case of disabled personnel belonging to Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes) will be considered by the commission, if necessary on the basis of an interview. Such candidates will be entitled to first priority for appointment to these posts provided they are found suitable by the commission.

^{*} The Hindustan Times 4 December 1967.

CHAPTER 12. INDUSTRIAL COMMITTEES

INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

121. Special Information

Industrial Committeeson Banking Industry Appointed

The Government has appointed a 16Member Industrial Committee on Banking
Industry under the Chairmanship of the
Union Minister for Labour and Employment.
The Committee will consist of representatives from Central and State Governments
and organisations of employers and
employees.

There are already 14 other Industrial Committees on different industries like cement, coal mining, cotton textiles, jute plantations, iron and steel and engineering industry. These industrial Committees help in solving various problems concerning the industry.

Press Release dated 31 December 1967 issued by the Ministry of Information and Broadcasting.

LIST OF THE PRINCIPAL LAWS PROMULGATED DURING THE PERIOD COVERED BY THE REPORT FOR NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

INDIA - NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS

50. General

Madhya Pradesh Shops and Establishments (Amendment) Act, 1967. (No.19 of 1967)

CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS

61. Civil and Political Rights of Workers

Unlawful Activities (Prevention) Act 1967 (No. 37 of 1967)

63. Individual Contracts of Employment

Madhya Pradesh Labour Laws (Amendment) Act, 1967 (No. 18 of 1967)

67. Conciliation and Arbitration

Working of the Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946, during 1965.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

INDIA - NOVEMBER-December 1967

CHAPTER 2. INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL ORGANISATIONS

"Trade Unions in India 1962-63".
Labour Bureau, Ministry of Labour,
Employment and Rehabilitation (Dept.
of Labour & Employment), Government
of India: 1967: Printed in India by
the Manager Government of India, Press. Delhi.
Price Rs. 8. 50 or 19 sh. 10 d. expp 11 plus
76.

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS

"Productivity, Wages and Prices in Indian Industry, 1953-1963; Economic & Scientific Research Foundation, Federation House, New Delhi. October 1967: pp. iii plus 49 (Memeographed)

"Recession and After": Economic & Scientific Research Foundation, Federation House, New Delhi: October 1967: pp. iii plus 21 (Memeographed).

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS

"Statistics of Factories 1960 & 1961". Labour Bureau: Department of Labour and Employment, Ministry of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation, Government of India, Simla: 1967: Printed in India by the Manager, Government of India Press, Civil Lines, Delhi. Price Rs.64.50.ax pp. vii plus 505

CHAPTER 11. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY & HEALTH

"Annual Report for the year 1966-67": Government of India, Ministry of Labour, Employment & Rehabilitation, Central Coal Mines Rescue Stations Committee: Dhanbad: 1967: pp. 26.

LIST OF ARTICLES

INDIA-NOVEMBER-DECEMBER 1967

CHAPTER 3. ECONOMIC QUESTIONS

Automation in an Wnder Developed Economy. - Trade Union Record, 20 Dec. 1967

Automation in Industry by Prof. S.K. Ekambaram - Southern Economist, 15 Dec. 1967, p. 17

Wage Boards: Need for Fresh Look by G.S. Rajhans - Times of India, 3 Nov. 1967.

CHAPTER 4. PROBLEMS PECULIAR TO CERTAIN BRANCHES OF THE NATIONAL ECONOMY

Cooperatives in India by S.S. Puri, Cooperative Conference, 23-28 January 1968 P.35

Cooperative Movement in India, its Origin, Growth and Development - Cooperative Conference 23-28 Manuary 1968 p.41

National Cooperative Union of India, Cooperative Conference, 23-28 January 1968 p.45

CHAPTER 5. WORKING CONDITIONS AND LIVING STANDARDS

Towards a better deal for workers by J.L. Hathi, Minister of Labour, Employment and Rehabilitation. - AICC Economic Review, 10 January 1968. p. 30.

Changing Labour Policy in India (1931-1961) by P.C. Chopra - Maharashtra Labour Gazette, November 1967, p.305. CHAPTER 6. GENERAL RIGHTS OF WORKERS.

> Personnel Management in Asian Countries, by R.P. Billiomonia, Tata Iron and Steel Company Ltd., Jamshedpur - Social Action, November-December 1967, vol. 17, No.6 pp. 429-440

On Industrial Relations in Public Sector - Case Study of Bharat Heavy Electricals, Hardwar, Trade Union Record, 20 January 1968, p.4.

Management Education for Engineers - A plea by G.K. Suri I.I.T. Kharagpur, Industrial India, November 1967, p.27.

Uneasy Labour Relations - Commerce, 11 November 1967, p.1116.

Labour Participation in Management by J.C. Chhabra - The Indian Worker, 8 January 1968. p.7.

Workmen's Participation in the Management of Public Enterprise by P.K. Das - Social Action WoMarch-April 1967, pp.74.

Labour Legislation and Industrial Relations in India by Dr. C.B. Mamoria & R.L. Sharma - The Indian Worker, 25 December 1967, p.5

Joint Consultation in Industry: A brief Resume by B.V.S. Patrudu - The Indian Worker, 18 December 1967. p.6

Some Aspects of Voluntary Arbitration by Sekhar Kumar Datta - Maharashtra Labour Gazette October 1967, p. 157.

Some thoughts on Labour, Management Cooperation by T.K. Karunakaran - Maharashtra Labour Gazette, October 1967, p.157

Industrial Relations at the Lowest by P.B. Gajendragadkar - The Indian Worker, 13 November 1967 p.1

Human Relations in Industry by KG. Desai - The Indian Worker, 13 November 1967, p.6

Manpower Planning in Relation to Employment by K.V. Iyer.